
 

 

M E M O R A N D I U M  
 

Date: February 24, 2022 

To: Mayor Michael Byrum-Bratsen 

 City Council Members 

From: Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 

RE: COIC Council Meeting – February 2022 Engineer’s Report  

cc: Robert Hemminger, Kayleen Rosser 

 

The following is a status report of various engineering items: 

1. TxDOT Overpasses: 

• We had our final coordination meeting with TxDOT in early February. Project is to be let in August 2022.  

• Temporary traffic signal at SH 288 and Meridiana Parkway: TxDOT has informed the City the project is scheduled for 
April 2022.  

 
2. ROADWAY REPAIRS 

• RR Crossing at ICB south of SH 6 is closed due to damages to the crossing. Brazoria County is taking the lead on this 
repairs as the crossing is within it jurisdiction.  

• The City received confirmation from Brazoria County for CDBG-HUD funds. The City allocation this year is $140,000. 
Staff has identified CR 382 as the road to be repaired for this funding. We are awaiting confirmation on when they will 
start construction. 

• Interlocal with BC Agreement for FY 2021-2022 was approved 11/2021. Total estimate from BC: $278,390.34. Jeremy 
is awaiting a schedule from Brazoria County on when these improvements will be started. 

 
3. GRANTS UPDATE 

• TWBD- FIF GRANT – Master Drainage Plan 
i. The first Public Meeting was held on 2/23/2022. 
ii. Next scheduled meeting is expected in early April with details on CIP. 

 

• AMES ROAD BRIDGE 
i. We received two bids for this project. Both bids were significantly more than what was allocated to the City.  

We are evaluating options to determine how to fund an additional $130k to fund this project. 
 

4. Capital Improvement Projects 

• 2021 Waterline Extension 
i. Currently in surveying 
ii. Design to begin in January, expected complete in April 2022, subject to pipeline approvals. 

 
5. CONSTRUCTION PROJECT STATUS: 

A. MERIDIANA SUBDIVISION – RISE COMMUNITIES 

• Active construction projects 
▪ WFCB Detention Basin O and P and Earthwork – 55% 
▪ Meridiana 76B – 100% complet. On agenda for acceptance into the OYMP. 
▪ Merdiana 68 – 75% complete. 
▪ Meridiana 57 – 40% complete. First phase utility complete. 
▪ Meridiana 58A – 35% complete. 
▪ Pursley Blvd. – Has not started 

Cop
y



Engineer’s Report 
City Council Meeting 2/24/2022 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
B. STERLING LAKES – LAND TEJAS  

• Active construction projects. 

• BCMUD 31 WWTP Expansion Ph IV – 99% complete. Awaiting punchlist items to be 
addressed. Awaiting final closeout documents. 

 
C. SIERRA VISTA - LAND TEJAS 

• Active construction projects 

• Meridiana Parkway Phase 5 – 95% complete, Awaiting completion of punch list. 

• Meridiana Parkway Phase 6 – 95% complete , Awaiting completion of punch list. 

• Meridiana Parkway Traffic Signal – 45% complete.  
 

D. SIERRA VISTA WEST - LAND TEJAS 

• Active construction projects: 

• Sierra Vista West Mass Grading and Detention Phase II – Awaiting final walk.  

• BCMUD 53 WWTP- 95% complete. Awaiting punchlist completion.  

• BCMUD 53 Offsite Lift Station – 95% complete. Awaiting punchlist completion. 

• Sierra Vista West Section 7 – Awaiting completion of punch list. 

• BCMUD 53 Lift Station No. 2 – Has not started. 

• Sierra Vista West Section 8 – 70% complete. 

• Sierra Vista West Section 9 – 45% complete 
E. STERLING LAKES NORTH 

• Active construction projects: 

• Sterling Lakes North Detention Basin – 20% complete. 
 

F. OTHER CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 

• AISD H.S. No. 4 – 90% of civil complete internally.  

• Davenport/Discovery Drive: 60% complete. 

• 3321 MER Pkwy 7 Eleven Store: 40% 
 
 

6. OTHER ITEMS: 
A. Baymark Pipeline/ South Texas NGL Pipeline 

 
 
 
 

Cop
y



Cop
y



   

2021 Raci al  Pr of i l i n g Repor t

Iowa Colony Pol ice Depar tm ent

Cop
y



1

"Dr. Alex del Car men's wor k on r acial pr ofiling 
exemplifies the ver y best of the Sandr a Bland Act, 
named after  my daughter . My daughter 's pledge to 
fight for  injustice is best r epr esented in the high 
quality of Dr . del Car men's r epor ts which include, 
as r equir ed by law, the data analysis, audits, 
findings and r ecommendations. I  commend the 
agencies that wor k with him as it is clear  that they 
have embr aced tr anspar ency and adher ence to the 
law."

-Quote by Geneva Reed (M other of Sandra Bland)

Cop
y



January 12, 2022
Iowa Colony Council
12003 Iowa Colony Boulevard
Iowa Colony, Texas 77583

Dear Distinguished Members of the City Council, 

 The Texas Legislature, with the intent of addressing the 
issue of racial profiling in policing, enacted in 2001, the Texas 
Racial Profiling Law. During the past year, the Iowa Colony Police 
Department, in accordance with the law, has collected and 
reported traffic and motor vehicle-related contact data for the 
purpose of identifying and addressing (if necessary) areas of 
concern regarding racial profiling practices. In the 2009 Texas 
legislative session, the Racial Profiling Law was modified and 
additional requirements were implemented. Moreover, in 2017, 
the Sandra Bland Act was passed and signed into law (along with 
HB 3051 which introduced new racial and ethnic designations). 
The Sandra Bland Law requires that law enforcement agencies in 
the state collect additional data and provide a more detailed 
analysis. All of these requirements have been met by the Iowa 
Colony Police Department and are included in this report.

This particular report contains three sections with information on motor vehicle-related contact data. In 
addition, when appropriate, documentation is also a component of this report, aiming at 
demonstrating the manner in which the Iowa Colony Police Department has complied with the Texas 
Racial Profiling Law. In section 1, you will find the table of contents. In section 2, the report includes 
documentation which demonstrates compliance by the Iowa Colony Police Department relevant to the 
requirements as established in the Texas Racial Profiling Law. That is, you will find documents relevant 
to the training of all police personnel on racial profiling prevention and the institutionalization of the 
compliment and complaint processes, as required by law.

In section 3, the report includes statistical data relevant to contacts (as defined by the law) which were 
made during the course of motor vehicle stops that took place between 1/1/21 and 12/31/21. In 
addition, this section contains the Tier 2 form, which is required to be submitted to this particular 
organization and the law enforcement agency?s local governing authority, by March 1st of each year. 
The data in this report has been analyzed and compared to information derived from the U.S. Census 
Bureau?s Fair Roads Standard. The final analysis and recommendations are also included in this report.

The last section of the report contains the original draft of the Texas Racial Profiling Law, SB1074, as 
well as the Sandra Bland Act (current law). Also, in this section, a list of requirements relevant to the 
Racial Profiling Law, as established by TCOLE (Texas Commission on Law Enforcement) is included. The 
findings in this report serve as evidence of the Iowa Colony Police Department?s commitment to comply 
with the Texas Racial Profiling Law.

Sincerely,

Alex del Carmen, Ph.D.

2

Cop
y



Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet consetetur sadipscing elitr.

Table of  Cont ent s

Int roduct ion

Letter to Council Members 2

Table of Contents 3  

Responding t o t he Law

Public Education on Filing Compliments and Complaints 4

    Racial Profiling Course Number 3256 5

Reports on Compliments and Racial Profiling Complaints 11

Tier 2 Data (Includes tables) 13

Analysis and Int erpret at ion of  Dat a

Tier 2 Motor Vehicle-Related Contact Analysis 23

Comparative Analysis 24

Summary of Findings 26

Checklist 27

Legislat ive and Adm inist rat ive Addendum

TCOLE Guidelines 29

The Texas Law on Racial Profiling 34

Modifications to the Original Law 41

Racial and Ethnic Designations 49

The Sandra Bland Act 50

Iowa Colony Police Department Racial Profiling Policy 65

23

Cop
y



Publ ic Educat ion on Responding 
t o  Compl iment s and Compl aint s

Inform ing t he Public on t he Process of  Fil ing a Com plim ent  
or  Com plaint  w it h t he Iowa Colony Police Depar t m ent  

The Texas Racial Profiling Law requires that police agencies provide information to the 
public regarding the manner in which to file a compliment or racial profiling complaint.  In 
an effort to comply with this particular component, the Iowa Colony Police Department 
launched an educational campaign aimed at informing the public on issues relevant to the 
racial profiling complaint process.   

The police department made available, in the lobby area and on its web site, information 
relevant to filing a compliment and complaint on a racial profiling violation by a Iowa 
Colony Police officer.  In addition, each time an officer issues a citation, ticket or warning, 
information on how to file a compliment or complaint is given to the individual cited. This 
information is in the form of a web address (including in the document issued to the 
citizen), which has instructions and details specifics related to the compliment or 
complaint processes.  

It is believed that through these efforts, the community has been properly informed of the 
new policies and the complaint processes relevant to racial profiling. 

All Iowa Colony Police officers have been instructed, as specified in the Texas Racial 
Profiling Law, to adhere to all Texas Commission on Law Enforcement (TCOLE) training and 
the Law Enforcement Management Institute of Texas (LEMIT) requirements.  To date, all 
sworn officers of the Iowa Colony Police Department have completed the TCOLE basic 
training on racial profiling. The main outline used to train the officers of Iowa Colony has 
been included in this report. 

It is important to recognize that the Chief of the Iowa Colony Police Department has also 
met the training requirements, as specified by the Texas Racial Profiling Law, in the 
completion of the LEMIT program on racial profiling. The satisfactory completion of the 
racial profiling training by the sworn personnel of the Iowa Colony Police Department 
fulfills the training requirement as specified in the Education Code (96.641) of the Texas 
Racial Profiling Law. 

4

Cop
y



5

-Quote Author

Racial  Pr of il ing
Cour se Number  3256

Texas Commission on Law Enf or cement
  Sept ember  2001

Racial Prof i l ing 3256

Inst ruct or 's Not e:

You may wish to teach this course in conjunction with Asset 
Forfeiture 3255 because of the related subject matter and 
applicability of the courses. If this course is taught in 
conjunction with Asset Forfeiture, you may report it under 
Combined Profiling and Forfeiture 3257 to reduce data entry.

 Abst ract

This instructor guide is designed to meet the educational 
requirement for racial profiling established by legislative 
mandate: 77R-SB1074.

 Target  Populat ion: Licensed law enforcement personnel in 
Texas

 Prerequisit es: Experience as a law enforcement officer

 Lengt h of  Course: A suggested instructional time of 4 hours

Mat er ial Requirem ent s: Overhead projector, chalkboard 
and/or flip charts, video tape player, handouts, practical 
exercises, and demonstrations

 Inst ruct or  Qualif icat ions: Instructors should be very 
knowledgeable about traffic stop procedures and law 
enforcement issues

 Evaluat ion Process and Procedures

An examination should be given. The instructor may decide 
upon the nature and content of the examination. It must, 
however, sufficiently demonstrate the mastery of the subject 
content by the student.

 Reference Mat er ials 

Reference materials are located at the end of the course. An 
electronic copy of this instructor guide may be downloaded 
from our web site at http://www.tcleose.state.tx.us.

  

Cop
y



Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet consetetur sadipscing elitr.

Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet consetetur sadipscing elitr.

Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet consetetur sadipscing elitr.

6

Racial Prof i l ing 3256

1.0 RACIAL PROFILING AND THE LAW

1.1 UNIT GOAL: The st udent  w il l  be able t o ident ify t he legal aspect s of  racial prof i l ing.

1.1.1 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The st udent  w il l  be able t o ident ify t he legislat ive 
requirem ent s placed upon peace of f icers and law  enforcem ent  agencies regarding racial 
prof i l ing.

Racial Prof i l ing Requirem ent s:

Racial profiling CCP 3.05

Racial profiling prohibited CCP 2.131

Law enforcement policy on racial profiling CCP 2.132

Reports required for traffic and pedestrian stops CCP 2.133

Liability CCP 2.136

Racial profiling education for police chiefs Education Code 96.641

Training program Occupations Code 1701.253

Training required for intermediate certificate Occupations Code 1701.402

Definition of "race or ethnicity" for form Transportation Code 543.202

 A. Wr it t en depar t m ent al policies

1. Definition of what constitutes racial profiling

2. Prohibition of racial profiling

3. Complaint process

4. Public education

5. Corrective action

6. Collection of traffic-stop statistics

7. Annual reports

B. Not  pr im a facie evidence

C. Feasibil i t y of  use of  video equipm ent

D. Dat a does not  ident ify of f icer

E. Copy of  com plaint -relat ed video evidence 

t o of f icer  in quest ion

F. Vehicle st op repor t

1. Physical description of detainees: 

gender, race or ethnicity

2. Alleged violation

3. Consent to search

4. Contraband

5. Facts supporting probable cause

6. Arrest

7. Warning or citation issued

G. Com pilat ion and analysis of  dat a

H. Exem pt ion f rom  repor t ing ? audio/ video 
equipm ent

I. Of f icer  non-l iabil i t y

J. Funding

K. Required t rain ing in racial prof i l ing

1. Police chiefs

2. All holders of intermediate certificates and/or 

two-year-old licenses as of 09/01/2001 (training to be 

completed no later than 09/01/2003) ? see 

legislation 77R-SB1074

Cop
y



1.1.2 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The st udent  w il l  becom e fam il iar  w it h Suprem e Cour t  
decisions and ot her  cour t  decisions involving appropr iat e act ions in t raf f ic st ops.

A. Whren v. Unit ed St at es, 517 U.S. 806, 116 S.Ct . 1769 (1996)

1. Motor vehicle search exemption

2. Traffic violation acceptable as pretext for further investigation

3. Selective enforcement can be challenged

 

B. Ter ry v. Ohio, 392 U.S. 1, 88 S.Ct . 1868 (1968)

1. Stop & Frisk doctrine

2. Stopping and briefly detaining a person

3. Frisk and pat down

 

C. Ot her  cases

1. Pennsylvania v. Mimms, 434 U.S. 106, 98 S.Ct. 330 (1977)

2. Maryland v. Wilson, 117 S.Ct. 882 (1997)

3. Graham v. State, 119 MdApp 444, 705 A.2d 82 (1998)

4. Pryor v. State, 122 Md.App. 671 (1997) cert. denied 352 Md. 312, 721 A.2d 990 (1998)

5. Ferris v. State, 355 Md. 356, 735 A.2d 491 (1999)

6. New York v. Belton, 453 U.S. 454 (1981) 

7

Cop
y



2.0 RACIAL PROFILING AND THE COMMUNITY

2.1 UNIT GOAL: The st udent  w il l  be able t o ident ify logical and social argum ent s against  
racial prof i l ing.

2.1.1 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The st udent  w il l  be able t o ident ify logical and social 
argum ent s against  racial prof i l ing.

A. There are appropriate reasons for unusual traffic stops (suspicious behavior, the officer 's intuition, 
MOs, etc.), but police work must stop short of cultural stereotyping and racism.

B. Racial profiling would result in criminal arrests, but only because it would target all members of a 
race randomly ? the minor benefits would be far outweighed by the distrust and anger towards law 
enforcement by minorities and the public as a whole .

C. Racial profiling is self-fulfilling bad logic: if you believed that minorities committed more crimes, 
then you might look for more minority criminals, and find them in disproportionate numbers.

D. Inappropriate traffic stops generate suspicion and antagonism towards officers and make future 
stops more volatile ? a racially-based stop today can throw suspicion on tomorrow's legitimate stop.

E. By focusing on race, you would not only be harassing innocent citizens, but overlooking criminals of 
all races and backgrounds ? it is a waste of law enforcement resources.

  

8

Cop
y



9

3.0 RACIAL PROFILING VERSUS REASONABLE SUSPICION

3.1 UNIT GOAL: The st udent  w il l  be able t o ident ify t he elem ent s of  bot h inappropr iat e 
and appropr iat e t raf f ic st ops.

3.1.1 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The st udent  w il l  be able t o ident ify elem ent s of  a racially 
m ot ivat ed t raf f ic st op.

A. Most race-based complaints come from vehicle stops, often since race is used as an inappropriate 
substitute for drug courier profile elements

B. "DWB" ? "Driving While Black" ? a nickname for the public perception that a Black person may be 
stopped solely because of their race (especially with the suspicion that they are a drug courier), often 
extended to other minority groups or activities as well ("Driving While Brown," "Flying While Black," etc.)

C. A typical traffic stop resulting from racial profiling

1. The vehicle is stopped on the basis of a minor or contrived traffic violation which is used as a pretext 
for closer inspection of the vehicle, driver, and passengers

2. The driver and passengers are questioned about things that do not relate to the traffic violation

3. The driver and passengers are ordered out of the vehicle

4. The officers visually check all observable parts of the vehicle

5. The officers proceed on the assumption that drug courier work is involved by detaining the driver and 
passengers by the roadside

6. The driver is asked to consent to a vehicle search ? if the driver refuses, the officers use other 
procedures (waiting on a canine unit, criminal record checks, license-plate checks, etc.), and intimidate 
the driver (with the threat of detaining him/her, obtaining a warrant, etc.)

Cop
y



10

3.1.2 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The st udent  w il l  be able t o ident ify elem ent s of  a t raf f ic st op 
which would const it ut e reasonable suspicion of  drug cour ier  act ivit y.

A. Drug courier profile (adapted from a profile developed by the DEA)

1. Driver is nervous or anxious beyond the ordinary anxiety and cultural communication styles

2. Signs of long-term driving (driver is unshaven, has empty food containers, etc.)

3. Vehicle is rented

4. Driver is a young male, 20-35

5. No visible luggage, even though driver is traveling

6. Driver was over-reckless or over-cautious in driving and responding to signals

7. Use of air fresheners

B. Drug courier activity indicators by themselves are usually not sufficient to justify a stop

 

3.1.3 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The st udent  w il l  be able t o ident ify elem ent s of  a t raf f ic st op 
which could const it ut e reasonable suspicion of  cr im inal act ivit y.

A. Thinking about the totality of circumstances in a vehicle stop

B. Vehicle exterior

1. Non-standard repainting (esp. on a new vehicle)

2. Signs of hidden cargo (heavy weight in trunk, windows do not roll down, etc.)

3. Unusual license plate suggesting a switch (dirty plate, bugs on back plate, etc.)

4. Unusual circumstances (pulling a camper at night, kids' bikes with no kids, etc.)

 

C. Pre-stop indicators

1. Not consistent with traffic flow

2. Driver is overly cautious, or driver/passengers repeatedly look at police car

3. Driver begins using a car- or cell-phone when signaled to stop

4. Unusual pull-over behavior (ignores signals, hesitates, pulls onto new street, moves objects in car, etc.)

D. Vehicle interior

1. Rear seat or interior panels have been opened, there are tools or spare tire, etc.

2. Inconsistent items (anti-theft club with a rental, unexpected luggage, etc.)

Resources

Proactive Field Stops Training Unit ? Instructor 's Guide, Maryland Police and Correctional Training 
Commissions, 2001. (See Appendix A.)

Web address for legislation 77R-SB1074: http:// tlo2.tlc.state.tx.us/tlo/77r/billtext/SB01074F.htm

Cop
y

http://tlo2.tlc.state.tx.us/tlo/77r/billtext/SB01074F.htm


Repor t  on Compl iment s and 
Racial  Pr of il ing Compl aint s

11

Cop
y



-Quote Author

Repor t  on Com plaint s

The following table contains data regarding officers that have been the subject of a complaint, 
during the time period of 1/1/21-12/31/21 based on allegations outlining possible violations 
related to the Texas Racial Profiling Law.  The final disposition of the case is also included.

A check above indicates that the Iowa Colony Police Department has not received any 
complaints, on any members of its police force, for having violated the Texas Racial Profiling Law 
during the time period of 1/1/21-12/31/21.

 Com plaint s Filed for  Possible Violat ions of  The Texas Racial Prof i l ing Law

Com plaint   
Num ber       

Alleged Violat ion Disposit ion of  t he Case

1 Racial Profiling Complaint Unfounded

Addit ional Comments:

 

12

Cop
y



Ti t l e Goes H er e

555-555-5555

1234 5th Ave. NYC, NY 00000

13

Tabl es Il l ust r at ing M ot or  Vehicl e-Rel at ed Cont act s
TIER 2 DATA

TOTAL STOPS: 3,012

RACE OR ETHNICITY

Alaska Native/American Indian 2

Asian/Pacific Islander 105

Black 1,306

White 666

Hispanic/Latino 933

WAS RACE OR ETHNICITY KNOWN PRIOR 
TO STOP?

Yes 1

No 3,011

STREET ADDRESS OR APPROXIMATE  
LOCATION OF STOP.

City Street 1,811

US Highway 21

County Road 1,177

State Highway 2

Private Property 1

GENDER

Fem ale Tot al: 1,029

Alaska Native/American Indian 1

Asian/Pacific Islander 32

Black 537

White 232

Hispanic/Latino 227

Male Tot al: 1,983

Alaska Native/American Indian 1

Asian/Pacific Islander 73

Black 769

White 434

Hispanic/Latino 706

REASON FOR STOP?

Violat ion of  Law  Tot al: 15

Alaska Native/American Indian 0

Asian/Pacific Islander 0

Black 3

White 4

Hispanic/Latino 8

Pre-exist ing Know ledge Tot al: 10

Alaska Native/American Indian 0

Asian/Pacific Islander 1

Black 6

White 2

Hispanic/Latino 1

Moving Traf f ic Violat ion Tot al:  2,505

Alaska Native/American Indian 2

Asian/Pacific Islander 97

Black 1,078

White 575

Hispanic/Latino 753

Cop
y



14

Tabl es Il l ust r at ing M ot or  Vehicl e-Rel at ed Cont act s
TIER 2 DATA

TIER 2 DATA cont inued

Vehicle Traf f ic Violat ion Tot al: 482

Alaska Native/American Indian 0

Asian/Pacific Islander 7

Black 219

White 85

Hispanic/Latino 171

WAS SEARCH CONDUCTED?

REASON FOR SEARCH?
Consent  Tot al: 2

Alaska Native/American Indian 0

Asian/Pacific Islander 0

Black 1

White 1

Hispanic/Latino 0

Cont raband (in plain view) Tot al: 3

Alaska Native/American Indian 0

Asian/Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic/Latino 3

Probable Cause Tot al: 16

Alaska Native/American Indian 0

Asian/Pacific Islander 0

Black 11

White 1

Hispanic/Latino 4

Alaska Native/American Indian 0

Asian/Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic/Latino 0

Incident  t o ar rest  Tot al : 2

Alaska Native/American Indian 0

Asian/Pacific Islander 0

Black 1

White 0

Hispanic/Latino 1

  

YES NO

Alaska Native/American Indian 0 2

Asian/Pacific Islander 0 105

Black 13 1,293

White 2 664

Hispanic/Latino 8 925

TOTAL 23 2,989

Invent ory Tot al: 0

Cop
y



15

  

   

WAS CONTRABAND DISCOVERED?

Did t he f inding result  in ar rest  (t ot al should 
equal previous colum n)?

YES NO

Alaska Native/American Indian 0 0

Asian/Pacific Islander 0 0

Black 0 4

White 0 1

Hispanic/Latino 0 1

TOTAL 0 6

DESCRIPTION OF CONTRABAND
Drugs Tot al: 4

Alaska Native/American Indian 0

Asian/Pacific Islander 0

Black 3

White 1

Hispanic/Latino 0

Currency Tot al: 0

Alaska Native/American Indian 0

Asian/Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic/Latino 0

Weapons Tot al: 0

Alaska Native/American Indian 0

Asian/Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic/Latino 0

Alcohol Tot al: 1

Alaska Native/American Indian 0

Asian/Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic/Latino 1

  

YES NO

Alaska Native/American Indian 0 0

Asian/Pacific Islander 0 0

Black 4 9

White 1 1

Hispanic/Latino 1 7

TOTAL 6 17

TIER 2 DATA cont inued

Cop
y



16

St olen Proper t y Tot al: 0

Alaska Native/American Indian 0

Asian/Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic/Latino 0

Ot her  Tot al: 1

Alaska Native/American Indian 0

Asian/Pacific Islander 0

Black 1

White 0

Hispanic/Latino 0

RESULT OF THE STOP
Verbal Warning Tot al: 41

Alaska Native/American Indian 0

Asian/Pacific Islander 1

Black 18

White 13

Hispanic/Latino 9

Writ t en Warning Tot al: 919

Alaska Native/American Indian 0

Asian/Pacific Islander 39

Black 427

White 231

Hispanic/Latino 222

Cit at ion Tot al: 2,052

Alaska Native/American Indian 2

Asian/Pacific Islander 65

Black 861

White 422

Hispanic/Latino 702

Writ t en Warning and Ar rest  Tot al: 0

Alaska Native/American Indian 0

Asian/Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic/Latino 0

Cit at ion and Ar rest  Tot al: 0

Alaska Native/American Indian 0

Asian/Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic/Latino 0

Arrest  Tot al: 0

Alaska Native/American Indian 0

Asian/Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic/Latino 0

TIER 2 DATA cont inued

Cop
y



7 816

Alaska Native/American Indian 0

Asian/Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic/Latino 0

Violat ion of  Penal Code Tot al: 0

TIER 2 DATA cont inued

ARREST BASED ON

Violat ion of  Traf f ic Law  Tot al: 0

Alaska Native/American Indian 0

Asian/Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic/Latino 0

Violat ion of  Cit y Ordinance Tot al: 0

Alaska Native/American Indian 0

Asian/Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic/Latino 0

Out st anding War rant  Tot al: 0

Alaska Native/American Indian 0

Asian/Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic/Latino 0

  

Was physical force used result ing in bodily 
in jury dur ing t he st op?

YES NO

Alaska Native/American Indian 0 2

Asian/Pacific Islander 0 105

Black 0 1,306

White 0 666

Hispanic/Latino 0 933

TOTAL 0 3,012

17

Cop
y



18

-Quote Author

TABLES ILLUSTRATING M OTOR 
VEHICLE RELATED CONTACT DATA

Table 1. Cit at ions and Warnings  

Race/  
Et hnicit y

All 
Cont act s

Cit at ions Verbal 
Warning

Wr it t en 
Warning

Cont act  
Percent

Cit at ion 
Percent

Verbal 
Percent

Wr it t en 
Percent

Alaska 
Nat ive/  
Am er ican 
Indian

322 2 0 0 0% 0% 0% 0%

Asian/  
Pacif ic 
Islander  

105 65 1 39 3% 3% 2% 4%

Black 1,306 861 18 427 43% 42% 44% 46%

Whit e 666 422 13 231 22% 21% 32% 25%

Hispanic/  
Lat ino

933 702 9 222 31% 34% 22% 24%

TOTAL 3,012 2,051 41 919 100% 100% 100% 100%

Cop
y



Race/Et hnicit y Cont act  Percent age                 Households w it h 
Vehicle Access               

Alaska Nat ive/Am er ican Indian 0% 0%

Asian/Pacif ic Islander 3% 6%

Black 43% 26%

Whit e 22% 50%

Hispanic/Lat ino 31% 17%

TOTAL 100% 99%

Table 2. Mot or  Vehicle Cont act s and Fair  Roads St andard Com par ison 

Comparison of motor vehicle-related contacts with households that have vehicle access.

19

Table 3. Mot or  Vehicle Searches and Ar rest s. 

Race/Et hnicit y Searches Consent  
Searches

Ar rest s

Alaska Nat ive/Am er ican Indian 0 0 0

Asian/Pacif ic Islander 0 0 0

Black 13 1 0

Whit e 2 1 0

Hispanic/Lat ino 8 0 0

TOTAL 23 2 0

Cop
y



20

Table 4. Inst ances Where  Peace Of f icers Used Physical Force Result ing in Bodily In jury 

Inst ances Where Peace 
Of f icers Used Physical 
Force t hat  Result ed in 

Bodily In jury

Ar rest Locat ion of  St op Reason for  St op

Table 5. Search Dat a  

Race/  
Et hnicit y

Searches Cont raband 
Found Yes

Cont raband 
Found No

Ar rest s Percent  
Searches

Percent  
Cont raband 

Found

Percent  No 
Cont raband

Percent  
Ar rest

Alaska 
Nat ive/  
Am er ican 
Indian

0 0 2 0 0% 0% 0% 0%

Asian/  
Pacif ic 
Islander  

0 0 105 0 0% 0% 3% 0%

Black 13 4 1,302 0 57% 67% 43% 0%

Whit e 2 1 665 0 9% 17% 22% 0%

Hispanic/  
Lat ino

8 1 932 0 35% 17% 31% 0%

TOTAL 23 6 3,006 0 100% 100% 100% 0%

Cop
y



21

Table 6. Repor t  on Audit s.

The following table contains data regarding the number and outcome of required data audits 
during the period of 1/1/21-12/31/21.

Audit  Dat a Num ber  of  Dat a 
Audit s Com plet ed 

Dat e of  Com plet ion Out com e of  Audit

1 03/01/21 Data is accurate

2 06/01/21 Data is accurate

3 09/01/21 Data is accurate

4 12/01/21 Data is accurate

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:

Race/Et hnicit y Num ber Percent

Alaska Nat ive/Am er ican Indian 0 0%

Asian/Pacif ic Islander 0 0%

Black 0 0%

Whit e 0 0%

Hispanic/Lat ino 0 0%

TOTAL 0 0%

Table 7. Inst ance Where Force Result ed in Bodily In jury. Cop
y



Table 9. Cont raband Hit  Rat e  

Table 8. Reason for  Ar rest s f rom  Vehicle Cont act   

Race/  
Et hnicit y

Violat ion 
of  Penal 

Code

Violat ion 
of  Traf f ic 

Law

Violat ion 
of  Cit y 

Ordinance

Out st anding 
War rant

Percent  
Penal 
Code

Percent  
Traf f ic 

Law

Percent  
Cit y 

Ordinance

Percent  
War rant

Alaska 
Nat ive/  
Am er ican 
Indian

0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0% 0%

Asian/  
Pacif ic 
Islander  

0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0% 0%

Black 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0% 0%

Whit e 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0% 0%

Hispanic/  
Lat ino

0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0% 0%

TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0% 0%

Race/  Et hnicit y Searches Cont raband 
Found Yes

Cont raband 
Hit  Rat e

Search 
Percent

Cont raband 
Percent

Alaska Nat ive/  
Am er ican Indian

0 0 0% 0% 0%

Asian/  Pacif ic 
Islander  

0 0 0% 0% 0%

Black 13 4 31% 57% 67%

Whit e 2 1 50% 9% 17%

Hispanic/Lat ino 8 1 13% 35% 17%

22

Cop
y



123

Anal ysis and 
Int er pr et at ion

The Texas legislature, in 2001, passed Senate Bill 
1074 which became the Texas Racial Profiling Law. 
This particular law came into effect on January 1, 
2002 and required all police departments in Texas, to 
collect traffic-related data and report this information 
to their local governing authority by March 1st of 
each year. This law remained in place until 2009, 
when it was modified to include the collection and 
reporting of all motor vehicle related contacts where 
a citation was issued or an arrest made. Further, the 
modification to the law further requires that all police 
officers indicate whether or not they knew the race 
or ethnicity of individuals before detaining them. 
Further, it became a requirement that agencies 
report motor vehicle related data to their local 
governing authority and to the Texas Commission on 
Law Enforcement (TCOLE) by March 1st of each year. 
The purpose in collecting and disclosing this 
information has been to determine if police officers, 
in a particular municipality, are engaging in the 
practice of racially profiling minority motorists.

In addition, the Texas Racial Profiling Law requires 
police departments to interpret motor vehicle-related 
data. Even though most researchers would probably 
agree with the fact that it is within the confines of 
good practice for police departments to be 
accountable to the citizenry while carrying a 
transparent image before the community, it is very 
difficult to determine if individual police officers are 
engaging in racial profiling, from a review and 
analysis of aggregate/institutional data. In other 
words, it is challenging for a reputable researcher to 
identify specific ?individual? racist behavior from 
aggregate-level ?institutional? data on traffic or motor 
vehicle-related contacts.

Cop
y



7 8224

As mentioned earlier, in 2009, the Texas Legislature passed House Bill 3389, which modified the 
Racial Profiling Law by adding new requirements; this took effect on January 1st, 2010. These 
changes included, but are were not limited to, the re-definition of a contact to include motor 
vehicles where a citation was issued or an arrest made. In addition, it required police officers to 
indicate if they knew the race or ethnicity of the individual before detaining them. Also, the 2009 
law required adding "middle eastern" to the racial and ethnic category and submitting the annual 
data report to TCOLE before March 1st of each year.

In 2017, the Texas Legislators passed H.B. 3051 which removed the Middle Eastern data 
requirement while standardizing the racial and ethnic categories relevant to the individuals that 
came in contact with the police. In addition, the Sandra Bland Act (S.B. 1849) was passed and 
became law. Thus, the most significant legislative mandate (Sandra Bland Act) in Texas history 
regarding data requirements on law enforcement contacts, became law and took effect on 
January 1, 2018. The Sandra Bland Act not only currently requires the extensive collection of data 
relevant to police motor vehicle contacts, but it also mandates for the data to be analyzed while 
addressing the following:

1. A comparative analysis of the information compiled (under Article 2.133):

a. Evaluate and compare the number of motor vehicle stops, within the applicable jurisdiction, 
of persons who are recognized as racial or ethnic minorities and persons who are not 
recognized as racial or ethnic minorities;

b. Examine the disposition of motor vehicle stops made by officers employed by the agency, 
categorized according to the race or ethnicity of the affected persons, as appropriate, including 
any searches resulting from stops within the applicable jurisdiction;

c. Evaluate and compare the number of searches resulting from motor vehicle stops within the 
applicable jurisdiction and whether contraband or other evidence was discovered in the course 
of those searches.

2. Information related to each complaint filed with the agency alleging that a peace officer 
employed by the agency has engaged in racial profiling.

In an attempt to comply with The Texas Racial Profiling/Sandra Bland Law, the Iowa Colony Police 
Department commissioned the analysis of its 2021 contact data. Hence, two different types of 
data analyses were performed. The first of these involved a careful evaluation of the 2021 motor 
vehicle-related data. This particular analysis measured, as required by the law, the number and 
percentage of Whites, Blacks, Hispanics or Latinos, Asians and Pacific Islanders, Alaska Natives 
and American Indians (Middle Easterners and individuals belonging to the ?other? category, as 
optional categories), that came in contact with the police in the course of a motor vehicle related 
contact, and were either issued a ticket, citation, warning were issued or an arrest was made. 
Also, included in this data were instances where a motor vehicle contact took place for an alleged 
violation of the law or ordinance. The Tier 2 data analysis included, but was not limited to, 
information relevant to the number and percentage of contacts by race/ethnicity, gender, reason 
for the stop, location of stop, searches while indicating the type of search performed, result of 
stop, basis of an arrest and use of physical force resulting in bodily injury.

Cop
y



It should be noted that the additional data analysis performed was based on a comparison of the 
2021 motor vehicle contact data with a specific baseline. When reviewing this particular analysis, 
one should consider that there is disagreement, in the literature, regarding the appropriate 
baseline to be used when analyzing motor vehicle-related contact information. Of the baseline 
measures available, the Iowa Colony Police Department accepted our recommendation to rely, as a 
baseline measure, on the Fair Roads Standard. This particular baseline is based on data obtained 
through the U.S. Census Bureau (2020) relevant to the number of households that have access to 
vehicles while controlling for the race and ethnicity of the heads of households.

The census data presents challenges to any effort made at establishing a fair and accurate racial 
profiling analysis. That is, census data contains information on all residents of a particular 
community, regardless of the fact they may or may not be among the driving population. Further, 
census data, when used as a baseline of comparison, presents the challenge that it captures 
information related to city residents only. Thus, excluding individuals who may have come in 
contact with the Iowa Colony Police Department in 2021 but live outside city limits. In some cases, 
the percentage of the population that comes in contact with the police but lives outside city limits 
represents a substantial volume of all motor vehicle-related contacts made in a given year.

In 2002, several civil rights groups in Texas expressed their desire and made recommendations to 
the effect that all police departments should rely, in their data analysis, on the Fair Roads Standard. 
This source contains census data specific to the number of ?households? that have access to 
vehicles. Thus, proposing to compare ?households? (which may have multiple residents and only a 
few vehicles) with ?contacts? (an individual-based count). This, in essence, constitutes a comparison 
that may result in ecological fallacy. Despite this, as noted earlier, the Iowa Colony Police 
Department accepted the recommendation to utilize this form of comparison (i.e., census data 
relevant to households with vehicles) in an attempt to demonstrate its ?good will? and 
?transparency? before the community. Thus, the Fair Roads Standard data obtained and used in 
this study is specifically relevant to Houston-Baytown CSA.

Tier  2 (2021) Mot or  Vehicle-Relat ed Cont act  Analysis

When analyzing the enhanced and more detailed Tier 2 data collected in 2021, it was evident that 
most motor vehicle-related contacts were made with Blacks. This was followed by Hispanics. Of 
those that came in contact with the police, most tickets or citations were issued to Blacks; this was 
followed by Hispanics. However, in terms of written warnings, most of these were issued to Blacks; 
followed by Whites.

Regarding searches and arrests, the data showed that most searches took place among Blacks. 
When considering all searches, most were consented by Whites and Blacks. Overall, most searches 
did not result in contraband; of those that produced contraband, most were of Blacks; this was 
followed by Whites and Hispanics. Of the searches that did not produce contraband, most were of 
Blacks. Overall, the police department does not report any instances where force was used that 
resulted in bodily injury.

25

Cop
y



26

Com parat ive Analysis

The data analysis of motor vehicle contacts to the census data relevant to the number of 
?households? in the Houston-Baytown CSA who indicated, in the 2020 census, that they had access 
to vehicles, produced interesting findings. Specifically, the percentage of Asians and American 
Indians that came in contact with the police was the same or lower than the percentage of Asian 
and American Indian households the Houston-Baytown CSA that claimed, in the 2020 census, to 
have access to vehicles. The opposite was true of Whites, Blacks and Hispanics. That is, a higher 
percentage of Whites, Blacks and Hispanics that came in contact with the police than the 
percentage of White, Black and Hispanic households in the Houston-Baytown CSA that claimed, in 
the 2020 census, to have access to vehicles. It should be noted that the percentage difference 
among White contacts with households is of 3%; thus, deemed by some as being statistically 
insignificant.

The analysis of the searches resulting in contraband shows that the most significant contraband hit 
rate is of Whites. This was followed by Blacks. This means that among all searches performed in 
2021, the most significant percentage of these that resulted in contraband was among Whites. The 
lowest contraband hit rate was among Hispanics.

Sum m ary of  Findings

The most recent Texas Racial Profiling Law requires that police department perform data audits in 
order to validate the data being reported. Consistent with this requirement, the Iowa Colony Police 
Department has engaged del Carmen Consulting in order to perform these audits in a manner 
consistent with normative statistical practices. As shown in table 6, the audit performed has shown 
that the data is valid and reliable. Further, as required by law, this report also includes an analysis 
on the searches performed. This analysis includes information on whether contraband was found 
as a result of the search while controlling for race/ethnicity. The search analysis demonstrates that 
the police department is engaging in search practices consistent with national trends in law 
enforcement.

While considering the findings made in this analysis, it is recommended that the Iowa Colony Police 
Department should continue to collect and evaluate additional information on motor vehicle 
contact data (i.e., reason for probable cause searches, contraband detected) which may prove to be 
useful when determining the nature of the contacts police officers are making with all individuals.

As part of this effort, the Iowa Colony Police Department should continue to:

1) Perform an independent analysis on contact and search data in future years.

2) Commission data audits in 2022 in order to assess data integrity; that is, to ensure 
that the data collected is consistent with the data being reported.

The comprehensive analysis of the data included in this report demonstrates that the Iowa Colony 
Police Department has complied with the Texas Racial Profiling Law and all of its requirements. 
Further, the report demonstrates that the police department has incorporated a comprehensive 
racial profiling policy, currently offers information to the public on how to file a compliment or 
complaint, commissions quarterly data audits in order to ensure validity and reliability, collects and 
commissions the analysis of tier 2 data, and ensures that the practice of racial profiling will not be 
tolerated.

Cop
y



Checkl ist
The follow ing requirem ent s were m et  by t he Iowa Colony Police Depar t m ent  in 
accordance w it h The Texas Racial Prof i l ing Law:

Im plem ent  a Racial Prof i l ing Policy cit ing act  or  act ions t hat  const it ut e racial 
prof i l ing.

Include in t he racial prof i l ing policy, a st at em ent  indicat ing prohibit ion of  any 
peace of f icer  em ployed by t he Iowa Colony Police Depar t m ent  f rom  engaging 

in racial prof i l ing.

Im plem ent  a process by which an individual m ay f i le a com plaint  regarding 
racial prof i l ing violat ions.

Provide public educat ion relat ed t o t he com plim ent  and com plaint  process.

Im plem ent  disciplinary guidelines for  of f icers found in violat ion of  t he Texas 
Racial Prof i l ing Law.

Collect , repor t  and analyze m ot or  vehicle dat a (Tier  2).

Com m ission Dat a Audit s and a Search Analysis.

Indicat e t ot al num ber  of  of f icers who knew and did not  know, t he 
race/et hnicit y of  individuals before being det ained.

Produce an annual repor t  on police cont act s (Tier  2) and present  t h is t o t he 
local governing body and TCOLE by March 1, 2022.

Adopt  a policy, i f  video/audio equipm ent  is inst alled, on st andards for  
review ing video and audio docum ent at ion.

27

Cop
y



Legisl at ive & Administ r at ive 
Addendum

 

28

Cop
y



 29  

TCOLE GUIDELINES 
 

Guidelines for Compiling and Reporting Data under Senate Bill 1074 

Background 
Senate Bill 1074 of the 77th Legislature established requirements in the Texas Code of Criminal 
Procedure (TCCP) for law enforcement agencies.  The Commission developed this document to 
assist agencies in complying with the statutory requirements.   
 
The guidelines are written in the form of standards using a style developed from accreditation 
organizations including the Commission on Accreditation for Law Enforcement Agencies (CALEA).  
The standards provide a description of what must be accomplished by an agency but allows wide 
latitude in determining how the agency will achieve compliance with each applicable standard.   
 
Each standard is composed of two parts:  the standard statement and the commentary.  The 
standard statement is a declarative sentence that places a clear-cut requirement, or multiple 
requirements, on an agency.  The commentary supports the standard statement but is not 
binding.  The commentary can serve as a prompt, as guidance to clarify the intent of the standard, 
or as an example of one possible way to comply with the standard.   
 
Standard 1 
Each law enforcement agency has a detailed written directive that: 

• clearly defines acts that constitute racial profiling; 
• strictly prohibits peace officers employed by the agency from engaging in racial profiling; 
• implements a process by which an individual may file a complaint with the agency if the 

individual believes a peace officer employed by the agency has engaged in racial profiling 
with respect to the individual filing the complaint; 

• provides for public education relating to the complaint process;  
• requires appropriate corrective action to be taken against a peace officer employed by 

the agency who, after investigation, is shown to have engaged in racial profiling in 
violation of the agency’s written racial profiling policy; and 

• requires the collection of certain types of data for subsequent reporting. 
 
Commentary 
Article 2.131 of the TCCP prohibits officers from engaging in racial profiling, and article 2.132 of 
the TCCP now requires a written policy that contains the elements listed in this standard.  The 
article also specifically defines a law enforcement agency as it applies to this statute as an “ 
agency of the state, or of a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of the state, that 
employs peace officers who make traffic stops in the routine performance of the officers’ official 
duties.” 
 

Cop
y



 30  

The article further defines race or ethnicity as being of  “a particular descent, including  
Caucasian, African, Hispanic, Asian, or Native American.”   The statute does not limit the required 
policies to just these ethnic groups.   
 
This written policy is to be adopted and implemented no later than January 1, 2002. 
 
Standard 2 
Each peace officer who stops a motor vehicle for an alleged violation of a law or ordinance 
regulating traffic, or who stops a pedestrian for any suspected offense reports to the employing 
law enforcement agency information relating to the stop, to include: 

• a physical description of each person detained, including gender and the person’s race or 
ethnicity, as stated by the person, or, if the person does not state a race or ethnicity, as 
determined by the officer’s best judgment; 

• the traffic law or ordinance alleged to have been violated or the suspected offense; 
• whether the officer conducted a search as a result of the stop and, if so, whether the 

person stopped consented to the search; 
• whether any contraband was discovered in the course of the search, and the type of 

contraband discovered; 
• whether probable cause to search existed, and the facts supporting the existence of that 

probable cause; 
• whether the officer made an arrest as a result of the stop or the search, including a 

statement of the offense charged; 
• the street address or approximate location of the stop; and 
• whether the officer issued a warning or citation as a result of the stop, including a 

description of the warning or a statement of the violation charged. 
 
Commentary 
The information required by 2.133 TCCP is used to complete the agency reporting requirements 
found in Article 2.134.  A peace officer and an agency may be exempted from this requirement 
under Article 2.135 TCCP Exemption for Agencies Using Video and Audio Equipment.  An agency 
may be exempt from this reporting requirement by applying for the funds from the Department 
of Public Safety for video and audio equipment and the State does not supply those funds.  
Section 2.135 (a)(2) states, “the governing body of the county or municipality served by the law 
enforcement agency, in conjunction with the law enforcement agency, certifies to the 
Department of Public Safety, not later than the date specified by rule by the department, that 
the law enforcement agency needs funds or video and audio equipment for the purpose of 
installing video and audio equipment as described by Subsection (a) (1) (A) and the agency does 
not receive from the state funds for video and audio equipment sufficient, as determined by the 
department, for the agency to accomplish that purpose.”     
 
Standard 3 
The agency compiles the information collected under 2.132 and 2.133 and analyzes the 
information identified in 2.133.   
 

Cop
y



 31  

Commentary 
Senate Bill 1074 from the 77th Session of the Texas Legislature created requirements for law 
enforcement agencies to gather specific information and to report it to each county or 
municipality served.  New sections of law were added to the Code of Criminal Procedure 
regarding the reporting of traffic and pedestrian stops.  Detained is defined as when a person 
stopped is not free to leave.   
 
Article 2.134 TCCP requires the agency to compile and provide and analysis of the information 
collected by peace officer employed by the agency.  The report is provided to the governing body 
of the municipality or county no later than March 1 of each year and covers the previous calendar 
year. 
 
There is data collection and reporting required based on Article 2.132 CCP (tier one) and Article 
2.133 CCP (tier two).   
 
 
The minimum requirements for “tier one” data for traffic stops in which a citation results are:   

1) the race or ethnicity of individual detained (race and ethnicity as defined by the bill means 
of “a particular descent, including Caucasian, African, Hispanic, Asian, or Native 
American”);  

2) whether a search was conducted, and if there was a search, whether it was a consent 
search or a probable cause search; and 

3) whether there was a custody arrest.   
 
The minimum requirements for reporting on “tier two” reports include traffic and pedestrian 
stops.  Tier two data include:  

1) the detained person’s gender and race or ethnicity;  
2) the type of law violation suspected, e.g., hazardous traffic, non-hazardous traffic, or other 

criminal investigation (the Texas Department of Public Safety publishes a categorization 
of traffic offenses into hazardous or non-hazardous); 

3) whether a search was conducted, and if so whether it was based on consent or probable 
cause;  

4) facts supporting probable cause; 
5) the type, if any, of contraband that was collected;  
6) disposition of the stop, e.g., arrest, ticket, warning, or release;   
7) location of stop; and 
8) statement of the charge, e.g., felony, misdemeanor, or traffic.   

 
Tier one reports are made to the governing body of each county or municipality served by the 
agency an annual report of information if the agency is an agency of a county, municipality, or 
other political subdivision of the state.  Tier one and two reports are reported to the county or 
municipality not later than March 1 for the previous calendar year beginning March 1, 2003.  Tier 
two reports include a comparative analysis between the race and ethnicity of persons detained 
to see if a differential pattern of treatment can be discerned based on the disposition of stops 

Cop
y



 32  

including searches resulting from the stops.  The reports also include information relating to each 
complaint filed with the agency alleging that a peace officer employed by the agency has engaged 
in racial profiling.  An agency may be exempt from the tier two reporting requirement by applying 
for the funds from the Department of Public Safety for video and audio equipment and the State 
does not supply those funds [See 2.135 (a)(2) TCCP].   
 
Reports should include both raw numbers and percentages for each group.  Caution should be 
exercised in interpreting the data involving percentages because of statistical distortions caused 
by very small numbers in any particular category, for example, if only one American Indian is 
stopped and searched, that stop would not provide an accurate comparison with 200 stops 
among Caucasians with 100 searches.  In the first case, a 100% search rate would be skewed data 
when compared to a 50% rate for Caucasians.   
 
Standard 4 
If a law enforcement agency has video and audio capabilities in motor vehicles regularly used for 
traffic stops, or audio capabilities on motorcycles regularly used to make traffic stops, the agency: 

• adopts standards for reviewing and retaining audio and video documentation; and 
• promptly provides a copy of the recording to a peace officer who is the subject of a 

complaint on written request by the officer. 
 
Commentary 
The agency should have a specific review and retention policy.  Article 2.132 TCCP specifically 
requires that the peace officer be promptly provided with a copy of the audio or video recordings 
if the officer is the subject of a complaint and the officer makes a written request. 
 
Standard 5 
Agencies that do not currently have video or audio equipment must examine the feasibility of 
installing such equipment.   
 
Commentary 
None 
 
Standard 6 
Agencies that have video and audio recording capabilities are exempt from the reporting 
requirements of Article 2.134 TCCP and officers are exempt from the reporting requirements of 
Article 2.133 TCCP provided that: 

• the equipment was in place and used during the proceeding calendar year; and 
• video and audio documentation is retained for at least 90 days. 

 
Commentary 
The audio and video equipment and policy must have been in place during the previous calendar 
year.  Audio and video documentation must be kept for at least 90 days or longer if a complaint 
has been filed.  The documentation must be retained until the complaint is resolved.  Peace 
officers are not exempt from the requirements under Article 2.132 TCCP. 
 

Cop
y



 33  

Standard 7 
Agencies have citation forms or other electronic media that comply with Section 543.202 of the 
Transportation Code.   
 
Commentary 
Senate Bill 1074 changed Section 543.202 of the Transportation Code requiring citations to 
include: 

• race or ethnicity, and 
• whether a search of the vehicle was conducted and whether consent for the search was 

obtained.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Cop
y



 34  

The Texas Law on Racial Profiling 
 
S.B. No. 1074 - An Act relating to the prevention of racial profiling by certain peace officers. 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1.  Chapter 2, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended by adding Articles 2.131 through 
2.138 to read as follows: 
 
   Art. 2.131.  RACIAL PROFILING PROHIBITED.  A peace officer may not engage in racial profiling. 
 
   Art. 2.132.  LAW ENFORCEMENT POLICY ON RACIAL PROFILING.  (a)  In this article:  
 (1)  "Law enforcement agency" means an agency of the state, or of a county, municipality, 
or other political subdivision of the state, that employs peace officers who make traffic stops in 
the routine performance of the officers' official duties. 
 (2)  "Race or ethnicity" means of a particular descent, including Caucasian, African, 
Hispanic, Asian, or Native American descent. 
 (b)  Each law enforcement agency in this state shall adopt a detailed written policy on 
racial profiling.  The policy must: 
 (1)  clearly define acts constituting racial profiling; 
 (2)  strictly prohibit peace officers employed by the agency from engaging in racial 
profiling; 
 (3)  implement a process by which an individual may file a complaint with the agency if 
the individual believes that a peace officer employed by the agency has engaged in racial profiling 
with respect to the individual; 
 (4)  provide public education relating to the agency's complaint process; 
 (5)  require appropriate corrective action to be taken against a peace officer employed by 
the agency who, after an investigation, is shown to have engaged in racial profiling in violation of 
the agency's policy adopted under this article; 
 (6)  require collection of information relating to traffic stops in which a citation is issued 
and to arrests resulting from those traffic stops, including information relating to: 
 (A)  the race or ethnicity of the individual detained; and 
 (B)  whether a search was conducted and, if so, whether the person detained consented 
to the search; and 
 (7)  require the agency to submit to the governing body of each county or municipality 
served by the agency an annual report of the information collected under Subdivision (6) if the 
agency is an agency of a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of the state. 
 (c)  The data collected as a result of the reporting requirements of this article shall not 
constitute prima facie evidence of racial profiling. 
 (d)  On adoption of a policy under Subsection (b), a law enforcement agency shall examine 
the feasibility of installing video camera and transmitter-activated equipment in each agency law 
enforcement motor vehicle regularly used to make traffic stops and transmitter-activated 
equipment in each agency law enforcement motorcycle regularly used to make traffic stops.  If a 
law enforcement agency installs video or audio equipment as provided by this subsection, the 

Cop
y



 35  

policy adopted by the agency under Subsection (b) must include standards for reviewing video 
and audio documentation. 
 (e)  A report required under Subsection (b)(7) may not include identifying information 
about a peace officer who makes a traffic stop or about an individual who is stopped or arrested 
by a peace officer.  This subsection does not affect the collection of information as required by a 
policy under Subsection (b)(6). 
 (f)  On the commencement of an investigation by a law enforcement agency of a 
complaint described by Subsection (b)(3) in which a video or audio recording of the occurrence 
on which the complaint is based was made, the agency shall promptly provide a copy of the 
recording to the peace officer who is the subject of the complaint on written request by the 
officer. 
 
Art. 2.133.  REPORTS REQUIRED FOR TRAFFIC AND PEDESTRIAN STOPS.  (a)  In this article: 
 (1)  "Race or ethnicity" has the meaning assigned by Article 2.132(a). 
 (2)  "Pedestrian stop" means an interaction between a peace officer and an individual 
who is being detained for the purpose of a criminal investigation in which the individual is not 
under arrest. 
 (b)  A peace officer who stops a motor vehicle for an alleged violation of a law or 
ordinance regulating traffic or who stops a pedestrian for any suspected offense shall report to 
the law enforcement agency that employs the officer information relating to the stop, including: 
 (1)  a physical description of each person detained as a result of the stop, including: 
(A)  the person's gender; and 
(B)  the person's race or ethnicity, as stated by the person or, if the person does not state the 
person's race or ethnicity, as determined by the officer to the best of the officer's ability; 
 (2)  the traffic law or ordinance alleged to have been violated or the suspected offense; 
 (3)  whether the officer conducted a search as a result of the stop and, if so, whether the 
person detained consented to the search; 
 (4)  whether any contraband was discovered in the course of the search and the type of 
contraband discovered; 
 (5)  whether probable cause to search existed and the facts supporting the existence of 
that probable cause; 
 (6)  whether the officer made an arrest as a result of the stop or the search, including a 
statement of the offense charged; 
 (7)  the street address or approximate location of the stop; and 
 (8)  whether the officer issued a warning or a citation as a result of the stop, including a 
description of the warning or a statement of the violation charged. 
 
Art. 2.134.  COMPILATION AND ANALYSIS OF INFORMATION COLLECTED.   
 (a)  In this article, "pedestrian stop" means an interaction between a peace officer and an 
individual who is being detained for the purpose of a criminal investigation in which the individual 
is not under arrest. 
 (b)  A law enforcement agency shall compile and analyze the information contained in 
each report received by the agency under Article 2.133.  Not later than March 1 of each year, 
each local law enforcement agency shall submit a report containing the information compiled 

Cop
y



 36  

during the previous calendar year to the governing body of each county or municipality served 
by the agency in a manner approved by the agency. 
 (c)  A report required under Subsection (b) must include: 
 (1)  a comparative analysis of the information compiled under Article 2.133 to: 
(A)  determine the prevalence of racial profiling by peace officers employed by the agency; and 
(B)  examine the disposition of traffic and pedestrian stops made by officers employed by the 
agency, including searches resulting from the stops; and 
 (2)  information relating to each complaint filed with the agency alleging that a peace 
officer employed by the agency has engaged in racial profiling. 
 (d)  A report required under Subsection (b) may not include identifying information about 
a peace officer who makes a traffic or pedestrian stop or about an individual who is stopped or 
arrested by a peace officer.  This subsection does not affect the reporting of information required 
under Article 2.133(b)(1). 
 (e)  The Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education shall develop 
guidelines for compiling and reporting information as required by this article. 
 (f)  The data collected as a result of the reporting requirements of this article shall not 
constitute prima facie evidence of racial profiling. 
 
Art. 2.135.  EXEMPTION FOR AGENCIES USING VIDEO AND AUDIO EQUIPMENT.  (a)  A peace 
officer is exempt from the reporting requirement under Article 2.133 and a law enforcement 
agency is exempt from the compilation, analysis, and reporting requirements under Article 2.134 
if: 
 (1)  during the calendar year preceding the date that a report under Article 2.134 is 
required to be submitted: 
(A)  each law enforcement motor vehicle regularly used by an officer employed by the agency to 
make traffic and pedestrian stops is equipped with video camera and transmitter-activated 
equipment and each law enforcement motorcycle regularly used to make traffic and pedestrian 
stops is equipped with transmitter-activated equipment; and 
(B)  each traffic and pedestrian stop made by an officer employed by the agency that is capable 
of being recorded by video and audio or audio equipment, as appropriate, is recorded by using 
the equipment; or 
 (2)  the governing body of the county or municipality served by the law enforcement 
agency, in conjunction with the law enforcement agency, certifies to the Department of Public 
Safety, not later than the date specified by rule by the department, that the law enforcement 
agency needs funds or video and audio equipment for the purpose of installing video and audio 
equipment as described by Subsection (a)(1)(A) and the agency does not receive from the state 
funds or video and audio equipment sufficient, as determined by the department, for the agency 
to accomplish that purpose. 
 (b)  Except as otherwise provided by this subsection, a law enforcement agency that is 
exempt from the requirements under Article 2.134 shall retain the video and audio or audio 
documentation of each traffic and pedestrian stop for at least 90 days after the date of the stop.  
If a complaint is filed with the law enforcement agency alleging that a peace officer employed by 
the agency has engaged in racial profiling with respect to a traffic or pedestrian stop, the agency 
shall retain the video and audio or audio record of the stop until final disposition of the complaint. 

Cop
y



 37  

 (c)  This article does not affect the collection or reporting requirements under Article 
2.132. 
Art. 2.136.  LIABILITY.  A peace officer is not liable for damages arising from an act relating to the 
collection or reporting of information as required by Article 2.133 or under a policy adopted 
under Article 2.132. 
 
Art. 2.137.  PROVISION OF FUNDING OR EQUIPMENT.   
 (a)  The Department of Public Safety shall adopt rules for providing funds or video and 
audio equipment to law enforcement agencies for the purpose of installing video and audio 
equipment as described by Article 2.135(a)(1)(A), including specifying criteria to prioritize funding 
or equipment provided to law enforcement agencies.  The criteria may include consideration of 
tax effort, financial hardship, available revenue, and budget surpluses.  The criteria must give 
priority to: 
 (1)  law enforcement agencies that employ peace officers whose primary duty is traffic 
enforcement; 
 (2)  smaller jurisdictions; and 
 (3)  municipal and county law enforcement agencies. 
 (b)  The Department of Public Safety shall collaborate with an institution of higher 
education to identify law enforcement agencies that need funds or video and audio equipment 
for the purpose of installing video and audio equipment as described by Article 2.135(a)(1)(A).  
The collaboration may include the use of a survey to assist in developing criteria to prioritize 
funding or equipment provided to law enforcement agencies. 
 (c)  To receive funds or video and audio equipment from the state for the purpose of 
installing video and audio equipment as described by Article 2.135(a)(1)(A), the governing body 
of a county or municipality, in conjunction with the law enforcement agency serving the county 
or municipality, shall certify to the Department of Public Safety that the law enforcement agency 
needs funds or video and audio equipment for that purpose. 
 (d)  On receipt of funds or video and audio equipment from the state for the purpose of 
installing video and audio equipment as described by Article 2.135(a)(1)(A), the governing body 
of a county or municipality, in conjunction with the law enforcement agency serving the county 
or municipality, shall certify to the Department of Public Safety that the law enforcement agency 
has installed video and audio equipment as described by Article 2.135(a)(1)(A) and is using the 
equipment as required by Article 2.135(a)(1). 
 
Art. 2.138.  RULES.  The Department of Public Safety may adopt rules to implement Articles 
2.131-2.137. 
 
SECTION 2.  Chapter 3, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended by adding Article 3.05 to read as 
follows: 
 
Art. 3.05.  RACIAL PROFILING.  In this code, "racial profiling" means a law enforcement-initiated 
action based on an individual's race, ethnicity, or national origin rather than on the individual's 
behavior or on information identifying the individual as having engaged in criminal activity. 
 

Cop
y



 38  

SECTION 3.  Section 96.641, Education Code, is amended by adding Subsection (j) to read as 
follows: 
 
 (j)  As part of the initial training and continuing education for police chiefs required under 
this section, the institute shall establish a program on racial profiling.  The program must include 
an examination of the best practices for: 
 (1)  monitoring peace officers' compliance with laws and internal agency policies relating 
to racial profiling; 
 (2)  implementing laws and internal agency policies relating to preventing racial profiling; 
and 
 (3)  analyzing and reporting collected information. 
 
SECTION 4.  Section 1701.253, Occupations Code, is amended by adding Subsection (e) to read 
as follows: 
 
 (e)  As part of the minimum curriculum requirements, the commission shall establish a 
statewide comprehensive education and training program on racial profiling for officers licensed 
under this chapter.  An officer shall complete a program established under this subsection not 
later than the second anniversary of the date the officer is licensed under this chapter or the date 
the officer applies for an intermediate proficiency certificate, whichever date is earlier. 
 
SECTION 5.  Section 1701.402, Occupations Code, is amended by adding Subsection (d) to read 
as follows: 
 
 (d)  As a requirement for an intermediate proficiency certificate, an officer must complete 
an education and training program on racial profiling established by the commission under 
Section 1701.253(e). 
 
SECTION 6.  Section 543.202, Transportation Code, is amended to read as follows: 
 
Sec. 543.202.  FORM OF RECORD.  (a)  In this section, "race or ethnicity" means of a particular 
descent, including Caucasian, African, Hispanic, Asian, or Native American descent. 
 (b)  The record must be made on a form or by a data processing method acceptable to 
the department and must include: 
 (1)  the name, address, physical description, including race or ethnicity, date of birth, and 
driver's license number of the person charged; 
 (2)  the registration number of the vehicle involved; 
 (3)  whether the vehicle was a commercial motor vehicle as defined by Chapter 522 or 
was involved in transporting hazardous materials; 
 (4)  the person's social security number, if the person was operating a commercial motor 
vehicle or was the holder of a commercial driver's license or commercial driver learner's permit; 
 (5)  the date and nature of the offense, including whether the offense was a serious traffic 
violation as defined by Chapter 522; 

Cop
y



 39  

 (6)  whether a search of the vehicle was conducted and whether consent for the search 
was obtained; 
 (7)  the plea, the judgment, and whether bail was forfeited; 
 (8) [(7)]  the date of conviction; and 
 (9) [(8)]  the amount of the fine or forfeiture. 
 
SECTION 7.  Not later than January 1, 2002, a law enforcement agency shall adopt and implement 
a policy and begin collecting information under the policy as required by Article 2.132, Code of 
Criminal Procedure, as added by this Act.  A local law enforcement agency shall first submit 
information to the governing body of each county or municipality served by the agency as 
required by Article 2.132, Code of Criminal Procedure, as added by this Act, on March 1, 2003.  
The first submission of information shall consist of information compiled by the agency during 
the period beginning January 1, 2002, and ending December 31, 2002. 
 
SECTION 8.  A local law enforcement agency shall first submit information to the governing body 
of each county or municipality served by the agency as required by Article 2.134, Code of Criminal 
Procedure, as added by this Act, on March 1, 2004.  The first submission of information shall 
consist of information compiled by the agency during the period beginning January 1, 2003, and 
ending December 31, 2003. 
 
SECTION 9.  Not later than January 1, 2002: 
 (1)  the Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education shall establish 
an education and training program on racial profiling as required by Subsection (e), Section 
1701.253, Occupations Code, as added by this Act; and 
 (2)  the Bill Blackwood Law Enforcement Management Institute of Texas shall establish a 
program on racial profiling as required by Subsection (j), Section 96.641, Education Code, as 
added by this Act. 
 
SECTION 10.  A person who on the effective date of this Act holds an intermediate proficiency 
certificate issued by the Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education or has 
held a peace officer license issued by the Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and 
Education for at least two years shall complete an education and training program on racial 
profiling established under Subsection (e), Section 1701.253, Occupations Code, as added by this 
Act, not later than September 1, 2003. 
 
SECTION 11.  An individual appointed or elected as a police chief before the effective date of this 
Act shall complete a program on racial profiling established under Subsection (j), Section 96.641, 
Education Code, as added by this Act, not later than September 1, 2003. 
 
SECTION 12.  This Act takes effect September 1, 2001 
 
_______________________________     _______________________________ 
    President of the Senate              Speaker of the House 
 

Cop
y



 40  

I hereby certify that S.B. No. 1074 passed the Senate on April 4, 2001, by the following vote:  
Yeas 28, Nays 2; May 21, 2001, Senate refused to concur in House amendments and requested 
appointment of Conference Committee; May 22, 2001, House granted request of the Senate; 
May 24, 2001, Senate adopted Conference Committee Report by a viva-voce vote. 
 
 
 
                                    _______________________________ 
                                        Secretary of the Senate 
 
I hereby certify that S.B. No. 1074 passed the House, with amendments, on May 15, 2001, by a 
non-record vote; May 22, 2001, House granted request of the Senate for appointment of 
Conference Committee; May 24, 2001, House adopted Conference Committee Report by a 
non-record vote. 
 
 
 
                                    _______________________________ 
                                        Chief Clerk of the House 
 
 
 
Approved: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
             Date 
 
 
_______________________________ 
           Governor 
 
 

 
 
 

Cop
y



 41  

Modifications to the Original Law  
(H.B. 3389) 

Amend CSHB 3389 (Senate committee report) as follows:                         
(1)  Strike the following SECTIONS of the bill:                                 
(A)  SECTION 8, adding Section  1701.164, Occupations Code (page 4, lines 61-66); 
(B)  SECTION 24, amending Article 2.132(b), Code of Criminal Procedure (page 8, lines 19-53); 
(C)  SECTION 25, amending Article 2.134(b), Code of Criminal Procedure (page 8, lines 54-64); 
(D)  SECTION 28, providing transition language for the amendments to Articles 2.132(b) and 
2.134(b), Code of Criminal Procedure (page 9, lines 40-47). 
(2)  Add the following appropriately numbered SECTIONS to the bill and renumber subsequent 
SECTIONS of the bill accordingly: SECTION ____.  Article 2.132, Code of Criminal Procedure, is 
amended by amending Subsections (a),(b), (d), and (e) and adding Subsection (g) to read as 
follows: 
(a)  In this article:                                                           
(1)  "Law enforcement agency" means an agency of the state, or of a county, municipality, or 
other political subdivision of the state, that employs peace officers who make motor 
vehicle[traffic] stops in the routine performance of the officers' official duties. 
(2)  "Motor vehicle stop" means an occasion in which a peace officer stops a motor vehicle for an 
alleged violation of a law or ordinance. 
(3)  "Race or ethnicity" means of a particular descent, including Caucasian, African, Hispanic, 
Asian, [or] Native American, or Middle Eastern descent. 
(b)  Each law enforcement agency in this state shall adopt a detailed written policy on racial 
profiling.  The policy must: 
(1)  clearly define acts constituting racial profiling;                      
(2)  strictly prohibit peace officers employed by the agency from engaging in racial profiling; 
(3)  implement a process by which an individual may file a complaint with the agency if the 
individual believes that a peace officer employed by the agency has engaged in racial profiling 
with respect to the individual; 
(4)  provide public education relating to the agency's complaint process;    
(5)  require appropriate corrective action to be taken against a peace officer employed by the 
agency who, after an investigation, is shown to have engaged in racial profiling in violation of the 
agency's policy adopted under this article; 
(6)  require collection of information relating to motor vehicle [traffic] stops in which a citation is 
issued and to  arrests made as a result of [resulting from] those [traffic] stops, including 
information relating to: 
(A)  the race or ethnicity of the individual detained; and                  
(B)  whether a search was conducted and, if so, whether the individual [person] detained 
consented to the search; and 
(C)  whether the peace officer knew the race or ethnicity of the individual detained before 
detaining that individual; and 
(7)  require the chief administrator of the agency, regardless of whether the administrator is 
elected, employed, or appointed, to submit [to the governing body of each county or  

Cop
y



 42  

municipality served by the agency] an annual report of the information collected under 
Subdivision (6) to: 
(A)  the Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education; and 
(B)  the governing body of each county or municipality served by the agency, if the agency is an 
agency of a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of the state. 
(d)  On adoption of a policy under Subsection (b), a law enforcement agency shall examine the 
feasibility of installing video camera and transmitter-activated equipment in each agency law  
enforcement motor vehicle regularly used to make motor vehicle [traffic] stops and transmitter 
activated equipment in each agency law enforcement motorcycle regularly used to make motor 
vehicle [traffic] stops.  If a law enforcement agency installs video or audio equipment as provided 
by this subsection, the policy adopted by the agency under Subsection (b) must include standards 
for reviewing video and audio documentation. 
(e)  A report required under Subsection (b)(7) may not include identifying information about a 
peace officer who makes a motor vehicle [traffic] stop or about an individual who is stopped or 
arrested by a peace officer.  This subsection does not affect the collection of information as 
required by a policy under Subsection (b)(6). 
(g)  On a finding by the Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education that 
the chief administrator of a law enforcement agency intentionally failed to submit a report 
required under Subsection (b)(7), the commission shall begin disciplinary procedures against the 
chief administrator. 
SECTION ____.  Article 2.133, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended to read as follows: 
Art. 2.133.  REPORTS REQUIRED FOR MOTOR VEHICLE [TRAFFIC AND PEDESTRIAN] STOPS.  (a)  In 
this article, "race[: 
[(1)  "Race] or ethnicity" has the meaning assigned by Article 2.132(a). 
[(2)  "Pedestrian stop" means an interaction between a peace officer and an individual who is 
being detained for the purpose of a criminal investigation in which the individual is not under 
arrest.] 
(b)  A peace officer who stops a motor vehicle for an alleged violation of a law or ordinance 
[regulating traffic or who stops a pedestrian for any suspected offense] shall report to the law 
enforcement agency that employs the officer information relating to the stop, including: 
(1)  a physical description of any [each] person operating the motor vehicle who is detained as a 
result of the stop, including: 
(A)  the person's gender; and                                                 
(B)  the person's race or ethnicity, as stated by the person or, if the person does not state the 
person's race or ethnicity, as determined by the officer to the best of the officer's ability; 
(2)  the initial reason for the stop [traffic law or ordinance alleged to have been violated or the 
suspected offense]; 
(3)  whether the officer conducted a search as a result of the stop and, if so, whether the person 
detained consented to the search; 
(4)  whether any contraband or other evidence was discovered in the course of the search and a 
description [the type] of the contraband or evidence [discovered]; 
(5)  the reason for the search, including whether:               
(A)  any contraband or other evidence was in plain view;             
(B)  any probable cause or reasonable suspicion existed to perform the search; or 

Cop
y



 43  

(C)  the search was performed as a result of the towing of the motor vehicle or the arrest of any 
person in the motor vehicle [existed and the facts supporting the existence of that probable 
cause]; 
(6)  whether the officer made an arrest as a result of the stop or the search, including a statement 
of whether the arrest was based on a violation of the Penal Code, a violation of a traffic law or 
ordinance, or an outstanding warrant and a statement of the offense charged; 
(7)  the street address or approximate location of the stop; and             
(8)  whether the officer issued a written warning or a citation as a result of the stop[, including a 
description of the warning or a statement of the violation charged]. 
SECTION ____.  Article 2.134, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended by amending Subsections 
(a) through (e) and adding Subsection (g) to read as follows: 
(a)  In this article:                                                    
(1)  "Motor vehicle[, "pedestrian] stop" has the meaning assigned by Article 2.132(a) [means an 
interaction between a peace officer and an individual who is being detained for the purpose of a 
criminal investigation in which the individual is not under arrest]. 
(2)  "Race or ethnicity" has the meaning assigned by Article 2.132(a). 
(b)  A law enforcement agency shall compile and analyze the information contained in each report 
received by the agency under Article 2.133.  Not later than March 1 of each year, each [local] law 
enforcement agency shall submit a report containing the incident-based data [information] 
compiled during the previous calendar year to the Commission on Law Enforcement Officer 
Standards and Education and, if the law enforcement agency is a local law enforcement agency, 
to the governing body of each county or municipality served by the agency [in a manner approved 
by the agency]. 
(c)  A report required under Subsection (b) must be submitted by the chief administrator of the 
law enforcement agency, regardless of whether the administrator is elected, employed, or 
appointed, and must include: 
(1)  a comparative analysis of the information compiled under Article 2.133 to: 
(A)  evaluate and compare the number of motor vehicle stops, within the applicable jurisdiction, 
of persons who are recognized as racial or ethnic minorities and persons who are not recognized 
as racial or ethnic minorities [determine the prevalence of racial profiling by peace officers 
employed by the agency]; and 
(B)  examine the disposition of motor vehicle [traffic and pedestrian] stops made by officers 
employed by the agency, categorized according to the race or ethnicity of the affected persons, 
as appropriate, including any searches resulting from [the] stops within the applicable 
jurisdiction; and 
(2)  information relating to each complaint filed with the agency alleging that a peace officer 
employed by the agency has engaged in racial profiling. 
(d)  A report required under Subsection (b) may not include identifying information about a peace 
officer who makes a motor vehicle [traffic or pedestrian] stop or about an individual who is 
stopped or arrested by a peace officer.  This subsection does not affect the reporting of 
information required under Article 2.133(b)(1). 
(e)  The Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education, in accordance with 
Section 1701.162, Occupations Code, shall develop guidelines for compiling and reporting 
information as required by this article. 

Cop
y



 44  

(g)  On a finding by the Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education that 
the chief administrator of a law enforcement agency intentionally failed to submit a report  
required under Subsection (b), the commission shall begin disciplinary procedures against the 
chief administrator. 
SECTION ____.  Article 2.135, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended to read as follows: 
Art. 2.135.  PARTIAL EXEMPTION FOR AGENCIES USING VIDEO AND AUDIO EQUIPMENT.  (a)  A 
peace officer is exempt from the reporting requirement under Article 2.133 and the chief 
administrator of a law enforcement agency, regardless of whether the administrator is elected, 
employed, or appointed, is exempt from the compilation, analysis, and reporting requirements 
under Article 2.134 if: 
(1)  during the calendar year preceding the date that a report under Article 2.134 is required to 
be submitted: 
(A)  each law enforcement motor vehicle regularly used by an officer employed by the agency to 
make motor vehicle [traffic and pedestrian] stops is equipped with video camera and  
transmitter-activated equipment and each law enforcement motorcycle regularly used to make 
motor vehicle [traffic and pedestrian] stops is equipped with transmitter-activated equipment; 
and 
(B)  each motor vehicle [traffic and pedestrian] stop made by an officer employed by the agency 
that is capable of being recorded by video and audio or audio equipment, as appropriate, is 
recorded by using the equipment; or 
(2)  the governing body of the county or municipality served by the law enforcement agency, in 
conjunction with the law enforcement agency, certifies to the Department of Public Safety, not 
later than the date specified by rule by the department, that the law enforcement agency needs 
funds or video and audio equipment for the purpose of installing video and audio equipment as  
described by Subsection (a)(1)(A) and the agency does not receive from the state funds or video 
and audio equipment sufficient, as determined by the department, for the agency to accomplish 
that purpose. 
(b)  Except as otherwise provided by this subsection, a law enforcement agency that is exempt 
from the requirements under Article 2.134 shall retain the video and audio or audio 
documentation of each motor vehicle [traffic and pedestrian] stop for at least 90 days after the 
date of the stop.  If a complaint is filed with the law enforcement agency alleging that a peace 
officer employed by the agency has engaged in racial profiling with respect to a motor vehicle 
[traffic or pedestrian] stop, the agency shall retain the video and audio or audio record of the 
stop until final disposition of the complaint. 
(c)  This article does not affect the collection or reporting requirements under Article 2.132. 
(d)  In this article, "motor vehicle stop" has the meaning assigned by Article 2.132(a). 
SECTION ____.  Chapter 2, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended by adding Article 2.1385 to 
read as follows: 
Art. 2.1385.  CIVIL PENALTY.  (a)  If the chief administrator of a local law enforcement agency 
intentionally fails to submit the incident-based data as required by Article 2.134, the agency is 
liable to the state for a civil penalty in the amount of $1,000 for each violation.  The attorney 
general may sue to collect a civil penalty under this subsection. 
(b)  From money appropriated to the agency for the administration of the agency, the executive 
director of a state law enforcement agency that intentionally fails to submit the incident-based 

Cop
y



 45  

data as required by Article 2.134 shall remit to the comptroller the amount of $1,000 for each 
violation. 
(c)  Money collected under this article shall be deposited in the state treasury to the credit of the 
general revenue fund. 
SECTION ____.  Subchapter A, Chapter 102, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended by adding 
Article 102.022 to read as follows: 
Art. 102.022.  COSTS ON CONVICTION TO FUND STATEWIDE REPOSITORY FOR DATA RELATED TO 
CIVIL JUSTICE.  (a)  In this article, "moving violation" means an offense that: 
(1)  involves the operation of a motor vehicle; and                     
(2)  is classified as a moving violation by the Department of Public Safety under Section 708.052, 
Transportation Code. 
(b)  A defendant convicted of a moving violation in a justice court, county court, county court at 
law, or municipal court shall pay a fee of 10 cents as a cost of court. 
(c)  In this article, a person is considered convicted if:               
(1)  a sentence is imposed on the person;                               
(2)  the person receives community supervision, including deferred adjudication; or 
(3)  the court defers final disposition of the person's case.         
(d)  The clerks of the respective courts shall collect the costs described by this article.  The clerk 
shall keep separate records of the funds collected as costs under this article and shall deposit the 
funds in the county or municipal treasury, as appropriate. 
(e)  The custodian of a county or municipal treasury shall:              
(1)  keep records of the amount of funds on deposit collected under this article; and 
(2)  send to the comptroller before the last day of the first month following each calendar quarter 
the funds collected under this article during the preceding quarter. 
(f)  A county or municipality may retain 10 percent of the funds collected under this article by an 
officer of the county or municipality as a collection fee if the custodian of the county or municipal 
treasury complies with Subsection (e). 
(g)  If no funds due as costs under this article are deposited in a county or municipal treasury in 
a calendar quarter, the custodian of the treasury shall file the report required for the quarter in 
the regular manner and must state that no funds were collected. 
(h)  The comptroller shall deposit the funds received under this article to the credit of the Civil 
Justice Data Repository fund in the general revenue fund, to be used only by the Commission on  
Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education to implement duties under Section 1701.162, 
Occupations Code. 
(i)  Funds collected under this article are subject to audit by the comptroller. 
SECTION ____.  (a)  Section 102.061, Government Code, as reenacted and amended by Chapter 
921 (H.B. 3167), Acts of the 80th Legislature, Regular Session, 2007, is amended to conform to 
the amendments made to Section 102.061, Government Code, by Chapter 1053 (H.B. 2151), Acts 
of the 80th Legislature, Regular Session, 2007, and is further amended to read as follows: 
Sec. 102.061.  ADDITIONAL COURT COSTS ON CONVICTION IN STATUTORY COUNTY COURT:  
CODE OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE.  The clerk of a statutory county court shall collect fees and costs 
under the Code of Criminal Procedure on conviction of a defendant as follows: 
(1)  a jury fee (Art. 102.004, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $20;        
(2)  a fee for services of the clerk of the court (Art. 102.005, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $40; 

Cop
y



 46  

(3)  a records management and preservation services fee (Art. 102.005, Code of Criminal 
Procedure) . . . $25; 
(4)  a security fee on a misdemeanor offense (Art. 102.017, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $3; 
(5)  a juvenile delinquency prevention and graffiti eradication fee (Art. 102.0171, Code of Criminal 
Procedure) . . . $50 [$5]; [and] 
(6)  a juvenile case manager fee (Art. 102.0174, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . not to exceed 
$5; and 
(7)  a civil justice fee (Art. 102.022, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $0.10. 
(b)  Section 102.061, Government Code, as amended by Chapter 1053 (H.B. 2151), Acts of the 
80th Legislature, Regular Session, 2007, is repealed.  Section 102.061, Government Code, as 
reenacted and amended by Chapter 921 (H.B. 3167), Acts of the 80th Legislature, Regular 
Session, 2007, to reorganize and renumber that section, continues in effect as further amended 
by this section. 
SECTION ____.  (a)  Section 102.081, Government Code, as amended by Chapter 921 (H.B. 3167), 
Acts of the 80th Legislature, Regular Session, 2007, is amended to conform to the amendments 
made to Section 102.081, Government Code, by Chapter 1053 (H.B. 2151), Acts of the 80th 
Legislature, Regular Session, 2007, and is further amended to read as follows: 
Sec. 102.081.  ADDITIONAL COURT COSTS ON CONVICTION IN COUNTY COURT:  CODE OF 
CRIMINAL PROCEDURE.  The clerk of a county court shall collect fees and costs under the Code 
of Criminal Procedure on conviction of a defendant as follows: 
 
(1)  a jury fee (Art. 102.004, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $20;      
(2)  a fee for clerk of the court services (Art. 102.005, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $40; 
(3)  a records management and preservation services fee (Art. 102.005, Code of Criminal 
Procedure) . . . $25; 
(4)  a security fee on a misdemeanor offense (Art. 102.017, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $3; 
(5)  a juvenile delinquency prevention and graffiti eradication fee (Art. 102.0171, Code of Criminal 
Procedure) . . . $50 [$5]; [and] 
(6)  a juvenile case manager fee (Art. 102.0174, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . not to exceed 
$5; and 
(7)  a civil justice fee (Art. 102.022, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $0.10. 
(b)  Section 102.081, Government Code, as amended by Chapter 1053 (H.B. 2151), Acts of the 
80th Legislature, Regular Session, 2007, is repealed.  Section 102.081, Government Code, as 
amended by Chapter 921 (H.B. 3167), Acts of the 80th Legislature, Regular Session, 2007, to 
reorganize and renumber that section, continues in effect as further amended by this section. 
SECTION ____.  Section 102.101, Government Code, is amended to read as follows: 
Sec. 102.101.  ADDITIONAL COURT COSTS ON CONVICTION IN JUSTICE COURT:  CODE OF 
CRIMINAL PROCEDURE.  A clerk of a justice court shall collect fees and costs under the Code of 
Criminal Procedure on conviction of a defendant as follows: 
(1)  a jury fee (Art. 102.004, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $3;         
(2)  a fee for withdrawing request for jury less than 24 hours before time of trial (Art. 102.004, 
Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $3; 
(3)  a jury fee for two or more defendants tried jointly (Art. 102.004, Code of Criminal Procedure) 
. . . one jury fee of $3; 

Cop
y



 47  

(4)  a security fee on a misdemeanor offense (Art. 102.017, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $4; 
(5)  a fee for technology fund on a misdemeanor offense (Art. 102.0173, Code of Criminal 
Procedure) . . . $4; 
(6)  a juvenile case manager fee (Art. 102.0174, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . not to exceed 
$5; 
(7)  a fee on conviction of certain offenses involving issuing or passing a subsequently dishonored 
check (Art. 102.0071, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . not to exceed $30; [and] 
(8)  a court cost on conviction of a Class C misdemeanor in a county with a population of 3.3 
million or more, if authorized by the county commissioners court (Art. 102.009, Code of Criminal  
Procedure) . . . not to exceed $7; and 
(9)  a civil justice fee (Art. 102.022, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $0.10. 
SECTION ____.  Section 102.121, Government Code, is amended to read as follows: 
Sec. 102.121.  ADDITIONAL COURT COSTS ON CONVICTION IN MUNICIPAL COURT:  CODE OF 
CRIMINAL PROCEDURE.  The clerk of a municipal court shall collect fees and costs on conviction 
of a defendant as follows: 
(1)  a jury fee (Art. 102.004, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $3;         
(2)  a fee for withdrawing request for jury less than 24 hours before time of trial (Art. 102.004, 
Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $3; 
(3)  a jury fee for two or more defendants tried jointly (Art. 102.004, Code of Criminal Procedure) 
. . . one jury fee of $3; 
(4)  a security fee on a misdemeanor offense (Art. 102.017, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $3; 
(5)  a fee for technology fund on a misdemeanor offense (Art. 102.0172, Code of Criminal 
Procedure) . . . not to exceed $4; [and] 
(6)  a juvenile case manager fee (Art. 102.0174, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . not to exceed 
$5; and 
(7)  a civil justice fee (Art. 102.022, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $0.10. 
SECTION ____.  Subchapter D, Chapter 1701, Occupations Code, is amended by adding Section 
1701.164 to read as follows: 
Sec. 1701.164.  COLLECTION OF CERTAIN INCIDENT-BASED DATA SUBMITTED BY LAW 
ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES.  The commission shall collect and maintain incident-based data 
submitted to the commission under Article 2.134, Code of Criminal Procedure, including incident-
based data compiled by a law enforcement agency from reports received by the law enforcement 
agency under Article 2.133 of that code.  The commission in consultation with the Department 
of Public Safety, the Bill Blackwood Law Enforcement Management Institute of Texas,  the W. W. 
Caruth, Jr., Police Institute at Dallas, and the Texas Police Chiefs Association shall develop 
guidelines for submitting in a standard format the report containing incident-based data as 
required by Article 2.134, Code of Criminal Procedure. 
SECTION ____.  Subsection (a), Section 1701.501, Occupations Code, is amended to read as 
follows: 
(a)  Except as provided by Subsection (d), the commission shall revoke or suspend a license, place 
on probation a person whose license has been suspended, or reprimand a license holder for a  
violation of: 
(1)  this chapter;                                               

Cop
y



 48  

(2)  the reporting requirements provided by Articles 2.132 and 2.134, Code of Criminal Procedure; 
or 
(3)  a commission rule.                                                 
SECTION ____.  (a)  The requirements of Articles 2.132, 2.133, and 2.134, Code of Criminal 
Procedure, as amended by this Act, relating to the compilation, analysis, and submission of 
incident-based data apply only to information based on a motor vehicle stop occurring on or after 
January 1, 2010. 
(b)  The imposition of a cost of court under Article 102.022, Code of Criminal Procedure, as added 
by this Act, applies only to an offense committed on or after the effective date of this Act.  An 
offense committed before the effective date of this Act is covered by the law in effect when the 
offense was committed, and the former law is continued in effect for that purpose.  For purposes 
of this section, an offense was committed before the effective date of this Act if any element of 
the offense occurred before that date. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cop
y



 49  

Racial and Ethnic Designations 
(H.B. 3051) 

 
  
H.B. No. 3051 - An Act relating to the categories used to record the race or ethnicity of persons 
stopped for or convicted of traffic offenses. 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS: 
SECTION 1.  Article 2.132(a)(3), Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended to read as follows: 
(3)  "Race or ethnicity" means the following categories: 
(A)  Alaska native or American Indian; 
(B)  [of a particular descent, including Caucasian, African, Hispanic,] Asian or Pacific Islander; 
(C)  black; 
(D)  white; and  
(E)  Hispanic or Latino [, Native American, or Middle Eastern descent]. 

 
SECTION 2.  Section 543.202(a), Transportation Code, is amended to read as follows: 
(a)  In this section, "race or ethnicity" means the following categories:  
(1)  Alaska native or American Indian; 
(2)  [of a particular descent, including Caucasian, African, Hispanic,] Asian or Pacific Islander;  
(3)  black;  
(4)  white; and 
(5)  Hispanic or Latino [, or Native American descent]. 
SECTION 3.  This Act takes effect September 1, 2017. 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
    President of the Senate Speaker of the House       
 
I certify that H.B. No. 3051 was passed by the House on May 4, 2017, by the following vote:  Yeas 
143, Nays 2, 2 present, not voting. 
______________________________ 
Chief Clerk of the House    
 
I certify that H.B. No. 3051 was passed by the Senate on May 19, 2017, by the following 
vote:  Yeas 31, Nays 0. 
______________________________ 
Secretary of the Senate     
APPROVED:  _____________________ 
                           Date           
           _____________________ 
                  Governor        

Cop
y



 50  

The Sandra Bland Act 
(S.B. 1849) 

S.B. No. 1849  
An Act relating to interactions between law enforcement and individuals detained or arrested on 
suspicion of the commission of criminal offenses, to the confinement, conviction, or release of 
those individuals, and to grants supporting populations that are more likely to interact frequently 
with law enforcement. 
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS: 
ARTICLE 1.  SHORT TITLE 
 
SECTION 1.01.  SHORT TITLE.  This Act shall be known as the Sandra Bland Act, in memory of 
Sandra Bland. 
 
ARTICLE 2.  IDENTIFICATION AND DIVERSION OF AND SERVICES FOR PERSONS SUSPECTED OF 
HAVING A MENTAL ILLNESS, AN INTELLECTUAL DISABILITY, OR A SUBSTANCE ABUSE ISSUE 
 
SECTION 2.01.  Article 16.22, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended to read as follows: 
 
Art. 16.22.  EARLY IDENTIFICATION OF DEFENDANT SUSPECTED OF HAVING MENTAL ILLNESS OR 
INTELLECTUAL DISABILITY [MENTAL RETARDATION].  (a)(1)  Not later than 12 [72] hours after 
receiving credible information that may establish reasonable cause to believe that a defendant 
committed to the sheriff's custody has a mental illness or is a person with an intellectual disability 
[mental retardation], including observation of the defendant's behavior immediately before, 
during, and after the defendant's arrest and the results of any previous assessment of the 
defendant, the sheriff shall provide written or electronic notice of the information to the 
magistrate. On a determination that there is reasonable cause to believe that the defendant has 
a mental illness or is a person with an intellectual disability [mental retardation], the magistrate, 
except as provided by Subdivision 

(2), shall order the local mental health or intellectual and developmental disability 
[mental retardation] authority or another qualified mental health or intellectual disability 
[mental retardation] expert to: 
(A)  collect information regarding whether the defendant has a mental illness as defined by 
Section 571.003, 
Health and Safety Code, or is a person with an intellectual disability [mental retardation] as 
defined by Section 591.003, Health and Safety Code, including information obtained from any 
previous assessment of the defendant; and 
(B)  provide to the magistrate a written assessment of the information collected under Paragraph 
(A). 

(2)  The magistrate is not required to order the collection of information under Subdivision 

Cop
y



 51  

(1) if the defendant in the year preceding the defendant's applicable date of arrest has 
been determined to have a mental illness or to be a person with an intellectual disability 
[mental retardation] by the local mental health or intellectual and developmental 
disability [mental retardation] authority or another mental health or intellectual disability 
[mental retardation] expert described by Subdivision 
(1).  A court that elects to use the results of that previous determination may proceed 

under Subsection (c). 
(3)  If the defendant fails or refuses to submit to the collection of information regarding 

the defendant as required under Subdivision (1), the magistrate may order the defendant to 
submit to an examination in a mental health facility determined to be appropriate by the local 
mental health or intellectual and developmental disability [mental retardation] authority for a 
reasonable period not to exceed 21 days.  The magistrate may order a defendant to a facility 
operated by the Department of State Health Services or the Health and Human Services 
Commission [Department of Aging and Disability Services] for examination only on request of the 
local mental health or intellectual and developmental disability [mental retardation] authority 
and with the consent of the head of the facility.  If a defendant who has been ordered to a facility 
operated by the Department of State Health Services or the Health and Human Services 
Commission [Department of Aging and Disability Services] for examination remains in the facility 
for a period exceeding 21 days, the head of that facility shall cause the defendant to be 
immediately transported to the committing court and placed in the custody of the sheriff of the 
county in which the committing court is located.  That county shall reimburse the facility for the 
mileage and per diem expenses of the personnel required to transport the defendant calculated 
in accordance with the state travel regulations in effect at the time. 

(b)  A written assessment of the information collected under Subsection (a)(1)(A) shall be 
provided to the magistrate not later than the 30th day after the date of any order issued under 
Subsection (a) in a felony case and not later than the 10th day after the date of any order issued 
under that subsection in a misdemeanor case, and the magistrate shall provide copies of the 
written assessment to the defense counsel, the prosecuting attorney, and the trial court.  The 
written assessment must include a description of the procedures used in the collection of 
information under Subsection (a)(1)(A) and the applicable expert's 
observations and findings pertaining to: 

(1)  whether the defendant is a person who has a mental illness or is a person with an 
intellectual disability [mental retardation]; 

(2)  whether there is clinical evidence to support a belief that the defendant may be 
incompetent to stand trial and should undergo a complete competency examination under 
Subchapter B, Chapter 46B; and 

(3)  recommended treatment. 
(c)  After the trial court receives the applicable expert's written assessment relating to the 

defendant under Subsection (b) 
or elects to use the results of a previous determination as described by Subsection (a)(2), the trial 
court may, as applicable: 

(1)  resume criminal proceedings against the defendant, including any appropriate 
proceedings related to the defendant's release on personal bond under Article 17.032; 

(2)  resume or initiate competency proceedings, if required, as provided by Chapter 46B 

Cop
y



 52  

or other proceedings affecting the defendant's receipt of appropriate court-ordered mental 
health or intellectual disability [mental retardation] services, including proceedings related to the 
defendant's receipt of outpatient mental health services under Section 574.034, Health and 
Safety Code; or 

(3)  consider the written assessment during the punishment phase after a conviction of 
the offense for which the defendant was arrested, as part of a presentence investigation report, 
or in connection with the impositions of conditions following placement on community 
supervision, including deferred adjudication community supervision. 

(d)  This article does not prevent the applicable court from, before, during, or after the 
collection of information regarding the defendant as described by this article: (1)  releasing a 
defendant who has a mental illness [mentally ill] or is a person with an intellectual disability 
[mentally retarded defendant] from custody on personal or surety bond; or  

(2)  ordering an examination regarding the defendant's competency to stand trial. 
 
SECTION 2.02.  Chapter 16, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended by adding Article 16.23 to 
read as follows: 
 
Art. 16.23.  DIVERSION OF PERSONS SUFFERING MENTAL HEALTH CRISIS OR SUBSTANCE ABUSE 
ISSUE. (a)  Each law enforcement agency shall make a good faith effort to divert a person suffering 
a mental health crisis or suffering from the effects of substance abuse to a proper treatment 
center in the agency's jurisdiction if: 

(1)  there is an available and appropriate treatment center in the agency's jurisdiction to 
which the agency may divert the person; 

(2)  it is reasonable to divert the person; 
(3)  the offense that the person is accused of is a misdemeanor, other than a misdemeanor 

involving violence; and 
(4)  the mental health crisis or substance abuse issue is suspected to be the reason the 

person committed the alleged offense. 
(b)  Subsection (a) does not apply to a person who is accused of an offense under Section 

49.04, 49.045, 49.05, 49.06, 49.065, 
49.07, or 49.08, Penal Code. 
 
SECTION 2.03.  Section 539.002, Government Code, is amended to read as follows: 
 
Sec. 539.002.  GRANTS FOR ESTABLISHMENT AND EXPANSION OF COMMUNITY 
COLLABORATIVES. (a)  To the extent funds are appropriated to the department for that purpose, 
the department shall make grants to entities, including local governmental entities, nonprofit 
community organizations, and faith-based community organizations, to establish or expand 
community collaboratives that bring the public and private sectors together to provide services 
to persons experiencing homelessness, substance abuse issues, or [and] mental illness.  [The 
department may make a maximum of five grants, which must be made in the most populous 
municipalities in this state that are located in counties with a population of more than one 
million.]  In awarding grants, the department shall give special consideration to entities: 
             (1)  establishing [a] new collaboratives; or 

Cop
y



 53  

             (2)  establishing or expanding collaboratives thatserve two or more counties, each with a 
population of less than 100,000 [collaborative]. 

(b)  The department shall require each entity awarded a grant under this section to: 
(1)  leverage additional funding from private sources in an amount that is at least equal 

to the amount of the grant awarded under this section; [and] 
(2)  provide evidence of significant coordination and collaboration between the entity, 

local mental health authorities, municipalities, local law enforcement agencies, and other 
community stakeholders in establishing or expanding a community collaborative funded by a 
grant awarded under this section; and 

(3)  provide evidence of a local law enforcement policy to divert appropriate persons from 
jails or other detention facilities to an entity affiliated with a community collaborative for the 
purpose of providing services to those persons. 
 
SECTION 2.04.  Chapter 539, Government Code, is amended by adding Section 539.0051 to read 
as follows: 
 
Sec. 539.0051.  PLAN REQUIRED FOR CERTAIN COMMUNITY COLLABORATIVES. (a)  The governing 
body of a county shall develop and make public a plan detailing: 

(1)  how local mental health authorities, municipalities, local law enforcement agencies, 
and other community stakeholders in the county could coordinate to establish or expand a 
community collaborative to accomplish the goals of Section 539.002; 

(2)  how entities in the county may leverage funding from private sources to accomplish 
the goals of Section 539.002 through the formation or expansion of a community collaborative; 
and 
             (3)  how the formation or expansion of a community collaborative could establish or 
support resources or services to help local law enforcement agencies to divert persons who have 
been arrested to appropriate mental health care or substance abuse treatment. 

(b)  The governing body of a county in which an entity that received a grant under Section 
539.002 before September 1, 2017, is located is not required to develop a plan under Subsection 
(a). 

(c)  Two or more counties, each with a population of less than 100,000, may form a joint 
plan under Subsection (a). 
 
ARTICLE 3.  BAIL, PRETRIAL RELEASE, AND COUNTY JAIL STANDARDS 
 
SECTION 3.01.  The heading to Article 17.032, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended to read as 
follows: 
 
Art. 17.032.  RELEASE ON PERSONAL BOND OF CERTAIN [MENTALLY ILL] DEFENDANTS WITH 
MENTAL ILLNESS OR INTELLECTUAL DISABILITY. 
 
SECTION 3.02.  Articles 17.032(b) and (c), Code of Criminal Procedure, are amended to read as 
follows: 

(b)  A magistrate shall release a defendant on personal bond unless good cause is shown 

Cop
y



 54  

otherwise if the: 
(1)  defendant is not charged with and has not been previously convicted of a violent 

offense; 
(2)  defendant is examined by the local mental health or intellectual and developmental 

disability [mental retardation] authority or another mental health expert under Article 16.22 [of 
this code]; 

(3)  applicable expert, in a written assessment submitted to the magistrate under Article 
16.22: 
(A)  concludes that the defendant has a mental illness or is a person with an intellectual disability 
[mental retardation] and is nonetheless competent to stand trial; and 
(B)  recommends mental health treatment or intellectual disability treatment for the defendant, 
as applicable; and 

(4)  magistrate determines, in consultation with the local mental health or intellectual and 
developmental disability [mental retardation] authority, that appropriate community-based 
mental health or intellectual disability [mental retardation] services for the defendant are 
available through the [Texas] Department of State [Mental] Health Services [and Mental 
Retardation] under Section 534.053, Health and Safety Code, or through another mental health 
or intellectual disability [mental retardation] services provider. 

(c)  The magistrate, unless good cause is shown for not requiring treatment, shall require 
as a condition of release on personal bond under this article that the defendant submit to 
outpatient or inpatient mental health or intellectual disability [mental retardation] treatment as 
recommended by the local mental health or intellectual and developmental disability [mental 
retardation] authority if the defendant's: 

(1)  mental illness or intellectual disability [mental retardation] is chronic in nature; or 
(2)  ability to function independently will continue to deteriorate if the defendant is not 

treated. 
 
SECTION 3.03.  Article 25.03, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended to read as follows: 
 
Art. 25.03.  IF ON BAIL IN FELONY. When the accused, in case of felony, is on bail at the time the 
indictment is presented, [it is not necessary to serve him with a copy, but] the clerk shall [on 
request] deliver a copy of the indictment [same] to the accused or the accused's [his] counsel[,] 
at the earliest possible time. 
 
SECTION 3.04.  Article 25.04, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended to read as follows: 
 
Art. 25.04.  IN MISDEMEANOR. In misdemeanors, the clerk shall deliver a copy of the indictment 
or information to the accused or the accused's counsel at the earliest possible time before trial 
[it shall not be necessary before trial to furnish the accused with a copy of the indictment or 
information; but he or his counsel may demand a copy, which shall be given as early as possible 
 
SECTION 3.05.  Section 511.009(a), Government Code, as amended by Chapters 281 (H.B. 875), 
648 (H.B. 549), and 688 (H.B. 634), Acts of the 84th Legislature, Regular Session, 2015, is 
reenacted and amended to read as follows: 

Cop
y



 55  

(a)  The commission shall: 
(1)  adopt reasonable rules and procedures establishing minimum standards for the 

construction, equipment, maintenance, and operation of county jails; 
(2)  adopt reasonable rules and procedures establishing minimum standards for the 

custody, care, and treatment of prisoners; 
(3)  adopt reasonable rules establishing minimum standards for the number of jail 

supervisory personnel and for programs and services to meet the needs of prisoners; 
(4)  adopt reasonable rules and procedures establishing minimum requirements for 

programs of rehabilitation, education, and recreation in county jails; 
(5)  revise, amend, or change rules and procedures if necessary;  
(6)  provide to local government officials consultation on and technical assistance for 

county jails; 
(7)  review and comment on plans for the construction and major modification or 

renovation of county jails; 
(8)  require that the sheriff and commissioners of each county submit to the commission, 

on a form prescribed by the commission, an annual report on the conditions in each county jail 
within their jurisdiction, including all information necessary to determine compliance with state 
law, commission orders, and the rules adopted under this chapter; 

(9)  review the reports submitted under Subdivision (8) and require commission 
employees to inspect county jails regularly to ensure compliance with state law, commission 
orders, and rules 
and procedures adopted under this chapter; 

(10)  adopt a classification system to assist sheriffs and judges in determining which 
defendants are low-risk and consequently suitable participants in a county jail work release 
program under Article 42.034, Code of Criminal Procedure; 

(11)  adopt rules relating to requirements for segregation of classes of inmates and to 
capacities for county jails; 

(12)  require that the chief jailer of each municipal lockup submit to the commission, on 
a form prescribed by the commission, an annual report of persons under 17 years of age 
securely detained in the lockup, including all information necessary to determine compliance 
with state law concerning secure confinement of children in municipal lockups; 

(13)  at least annually determine whether each county jail is in compliance with the rules 
and procedures adopted under this chapter; 

(14)  require that the sheriff and commissioners court of each county submit to the 
commission, on a form prescribed by the commission, an annual report of persons under 17 years 
of age securely detained in the county jail, including all information necessary to determine 
compliance with state law concerning secure confinement of children in county jails; 

(15)  schedule announced and unannounced inspections of jails under the commission's 
jurisdiction using the risk assessment plan established under Section 511.0085 to guide the 
inspections process; 

(16)  adopt a policy for gathering and distributing to jails under the commission's 
jurisdiction information regarding: 

(A)  common issues concerning jail administration; 
(B)  examples of successful strategies for maintaining compliance with state law and the rules, 

Cop
y



 56  

standards, and procedures of the commission; and 
(C)  solutions to operational challenges for jails;  

(17)  report to the Texas Correctional Office on Offenders with Medical or Mental 
Impairments on a jail's compliance with Article 16.22, Code of Criminal Procedure; 

(18)  adopt reasonable rules and procedures establishing minimum requirements for jails 
to: 
(A)  determine if a prisoner is pregnant; and 
(B)  ensure that the jail's health services plan addresses medical and mental health care, including 
nutritional requirements, and any special housing or work assignment needs for persons who are 
confined in the jail and are known or determined to be pregnant; 

(19)  provide guidelines to sheriffs regarding contracts between a sheriff and another 
entity for the provision of food services to or the operation of a commissary in a jail under the 
commission's jurisdiction, including specific provisions regarding conflicts of interest and 
avoiding the appearance of impropriety; [and] 

(20)  adopt reasonable rules and procedures establishing minimum standards for prisoner 
visitation that provide each prisoner at a county jail with a minimum of two in-person, noncontact 
visitation periods per week of at least 20 minutes duration each; 

(21) [(20)]  require the sheriff of each county to: 
(A)  investigate and verify the veteran status of each prisoner by using data made available from 
the Veterans Reentry Search Service (VRSS) operated by the United States Department of 
Veterans Affairs or a similar service; and 
(B)  use the data described by Paragraph (A) to assist prisoners who are veterans in applying for 
federal benefits or compensation for which the prisoners may be eligible under a program 
administered by the United States Department of Veterans Affairs; 

(22) [(20)]  adopt reasonable rules and procedures regarding visitation of a prisoner at a 
county jail by a guardian, as defined by Section 1002.012, Estates Code, that: 
(A)  allow visitation by a guardian to the same extent as the prisoner's next of kin, including 
placing the guardian on the prisoner's approved visitors list on the guardian's request and 
providing the guardian access to the prisoner during a facility's standard visitation hours if the 
prisoner is otherwise eligible to receive visitors; and 
(B)  require the guardian to provide the sheriff with letters of guardianship issued as provided by 
Section 1106.001, Estates Code, before being allowed to visit the prisoner; and 

(23)  adopt reasonable rules and procedures to ensure the safety of prisoners, including 
rules and procedures that require a county jail to: 
(A)  give prisoners the ability to access a mental health professional at the jail through a 
telemental health service 24 hours a day; 
(B)  give prisoners the ability to access a health professional at the jail or through a telehealth 
service 24 hours a day or, if a health professional is unavailable at the jail or through a telehealth 
service, provide for a prisoner to be transported to access a health professional; and 
(C)  if funding is available under Section 511.019, install automated electronic sensors or cameras 
to ensure accurate and timely in-person checks of cells or groups of cells confining at-risk 
individuals. 
 
SECTION 3.06.  Section 511.009, Government Code, is amended by adding Subsection (d) to read 

Cop
y



 57  

as follows: 
(d)  The commission shall adopt reasonable rules and procedures establishing minimum 

standards regarding the continuity of prescription medications for the care and treatment of 
prisoners. The rules and procedures shall require that a qualified medical professional shall 
review as soon as possible any prescription medication a prisoner is taking when the prisoner is 
taken into custody. 
 
SECTION 3.07.  Chapter 511, Government Code, is amended by adding Sections 511.019, 511.020, 
and 511.021 to read as follows: 
 
Sec. 511.019.  PRISONER SAFETY FUND. (a)  The prisoner safety fund is a dedicated account in the 
general revenue fund. 

(b)  The prisoner safety fund consists of: 
(1)  appropriations of money to the fund by the legislature; and 
(2)  gifts, grants, including grants from the federal government, and other donations 

received for the fund. 
(c)  Money in the fund may be appropriated only to the commission to pay for capital 

improvements that are required under Section 511.009(a)(23). 
(d)  The commission by rule may establish a grant program to provide grants to counties 

to fund capital improvements described by Subsection (c). The commission may only provide a 
grant to a county for capital improvements to a county jail with a capacity of not more than 96 
prisoners. 
 
Sec. 511.020.  SERIOUS INCIDENTS REPORT. (a)  On or before the fifth day of each month, the 
sheriff of each county shall report to the commission regarding the occurrence during the 
preceding month of any of the following incidents involving a prisoner in the county jail: 
             (1)  a suicide; 
             (2)  an attempted suicide; 
             (3)  a death; 
             (4)  a serious bodily injury, as that term is defined by 
Section 1.07, Penal Code; 
             (5)  an assault; 
             (6)  an escape; 
             (7)  a sexual assault; and 
             (8)  any use of force resulting in bodily injury, as that term is defined by Section 1.07, Penal 
Code. 

(b)  The commission shall prescribe a form for the report required by Subsection (a). 
(c)  The information required to be reported under Subsection (a)(8) may not include the 

name or other identifying information of a county jailer or jail employee. 
(d)  The information reported under Subsection (a) is public information subject to an 

open records request under Chapter 552. 
 
Sec. 511.021.  INDEPENDENT INVESTIGATION OF DEATH OCCURRING IN COUNTY JAIL. (a)  On the 
death of a prisoner in a county jail, the commission shall appoint a law enforcement agency, other 

Cop
y



 58  

than the local law enforcement agency that operates the county jail, to investigate the death as 
soon as possible. 

(b)  The commission shall adopt any rules necessary relating 
to the appointment of a law enforcement agency under Subsection 

(a), including rules relating to cooperation between law 
enforcement agencies and to procedures for handling evidence. 
 
SECTION 3.08.  The changes in law made by this article to Article 17.032, Code of Criminal 
Procedure, apply only to a personal bond that is executed on or after the effective date of 
this Act. A personal bond executed before the effective date of executed, and the former law is 
continued in effect for that purpose. 
 
SECTION 3.09.  Not later than January 1, 2018, the Commission on Jail Standards shall: 

(1)  adopt the rules and procedures required by Section 511.009(d), Government Code, 
as added by this article, and the rules required by Section 511.021(b), Government Code, as 
added by this article; and 

(2)  prescribe the form required by Section 511.020(b), Government Code, as added by 
this article. 
 
SECTION 3.10.  Not later than September 1, 2018, the Commission on Jail Standards shall adopt 
the rules and procedures required by Section 511.009(a)(23), Government Code, as added by this 
article.  On and after September 1, 2020, a county jail shall comply with any rule or procedure 
adopted by the Commission on Jail Standards under that subdivision. 
 
SECTION 3.11.  To the extent of any conflict, this Act prevails over another Act of the 85th 
Legislature, Regular Session, 2017, relating to non-substantive additions to and corrections in 
enacted codes. 
 
ARTICLE 4. PEACE OFFICER AND COUNTY JAILER TRAINING 
 
SECTION 4.01.  Chapter 511, Government Code, is amended by adding Section 511.00905 to read 
as follows: 
 
Sec. 511.00905.  JAIL ADMINISTRATOR POSITION; EXAMINATION REQUIRED. (a)  The Texas 
Commission on Law Enforcement shall develop and the commission shall approve an 
examination for a person assigned to the jail administrator position overseeing a 
county jail. 

(b)  The commission shall adopt rules requiring a person, other than a sheriff, assigned to 
the jail administrator position overseeing a county jail to pass the examination not later than the 
180th day after the date the person is assigned to that position. The rules must provide that a 
person who fails the examination may be immediately removed from the position and may not 
be reinstated until the person passes the examination. 

(c)  The sheriff of a county shall perform the duties of the jail administrator position at 
any time there is not a person available who satisfies the examination requirements of this 

Cop
y



 59  

section. 
(d)  A person other than a sheriff may not serve in the jail administrator position of a 

county jail unless the person satisfies the examination requirement of this section. 
 
SECTION 4.02.  Section 1701.253, Occupations Code, is amended by amending Subsection (j) and 
adding Subsection (n) to read as follows: commission shall require an officer to complete a 40-
hour statewide education and training program on de-escalation and crisis intervention 
techniques to facilitate interaction with persons with mental impairments. An officer shall 
complete the program not later than the second anniversary of the date the officer is licensed 
under this chapter or the date the officer applies for an intermediate proficiency certificate, 
whichever date is earlier. An officer may not satisfy the requirements of this subsection [section] 
or Section 1701.402(g) by taking an online course on de-escalation and crisis intervention 
techniques to facilitate interaction with persons with mental impairments. 

(n)  As part of the minimum curriculum requirements, the commission shall require an 
officer to complete a statewide education and training program on de-escalation techniques to 
facilitate interaction with members of the public, including techniques for limiting the use of 
force resulting in bodily injury. 
 
SECTION 4.03.  Section 1701.310(a), Occupations Code, is amended to read as follows: 
(a)  Except as provided by Subsection (e), a person may not be appointed as a county jailer, except 
on a temporary basis, unless the person has satisfactorily completed a preparatory training 
program, as required by the commission, in the operation of a county jail at a school operated or 
licensed by the commission. The training program must consist of at least eight hours of mental 
health training approved by the commission and the Commission on Jail Standards. 
 
SECTION 4.04.  Section 1701.352(b), Occupations Code, is amended to read as follows: 

(b)  The commission shall require a state, county, special district, or municipal agency that 
appoints or employs peace officers to provide each peace officer with a training program at 
least once every 48 months that is approved by the commission and consists of: 

(1)  topics selected by the agency; and 
(2)  for an officer holding only a basic proficiency certificate, not more than 20 hours of 

education and training that contain curricula incorporating the learning objectives developed by 
the commission regarding: 
(A)  civil rights, racial sensitivity, and cultural diversity; 
(B)  de-escalation and crisis intervention techniques to facilitate interaction with persons with 
mental impairments; [and] 
(C)  de-escalation techniques to facilitate interaction with members of the public, including 
techniques for limiting the use of force resulting in bodily injury; and 
(D)  unless determined by the agency head to be inconsistent with the officer's assigned duties: 

(i)  the recognition and documentation of cases that involve child abuse or neglect, family 
violence, and sexual assault; and 

(ii)  issues concerning sex offender characteristics. 
 
SECTION 4.05.  Section 1701.402, Occupations Code, is amended by adding Subsection (n) to read 

Cop
y



 60  

as follows: 
(n)  As a requirement for an intermediate proficiency certificate or an advanced 

proficiency certificate, an officer must complete the education and training program regarding 
de-escalation techniques to facilitate interaction with members of the public established by the 
commission under Section 1701.253(n). 
 
SECTION 4.06.  Not later than March 1, 2018, the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement shall 
develop and the Commission on Jail Standards shall approve the examination required by Section 
511.00905, Government Code, as added by this article.  
 
SECTION 4.07.  (a)  Not later than March 1, 2018, the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement 
shall establish or modify training programs as necessary to comply with Section 1701.253, 
Occupations Code, as amended by this article. 

(b)  The minimum curriculum requirements under Section 1701.253(j), Occupations Code, 
as amended by this article, apply only to a peace officer who first begins to satisfy those 
requirements on or after April 1, 2018. 
 
SECTION 4.08.  (a)  Section 1701.310, Occupations Code, as amended by this article, takes effect 
January 1, 2018. 

(b)  A person in the position of county jailer on September 1, 2017, must comply with 
Section 1701.310(a), Occupations Code, as amended by this article, not later than August 31, 
2021. 
 
ARTICLE 5.  MOTOR VEHICLE STOPS, RACIAL PROFILING, AND ISSUANCE OF CITATIONS 
 
SECTION 5.01.  Article 2.132, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended by amending Subsections 
(b) and (d) and adding Subsection (h) to read as follows: 

(b)  Each law enforcement agency in this state shall adopt a detailed written policy on 
racial profiling.  The policy must: 

(1)  clearly define acts constituting racial profiling;  
(2)  strictly prohibit peace officers employed by the agency from engaging in racial 

profiling; 
(3)  implement a process by which an individual may file a complaint with the agency if 

the individual believes that a peace officer employed by the agency has engaged in racial profiling 
with respect to the individual; 

(4)  provide public education relating to the agency's compliment and complaint process, 
including providing the telephone number, mailing address, and e-mail address to make a 
compliment or complaint with respect to each ticket, citation, or warning issued by a peace 
officer; 

(5)  require appropriate corrective action to be taken against a peace officer employed by 
the agency who, after an investigation, is shown to have engaged in racial profiling in violation of 
the agency's policy adopted under this article; 

(6)  require collection of information relating to motor vehicle stops in which a ticket, 
citation, or warning is issued and to arrests made as a result of those stops, including information 

Cop
y



 61  

relating to: 
(A)  the race or ethnicity of the individual detained;  
(B)  whether a search was conducted and, if so, whether the individual detained consented to 
the search; [and] 
(C)  whether the peace officer knew the race or ethnicity of the individual detained before 
detaining that individual;  
(D)  whether the peace officer used physical force that resulted in bodily injury, as that term is 
defined by Section 1.07, Penal Code, during the stop; 
(E)  the location of the stop; and 
(F)  the reason for the stop; and 

(7)  require the chief administrator of the agency, regardless of whether the administrator 
is elected, employed, or appointed, to submit an annual report of the information collected under 
Subdivision (6) to: 
(A)  the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement; and 
(B)  the governing body of each county or municipality served by the agency, if the agency is an 
agency of a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of the state. 

(d)  On adoption of a policy under Subsection (b), a law enforcement agency shall examine 
the feasibility of installing video camera and transmitter-activated equipment in each agency law 
enforcement motor vehicle regularly used to make motor vehicle stops and transmitter-activated 
equipment in each agency law enforcement motorcycle regularly used to make motor vehicle 
stops. The agency also shall examine the feasibility of equipping each peace officer who regularly 
detains or stops motor vehicles with a body worn camera, as that term is defined by Section 
1701.651, Occupations Code.  If a law enforcement agency installs video or audio equipment or 
equips peace officers with body worn cameras as provided by this subsection, the policy adopted 
by the agency under Subsection (b) must include standards for reviewing video and audio 
documentation. 

(h)  A law enforcement agency shall review the data collected under Subsection (b)(6) to 
identify any improvements the agency could make in its practices and policies regarding motor 
vehicle stops. 
 
SECTION 5.02.  Article 2.133, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended by amending Subsection 
(b) and adding Subsection (c) to read as follows: 

(b)  A peace officer who stops a motor vehicle for an alleged violation of a law or ordinance 
shall report to the law enforcement agency that employs the officer information relating to the 
stop, including: 

(1)  a physical description of any person operating the motor vehicle who is detained as a 
result of the stop, including: 
(A)  the person's gender; and 
(B)  the person's race or ethnicity, as stated by the person or, if the person does not state the 
person's race or ethnicity, as determined by the officer to the best of the officer's ability; 

(2)  the initial reason for the stop; 
(3)  whether the officer conducted a search as a result of the stop and, if so, whether the 

person detained consented to the search; 
(4)  whether any contraband or other evidence was discovered in the course of the search 

Cop
y



 62  

and a description of the contraband or evidence; 
(5)  the reason for the search, including whether: 

(A)  any contraband or other evidence was in plain view;  
(B)  any probable cause or reasonable suspicion existed to perform the search; or 
(C)  the search was performed as a result of the towing of the motor vehicle or the arrest of any 
person in the motor vehicle;  

(6)  whether the officer made an arrest as a result of the stop or the search, including a 
statement of whether the arrest was based on a violation of the Penal Code, a violation of a traffic 
law or ordinance, or an outstanding warrant and a statement of the offense charged; 

(7)  the street address or approximate location of the stop; [and]  
(8)  whether the officer issued a verbal or written warning or a ticket or citation as a result 

of the stop; and 
(9)  whether the officer used physical force that resulted in bodily injury, as that term is 

defined by Section 1.07, Penal Code, during the stop. 
(c)  The chief administrator of a law enforcement agency, regardless of whether the 

administrator is elected, employed, or appointed, is responsible for auditing reports under 
Subsection (b) 
to ensure that the race or ethnicity of the person operating the motor vehicle is being reported. 
 
SECTION 5.03.  Article 2.134(c), Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended to read as follows: 

(c)  A report required under Subsection (b) must be submitted by the chief administrator 
of the law enforcement agency, regardless of whether the administrator is elected, employed, or 
appointed, and must include: 

(1)  a comparative analysis of the information compiled under Article 2.133 to: 
(A)  evaluate and compare the number of motor vehicle stops, within the applicable jurisdiction, 
of persons who are recognized as racial or ethnic minorities and persons who are not recognized 
as racial or ethnic minorities; [and] 
(B)  examine the disposition of motor vehicle stops made by officers employed by the agency, 
categorized according to the race or ethnicity of the affected persons, as appropriate, including 
any searches resulting from stops within the applicable jurisdiction; and 
(C)  evaluate and compare the number of searches resulting from motor vehicle stops within the 
applicable jurisdiction and whether contraband or other evidence was discovered in the course 
of those searches; and 

(2)  information relating to each complaint filed with the agency alleging that a peace 
officer employed by the agency has engaged in racial profiling. 
 
SECTION 5.04.  Article 2.137, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended to read as follows: 
 
Art. 2.137.  PROVISION OF FUNDING OR EQUIPMENT. (a)  The Department of Public Safety shall 
adopt rules for providing funds or video and audio equipment to law enforcement agencies for 
the purpose of installing video and audio equipment in law enforcement motor vehicles and 
motorcycles or equipping peace officers with body worn cameras [as described by Article 
2.135(a)(1)(A)], including specifying criteria to prioritize funding or equipment provided to law 
enforcement agencies. The criteria may include consideration of tax effort, financial hardship, 

Cop
y



 63  

available revenue, and budget surpluses. The criteria must give priority to: 
(1)  law enforcement agencies that employ peace officers whose primary duty is traffic 

enforcement; 
(2)  smaller jurisdictions; and 
(3)  municipal and county law enforcement agencies. 
(b)  The Department of Public Safety shall collaborate with an institution of higher 

education to identify law enforcement agencies that need funds or video and audio equipment 
for the purpose of installing video and audio equipment in law enforcement motor vehicles and 
motorcycles or equipping peace officers with body worn cameras [as described by Article 
2.135(a)(1)(A)]. The collaboration may include the use of a survey to assist in developing criteria 
to prioritize funding or equipment provided to law enforcement agencies. 

(c)  To receive funds or video and audio equipment from the state for the purpose of 
installing video and audio equipment in law enforcement motor vehicles and motorcycles or 
equipping peace officers with body worn cameras [as described by Article 2.135(a)(1)(A)], the 
governing body of a county or municipality, in conjunction with the law enforcement agency 
serving the county or municipality, shall certify to the Department of Public Safety that the law 
enforcement agency needs funds or video and audio equipment for that purpose. 

(d)  On receipt of funds or video and audio equipment from the state for the purpose of 
installing video and audio equipment in law enforcement motor vehicles and motorcycles or 
equipping peace officers with body worn cameras [as described by Article 2.135(a)(1)(A)], the 
governing body of a county or municipality, in conjunction with the law enforcement agency 
serving the county or municipality, shall certify to the Department of Public Safety that the law 
enforcement agency has taken the necessary actions to use and is using [installed] video and 
audio equipment and body worn cameras for those purposes [as described by Article 
2.135(a)(1)(A) and is using the equipment as required by Article 2.135(a)(1)]. 
 
SECTION 5.05.  Article 2.1385(a), Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended to read as follows: 

(a)  If the chief administrator of a local law enforcement agency intentionally fails to 
submit the incident-based data as required by Article 2.134, the agency is liable to the state for 
a civil penalty in an [the] amount not to exceed $5,000 [of $1,000] for each violation.  The 
attorney general may sue to collect a civil penalty under this subsection. 
 
SECTION 5.06.  Article 2.135, Code of Criminal Procedure, is repealed. 
 
SECTION 5.07.  Articles 2.132 and 2.134, Code of Criminal Procedure, as amended by this article, 
apply only to a report covering a calendar year beginning on or after January 1, 2018. 
 
SECTION 5.08.  Not later than September 1, 2018, the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement 
shall: 

(1)  evaluate and change the guidelines for compiling and reporting information required 
under Article 2.134, Code of Criminal Procedure, as amended by this article, to enable the 
guidelines to better withstand academic scrutiny; and  

(2)  make accessible online: 
(A)  a downloadable format of any information submitted under Article 2.134(b), Code of Criminal 

Cop
y



 64  

Procedure, that is not exempt from public disclosure under Chapter 552, Government Code; and  
(B)  a glossary of terms relating to the information to make the information readily 
understandable to the public. This Act takes effect September 1, 2017. 
______________________________ ______________________________ President of the 
Senate Speaker of the House  
I hereby certify that S.B. No. 1849 passed the Senate on May 11, 2017, by the following vote:  
Yeas 31, Nays 0. 
                                              ______________________________ 
                                                 Secretary of the Senate 
       I hereby certify that S.B. No. 1849 passed the House on May 20, 2017, by the following vote:  
Yeas 137, Nays 0, one present not voting. 
ARTICLE 6.  EFFECTIVE DATE 
SECTION 6.01.  Except as otherwise provided by this Act, 
Approved:  
______________________________ 
            Date 
______________________________ 
          Governor 
______________________________ 
   Chief Clerk of the House 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Cop
y



 65  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IOWA COLONY 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

RACIAL PROFILING POLICY 
 
 Cop

y



 

22 

 

 
 

 

Iowa Colony Police Department 

Subject:   
Bias-Based Profiling and Racial Profiling 

Number: 
4.00 

Category:  
Law Enforcement 

Effective Date: 
August 07, 2019 

Revision Date: 
11/05/19 

Issuing Authority: 
Aaron I. Bell, Chief of Police 

References:  

 
PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this policy is to reaffirm the commitment of the Iowa Colony Police 
Department to unbiased policing in all encounters between a police officer and any 
person; to reinforce procedures that ensure public confidence and mutual trust by 
providing services in a fair and equitable fashion; and to protect police officers from 
unwarranted accusations of misconduct when they act within the dictates of this policy 
and the law. 
 
POLICY:  

It is the policy of the Iowa Colony Police Department to police in a proactive manner and 
to investigate suspected violations of law.  Within that mandate, Iowa Colony Police 
Offices shall actively enforce local, state, and federal laws in a responsible and 
professional manner, without unlawful regard to race, gender, sexual orientation, 
ethnicity, or national origin.  Moreover, the Iowa Colony Police Department strictly 
prohibits its officers from engaging in bias-based profiling or racial profiling as those terms 
are defined in this policy. 
Two of the fundamental rights guaranteed by the Unites States and Texas constitutions 
are equal protection under the law and freedom from unreasonable searches and 
seizures by government agents.  Accordingly, Iowa Colony Police Officers shall conduct 
themselves in a dignified and respectful manner at all times when dealing with the public.  
Finally, bias-based profiling and racial profiling, in particular, are unacceptable policing 
tactics and are strictly prohibited. 

Cop
y



 

23 

 

This policy shall not preclude police officers from offering assistance, such as when they 
observe a substance leaking from a vehicle, a flat tire, or someone who appears to be ill, 
lost or confused.  Nor does this policy prohibit an officer from stopping a person suspected 
of a crime based upon observed actions and/or information received about the person. 
This policy applies to all police officers commissioned under the authority of the Iowa 
Colony Police Department, the Chief of Police, and to all other employees of the Iowa 
Colony Police Department.  Moreover, this policy applies to police officers’ actions with 
respect to all persons, whether those persons are drivers, passengers or pedestrians.   
 

DEFINITIONS:  

BIAS:  

The selection of an individual based solely on a common trait of a group, including, but 
not limited to, race, ethnicity, gender, sexual orientation, religion, economic status, age, 
and/or cultural background. 

BIAS-BASED PROFILING:  

A law enforcement-initiated action, detention or interdiction based solely on a trait 
common to a group of people, rather than on the individual’s behavior and/or information 
tending to identify the individual as having engaged in criminal activity.  

LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY:  

Means an agency of the state, or of a county, municipality, or other political subdivision 
of the state, that employs peace officers who make motor vehicle stops in the routine 
performance of the officers’ official duties. 

MOTOR VEHICLE STOP:  

Means an occasion in which a peace officer stops a motor vehicle for an alleged violation 
of a law or ordinance. 
POLICE OFFICER: 

Any person licensed by the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement and commissioned 
as a peace officer under the authority of the Iowa Colony Police Department and the Chief 
of Police who is defined as a peace officer under Article 2.1 of the Texas Code of Criminal 
Procedure. 
RACE OR ETHNICITY 

Means of a particular descent, including Alaskan Native or American Indian, Asian or 
Pacific Islander, Black, Caucasian/White, or Hispanic/Latino. 
RACIAL PROFILING 

A law enforcement-initiated action based solely on an individual’s race, ethnicity, and/or 
national origin, rather than on the individual’s behavior and/or information tending to 
identify the individual as having engaged in criminal activity. 

Cop
y



 

24 

 

PROHIBITION:  

A. The use of bias-based and/or racial profiling by police officers in any law enforcement 
encounters with persons viewed as suspects and/or potential suspects in criminal 
activities is strictly prohibited.  The encounters to which this prohibition applies include, 
but are not limited to, motor vehicle stops, field contacts, and asset seizure and 
forfeiture operations. 
B.  The prohibition against bias-based profiling and racial profiling does not preclude the 
Iowa Colony Police from using race, ethnicity, or national origin as factors in a detention 
decision.  For instance, a suspect’s race, ethnicity, or national origin may be legitimate 
factors in deciding whether to detain the suspect when those factors are used as of a 
physical description of a specific suspect for whom a police officer is searching. 
Detaining a person and inquiring into that person’s activities solely because of that 
person’s race, ethnicity, or national origin, or solely because of bias, is prohibited bias-
based profiling or racial profiling. 
Examples of racial profiling include, but are not limited to, the following: 

• Citing a driver who is speeding in a stream of traffic where most other drivers are 
speeding, solely because of the cited driver’s race, ethnicity, or national origin. 

• Detaining the driver of a vehicle solely based on the determination that a person 
of that race, ethnicity, or national origin is unlikely to own or possess that specific 
make or model of vehicle. 

• Detaining a person solely based on the determination that a person of that race, 
ethnicity, or national origin does not belong in a specific geographic area or a 
specific place. 

 

TRAINING:  

A police officer shall complete the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement (“TCOLE”) 
training and education program on racial profiling not later than (1) the second 
anniversary of the date the officer is licensed under Chapter 1701 of the Texas 
Occupations Code or (2) the date the officer applies for an intermediate proficiency 
certificate, whichever is earlier. 
As needed, the Iowa Colony Police Department may schedule and require police officers 
to attend in-service training on bias-based profiling. 
 
COMPLAINT INVESTIGATION:  

The Iowa Colony Police Department shall accept complaints from any person who 
believes that an Iowa Colony Police Officer has engaged in bias-based profiling or racial 
profiling with respect to him or her.  No person shall be discouraged, intimidated, or 
coerced from filing a complaint, nor discriminated against because he or she files such 
a complaint. 

Cop
y



 

25 

 

In addition, any Iowa Colony Police Officer or Iowa Colony police department employee 
who receives an allegation of bias-based profiling or racial profiling shall record the 
name, address and telephone number of the person who lodges the allegation, and 
shall (1) forward the complaint to the Chief of Police or his/her designee, or (2) direct 
the person how to do so.  To direct the person on the filing of such a complaint, the 
officer or employee shall provide the person a copy of the complaint form and describe 
the process for filing a complaint. 

All Iowa Colony Police Officers and its employees shall report any allegations of bias-
based profiling or racial profiling to their respective superiors prior to the end of their 
shifts. 

In processing and investigating any complaint alleging that an Iowa Colony Police 
Officer has engaged in bias-based profiling or racial profiling, the Iowa Colony Police 
Department shall follow General Order #10 titled Citizen Complaints. 

At the commencement of the investigation into the complaint, the Chief of Police or 
his/her designee shall determine whether there is a video and/or audio recording of the 
event upon which the complaint is based.  If a recording exists, the department shall 
promptly provide a copy of it to the police officer who is the subject of the complaint on 
his or her written request. 

At the conclusion of the investigation, if not investigated by the Chief of Police, all 
findings and/or disciplinary action, retraining, or policy change, recommendations shall 
be forwarded to the Chief of Police for his/her approval. 

If a bias-based profiling or racial profiling complaint is sustained against an Iowa Colony 
Police Officer and in violation of this policy, that officer shall be subject to corrective 
action,  which may include reprimand; diversity, sensitivity or other appropriate training 
or counseling; paid or unpaid suspension; termination of employment, or other 
appropriate action as determined by the Chief of Police. 

 

PUBLIC EDUCATION OF THE COMPLIMENT AND COMPLAINT PROCESS 

The Iowa Colony Police Department will provide public education relating to the 
agency’s compliment and complaint process, including providing the telephone number, 
mailing address, and e-mail address to make a compliment or complaint with respect to 
each ticket, citation, or warning issued by a peace officer. 

The Iowa Colony complement and complaint process will be advertised by using one or 
more of the following venues: the news media, service or organization presentations, 

Cop
y



 

26 

 

the internet (to include, but not limited to, social media and city websites), and or the 
Police Department website whose internet link is “http://cityofiowacolony.com”. 

 
COLLECTION, ANALYSIS, AND REPORTING OF INFORMATION 

The Iowa Colony Police Department shall collect information relating to (1) motor 
vehicle stops in which a citation (or warning) is issued and (2) arrests made as a result 
of these stops.  The information collected shall include: 

1. The race or ethnicity of the person detained as stated by the person or as 
determined by the standard of any reasonable police officer to the best of his/her 
ability and whether the officer knew or did not know the race or ethnicity of the per 
detained before the detention occurred; 
a) The race or ethnicity of the individual includes: 

(1) Alaskan Native or American Indian 
(2) Asian or Pacific Islander 
(3) Black 
(4) Caucasian/White 
(5) Hispanic/Latino 

2. The number of Contacts, Total Searches (combination of Consensual and 
Probable Cause Searches), Consensual Searches, Probable Cause Searches, 
Custodial Arrests, Racial Profiling Complaints received, and complaint outcomes 
to include sustained, Not Sustained, Unfounded, Exonerated. 

3. Whether a search was conducted and whether the individual consented to the 
search. 

4. Whether the officer made an arrest 
5. Whether the officer issued a ticket, citation, or warning 
6. Whether the officer used physical force that resulted in bodily injury, as that term 

is defined by Section 1.07, Penal Code (“means physical pain, illness, or any 
impairment of physical condition), during the stop; 

7. The location of the stop 
8. The reason for the stop 

 
Not later than March 1 of each year, the Chief of Police Shall submit a report of the 
information collected under Paragraph A to TCOLE and to the City Council of the City of 
Iowa Colony. 
 
The report shall not include identifying information about the peace officer who makes a 
motor vehicle stop or about the person who is stopped or arrested by the peace officer.  
However, this does not affect the duty of an Iowa Colony Police Officer to collect the 
information.  
 
 
 
 

Cop
y



 

27 

 

USE OF VIDEO AND AUDIO EQUIPMENT 
 
The policy of the Iowa Colony Police Department is that all police vehicles regularly 
used by a police officer to make motor vehicle stops shall be equipped with a video 
camera and transmitter-activated equipment.  If possible, officers may be equipped with 
body worn cameras. (See General Order 49 - Body Worn Digital Recording Systems) 
 
Each motor vehicle stop made by a police officers shall be recorded by video and audio 
equipment and audio equipment. 
 
If a complaint is filed alleging that a Police Officer has engaged in bias-based profiling 
or racial profiling with respect to a motor vehicle stop, the video and audio shall be 
retained until a final disposition of the complaint has been reached. 
 
Supervisors shall ensure that police officers record all motor vehicles stops.  
 
The Chief of Police or his/her designee shall periodically conduct reviews of a randomly 
selected sampling of video/audio recordings to determine if patterns of biased based 
profiling exist. 
 
If the equipment used to record motor vehicle stops is malfunctioning or otherwise not 
operable, the officer making the stop shall report the malfunction to his/her supervisor 
immediately and manually collect the data and properly record and report the 
information as required by this policy and Article 2.133, Texas Code of Criminal 
Procedure, “Reports Required for Motor Vehicles Stops”.  Repairs deemed necessary 
should be made as soon as possible. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Changes/Amendments since last publication: 
11/05/19 Rewrite of the entire General Order to reflect requirements of The Sandra Bland Act (SB 1849, 
85th Legislative Session, 2017) 

Cop
y



 29  

TCOLE GUIDELINES 
 

Guidelines for Compiling and Reporting Data under Senate Bill 1074 

Background 
Senate Bill 1074 of the 77th Legislature established requirements in the Texas Code of Criminal 
Procedure (TCCP) for law enforcement agencies.  The Commission developed this document to 
assist agencies in complying with the statutory requirements.   
 
The guidelines are written in the form of standards using a style developed from accreditation 
organizations including the Commission on Accreditation for Law Enforcement Agencies (CALEA).  
The standards provide a description of what must be accomplished by an agency but allows wide 
latitude in determining how the agency will achieve compliance with each applicable standard.   
 
Each standard is composed of two parts:  the standard statement and the commentary.  The 
standard statement is a declarative sentence that places a clear-cut requirement, or multiple 
requirements, on an agency.  The commentary supports the standard statement but is not 
binding.  The commentary can serve as a prompt, as guidance to clarify the intent of the standard, 
or as an example of one possible way to comply with the standard.   
 
Standard 1 
Each law enforcement agency has a detailed written directive that: 

• clearly defines acts that constitute racial profiling; 
• strictly prohibits peace officers employed by the agency from engaging in racial profiling; 
• implements a process by which an individual may file a complaint with the agency if the 

individual believes a peace officer employed by the agency has engaged in racial profiling 
with respect to the individual filing the complaint; 

• provides for public education relating to the complaint process;  
• requires appropriate corrective action to be taken against a peace officer employed by 

the agency who, after investigation, is shown to have engaged in racial profiling in 
violation of the agency’s written racial profiling policy; and 

• requires the collection of certain types of data for subsequent reporting. 
 
Commentary 
Article 2.131 of the TCCP prohibits officers from engaging in racial profiling, and article 2.132 of 
the TCCP now requires a written policy that contains the elements listed in this standard.  The 
article also specifically defines a law enforcement agency as it applies to this statute as an “ 
agency of the state, or of a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of the state, that 
employs peace officers who make traffic stops in the routine performance of the officers’ official 
duties.” 
 

Cop
y



 30  

The article further defines race or ethnicity as being of  “a particular descent, including  
Caucasian, African, Hispanic, Asian, or Native American.”   The statute does not limit the required 
policies to just these ethnic groups.   
 
This written policy is to be adopted and implemented no later than January 1, 2002. 
 
Standard 2 
Each peace officer who stops a motor vehicle for an alleged violation of a law or ordinance 
regulating traffic, or who stops a pedestrian for any suspected offense reports to the employing 
law enforcement agency information relating to the stop, to include: 

• a physical description of each person detained, including gender and the person’s race or 
ethnicity, as stated by the person, or, if the person does not state a race or ethnicity, as 
determined by the officer’s best judgment; 

• the traffic law or ordinance alleged to have been violated or the suspected offense; 
• whether the officer conducted a search as a result of the stop and, if so, whether the 

person stopped consented to the search; 
• whether any contraband was discovered in the course of the search, and the type of 

contraband discovered; 
• whether probable cause to search existed, and the facts supporting the existence of that 

probable cause; 
• whether the officer made an arrest as a result of the stop or the search, including a 

statement of the offense charged; 
• the street address or approximate location of the stop; and 
• whether the officer issued a warning or citation as a result of the stop, including a 

description of the warning or a statement of the violation charged. 
 
Commentary 
The information required by 2.133 TCCP is used to complete the agency reporting requirements 
found in Article 2.134.  A peace officer and an agency may be exempted from this requirement 
under Article 2.135 TCCP Exemption for Agencies Using Video and Audio Equipment.  An agency 
may be exempt from this reporting requirement by applying for the funds from the Department 
of Public Safety for video and audio equipment and the State does not supply those funds.  
Section 2.135 (a)(2) states, “the governing body of the county or municipality served by the law 
enforcement agency, in conjunction with the law enforcement agency, certifies to the 
Department of Public Safety, not later than the date specified by rule by the department, that 
the law enforcement agency needs funds or video and audio equipment for the purpose of 
installing video and audio equipment as described by Subsection (a) (1) (A) and the agency does 
not receive from the state funds for video and audio equipment sufficient, as determined by the 
department, for the agency to accomplish that purpose.”     
 
Standard 3 
The agency compiles the information collected under 2.132 and 2.133 and analyzes the 
information identified in 2.133.   
 

Cop
y



 31  

Commentary 
Senate Bill 1074 from the 77th Session of the Texas Legislature created requirements for law 
enforcement agencies to gather specific information and to report it to each county or 
municipality served.  New sections of law were added to the Code of Criminal Procedure 
regarding the reporting of traffic and pedestrian stops.  Detained is defined as when a person 
stopped is not free to leave.   
 
Article 2.134 TCCP requires the agency to compile and provide and analysis of the information 
collected by peace officer employed by the agency.  The report is provided to the governing body 
of the municipality or county no later than March 1 of each year and covers the previous calendar 
year. 
 
There is data collection and reporting required based on Article 2.132 CCP (tier one) and Article 
2.133 CCP (tier two).   
 
 
The minimum requirements for “tier one” data for traffic stops in which a citation results are:   

1) the race or ethnicity of individual detained (race and ethnicity as defined by the bill means 
of “a particular descent, including Caucasian, African, Hispanic, Asian, or Native 
American”);  

2) whether a search was conducted, and if there was a search, whether it was a consent 
search or a probable cause search; and 

3) whether there was a custody arrest.   
 
The minimum requirements for reporting on “tier two” reports include traffic and pedestrian 
stops.  Tier two data include:  

1) the detained person’s gender and race or ethnicity;  
2) the type of law violation suspected, e.g., hazardous traffic, non-hazardous traffic, or other 

criminal investigation (the Texas Department of Public Safety publishes a categorization 
of traffic offenses into hazardous or non-hazardous); 

3) whether a search was conducted, and if so whether it was based on consent or probable 
cause;  

4) facts supporting probable cause; 
5) the type, if any, of contraband that was collected;  
6) disposition of the stop, e.g., arrest, ticket, warning, or release;   
7) location of stop; and 
8) statement of the charge, e.g., felony, misdemeanor, or traffic.   

 
Tier one reports are made to the governing body of each county or municipality served by the 
agency an annual report of information if the agency is an agency of a county, municipality, or 
other political subdivision of the state.  Tier one and two reports are reported to the county or 
municipality not later than March 1 for the previous calendar year beginning March 1, 2003.  Tier 
two reports include a comparative analysis between the race and ethnicity of persons detained 
to see if a differential pattern of treatment can be discerned based on the disposition of stops 

Cop
y



 32  

including searches resulting from the stops.  The reports also include information relating to each 
complaint filed with the agency alleging that a peace officer employed by the agency has engaged 
in racial profiling.  An agency may be exempt from the tier two reporting requirement by applying 
for the funds from the Department of Public Safety for video and audio equipment and the State 
does not supply those funds [See 2.135 (a)(2) TCCP].   
 
Reports should include both raw numbers and percentages for each group.  Caution should be 
exercised in interpreting the data involving percentages because of statistical distortions caused 
by very small numbers in any particular category, for example, if only one American Indian is 
stopped and searched, that stop would not provide an accurate comparison with 200 stops 
among Caucasians with 100 searches.  In the first case, a 100% search rate would be skewed data 
when compared to a 50% rate for Caucasians.   
 
Standard 4 
If a law enforcement agency has video and audio capabilities in motor vehicles regularly used for 
traffic stops, or audio capabilities on motorcycles regularly used to make traffic stops, the agency: 

• adopts standards for reviewing and retaining audio and video documentation; and 
• promptly provides a copy of the recording to a peace officer who is the subject of a 

complaint on written request by the officer. 
 
Commentary 
The agency should have a specific review and retention policy.  Article 2.132 TCCP specifically 
requires that the peace officer be promptly provided with a copy of the audio or video recordings 
if the officer is the subject of a complaint and the officer makes a written request. 
 
Standard 5 
Agencies that do not currently have video or audio equipment must examine the feasibility of 
installing such equipment.   
 
Commentary 
None 
 
Standard 6 
Agencies that have video and audio recording capabilities are exempt from the reporting 
requirements of Article 2.134 TCCP and officers are exempt from the reporting requirements of 
Article 2.133 TCCP provided that: 

• the equipment was in place and used during the proceeding calendar year; and 
• video and audio documentation is retained for at least 90 days. 

 
Commentary 
The audio and video equipment and policy must have been in place during the previous calendar 
year.  Audio and video documentation must be kept for at least 90 days or longer if a complaint 
has been filed.  The documentation must be retained until the complaint is resolved.  Peace 
officers are not exempt from the requirements under Article 2.132 TCCP. 
 

Cop
y



 33  

Standard 7 
Agencies have citation forms or other electronic media that comply with Section 543.202 of the 
Transportation Code.   
 
Commentary 
Senate Bill 1074 changed Section 543.202 of the Transportation Code requiring citations to 
include: 

• race or ethnicity, and 
• whether a search of the vehicle was conducted and whether consent for the search was 

obtained.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Cop
y



 34  

The Texas Law on Racial Profiling 
 
S.B. No. 1074 - An Act relating to the prevention of racial profiling by certain peace officers. 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1.  Chapter 2, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended by adding Articles 2.131 through 
2.138 to read as follows: 
 
   Art. 2.131.  RACIAL PROFILING PROHIBITED.  A peace officer may not engage in racial profiling. 
 
   Art. 2.132.  LAW ENFORCEMENT POLICY ON RACIAL PROFILING.  (a)  In this article:  
 (1)  "Law enforcement agency" means an agency of the state, or of a county, municipality, 
or other political subdivision of the state, that employs peace officers who make traffic stops in 
the routine performance of the officers' official duties. 
 (2)  "Race or ethnicity" means of a particular descent, including Caucasian, African, 
Hispanic, Asian, or Native American descent. 
 (b)  Each law enforcement agency in this state shall adopt a detailed written policy on 
racial profiling.  The policy must: 
 (1)  clearly define acts constituting racial profiling; 
 (2)  strictly prohibit peace officers employed by the agency from engaging in racial 
profiling; 
 (3)  implement a process by which an individual may file a complaint with the agency if 
the individual believes that a peace officer employed by the agency has engaged in racial profiling 
with respect to the individual; 
 (4)  provide public education relating to the agency's complaint process; 
 (5)  require appropriate corrective action to be taken against a peace officer employed by 
the agency who, after an investigation, is shown to have engaged in racial profiling in violation of 
the agency's policy adopted under this article; 
 (6)  require collection of information relating to traffic stops in which a citation is issued 
and to arrests resulting from those traffic stops, including information relating to: 
 (A)  the race or ethnicity of the individual detained; and 
 (B)  whether a search was conducted and, if so, whether the person detained consented 
to the search; and 
 (7)  require the agency to submit to the governing body of each county or municipality 
served by the agency an annual report of the information collected under Subdivision (6) if the 
agency is an agency of a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of the state. 
 (c)  The data collected as a result of the reporting requirements of this article shall not 
constitute prima facie evidence of racial profiling. 
 (d)  On adoption of a policy under Subsection (b), a law enforcement agency shall examine 
the feasibility of installing video camera and transmitter-activated equipment in each agency law 
enforcement motor vehicle regularly used to make traffic stops and transmitter-activated 
equipment in each agency law enforcement motorcycle regularly used to make traffic stops.  If a 
law enforcement agency installs video or audio equipment as provided by this subsection, the 

Cop
y



 35  

policy adopted by the agency under Subsection (b) must include standards for reviewing video 
and audio documentation. 
 (e)  A report required under Subsection (b)(7) may not include identifying information 
about a peace officer who makes a traffic stop or about an individual who is stopped or arrested 
by a peace officer.  This subsection does not affect the collection of information as required by a 
policy under Subsection (b)(6). 
 (f)  On the commencement of an investigation by a law enforcement agency of a 
complaint described by Subsection (b)(3) in which a video or audio recording of the occurrence 
on which the complaint is based was made, the agency shall promptly provide a copy of the 
recording to the peace officer who is the subject of the complaint on written request by the 
officer. 
 
Art. 2.133.  REPORTS REQUIRED FOR TRAFFIC AND PEDESTRIAN STOPS.  (a)  In this article: 
 (1)  "Race or ethnicity" has the meaning assigned by Article 2.132(a). 
 (2)  "Pedestrian stop" means an interaction between a peace officer and an individual 
who is being detained for the purpose of a criminal investigation in which the individual is not 
under arrest. 
 (b)  A peace officer who stops a motor vehicle for an alleged violation of a law or 
ordinance regulating traffic or who stops a pedestrian for any suspected offense shall report to 
the law enforcement agency that employs the officer information relating to the stop, including: 
 (1)  a physical description of each person detained as a result of the stop, including: 
(A)  the person's gender; and 
(B)  the person's race or ethnicity, as stated by the person or, if the person does not state the 
person's race or ethnicity, as determined by the officer to the best of the officer's ability; 
 (2)  the traffic law or ordinance alleged to have been violated or the suspected offense; 
 (3)  whether the officer conducted a search as a result of the stop and, if so, whether the 
person detained consented to the search; 
 (4)  whether any contraband was discovered in the course of the search and the type of 
contraband discovered; 
 (5)  whether probable cause to search existed and the facts supporting the existence of 
that probable cause; 
 (6)  whether the officer made an arrest as a result of the stop or the search, including a 
statement of the offense charged; 
 (7)  the street address or approximate location of the stop; and 
 (8)  whether the officer issued a warning or a citation as a result of the stop, including a 
description of the warning or a statement of the violation charged. 
 
Art. 2.134.  COMPILATION AND ANALYSIS OF INFORMATION COLLECTED.   
 (a)  In this article, "pedestrian stop" means an interaction between a peace officer and an 
individual who is being detained for the purpose of a criminal investigation in which the individual 
is not under arrest. 
 (b)  A law enforcement agency shall compile and analyze the information contained in 
each report received by the agency under Article 2.133.  Not later than March 1 of each year, 
each local law enforcement agency shall submit a report containing the information compiled 

Cop
y



 36  

during the previous calendar year to the governing body of each county or municipality served 
by the agency in a manner approved by the agency. 
 (c)  A report required under Subsection (b) must include: 
 (1)  a comparative analysis of the information compiled under Article 2.133 to: 
(A)  determine the prevalence of racial profiling by peace officers employed by the agency; and 
(B)  examine the disposition of traffic and pedestrian stops made by officers employed by the 
agency, including searches resulting from the stops; and 
 (2)  information relating to each complaint filed with the agency alleging that a peace 
officer employed by the agency has engaged in racial profiling. 
 (d)  A report required under Subsection (b) may not include identifying information about 
a peace officer who makes a traffic or pedestrian stop or about an individual who is stopped or 
arrested by a peace officer.  This subsection does not affect the reporting of information required 
under Article 2.133(b)(1). 
 (e)  The Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education shall develop 
guidelines for compiling and reporting information as required by this article. 
 (f)  The data collected as a result of the reporting requirements of this article shall not 
constitute prima facie evidence of racial profiling. 
 
Art. 2.135.  EXEMPTION FOR AGENCIES USING VIDEO AND AUDIO EQUIPMENT.  (a)  A peace 
officer is exempt from the reporting requirement under Article 2.133 and a law enforcement 
agency is exempt from the compilation, analysis, and reporting requirements under Article 2.134 
if: 
 (1)  during the calendar year preceding the date that a report under Article 2.134 is 
required to be submitted: 
(A)  each law enforcement motor vehicle regularly used by an officer employed by the agency to 
make traffic and pedestrian stops is equipped with video camera and transmitter-activated 
equipment and each law enforcement motorcycle regularly used to make traffic and pedestrian 
stops is equipped with transmitter-activated equipment; and 
(B)  each traffic and pedestrian stop made by an officer employed by the agency that is capable 
of being recorded by video and audio or audio equipment, as appropriate, is recorded by using 
the equipment; or 
 (2)  the governing body of the county or municipality served by the law enforcement 
agency, in conjunction with the law enforcement agency, certifies to the Department of Public 
Safety, not later than the date specified by rule by the department, that the law enforcement 
agency needs funds or video and audio equipment for the purpose of installing video and audio 
equipment as described by Subsection (a)(1)(A) and the agency does not receive from the state 
funds or video and audio equipment sufficient, as determined by the department, for the agency 
to accomplish that purpose. 
 (b)  Except as otherwise provided by this subsection, a law enforcement agency that is 
exempt from the requirements under Article 2.134 shall retain the video and audio or audio 
documentation of each traffic and pedestrian stop for at least 90 days after the date of the stop.  
If a complaint is filed with the law enforcement agency alleging that a peace officer employed by 
the agency has engaged in racial profiling with respect to a traffic or pedestrian stop, the agency 
shall retain the video and audio or audio record of the stop until final disposition of the complaint. 

Cop
y



 37  

 (c)  This article does not affect the collection or reporting requirements under Article 
2.132. 
Art. 2.136.  LIABILITY.  A peace officer is not liable for damages arising from an act relating to the 
collection or reporting of information as required by Article 2.133 or under a policy adopted 
under Article 2.132. 
 
Art. 2.137.  PROVISION OF FUNDING OR EQUIPMENT.   
 (a)  The Department of Public Safety shall adopt rules for providing funds or video and 
audio equipment to law enforcement agencies for the purpose of installing video and audio 
equipment as described by Article 2.135(a)(1)(A), including specifying criteria to prioritize funding 
or equipment provided to law enforcement agencies.  The criteria may include consideration of 
tax effort, financial hardship, available revenue, and budget surpluses.  The criteria must give 
priority to: 
 (1)  law enforcement agencies that employ peace officers whose primary duty is traffic 
enforcement; 
 (2)  smaller jurisdictions; and 
 (3)  municipal and county law enforcement agencies. 
 (b)  The Department of Public Safety shall collaborate with an institution of higher 
education to identify law enforcement agencies that need funds or video and audio equipment 
for the purpose of installing video and audio equipment as described by Article 2.135(a)(1)(A).  
The collaboration may include the use of a survey to assist in developing criteria to prioritize 
funding or equipment provided to law enforcement agencies. 
 (c)  To receive funds or video and audio equipment from the state for the purpose of 
installing video and audio equipment as described by Article 2.135(a)(1)(A), the governing body 
of a county or municipality, in conjunction with the law enforcement agency serving the county 
or municipality, shall certify to the Department of Public Safety that the law enforcement agency 
needs funds or video and audio equipment for that purpose. 
 (d)  On receipt of funds or video and audio equipment from the state for the purpose of 
installing video and audio equipment as described by Article 2.135(a)(1)(A), the governing body 
of a county or municipality, in conjunction with the law enforcement agency serving the county 
or municipality, shall certify to the Department of Public Safety that the law enforcement agency 
has installed video and audio equipment as described by Article 2.135(a)(1)(A) and is using the 
equipment as required by Article 2.135(a)(1). 
 
Art. 2.138.  RULES.  The Department of Public Safety may adopt rules to implement Articles 
2.131-2.137. 
 
SECTION 2.  Chapter 3, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended by adding Article 3.05 to read as 
follows: 
 
Art. 3.05.  RACIAL PROFILING.  In this code, "racial profiling" means a law enforcement-initiated 
action based on an individual's race, ethnicity, or national origin rather than on the individual's 
behavior or on information identifying the individual as having engaged in criminal activity. 
 

Cop
y



 38  

SECTION 3.  Section 96.641, Education Code, is amended by adding Subsection (j) to read as 
follows: 
 
 (j)  As part of the initial training and continuing education for police chiefs required under 
this section, the institute shall establish a program on racial profiling.  The program must include 
an examination of the best practices for: 
 (1)  monitoring peace officers' compliance with laws and internal agency policies relating 
to racial profiling; 
 (2)  implementing laws and internal agency policies relating to preventing racial profiling; 
and 
 (3)  analyzing and reporting collected information. 
 
SECTION 4.  Section 1701.253, Occupations Code, is amended by adding Subsection (e) to read 
as follows: 
 
 (e)  As part of the minimum curriculum requirements, the commission shall establish a 
statewide comprehensive education and training program on racial profiling for officers licensed 
under this chapter.  An officer shall complete a program established under this subsection not 
later than the second anniversary of the date the officer is licensed under this chapter or the date 
the officer applies for an intermediate proficiency certificate, whichever date is earlier. 
 
SECTION 5.  Section 1701.402, Occupations Code, is amended by adding Subsection (d) to read 
as follows: 
 
 (d)  As a requirement for an intermediate proficiency certificate, an officer must complete 
an education and training program on racial profiling established by the commission under 
Section 1701.253(e). 
 
SECTION 6.  Section 543.202, Transportation Code, is amended to read as follows: 
 
Sec. 543.202.  FORM OF RECORD.  (a)  In this section, "race or ethnicity" means of a particular 
descent, including Caucasian, African, Hispanic, Asian, or Native American descent. 
 (b)  The record must be made on a form or by a data processing method acceptable to 
the department and must include: 
 (1)  the name, address, physical description, including race or ethnicity, date of birth, and 
driver's license number of the person charged; 
 (2)  the registration number of the vehicle involved; 
 (3)  whether the vehicle was a commercial motor vehicle as defined by Chapter 522 or 
was involved in transporting hazardous materials; 
 (4)  the person's social security number, if the person was operating a commercial motor 
vehicle or was the holder of a commercial driver's license or commercial driver learner's permit; 
 (5)  the date and nature of the offense, including whether the offense was a serious traffic 
violation as defined by Chapter 522; 

Cop
y



 39  

 (6)  whether a search of the vehicle was conducted and whether consent for the search 
was obtained; 
 (7)  the plea, the judgment, and whether bail was forfeited; 
 (8) [(7)]  the date of conviction; and 
 (9) [(8)]  the amount of the fine or forfeiture. 
 
SECTION 7.  Not later than January 1, 2002, a law enforcement agency shall adopt and implement 
a policy and begin collecting information under the policy as required by Article 2.132, Code of 
Criminal Procedure, as added by this Act.  A local law enforcement agency shall first submit 
information to the governing body of each county or municipality served by the agency as 
required by Article 2.132, Code of Criminal Procedure, as added by this Act, on March 1, 2003.  
The first submission of information shall consist of information compiled by the agency during 
the period beginning January 1, 2002, and ending December 31, 2002. 
 
SECTION 8.  A local law enforcement agency shall first submit information to the governing body 
of each county or municipality served by the agency as required by Article 2.134, Code of Criminal 
Procedure, as added by this Act, on March 1, 2004.  The first submission of information shall 
consist of information compiled by the agency during the period beginning January 1, 2003, and 
ending December 31, 2003. 
 
SECTION 9.  Not later than January 1, 2002: 
 (1)  the Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education shall establish 
an education and training program on racial profiling as required by Subsection (e), Section 
1701.253, Occupations Code, as added by this Act; and 
 (2)  the Bill Blackwood Law Enforcement Management Institute of Texas shall establish a 
program on racial profiling as required by Subsection (j), Section 96.641, Education Code, as 
added by this Act. 
 
SECTION 10.  A person who on the effective date of this Act holds an intermediate proficiency 
certificate issued by the Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education or has 
held a peace officer license issued by the Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and 
Education for at least two years shall complete an education and training program on racial 
profiling established under Subsection (e), Section 1701.253, Occupations Code, as added by this 
Act, not later than September 1, 2003. 
 
SECTION 11.  An individual appointed or elected as a police chief before the effective date of this 
Act shall complete a program on racial profiling established under Subsection (j), Section 96.641, 
Education Code, as added by this Act, not later than September 1, 2003. 
 
SECTION 12.  This Act takes effect September 1, 2001 
 
_______________________________     _______________________________ 
    President of the Senate              Speaker of the House 
 

Cop
y



 40  

I hereby certify that S.B. No. 1074 passed the Senate on April 4, 2001, by the following vote:  
Yeas 28, Nays 2; May 21, 2001, Senate refused to concur in House amendments and requested 
appointment of Conference Committee; May 22, 2001, House granted request of the Senate; 
May 24, 2001, Senate adopted Conference Committee Report by a viva-voce vote. 
 
 
 
                                    _______________________________ 
                                        Secretary of the Senate 
 
I hereby certify that S.B. No. 1074 passed the House, with amendments, on May 15, 2001, by a 
non-record vote; May 22, 2001, House granted request of the Senate for appointment of 
Conference Committee; May 24, 2001, House adopted Conference Committee Report by a 
non-record vote. 
 
 
 
                                    _______________________________ 
                                        Chief Clerk of the House 
 
 
 
Approved: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
             Date 
 
 
_______________________________ 
           Governor 
 
 

 
 
 

Cop
y



 41  

Modifications to the Original Law  
(H.B. 3389) 

Amend CSHB 3389 (Senate committee report) as follows:                         
(1)  Strike the following SECTIONS of the bill:                                 
(A)  SECTION 8, adding Section  1701.164, Occupations Code (page 4, lines 61-66); 
(B)  SECTION 24, amending Article 2.132(b), Code of Criminal Procedure (page 8, lines 19-53); 
(C)  SECTION 25, amending Article 2.134(b), Code of Criminal Procedure (page 8, lines 54-64); 
(D)  SECTION 28, providing transition language for the amendments to Articles 2.132(b) and 
2.134(b), Code of Criminal Procedure (page 9, lines 40-47). 
(2)  Add the following appropriately numbered SECTIONS to the bill and renumber subsequent 
SECTIONS of the bill accordingly: SECTION ____.  Article 2.132, Code of Criminal Procedure, is 
amended by amending Subsections (a),(b), (d), and (e) and adding Subsection (g) to read as 
follows: 
(a)  In this article:                                                           
(1)  "Law enforcement agency" means an agency of the state, or of a county, municipality, or 
other political subdivision of the state, that employs peace officers who make motor 
vehicle[traffic] stops in the routine performance of the officers' official duties. 
(2)  "Motor vehicle stop" means an occasion in which a peace officer stops a motor vehicle for an 
alleged violation of a law or ordinance. 
(3)  "Race or ethnicity" means of a particular descent, including Caucasian, African, Hispanic, 
Asian, [or] Native American, or Middle Eastern descent. 
(b)  Each law enforcement agency in this state shall adopt a detailed written policy on racial 
profiling.  The policy must: 
(1)  clearly define acts constituting racial profiling;                      
(2)  strictly prohibit peace officers employed by the agency from engaging in racial profiling; 
(3)  implement a process by which an individual may file a complaint with the agency if the 
individual believes that a peace officer employed by the agency has engaged in racial profiling 
with respect to the individual; 
(4)  provide public education relating to the agency's complaint process;    
(5)  require appropriate corrective action to be taken against a peace officer employed by the 
agency who, after an investigation, is shown to have engaged in racial profiling in violation of the 
agency's policy adopted under this article; 
(6)  require collection of information relating to motor vehicle [traffic] stops in which a citation is 
issued and to  arrests made as a result of [resulting from] those [traffic] stops, including 
information relating to: 
(A)  the race or ethnicity of the individual detained; and                  
(B)  whether a search was conducted and, if so, whether the individual [person] detained 
consented to the search; and 
(C)  whether the peace officer knew the race or ethnicity of the individual detained before 
detaining that individual; and 
(7)  require the chief administrator of the agency, regardless of whether the administrator is 
elected, employed, or appointed, to submit [to the governing body of each county or  

Cop
y



 42  

municipality served by the agency] an annual report of the information collected under 
Subdivision (6) to: 
(A)  the Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education; and 
(B)  the governing body of each county or municipality served by the agency, if the agency is an 
agency of a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of the state. 
(d)  On adoption of a policy under Subsection (b), a law enforcement agency shall examine the 
feasibility of installing video camera and transmitter-activated equipment in each agency law  
enforcement motor vehicle regularly used to make motor vehicle [traffic] stops and transmitter 
activated equipment in each agency law enforcement motorcycle regularly used to make motor 
vehicle [traffic] stops.  If a law enforcement agency installs video or audio equipment as provided 
by this subsection, the policy adopted by the agency under Subsection (b) must include standards 
for reviewing video and audio documentation. 
(e)  A report required under Subsection (b)(7) may not include identifying information about a 
peace officer who makes a motor vehicle [traffic] stop or about an individual who is stopped or 
arrested by a peace officer.  This subsection does not affect the collection of information as 
required by a policy under Subsection (b)(6). 
(g)  On a finding by the Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education that 
the chief administrator of a law enforcement agency intentionally failed to submit a report 
required under Subsection (b)(7), the commission shall begin disciplinary procedures against the 
chief administrator. 
SECTION ____.  Article 2.133, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended to read as follows: 
Art. 2.133.  REPORTS REQUIRED FOR MOTOR VEHICLE [TRAFFIC AND PEDESTRIAN] STOPS.  (a)  In 
this article, "race[: 
[(1)  "Race] or ethnicity" has the meaning assigned by Article 2.132(a). 
[(2)  "Pedestrian stop" means an interaction between a peace officer and an individual who is 
being detained for the purpose of a criminal investigation in which the individual is not under 
arrest.] 
(b)  A peace officer who stops a motor vehicle for an alleged violation of a law or ordinance 
[regulating traffic or who stops a pedestrian for any suspected offense] shall report to the law 
enforcement agency that employs the officer information relating to the stop, including: 
(1)  a physical description of any [each] person operating the motor vehicle who is detained as a 
result of the stop, including: 
(A)  the person's gender; and                                                 
(B)  the person's race or ethnicity, as stated by the person or, if the person does not state the 
person's race or ethnicity, as determined by the officer to the best of the officer's ability; 
(2)  the initial reason for the stop [traffic law or ordinance alleged to have been violated or the 
suspected offense]; 
(3)  whether the officer conducted a search as a result of the stop and, if so, whether the person 
detained consented to the search; 
(4)  whether any contraband or other evidence was discovered in the course of the search and a 
description [the type] of the contraband or evidence [discovered]; 
(5)  the reason for the search, including whether:               
(A)  any contraband or other evidence was in plain view;             
(B)  any probable cause or reasonable suspicion existed to perform the search; or 

Cop
y



 43  

(C)  the search was performed as a result of the towing of the motor vehicle or the arrest of any 
person in the motor vehicle [existed and the facts supporting the existence of that probable 
cause]; 
(6)  whether the officer made an arrest as a result of the stop or the search, including a statement 
of whether the arrest was based on a violation of the Penal Code, a violation of a traffic law or 
ordinance, or an outstanding warrant and a statement of the offense charged; 
(7)  the street address or approximate location of the stop; and             
(8)  whether the officer issued a written warning or a citation as a result of the stop[, including a 
description of the warning or a statement of the violation charged]. 
SECTION ____.  Article 2.134, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended by amending Subsections 
(a) through (e) and adding Subsection (g) to read as follows: 
(a)  In this article:                                                    
(1)  "Motor vehicle[, "pedestrian] stop" has the meaning assigned by Article 2.132(a) [means an 
interaction between a peace officer and an individual who is being detained for the purpose of a 
criminal investigation in which the individual is not under arrest]. 
(2)  "Race or ethnicity" has the meaning assigned by Article 2.132(a). 
(b)  A law enforcement agency shall compile and analyze the information contained in each report 
received by the agency under Article 2.133.  Not later than March 1 of each year, each [local] law 
enforcement agency shall submit a report containing the incident-based data [information] 
compiled during the previous calendar year to the Commission on Law Enforcement Officer 
Standards and Education and, if the law enforcement agency is a local law enforcement agency, 
to the governing body of each county or municipality served by the agency [in a manner approved 
by the agency]. 
(c)  A report required under Subsection (b) must be submitted by the chief administrator of the 
law enforcement agency, regardless of whether the administrator is elected, employed, or 
appointed, and must include: 
(1)  a comparative analysis of the information compiled under Article 2.133 to: 
(A)  evaluate and compare the number of motor vehicle stops, within the applicable jurisdiction, 
of persons who are recognized as racial or ethnic minorities and persons who are not recognized 
as racial or ethnic minorities [determine the prevalence of racial profiling by peace officers 
employed by the agency]; and 
(B)  examine the disposition of motor vehicle [traffic and pedestrian] stops made by officers 
employed by the agency, categorized according to the race or ethnicity of the affected persons, 
as appropriate, including any searches resulting from [the] stops within the applicable 
jurisdiction; and 
(2)  information relating to each complaint filed with the agency alleging that a peace officer 
employed by the agency has engaged in racial profiling. 
(d)  A report required under Subsection (b) may not include identifying information about a peace 
officer who makes a motor vehicle [traffic or pedestrian] stop or about an individual who is 
stopped or arrested by a peace officer.  This subsection does not affect the reporting of 
information required under Article 2.133(b)(1). 
(e)  The Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education, in accordance with 
Section 1701.162, Occupations Code, shall develop guidelines for compiling and reporting 
information as required by this article. 

Cop
y



 44  

(g)  On a finding by the Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education that 
the chief administrator of a law enforcement agency intentionally failed to submit a report  
required under Subsection (b), the commission shall begin disciplinary procedures against the 
chief administrator. 
SECTION ____.  Article 2.135, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended to read as follows: 
Art. 2.135.  PARTIAL EXEMPTION FOR AGENCIES USING VIDEO AND AUDIO EQUIPMENT.  (a)  A 
peace officer is exempt from the reporting requirement under Article 2.133 and the chief 
administrator of a law enforcement agency, regardless of whether the administrator is elected, 
employed, or appointed, is exempt from the compilation, analysis, and reporting requirements 
under Article 2.134 if: 
(1)  during the calendar year preceding the date that a report under Article 2.134 is required to 
be submitted: 
(A)  each law enforcement motor vehicle regularly used by an officer employed by the agency to 
make motor vehicle [traffic and pedestrian] stops is equipped with video camera and  
transmitter-activated equipment and each law enforcement motorcycle regularly used to make 
motor vehicle [traffic and pedestrian] stops is equipped with transmitter-activated equipment; 
and 
(B)  each motor vehicle [traffic and pedestrian] stop made by an officer employed by the agency 
that is capable of being recorded by video and audio or audio equipment, as appropriate, is 
recorded by using the equipment; or 
(2)  the governing body of the county or municipality served by the law enforcement agency, in 
conjunction with the law enforcement agency, certifies to the Department of Public Safety, not 
later than the date specified by rule by the department, that the law enforcement agency needs 
funds or video and audio equipment for the purpose of installing video and audio equipment as  
described by Subsection (a)(1)(A) and the agency does not receive from the state funds or video 
and audio equipment sufficient, as determined by the department, for the agency to accomplish 
that purpose. 
(b)  Except as otherwise provided by this subsection, a law enforcement agency that is exempt 
from the requirements under Article 2.134 shall retain the video and audio or audio 
documentation of each motor vehicle [traffic and pedestrian] stop for at least 90 days after the 
date of the stop.  If a complaint is filed with the law enforcement agency alleging that a peace 
officer employed by the agency has engaged in racial profiling with respect to a motor vehicle 
[traffic or pedestrian] stop, the agency shall retain the video and audio or audio record of the 
stop until final disposition of the complaint. 
(c)  This article does not affect the collection or reporting requirements under Article 2.132. 
(d)  In this article, "motor vehicle stop" has the meaning assigned by Article 2.132(a). 
SECTION ____.  Chapter 2, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended by adding Article 2.1385 to 
read as follows: 
Art. 2.1385.  CIVIL PENALTY.  (a)  If the chief administrator of a local law enforcement agency 
intentionally fails to submit the incident-based data as required by Article 2.134, the agency is 
liable to the state for a civil penalty in the amount of $1,000 for each violation.  The attorney 
general may sue to collect a civil penalty under this subsection. 
(b)  From money appropriated to the agency for the administration of the agency, the executive 
director of a state law enforcement agency that intentionally fails to submit the incident-based 

Cop
y



 45  

data as required by Article 2.134 shall remit to the comptroller the amount of $1,000 for each 
violation. 
(c)  Money collected under this article shall be deposited in the state treasury to the credit of the 
general revenue fund. 
SECTION ____.  Subchapter A, Chapter 102, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended by adding 
Article 102.022 to read as follows: 
Art. 102.022.  COSTS ON CONVICTION TO FUND STATEWIDE REPOSITORY FOR DATA RELATED TO 
CIVIL JUSTICE.  (a)  In this article, "moving violation" means an offense that: 
(1)  involves the operation of a motor vehicle; and                     
(2)  is classified as a moving violation by the Department of Public Safety under Section 708.052, 
Transportation Code. 
(b)  A defendant convicted of a moving violation in a justice court, county court, county court at 
law, or municipal court shall pay a fee of 10 cents as a cost of court. 
(c)  In this article, a person is considered convicted if:               
(1)  a sentence is imposed on the person;                               
(2)  the person receives community supervision, including deferred adjudication; or 
(3)  the court defers final disposition of the person's case.         
(d)  The clerks of the respective courts shall collect the costs described by this article.  The clerk 
shall keep separate records of the funds collected as costs under this article and shall deposit the 
funds in the county or municipal treasury, as appropriate. 
(e)  The custodian of a county or municipal treasury shall:              
(1)  keep records of the amount of funds on deposit collected under this article; and 
(2)  send to the comptroller before the last day of the first month following each calendar quarter 
the funds collected under this article during the preceding quarter. 
(f)  A county or municipality may retain 10 percent of the funds collected under this article by an 
officer of the county or municipality as a collection fee if the custodian of the county or municipal 
treasury complies with Subsection (e). 
(g)  If no funds due as costs under this article are deposited in a county or municipal treasury in 
a calendar quarter, the custodian of the treasury shall file the report required for the quarter in 
the regular manner and must state that no funds were collected. 
(h)  The comptroller shall deposit the funds received under this article to the credit of the Civil 
Justice Data Repository fund in the general revenue fund, to be used only by the Commission on  
Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education to implement duties under Section 1701.162, 
Occupations Code. 
(i)  Funds collected under this article are subject to audit by the comptroller. 
SECTION ____.  (a)  Section 102.061, Government Code, as reenacted and amended by Chapter 
921 (H.B. 3167), Acts of the 80th Legislature, Regular Session, 2007, is amended to conform to 
the amendments made to Section 102.061, Government Code, by Chapter 1053 (H.B. 2151), Acts 
of the 80th Legislature, Regular Session, 2007, and is further amended to read as follows: 
Sec. 102.061.  ADDITIONAL COURT COSTS ON CONVICTION IN STATUTORY COUNTY COURT:  
CODE OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE.  The clerk of a statutory county court shall collect fees and costs 
under the Code of Criminal Procedure on conviction of a defendant as follows: 
(1)  a jury fee (Art. 102.004, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $20;        
(2)  a fee for services of the clerk of the court (Art. 102.005, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $40; 

Cop
y



 46  

(3)  a records management and preservation services fee (Art. 102.005, Code of Criminal 
Procedure) . . . $25; 
(4)  a security fee on a misdemeanor offense (Art. 102.017, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $3; 
(5)  a juvenile delinquency prevention and graffiti eradication fee (Art. 102.0171, Code of Criminal 
Procedure) . . . $50 [$5]; [and] 
(6)  a juvenile case manager fee (Art. 102.0174, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . not to exceed 
$5; and 
(7)  a civil justice fee (Art. 102.022, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $0.10. 
(b)  Section 102.061, Government Code, as amended by Chapter 1053 (H.B. 2151), Acts of the 
80th Legislature, Regular Session, 2007, is repealed.  Section 102.061, Government Code, as 
reenacted and amended by Chapter 921 (H.B. 3167), Acts of the 80th Legislature, Regular 
Session, 2007, to reorganize and renumber that section, continues in effect as further amended 
by this section. 
SECTION ____.  (a)  Section 102.081, Government Code, as amended by Chapter 921 (H.B. 3167), 
Acts of the 80th Legislature, Regular Session, 2007, is amended to conform to the amendments 
made to Section 102.081, Government Code, by Chapter 1053 (H.B. 2151), Acts of the 80th 
Legislature, Regular Session, 2007, and is further amended to read as follows: 
Sec. 102.081.  ADDITIONAL COURT COSTS ON CONVICTION IN COUNTY COURT:  CODE OF 
CRIMINAL PROCEDURE.  The clerk of a county court shall collect fees and costs under the Code 
of Criminal Procedure on conviction of a defendant as follows: 
 
(1)  a jury fee (Art. 102.004, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $20;      
(2)  a fee for clerk of the court services (Art. 102.005, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $40; 
(3)  a records management and preservation services fee (Art. 102.005, Code of Criminal 
Procedure) . . . $25; 
(4)  a security fee on a misdemeanor offense (Art. 102.017, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $3; 
(5)  a juvenile delinquency prevention and graffiti eradication fee (Art. 102.0171, Code of Criminal 
Procedure) . . . $50 [$5]; [and] 
(6)  a juvenile case manager fee (Art. 102.0174, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . not to exceed 
$5; and 
(7)  a civil justice fee (Art. 102.022, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $0.10. 
(b)  Section 102.081, Government Code, as amended by Chapter 1053 (H.B. 2151), Acts of the 
80th Legislature, Regular Session, 2007, is repealed.  Section 102.081, Government Code, as 
amended by Chapter 921 (H.B. 3167), Acts of the 80th Legislature, Regular Session, 2007, to 
reorganize and renumber that section, continues in effect as further amended by this section. 
SECTION ____.  Section 102.101, Government Code, is amended to read as follows: 
Sec. 102.101.  ADDITIONAL COURT COSTS ON CONVICTION IN JUSTICE COURT:  CODE OF 
CRIMINAL PROCEDURE.  A clerk of a justice court shall collect fees and costs under the Code of 
Criminal Procedure on conviction of a defendant as follows: 
(1)  a jury fee (Art. 102.004, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $3;         
(2)  a fee for withdrawing request for jury less than 24 hours before time of trial (Art. 102.004, 
Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $3; 
(3)  a jury fee for two or more defendants tried jointly (Art. 102.004, Code of Criminal Procedure) 
. . . one jury fee of $3; 

Cop
y



 47  

(4)  a security fee on a misdemeanor offense (Art. 102.017, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $4; 
(5)  a fee for technology fund on a misdemeanor offense (Art. 102.0173, Code of Criminal 
Procedure) . . . $4; 
(6)  a juvenile case manager fee (Art. 102.0174, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . not to exceed 
$5; 
(7)  a fee on conviction of certain offenses involving issuing or passing a subsequently dishonored 
check (Art. 102.0071, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . not to exceed $30; [and] 
(8)  a court cost on conviction of a Class C misdemeanor in a county with a population of 3.3 
million or more, if authorized by the county commissioners court (Art. 102.009, Code of Criminal  
Procedure) . . . not to exceed $7; and 
(9)  a civil justice fee (Art. 102.022, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $0.10. 
SECTION ____.  Section 102.121, Government Code, is amended to read as follows: 
Sec. 102.121.  ADDITIONAL COURT COSTS ON CONVICTION IN MUNICIPAL COURT:  CODE OF 
CRIMINAL PROCEDURE.  The clerk of a municipal court shall collect fees and costs on conviction 
of a defendant as follows: 
(1)  a jury fee (Art. 102.004, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $3;         
(2)  a fee for withdrawing request for jury less than 24 hours before time of trial (Art. 102.004, 
Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $3; 
(3)  a jury fee for two or more defendants tried jointly (Art. 102.004, Code of Criminal Procedure) 
. . . one jury fee of $3; 
(4)  a security fee on a misdemeanor offense (Art. 102.017, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $3; 
(5)  a fee for technology fund on a misdemeanor offense (Art. 102.0172, Code of Criminal 
Procedure) . . . not to exceed $4; [and] 
(6)  a juvenile case manager fee (Art. 102.0174, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . not to exceed 
$5; and 
(7)  a civil justice fee (Art. 102.022, Code of Criminal Procedure) . . . $0.10. 
SECTION ____.  Subchapter D, Chapter 1701, Occupations Code, is amended by adding Section 
1701.164 to read as follows: 
Sec. 1701.164.  COLLECTION OF CERTAIN INCIDENT-BASED DATA SUBMITTED BY LAW 
ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES.  The commission shall collect and maintain incident-based data 
submitted to the commission under Article 2.134, Code of Criminal Procedure, including incident-
based data compiled by a law enforcement agency from reports received by the law enforcement 
agency under Article 2.133 of that code.  The commission in consultation with the Department 
of Public Safety, the Bill Blackwood Law Enforcement Management Institute of Texas,  the W. W. 
Caruth, Jr., Police Institute at Dallas, and the Texas Police Chiefs Association shall develop 
guidelines for submitting in a standard format the report containing incident-based data as 
required by Article 2.134, Code of Criminal Procedure. 
SECTION ____.  Subsection (a), Section 1701.501, Occupations Code, is amended to read as 
follows: 
(a)  Except as provided by Subsection (d), the commission shall revoke or suspend a license, place 
on probation a person whose license has been suspended, or reprimand a license holder for a  
violation of: 
(1)  this chapter;                                               

Cop
y



 48  

(2)  the reporting requirements provided by Articles 2.132 and 2.134, Code of Criminal Procedure; 
or 
(3)  a commission rule.                                                 
SECTION ____.  (a)  The requirements of Articles 2.132, 2.133, and 2.134, Code of Criminal 
Procedure, as amended by this Act, relating to the compilation, analysis, and submission of 
incident-based data apply only to information based on a motor vehicle stop occurring on or after 
January 1, 2010. 
(b)  The imposition of a cost of court under Article 102.022, Code of Criminal Procedure, as added 
by this Act, applies only to an offense committed on or after the effective date of this Act.  An 
offense committed before the effective date of this Act is covered by the law in effect when the 
offense was committed, and the former law is continued in effect for that purpose.  For purposes 
of this section, an offense was committed before the effective date of this Act if any element of 
the offense occurred before that date. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cop
y



 49  

Racial and Ethnic Designations 
(H.B. 3051) 

 
  
H.B. No. 3051 - An Act relating to the categories used to record the race or ethnicity of persons 
stopped for or convicted of traffic offenses. 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS: 
SECTION 1.  Article 2.132(a)(3), Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended to read as follows: 
(3)  "Race or ethnicity" means the following categories: 
(A)  Alaska native or American Indian; 
(B)  [of a particular descent, including Caucasian, African, Hispanic,] Asian or Pacific Islander; 
(C)  black; 
(D)  white; and  
(E)  Hispanic or Latino [, Native American, or Middle Eastern descent]. 

 
SECTION 2.  Section 543.202(a), Transportation Code, is amended to read as follows: 
(a)  In this section, "race or ethnicity" means the following categories:  
(1)  Alaska native or American Indian; 
(2)  [of a particular descent, including Caucasian, African, Hispanic,] Asian or Pacific Islander;  
(3)  black;  
(4)  white; and 
(5)  Hispanic or Latino [, or Native American descent]. 
SECTION 3.  This Act takes effect September 1, 2017. 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
    President of the Senate Speaker of the House       
 
I certify that H.B. No. 3051 was passed by the House on May 4, 2017, by the following vote:  Yeas 
143, Nays 2, 2 present, not voting. 
______________________________ 
Chief Clerk of the House    
 
I certify that H.B. No. 3051 was passed by the Senate on May 19, 2017, by the following 
vote:  Yeas 31, Nays 0. 
______________________________ 
Secretary of the Senate     
APPROVED:  _____________________ 
                           Date           
           _____________________ 
                  Governor        

Cop
y



 50  

The Sandra Bland Act 
(S.B. 1849) 

S.B. No. 1849  
An Act relating to interactions between law enforcement and individuals detained or arrested on 
suspicion of the commission of criminal offenses, to the confinement, conviction, or release of 
those individuals, and to grants supporting populations that are more likely to interact frequently 
with law enforcement. 
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS: 
ARTICLE 1.  SHORT TITLE 
 
SECTION 1.01.  SHORT TITLE.  This Act shall be known as the Sandra Bland Act, in memory of 
Sandra Bland. 
 
ARTICLE 2.  IDENTIFICATION AND DIVERSION OF AND SERVICES FOR PERSONS SUSPECTED OF 
HAVING A MENTAL ILLNESS, AN INTELLECTUAL DISABILITY, OR A SUBSTANCE ABUSE ISSUE 
 
SECTION 2.01.  Article 16.22, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended to read as follows: 
 
Art. 16.22.  EARLY IDENTIFICATION OF DEFENDANT SUSPECTED OF HAVING MENTAL ILLNESS OR 
INTELLECTUAL DISABILITY [MENTAL RETARDATION].  (a)(1)  Not later than 12 [72] hours after 
receiving credible information that may establish reasonable cause to believe that a defendant 
committed to the sheriff's custody has a mental illness or is a person with an intellectual disability 
[mental retardation], including observation of the defendant's behavior immediately before, 
during, and after the defendant's arrest and the results of any previous assessment of the 
defendant, the sheriff shall provide written or electronic notice of the information to the 
magistrate. On a determination that there is reasonable cause to believe that the defendant has 
a mental illness or is a person with an intellectual disability [mental retardation], the magistrate, 
except as provided by Subdivision 

(2), shall order the local mental health or intellectual and developmental disability 
[mental retardation] authority or another qualified mental health or intellectual disability 
[mental retardation] expert to: 
(A)  collect information regarding whether the defendant has a mental illness as defined by 
Section 571.003, 
Health and Safety Code, or is a person with an intellectual disability [mental retardation] as 
defined by Section 591.003, Health and Safety Code, including information obtained from any 
previous assessment of the defendant; and 
(B)  provide to the magistrate a written assessment of the information collected under Paragraph 
(A). 

(2)  The magistrate is not required to order the collection of information under Subdivision 

Cop
y



 51  

(1) if the defendant in the year preceding the defendant's applicable date of arrest has 
been determined to have a mental illness or to be a person with an intellectual disability 
[mental retardation] by the local mental health or intellectual and developmental 
disability [mental retardation] authority or another mental health or intellectual disability 
[mental retardation] expert described by Subdivision 
(1).  A court that elects to use the results of that previous determination may proceed 

under Subsection (c). 
(3)  If the defendant fails or refuses to submit to the collection of information regarding 

the defendant as required under Subdivision (1), the magistrate may order the defendant to 
submit to an examination in a mental health facility determined to be appropriate by the local 
mental health or intellectual and developmental disability [mental retardation] authority for a 
reasonable period not to exceed 21 days.  The magistrate may order a defendant to a facility 
operated by the Department of State Health Services or the Health and Human Services 
Commission [Department of Aging and Disability Services] for examination only on request of the 
local mental health or intellectual and developmental disability [mental retardation] authority 
and with the consent of the head of the facility.  If a defendant who has been ordered to a facility 
operated by the Department of State Health Services or the Health and Human Services 
Commission [Department of Aging and Disability Services] for examination remains in the facility 
for a period exceeding 21 days, the head of that facility shall cause the defendant to be 
immediately transported to the committing court and placed in the custody of the sheriff of the 
county in which the committing court is located.  That county shall reimburse the facility for the 
mileage and per diem expenses of the personnel required to transport the defendant calculated 
in accordance with the state travel regulations in effect at the time. 

(b)  A written assessment of the information collected under Subsection (a)(1)(A) shall be 
provided to the magistrate not later than the 30th day after the date of any order issued under 
Subsection (a) in a felony case and not later than the 10th day after the date of any order issued 
under that subsection in a misdemeanor case, and the magistrate shall provide copies of the 
written assessment to the defense counsel, the prosecuting attorney, and the trial court.  The 
written assessment must include a description of the procedures used in the collection of 
information under Subsection (a)(1)(A) and the applicable expert's 
observations and findings pertaining to: 

(1)  whether the defendant is a person who has a mental illness or is a person with an 
intellectual disability [mental retardation]; 

(2)  whether there is clinical evidence to support a belief that the defendant may be 
incompetent to stand trial and should undergo a complete competency examination under 
Subchapter B, Chapter 46B; and 

(3)  recommended treatment. 
(c)  After the trial court receives the applicable expert's written assessment relating to the 

defendant under Subsection (b) 
or elects to use the results of a previous determination as described by Subsection (a)(2), the trial 
court may, as applicable: 

(1)  resume criminal proceedings against the defendant, including any appropriate 
proceedings related to the defendant's release on personal bond under Article 17.032; 

(2)  resume or initiate competency proceedings, if required, as provided by Chapter 46B 

Cop
y



 52  

or other proceedings affecting the defendant's receipt of appropriate court-ordered mental 
health or intellectual disability [mental retardation] services, including proceedings related to the 
defendant's receipt of outpatient mental health services under Section 574.034, Health and 
Safety Code; or 

(3)  consider the written assessment during the punishment phase after a conviction of 
the offense for which the defendant was arrested, as part of a presentence investigation report, 
or in connection with the impositions of conditions following placement on community 
supervision, including deferred adjudication community supervision. 

(d)  This article does not prevent the applicable court from, before, during, or after the 
collection of information regarding the defendant as described by this article: (1)  releasing a 
defendant who has a mental illness [mentally ill] or is a person with an intellectual disability 
[mentally retarded defendant] from custody on personal or surety bond; or  

(2)  ordering an examination regarding the defendant's competency to stand trial. 
 
SECTION 2.02.  Chapter 16, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended by adding Article 16.23 to 
read as follows: 
 
Art. 16.23.  DIVERSION OF PERSONS SUFFERING MENTAL HEALTH CRISIS OR SUBSTANCE ABUSE 
ISSUE. (a)  Each law enforcement agency shall make a good faith effort to divert a person suffering 
a mental health crisis or suffering from the effects of substance abuse to a proper treatment 
center in the agency's jurisdiction if: 

(1)  there is an available and appropriate treatment center in the agency's jurisdiction to 
which the agency may divert the person; 

(2)  it is reasonable to divert the person; 
(3)  the offense that the person is accused of is a misdemeanor, other than a misdemeanor 

involving violence; and 
(4)  the mental health crisis or substance abuse issue is suspected to be the reason the 

person committed the alleged offense. 
(b)  Subsection (a) does not apply to a person who is accused of an offense under Section 

49.04, 49.045, 49.05, 49.06, 49.065, 
49.07, or 49.08, Penal Code. 
 
SECTION 2.03.  Section 539.002, Government Code, is amended to read as follows: 
 
Sec. 539.002.  GRANTS FOR ESTABLISHMENT AND EXPANSION OF COMMUNITY 
COLLABORATIVES. (a)  To the extent funds are appropriated to the department for that purpose, 
the department shall make grants to entities, including local governmental entities, nonprofit 
community organizations, and faith-based community organizations, to establish or expand 
community collaboratives that bring the public and private sectors together to provide services 
to persons experiencing homelessness, substance abuse issues, or [and] mental illness.  [The 
department may make a maximum of five grants, which must be made in the most populous 
municipalities in this state that are located in counties with a population of more than one 
million.]  In awarding grants, the department shall give special consideration to entities: 
             (1)  establishing [a] new collaboratives; or 

Cop
y



 53  

             (2)  establishing or expanding collaboratives thatserve two or more counties, each with a 
population of less than 100,000 [collaborative]. 

(b)  The department shall require each entity awarded a grant under this section to: 
(1)  leverage additional funding from private sources in an amount that is at least equal 

to the amount of the grant awarded under this section; [and] 
(2)  provide evidence of significant coordination and collaboration between the entity, 

local mental health authorities, municipalities, local law enforcement agencies, and other 
community stakeholders in establishing or expanding a community collaborative funded by a 
grant awarded under this section; and 

(3)  provide evidence of a local law enforcement policy to divert appropriate persons from 
jails or other detention facilities to an entity affiliated with a community collaborative for the 
purpose of providing services to those persons. 
 
SECTION 2.04.  Chapter 539, Government Code, is amended by adding Section 539.0051 to read 
as follows: 
 
Sec. 539.0051.  PLAN REQUIRED FOR CERTAIN COMMUNITY COLLABORATIVES. (a)  The governing 
body of a county shall develop and make public a plan detailing: 

(1)  how local mental health authorities, municipalities, local law enforcement agencies, 
and other community stakeholders in the county could coordinate to establish or expand a 
community collaborative to accomplish the goals of Section 539.002; 

(2)  how entities in the county may leverage funding from private sources to accomplish 
the goals of Section 539.002 through the formation or expansion of a community collaborative; 
and 
             (3)  how the formation or expansion of a community collaborative could establish or 
support resources or services to help local law enforcement agencies to divert persons who have 
been arrested to appropriate mental health care or substance abuse treatment. 

(b)  The governing body of a county in which an entity that received a grant under Section 
539.002 before September 1, 2017, is located is not required to develop a plan under Subsection 
(a). 

(c)  Two or more counties, each with a population of less than 100,000, may form a joint 
plan under Subsection (a). 
 
ARTICLE 3.  BAIL, PRETRIAL RELEASE, AND COUNTY JAIL STANDARDS 
 
SECTION 3.01.  The heading to Article 17.032, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended to read as 
follows: 
 
Art. 17.032.  RELEASE ON PERSONAL BOND OF CERTAIN [MENTALLY ILL] DEFENDANTS WITH 
MENTAL ILLNESS OR INTELLECTUAL DISABILITY. 
 
SECTION 3.02.  Articles 17.032(b) and (c), Code of Criminal Procedure, are amended to read as 
follows: 

(b)  A magistrate shall release a defendant on personal bond unless good cause is shown 

Cop
y



 54  

otherwise if the: 
(1)  defendant is not charged with and has not been previously convicted of a violent 

offense; 
(2)  defendant is examined by the local mental health or intellectual and developmental 

disability [mental retardation] authority or another mental health expert under Article 16.22 [of 
this code]; 

(3)  applicable expert, in a written assessment submitted to the magistrate under Article 
16.22: 
(A)  concludes that the defendant has a mental illness or is a person with an intellectual disability 
[mental retardation] and is nonetheless competent to stand trial; and 
(B)  recommends mental health treatment or intellectual disability treatment for the defendant, 
as applicable; and 

(4)  magistrate determines, in consultation with the local mental health or intellectual and 
developmental disability [mental retardation] authority, that appropriate community-based 
mental health or intellectual disability [mental retardation] services for the defendant are 
available through the [Texas] Department of State [Mental] Health Services [and Mental 
Retardation] under Section 534.053, Health and Safety Code, or through another mental health 
or intellectual disability [mental retardation] services provider. 

(c)  The magistrate, unless good cause is shown for not requiring treatment, shall require 
as a condition of release on personal bond under this article that the defendant submit to 
outpatient or inpatient mental health or intellectual disability [mental retardation] treatment as 
recommended by the local mental health or intellectual and developmental disability [mental 
retardation] authority if the defendant's: 

(1)  mental illness or intellectual disability [mental retardation] is chronic in nature; or 
(2)  ability to function independently will continue to deteriorate if the defendant is not 

treated. 
 
SECTION 3.03.  Article 25.03, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended to read as follows: 
 
Art. 25.03.  IF ON BAIL IN FELONY. When the accused, in case of felony, is on bail at the time the 
indictment is presented, [it is not necessary to serve him with a copy, but] the clerk shall [on 
request] deliver a copy of the indictment [same] to the accused or the accused's [his] counsel[,] 
at the earliest possible time. 
 
SECTION 3.04.  Article 25.04, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended to read as follows: 
 
Art. 25.04.  IN MISDEMEANOR. In misdemeanors, the clerk shall deliver a copy of the indictment 
or information to the accused or the accused's counsel at the earliest possible time before trial 
[it shall not be necessary before trial to furnish the accused with a copy of the indictment or 
information; but he or his counsel may demand a copy, which shall be given as early as possible 
 
SECTION 3.05.  Section 511.009(a), Government Code, as amended by Chapters 281 (H.B. 875), 
648 (H.B. 549), and 688 (H.B. 634), Acts of the 84th Legislature, Regular Session, 2015, is 
reenacted and amended to read as follows: 

Cop
y



 55  

(a)  The commission shall: 
(1)  adopt reasonable rules and procedures establishing minimum standards for the 

construction, equipment, maintenance, and operation of county jails; 
(2)  adopt reasonable rules and procedures establishing minimum standards for the 

custody, care, and treatment of prisoners; 
(3)  adopt reasonable rules establishing minimum standards for the number of jail 

supervisory personnel and for programs and services to meet the needs of prisoners; 
(4)  adopt reasonable rules and procedures establishing minimum requirements for 

programs of rehabilitation, education, and recreation in county jails; 
(5)  revise, amend, or change rules and procedures if necessary;  
(6)  provide to local government officials consultation on and technical assistance for 

county jails; 
(7)  review and comment on plans for the construction and major modification or 

renovation of county jails; 
(8)  require that the sheriff and commissioners of each county submit to the commission, 

on a form prescribed by the commission, an annual report on the conditions in each county jail 
within their jurisdiction, including all information necessary to determine compliance with state 
law, commission orders, and the rules adopted under this chapter; 

(9)  review the reports submitted under Subdivision (8) and require commission 
employees to inspect county jails regularly to ensure compliance with state law, commission 
orders, and rules 
and procedures adopted under this chapter; 

(10)  adopt a classification system to assist sheriffs and judges in determining which 
defendants are low-risk and consequently suitable participants in a county jail work release 
program under Article 42.034, Code of Criminal Procedure; 

(11)  adopt rules relating to requirements for segregation of classes of inmates and to 
capacities for county jails; 

(12)  require that the chief jailer of each municipal lockup submit to the commission, on 
a form prescribed by the commission, an annual report of persons under 17 years of age 
securely detained in the lockup, including all information necessary to determine compliance 
with state law concerning secure confinement of children in municipal lockups; 

(13)  at least annually determine whether each county jail is in compliance with the rules 
and procedures adopted under this chapter; 

(14)  require that the sheriff and commissioners court of each county submit to the 
commission, on a form prescribed by the commission, an annual report of persons under 17 years 
of age securely detained in the county jail, including all information necessary to determine 
compliance with state law concerning secure confinement of children in county jails; 

(15)  schedule announced and unannounced inspections of jails under the commission's 
jurisdiction using the risk assessment plan established under Section 511.0085 to guide the 
inspections process; 

(16)  adopt a policy for gathering and distributing to jails under the commission's 
jurisdiction information regarding: 

(A)  common issues concerning jail administration; 
(B)  examples of successful strategies for maintaining compliance with state law and the rules, 

Cop
y



 56  

standards, and procedures of the commission; and 
(C)  solutions to operational challenges for jails;  

(17)  report to the Texas Correctional Office on Offenders with Medical or Mental 
Impairments on a jail's compliance with Article 16.22, Code of Criminal Procedure; 

(18)  adopt reasonable rules and procedures establishing minimum requirements for jails 
to: 
(A)  determine if a prisoner is pregnant; and 
(B)  ensure that the jail's health services plan addresses medical and mental health care, including 
nutritional requirements, and any special housing or work assignment needs for persons who are 
confined in the jail and are known or determined to be pregnant; 

(19)  provide guidelines to sheriffs regarding contracts between a sheriff and another 
entity for the provision of food services to or the operation of a commissary in a jail under the 
commission's jurisdiction, including specific provisions regarding conflicts of interest and 
avoiding the appearance of impropriety; [and] 

(20)  adopt reasonable rules and procedures establishing minimum standards for prisoner 
visitation that provide each prisoner at a county jail with a minimum of two in-person, noncontact 
visitation periods per week of at least 20 minutes duration each; 

(21) [(20)]  require the sheriff of each county to: 
(A)  investigate and verify the veteran status of each prisoner by using data made available from 
the Veterans Reentry Search Service (VRSS) operated by the United States Department of 
Veterans Affairs or a similar service; and 
(B)  use the data described by Paragraph (A) to assist prisoners who are veterans in applying for 
federal benefits or compensation for which the prisoners may be eligible under a program 
administered by the United States Department of Veterans Affairs; 

(22) [(20)]  adopt reasonable rules and procedures regarding visitation of a prisoner at a 
county jail by a guardian, as defined by Section 1002.012, Estates Code, that: 
(A)  allow visitation by a guardian to the same extent as the prisoner's next of kin, including 
placing the guardian on the prisoner's approved visitors list on the guardian's request and 
providing the guardian access to the prisoner during a facility's standard visitation hours if the 
prisoner is otherwise eligible to receive visitors; and 
(B)  require the guardian to provide the sheriff with letters of guardianship issued as provided by 
Section 1106.001, Estates Code, before being allowed to visit the prisoner; and 

(23)  adopt reasonable rules and procedures to ensure the safety of prisoners, including 
rules and procedures that require a county jail to: 
(A)  give prisoners the ability to access a mental health professional at the jail through a 
telemental health service 24 hours a day; 
(B)  give prisoners the ability to access a health professional at the jail or through a telehealth 
service 24 hours a day or, if a health professional is unavailable at the jail or through a telehealth 
service, provide for a prisoner to be transported to access a health professional; and 
(C)  if funding is available under Section 511.019, install automated electronic sensors or cameras 
to ensure accurate and timely in-person checks of cells or groups of cells confining at-risk 
individuals. 
 
SECTION 3.06.  Section 511.009, Government Code, is amended by adding Subsection (d) to read 

Cop
y



 57  

as follows: 
(d)  The commission shall adopt reasonable rules and procedures establishing minimum 

standards regarding the continuity of prescription medications for the care and treatment of 
prisoners. The rules and procedures shall require that a qualified medical professional shall 
review as soon as possible any prescription medication a prisoner is taking when the prisoner is 
taken into custody. 
 
SECTION 3.07.  Chapter 511, Government Code, is amended by adding Sections 511.019, 511.020, 
and 511.021 to read as follows: 
 
Sec. 511.019.  PRISONER SAFETY FUND. (a)  The prisoner safety fund is a dedicated account in the 
general revenue fund. 

(b)  The prisoner safety fund consists of: 
(1)  appropriations of money to the fund by the legislature; and 
(2)  gifts, grants, including grants from the federal government, and other donations 

received for the fund. 
(c)  Money in the fund may be appropriated only to the commission to pay for capital 

improvements that are required under Section 511.009(a)(23). 
(d)  The commission by rule may establish a grant program to provide grants to counties 

to fund capital improvements described by Subsection (c). The commission may only provide a 
grant to a county for capital improvements to a county jail with a capacity of not more than 96 
prisoners. 
 
Sec. 511.020.  SERIOUS INCIDENTS REPORT. (a)  On or before the fifth day of each month, the 
sheriff of each county shall report to the commission regarding the occurrence during the 
preceding month of any of the following incidents involving a prisoner in the county jail: 
             (1)  a suicide; 
             (2)  an attempted suicide; 
             (3)  a death; 
             (4)  a serious bodily injury, as that term is defined by 
Section 1.07, Penal Code; 
             (5)  an assault; 
             (6)  an escape; 
             (7)  a sexual assault; and 
             (8)  any use of force resulting in bodily injury, as that term is defined by Section 1.07, Penal 
Code. 

(b)  The commission shall prescribe a form for the report required by Subsection (a). 
(c)  The information required to be reported under Subsection (a)(8) may not include the 

name or other identifying information of a county jailer or jail employee. 
(d)  The information reported under Subsection (a) is public information subject to an 

open records request under Chapter 552. 
 
Sec. 511.021.  INDEPENDENT INVESTIGATION OF DEATH OCCURRING IN COUNTY JAIL. (a)  On the 
death of a prisoner in a county jail, the commission shall appoint a law enforcement agency, other 

Cop
y



 58  

than the local law enforcement agency that operates the county jail, to investigate the death as 
soon as possible. 

(b)  The commission shall adopt any rules necessary relating 
to the appointment of a law enforcement agency under Subsection 

(a), including rules relating to cooperation between law 
enforcement agencies and to procedures for handling evidence. 
 
SECTION 3.08.  The changes in law made by this article to Article 17.032, Code of Criminal 
Procedure, apply only to a personal bond that is executed on or after the effective date of 
this Act. A personal bond executed before the effective date of executed, and the former law is 
continued in effect for that purpose. 
 
SECTION 3.09.  Not later than January 1, 2018, the Commission on Jail Standards shall: 

(1)  adopt the rules and procedures required by Section 511.009(d), Government Code, 
as added by this article, and the rules required by Section 511.021(b), Government Code, as 
added by this article; and 

(2)  prescribe the form required by Section 511.020(b), Government Code, as added by 
this article. 
 
SECTION 3.10.  Not later than September 1, 2018, the Commission on Jail Standards shall adopt 
the rules and procedures required by Section 511.009(a)(23), Government Code, as added by this 
article.  On and after September 1, 2020, a county jail shall comply with any rule or procedure 
adopted by the Commission on Jail Standards under that subdivision. 
 
SECTION 3.11.  To the extent of any conflict, this Act prevails over another Act of the 85th 
Legislature, Regular Session, 2017, relating to non-substantive additions to and corrections in 
enacted codes. 
 
ARTICLE 4. PEACE OFFICER AND COUNTY JAILER TRAINING 
 
SECTION 4.01.  Chapter 511, Government Code, is amended by adding Section 511.00905 to read 
as follows: 
 
Sec. 511.00905.  JAIL ADMINISTRATOR POSITION; EXAMINATION REQUIRED. (a)  The Texas 
Commission on Law Enforcement shall develop and the commission shall approve an 
examination for a person assigned to the jail administrator position overseeing a 
county jail. 

(b)  The commission shall adopt rules requiring a person, other than a sheriff, assigned to 
the jail administrator position overseeing a county jail to pass the examination not later than the 
180th day after the date the person is assigned to that position. The rules must provide that a 
person who fails the examination may be immediately removed from the position and may not 
be reinstated until the person passes the examination. 

(c)  The sheriff of a county shall perform the duties of the jail administrator position at 
any time there is not a person available who satisfies the examination requirements of this 

Cop
y



 59  

section. 
(d)  A person other than a sheriff may not serve in the jail administrator position of a 

county jail unless the person satisfies the examination requirement of this section. 
 
SECTION 4.02.  Section 1701.253, Occupations Code, is amended by amending Subsection (j) and 
adding Subsection (n) to read as follows: commission shall require an officer to complete a 40-
hour statewide education and training program on de-escalation and crisis intervention 
techniques to facilitate interaction with persons with mental impairments. An officer shall 
complete the program not later than the second anniversary of the date the officer is licensed 
under this chapter or the date the officer applies for an intermediate proficiency certificate, 
whichever date is earlier. An officer may not satisfy the requirements of this subsection [section] 
or Section 1701.402(g) by taking an online course on de-escalation and crisis intervention 
techniques to facilitate interaction with persons with mental impairments. 

(n)  As part of the minimum curriculum requirements, the commission shall require an 
officer to complete a statewide education and training program on de-escalation techniques to 
facilitate interaction with members of the public, including techniques for limiting the use of 
force resulting in bodily injury. 
 
SECTION 4.03.  Section 1701.310(a), Occupations Code, is amended to read as follows: 
(a)  Except as provided by Subsection (e), a person may not be appointed as a county jailer, except 
on a temporary basis, unless the person has satisfactorily completed a preparatory training 
program, as required by the commission, in the operation of a county jail at a school operated or 
licensed by the commission. The training program must consist of at least eight hours of mental 
health training approved by the commission and the Commission on Jail Standards. 
 
SECTION 4.04.  Section 1701.352(b), Occupations Code, is amended to read as follows: 

(b)  The commission shall require a state, county, special district, or municipal agency that 
appoints or employs peace officers to provide each peace officer with a training program at 
least once every 48 months that is approved by the commission and consists of: 

(1)  topics selected by the agency; and 
(2)  for an officer holding only a basic proficiency certificate, not more than 20 hours of 

education and training that contain curricula incorporating the learning objectives developed by 
the commission regarding: 
(A)  civil rights, racial sensitivity, and cultural diversity; 
(B)  de-escalation and crisis intervention techniques to facilitate interaction with persons with 
mental impairments; [and] 
(C)  de-escalation techniques to facilitate interaction with members of the public, including 
techniques for limiting the use of force resulting in bodily injury; and 
(D)  unless determined by the agency head to be inconsistent with the officer's assigned duties: 

(i)  the recognition and documentation of cases that involve child abuse or neglect, family 
violence, and sexual assault; and 

(ii)  issues concerning sex offender characteristics. 
 
SECTION 4.05.  Section 1701.402, Occupations Code, is amended by adding Subsection (n) to read 

Cop
y



 60  

as follows: 
(n)  As a requirement for an intermediate proficiency certificate or an advanced 

proficiency certificate, an officer must complete the education and training program regarding 
de-escalation techniques to facilitate interaction with members of the public established by the 
commission under Section 1701.253(n). 
 
SECTION 4.06.  Not later than March 1, 2018, the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement shall 
develop and the Commission on Jail Standards shall approve the examination required by Section 
511.00905, Government Code, as added by this article.  
 
SECTION 4.07.  (a)  Not later than March 1, 2018, the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement 
shall establish or modify training programs as necessary to comply with Section 1701.253, 
Occupations Code, as amended by this article. 

(b)  The minimum curriculum requirements under Section 1701.253(j), Occupations Code, 
as amended by this article, apply only to a peace officer who first begins to satisfy those 
requirements on or after April 1, 2018. 
 
SECTION 4.08.  (a)  Section 1701.310, Occupations Code, as amended by this article, takes effect 
January 1, 2018. 

(b)  A person in the position of county jailer on September 1, 2017, must comply with 
Section 1701.310(a), Occupations Code, as amended by this article, not later than August 31, 
2021. 
 
ARTICLE 5.  MOTOR VEHICLE STOPS, RACIAL PROFILING, AND ISSUANCE OF CITATIONS 
 
SECTION 5.01.  Article 2.132, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended by amending Subsections 
(b) and (d) and adding Subsection (h) to read as follows: 

(b)  Each law enforcement agency in this state shall adopt a detailed written policy on 
racial profiling.  The policy must: 

(1)  clearly define acts constituting racial profiling;  
(2)  strictly prohibit peace officers employed by the agency from engaging in racial 

profiling; 
(3)  implement a process by which an individual may file a complaint with the agency if 

the individual believes that a peace officer employed by the agency has engaged in racial profiling 
with respect to the individual; 

(4)  provide public education relating to the agency's compliment and complaint process, 
including providing the telephone number, mailing address, and e-mail address to make a 
compliment or complaint with respect to each ticket, citation, or warning issued by a peace 
officer; 

(5)  require appropriate corrective action to be taken against a peace officer employed by 
the agency who, after an investigation, is shown to have engaged in racial profiling in violation of 
the agency's policy adopted under this article; 

(6)  require collection of information relating to motor vehicle stops in which a ticket, 
citation, or warning is issued and to arrests made as a result of those stops, including information 

Cop
y



 61  

relating to: 
(A)  the race or ethnicity of the individual detained;  
(B)  whether a search was conducted and, if so, whether the individual detained consented to 
the search; [and] 
(C)  whether the peace officer knew the race or ethnicity of the individual detained before 
detaining that individual;  
(D)  whether the peace officer used physical force that resulted in bodily injury, as that term is 
defined by Section 1.07, Penal Code, during the stop; 
(E)  the location of the stop; and 
(F)  the reason for the stop; and 

(7)  require the chief administrator of the agency, regardless of whether the administrator 
is elected, employed, or appointed, to submit an annual report of the information collected under 
Subdivision (6) to: 
(A)  the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement; and 
(B)  the governing body of each county or municipality served by the agency, if the agency is an 
agency of a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of the state. 

(d)  On adoption of a policy under Subsection (b), a law enforcement agency shall examine 
the feasibility of installing video camera and transmitter-activated equipment in each agency law 
enforcement motor vehicle regularly used to make motor vehicle stops and transmitter-activated 
equipment in each agency law enforcement motorcycle regularly used to make motor vehicle 
stops. The agency also shall examine the feasibility of equipping each peace officer who regularly 
detains or stops motor vehicles with a body worn camera, as that term is defined by Section 
1701.651, Occupations Code.  If a law enforcement agency installs video or audio equipment or 
equips peace officers with body worn cameras as provided by this subsection, the policy adopted 
by the agency under Subsection (b) must include standards for reviewing video and audio 
documentation. 

(h)  A law enforcement agency shall review the data collected under Subsection (b)(6) to 
identify any improvements the agency could make in its practices and policies regarding motor 
vehicle stops. 
 
SECTION 5.02.  Article 2.133, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended by amending Subsection 
(b) and adding Subsection (c) to read as follows: 

(b)  A peace officer who stops a motor vehicle for an alleged violation of a law or ordinance 
shall report to the law enforcement agency that employs the officer information relating to the 
stop, including: 

(1)  a physical description of any person operating the motor vehicle who is detained as a 
result of the stop, including: 
(A)  the person's gender; and 
(B)  the person's race or ethnicity, as stated by the person or, if the person does not state the 
person's race or ethnicity, as determined by the officer to the best of the officer's ability; 

(2)  the initial reason for the stop; 
(3)  whether the officer conducted a search as a result of the stop and, if so, whether the 

person detained consented to the search; 
(4)  whether any contraband or other evidence was discovered in the course of the search 

Cop
y



 62  

and a description of the contraband or evidence; 
(5)  the reason for the search, including whether: 

(A)  any contraband or other evidence was in plain view;  
(B)  any probable cause or reasonable suspicion existed to perform the search; or 
(C)  the search was performed as a result of the towing of the motor vehicle or the arrest of any 
person in the motor vehicle;  

(6)  whether the officer made an arrest as a result of the stop or the search, including a 
statement of whether the arrest was based on a violation of the Penal Code, a violation of a traffic 
law or ordinance, or an outstanding warrant and a statement of the offense charged; 

(7)  the street address or approximate location of the stop; [and]  
(8)  whether the officer issued a verbal or written warning or a ticket or citation as a result 

of the stop; and 
(9)  whether the officer used physical force that resulted in bodily injury, as that term is 

defined by Section 1.07, Penal Code, during the stop. 
(c)  The chief administrator of a law enforcement agency, regardless of whether the 

administrator is elected, employed, or appointed, is responsible for auditing reports under 
Subsection (b) 
to ensure that the race or ethnicity of the person operating the motor vehicle is being reported. 
 
SECTION 5.03.  Article 2.134(c), Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended to read as follows: 

(c)  A report required under Subsection (b) must be submitted by the chief administrator 
of the law enforcement agency, regardless of whether the administrator is elected, employed, or 
appointed, and must include: 

(1)  a comparative analysis of the information compiled under Article 2.133 to: 
(A)  evaluate and compare the number of motor vehicle stops, within the applicable jurisdiction, 
of persons who are recognized as racial or ethnic minorities and persons who are not recognized 
as racial or ethnic minorities; [and] 
(B)  examine the disposition of motor vehicle stops made by officers employed by the agency, 
categorized according to the race or ethnicity of the affected persons, as appropriate, including 
any searches resulting from stops within the applicable jurisdiction; and 
(C)  evaluate and compare the number of searches resulting from motor vehicle stops within the 
applicable jurisdiction and whether contraband or other evidence was discovered in the course 
of those searches; and 

(2)  information relating to each complaint filed with the agency alleging that a peace 
officer employed by the agency has engaged in racial profiling. 
 
SECTION 5.04.  Article 2.137, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended to read as follows: 
 
Art. 2.137.  PROVISION OF FUNDING OR EQUIPMENT. (a)  The Department of Public Safety shall 
adopt rules for providing funds or video and audio equipment to law enforcement agencies for 
the purpose of installing video and audio equipment in law enforcement motor vehicles and 
motorcycles or equipping peace officers with body worn cameras [as described by Article 
2.135(a)(1)(A)], including specifying criteria to prioritize funding or equipment provided to law 
enforcement agencies. The criteria may include consideration of tax effort, financial hardship, 

Cop
y



 63  

available revenue, and budget surpluses. The criteria must give priority to: 
(1)  law enforcement agencies that employ peace officers whose primary duty is traffic 

enforcement; 
(2)  smaller jurisdictions; and 
(3)  municipal and county law enforcement agencies. 
(b)  The Department of Public Safety shall collaborate with an institution of higher 

education to identify law enforcement agencies that need funds or video and audio equipment 
for the purpose of installing video and audio equipment in law enforcement motor vehicles and 
motorcycles or equipping peace officers with body worn cameras [as described by Article 
2.135(a)(1)(A)]. The collaboration may include the use of a survey to assist in developing criteria 
to prioritize funding or equipment provided to law enforcement agencies. 

(c)  To receive funds or video and audio equipment from the state for the purpose of 
installing video and audio equipment in law enforcement motor vehicles and motorcycles or 
equipping peace officers with body worn cameras [as described by Article 2.135(a)(1)(A)], the 
governing body of a county or municipality, in conjunction with the law enforcement agency 
serving the county or municipality, shall certify to the Department of Public Safety that the law 
enforcement agency needs funds or video and audio equipment for that purpose. 

(d)  On receipt of funds or video and audio equipment from the state for the purpose of 
installing video and audio equipment in law enforcement motor vehicles and motorcycles or 
equipping peace officers with body worn cameras [as described by Article 2.135(a)(1)(A)], the 
governing body of a county or municipality, in conjunction with the law enforcement agency 
serving the county or municipality, shall certify to the Department of Public Safety that the law 
enforcement agency has taken the necessary actions to use and is using [installed] video and 
audio equipment and body worn cameras for those purposes [as described by Article 
2.135(a)(1)(A) and is using the equipment as required by Article 2.135(a)(1)]. 
 
SECTION 5.05.  Article 2.1385(a), Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended to read as follows: 

(a)  If the chief administrator of a local law enforcement agency intentionally fails to 
submit the incident-based data as required by Article 2.134, the agency is liable to the state for 
a civil penalty in an [the] amount not to exceed $5,000 [of $1,000] for each violation.  The 
attorney general may sue to collect a civil penalty under this subsection. 
 
SECTION 5.06.  Article 2.135, Code of Criminal Procedure, is repealed. 
 
SECTION 5.07.  Articles 2.132 and 2.134, Code of Criminal Procedure, as amended by this article, 
apply only to a report covering a calendar year beginning on or after January 1, 2018. 
 
SECTION 5.08.  Not later than September 1, 2018, the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement 
shall: 

(1)  evaluate and change the guidelines for compiling and reporting information required 
under Article 2.134, Code of Criminal Procedure, as amended by this article, to enable the 
guidelines to better withstand academic scrutiny; and  

(2)  make accessible online: 
(A)  a downloadable format of any information submitted under Article 2.134(b), Code of Criminal 

Cop
y



 64  

Procedure, that is not exempt from public disclosure under Chapter 552, Government Code; and  
(B)  a glossary of terms relating to the information to make the information readily 
understandable to the public. This Act takes effect September 1, 2017. 
______________________________ ______________________________ President of the 
Senate Speaker of the House  
I hereby certify that S.B. No. 1849 passed the Senate on May 11, 2017, by the following vote:  
Yeas 31, Nays 0. 
                                              ______________________________ 
                                                 Secretary of the Senate 
       I hereby certify that S.B. No. 1849 passed the House on May 20, 2017, by the following vote:  
Yeas 137, Nays 0, one present not voting. 
ARTICLE 6.  EFFECTIVE DATE 
SECTION 6.01.  Except as otherwise provided by this Act, 
Approved:  
______________________________ 
            Date 
______________________________ 
          Governor 
______________________________ 
   Chief Clerk of the House 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Cop
y



 65  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IOWA COLONY 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

RACIAL PROFILING POLICY 
 
 Cop

y



 

22 

 

 
 

 

Iowa Colony Police Department 

Subject:   
Bias-Based Profiling and Racial Profiling 

Number: 
4.00 

Category:  
Law Enforcement 

Effective Date: 
August 07, 2019 

Revision Date: 
11/05/19 

Issuing Authority: 
Aaron I. Bell, Chief of Police 

References:  

 
PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this policy is to reaffirm the commitment of the Iowa Colony Police 
Department to unbiased policing in all encounters between a police officer and any 
person; to reinforce procedures that ensure public confidence and mutual trust by 
providing services in a fair and equitable fashion; and to protect police officers from 
unwarranted accusations of misconduct when they act within the dictates of this policy 
and the law. 
 
POLICY:  

It is the policy of the Iowa Colony Police Department to police in a proactive manner and 
to investigate suspected violations of law.  Within that mandate, Iowa Colony Police 
Offices shall actively enforce local, state, and federal laws in a responsible and 
professional manner, without unlawful regard to race, gender, sexual orientation, 
ethnicity, or national origin.  Moreover, the Iowa Colony Police Department strictly 
prohibits its officers from engaging in bias-based profiling or racial profiling as those terms 
are defined in this policy. 
Two of the fundamental rights guaranteed by the Unites States and Texas constitutions 
are equal protection under the law and freedom from unreasonable searches and 
seizures by government agents.  Accordingly, Iowa Colony Police Officers shall conduct 
themselves in a dignified and respectful manner at all times when dealing with the public.  
Finally, bias-based profiling and racial profiling, in particular, are unacceptable policing 
tactics and are strictly prohibited. 

Cop
y



 

23 

 

This policy shall not preclude police officers from offering assistance, such as when they 
observe a substance leaking from a vehicle, a flat tire, or someone who appears to be ill, 
lost or confused.  Nor does this policy prohibit an officer from stopping a person suspected 
of a crime based upon observed actions and/or information received about the person. 
This policy applies to all police officers commissioned under the authority of the Iowa 
Colony Police Department, the Chief of Police, and to all other employees of the Iowa 
Colony Police Department.  Moreover, this policy applies to police officers’ actions with 
respect to all persons, whether those persons are drivers, passengers or pedestrians.   
 

DEFINITIONS:  

BIAS:  

The selection of an individual based solely on a common trait of a group, including, but 
not limited to, race, ethnicity, gender, sexual orientation, religion, economic status, age, 
and/or cultural background. 

BIAS-BASED PROFILING:  

A law enforcement-initiated action, detention or interdiction based solely on a trait 
common to a group of people, rather than on the individual’s behavior and/or information 
tending to identify the individual as having engaged in criminal activity.  

LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY:  

Means an agency of the state, or of a county, municipality, or other political subdivision 
of the state, that employs peace officers who make motor vehicle stops in the routine 
performance of the officers’ official duties. 

MOTOR VEHICLE STOP:  

Means an occasion in which a peace officer stops a motor vehicle for an alleged violation 
of a law or ordinance. 
POLICE OFFICER: 

Any person licensed by the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement and commissioned 
as a peace officer under the authority of the Iowa Colony Police Department and the Chief 
of Police who is defined as a peace officer under Article 2.1 of the Texas Code of Criminal 
Procedure. 
RACE OR ETHNICITY 

Means of a particular descent, including Alaskan Native or American Indian, Asian or 
Pacific Islander, Black, Caucasian/White, or Hispanic/Latino. 
RACIAL PROFILING 

A law enforcement-initiated action based solely on an individual’s race, ethnicity, and/or 
national origin, rather than on the individual’s behavior and/or information tending to 
identify the individual as having engaged in criminal activity. 

Cop
y



 

24 

 

PROHIBITION:  

A. The use of bias-based and/or racial profiling by police officers in any law enforcement 
encounters with persons viewed as suspects and/or potential suspects in criminal 
activities is strictly prohibited.  The encounters to which this prohibition applies include, 
but are not limited to, motor vehicle stops, field contacts, and asset seizure and 
forfeiture operations. 
B.  The prohibition against bias-based profiling and racial profiling does not preclude the 
Iowa Colony Police from using race, ethnicity, or national origin as factors in a detention 
decision.  For instance, a suspect’s race, ethnicity, or national origin may be legitimate 
factors in deciding whether to detain the suspect when those factors are used as of a 
physical description of a specific suspect for whom a police officer is searching. 
Detaining a person and inquiring into that person’s activities solely because of that 
person’s race, ethnicity, or national origin, or solely because of bias, is prohibited bias-
based profiling or racial profiling. 
Examples of racial profiling include, but are not limited to, the following: 

• Citing a driver who is speeding in a stream of traffic where most other drivers are 
speeding, solely because of the cited driver’s race, ethnicity, or national origin. 

• Detaining the driver of a vehicle solely based on the determination that a person 
of that race, ethnicity, or national origin is unlikely to own or possess that specific 
make or model of vehicle. 

• Detaining a person solely based on the determination that a person of that race, 
ethnicity, or national origin does not belong in a specific geographic area or a 
specific place. 

 

TRAINING:  

A police officer shall complete the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement (“TCOLE”) 
training and education program on racial profiling not later than (1) the second 
anniversary of the date the officer is licensed under Chapter 1701 of the Texas 
Occupations Code or (2) the date the officer applies for an intermediate proficiency 
certificate, whichever is earlier. 
As needed, the Iowa Colony Police Department may schedule and require police officers 
to attend in-service training on bias-based profiling. 
 
COMPLAINT INVESTIGATION:  

The Iowa Colony Police Department shall accept complaints from any person who 
believes that an Iowa Colony Police Officer has engaged in bias-based profiling or racial 
profiling with respect to him or her.  No person shall be discouraged, intimidated, or 
coerced from filing a complaint, nor discriminated against because he or she files such 
a complaint. 

Cop
y



 

25 

 

In addition, any Iowa Colony Police Officer or Iowa Colony police department employee 
who receives an allegation of bias-based profiling or racial profiling shall record the 
name, address and telephone number of the person who lodges the allegation, and 
shall (1) forward the complaint to the Chief of Police or his/her designee, or (2) direct 
the person how to do so.  To direct the person on the filing of such a complaint, the 
officer or employee shall provide the person a copy of the complaint form and describe 
the process for filing a complaint. 

All Iowa Colony Police Officers and its employees shall report any allegations of bias-
based profiling or racial profiling to their respective superiors prior to the end of their 
shifts. 

In processing and investigating any complaint alleging that an Iowa Colony Police 
Officer has engaged in bias-based profiling or racial profiling, the Iowa Colony Police 
Department shall follow General Order #10 titled Citizen Complaints. 

At the commencement of the investigation into the complaint, the Chief of Police or 
his/her designee shall determine whether there is a video and/or audio recording of the 
event upon which the complaint is based.  If a recording exists, the department shall 
promptly provide a copy of it to the police officer who is the subject of the complaint on 
his or her written request. 

At the conclusion of the investigation, if not investigated by the Chief of Police, all 
findings and/or disciplinary action, retraining, or policy change, recommendations shall 
be forwarded to the Chief of Police for his/her approval. 

If a bias-based profiling or racial profiling complaint is sustained against an Iowa Colony 
Police Officer and in violation of this policy, that officer shall be subject to corrective 
action,  which may include reprimand; diversity, sensitivity or other appropriate training 
or counseling; paid or unpaid suspension; termination of employment, or other 
appropriate action as determined by the Chief of Police. 

 

PUBLIC EDUCATION OF THE COMPLIMENT AND COMPLAINT PROCESS 

The Iowa Colony Police Department will provide public education relating to the 
agency’s compliment and complaint process, including providing the telephone number, 
mailing address, and e-mail address to make a compliment or complaint with respect to 
each ticket, citation, or warning issued by a peace officer. 

The Iowa Colony complement and complaint process will be advertised by using one or 
more of the following venues: the news media, service or organization presentations, 

Cop
y



 

26 

 

the internet (to include, but not limited to, social media and city websites), and or the 
Police Department website whose internet link is “http://cityofiowacolony.com”. 

 
COLLECTION, ANALYSIS, AND REPORTING OF INFORMATION 

The Iowa Colony Police Department shall collect information relating to (1) motor 
vehicle stops in which a citation (or warning) is issued and (2) arrests made as a result 
of these stops.  The information collected shall include: 

1. The race or ethnicity of the person detained as stated by the person or as 
determined by the standard of any reasonable police officer to the best of his/her 
ability and whether the officer knew or did not know the race or ethnicity of the per 
detained before the detention occurred; 
a) The race or ethnicity of the individual includes: 

(1) Alaskan Native or American Indian 
(2) Asian or Pacific Islander 
(3) Black 
(4) Caucasian/White 
(5) Hispanic/Latino 

2. The number of Contacts, Total Searches (combination of Consensual and 
Probable Cause Searches), Consensual Searches, Probable Cause Searches, 
Custodial Arrests, Racial Profiling Complaints received, and complaint outcomes 
to include sustained, Not Sustained, Unfounded, Exonerated. 

3. Whether a search was conducted and whether the individual consented to the 
search. 

4. Whether the officer made an arrest 
5. Whether the officer issued a ticket, citation, or warning 
6. Whether the officer used physical force that resulted in bodily injury, as that term 

is defined by Section 1.07, Penal Code (“means physical pain, illness, or any 
impairment of physical condition), during the stop; 

7. The location of the stop 
8. The reason for the stop 

 
Not later than March 1 of each year, the Chief of Police Shall submit a report of the 
information collected under Paragraph A to TCOLE and to the City Council of the City of 
Iowa Colony. 
 
The report shall not include identifying information about the peace officer who makes a 
motor vehicle stop or about the person who is stopped or arrested by the peace officer.  
However, this does not affect the duty of an Iowa Colony Police Officer to collect the 
information.  
 
 
 
 

Cop
y



 

27 

 

USE OF VIDEO AND AUDIO EQUIPMENT 
 
The policy of the Iowa Colony Police Department is that all police vehicles regularly 
used by a police officer to make motor vehicle stops shall be equipped with a video 
camera and transmitter-activated equipment.  If possible, officers may be equipped with 
body worn cameras. (See General Order 49 - Body Worn Digital Recording Systems) 
 
Each motor vehicle stop made by a police officers shall be recorded by video and audio 
equipment and audio equipment. 
 
If a complaint is filed alleging that a Police Officer has engaged in bias-based profiling 
or racial profiling with respect to a motor vehicle stop, the video and audio shall be 
retained until a final disposition of the complaint has been reached. 
 
Supervisors shall ensure that police officers record all motor vehicles stops.  
 
The Chief of Police or his/her designee shall periodically conduct reviews of a randomly 
selected sampling of video/audio recordings to determine if patterns of biased based 
profiling exist. 
 
If the equipment used to record motor vehicle stops is malfunctioning or otherwise not 
operable, the officer making the stop shall report the malfunction to his/her supervisor 
immediately and manually collect the data and properly record and report the 
information as required by this policy and Article 2.133, Texas Code of Criminal 
Procedure, “Reports Required for Motor Vehicles Stops”.  Repairs deemed necessary 
should be made as soon as possible. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Changes/Amendments since last publication: 
11/05/19 Rewrite of the entire General Order to reflect requirements of The Sandra Bland Act (SB 1849, 
85th Legislative Session, 2017) 

Cop
y



For additional questions regarding the information presented in 
this report, please contact:

 

Del Carmen Consulting

817.681.7840

www.texasracialprofiling.com

www.delcarmenconsulting.com

 

Disclaimer: The author of this report, Alejandro del Carmen/del 
Carmen Consulting    , is not liable for any omissions or errors 
committed in the acquisition, analysis, or creation of this report. 
Further, Dr. del Carmen/del Carmen Consulting     is not 
responsible for the inappropriate use and distribution of 
information contained in this report.  Further, no liability shall 
be incurred as a result of any harm that may be caused to 
individuals and/or organizations as a result of the information 
contained in this report.  

 

Copyright: This report may not be altered or reproduced outside 
the agreed terms, in any manner whatsoever without the 
written permission of the author. 

Copyright  2022 Del Carmen Consult ing

All Rights Reserved.

Cop
y

http://www.texasracialprofiling.com/
http://www.delcarmenconsulting.com/


Racial Profiling Report | Full
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Agency Name:  IOWA COLONY POLICE DEPT.
Reporting Date:  01/24/2022
TCOLE Agency Number:  039219

Chief Administrator:  AARON I. BELL

Agency Contact Information:
Phone:  (281) 369-2471 
Email:  abell@cityofiowacolony.com

Mailing Address:
12003 CR 65
ROSHARON, TX  77583

This Agency filed a full report

IOWA COLONY POLICE DEPT. has adopted a detailed written policy on racial profiling. Our policy:

1)  clearly defines acts constituting racial profiling;

2) strictly prohibits peace officers employed by the IOWA COLONY POLICE DEPT. from engaging in racial 
profiling;

3) implements a process by which an individual may file a complaint with the IOWA COLONY POLICE DEPT.
 if the individual believes that a peace officer employed by the IOWA COLONY POLICE DEPT. has engaged in 
racial profiling with respect to the individual;

4) provides public education relating to the agency's complaint process;

5) requires appropriate corrective action to be taken against a peace officer employed by the IOWA COLONY 
POLICE DEPT. who, after an investigation, is shown to have engaged in racial profiling in violation of the 
IOWA COLONY POLICE DEPT. policy;

6) requires collection of information relating to motor vehicle stops in which a warning or citation is issued and 
to arrests made as a result of those stops, including information relating to:

a. the race or ethnicity of the individual detained;
b. whether a search was conducted and, if so, whether the individual detained consented to the search;
c. whether the peace officer knew the race or ethnicity of the individual detained before detaining that 
individual;
d. whether the peace officer used physical force that resulted in bodily injury during the stop;
e. the location of the stop;
f. the reason for the stop.

7) requires the chief administrator of the agency, regardless of whether the administrator is elected, employed, or 
appointed, to submit an annual report of the information collected under Subdivision (6) to:

a. the Commission on Law Enforcement; and
b. the governing body of each county or municipality served by the agency, if the agency is an agency of a 
county, municipality, or other political subdivision of the state.

The IOWA COLONY POLICE DEPT. has satisfied the statutory data audit requirements as prescribed in Article 

1  of  9

Cop
y



2.133(c), Code of Criminal Procedure during the reporting period.

Executed by:  Aaron Bell
Chief

Date:  01/24/2022

2  of  9

Cop
y



Motor Vehicle Racial Profiling Information

Total stops:  3012
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Street address or approximate location of the stop

City street 1811

US highway 21

County road 1177

State highway 2

Private property or other 1

Was race or ethnicity known prior to stop?

Yes 3011

No 1

Race / Ethnicity

Alaska Native / American Indian 2

Asian / Pacific Islander 105

Black 1306

White 666

Hispanic / Latino 933

Gender
Female 1029

Alaska Native / American Indian 1

Asian / Pacific Islander 32
Black 537

White 232

Hispanic / Latino 227

Male 1983

Alaska Native / American Indian 1

Asian / Pacific Islander 73

Black 769

White 434

Hispanic / Latino 706

Reason for stop?

Violation of law 15

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 3

White 4

3  of  9

Cop
y



Hispanic / Latino 8

Preexisting knowledge 10

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 1

Black 6

White 2

Hispanic / Latino 1

Moving traffic violation 2505

Alaska Native / American Indian 2

Asian / Pacific Islander 97

Black 1078

White 515

Hispanic / Latino 753

Vehicle traffic violation 482

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 7

Black 219

White 85

Hispanic / Latino 171

Was a search conducted?

Yes 23

Alaska Native / American Indian 0
Asian / Pacific Islander 0
Black 13
White 2
Hispanic / Latino 8

No 2989

Alaska Native / American Indian 2
Asian / Pacific Islander 105
Black 1293
White 664
Hispanic / Latino 925

Reason for Search?

Consent 2

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 1

White 1

4  of  9

Cop
y



Hispanic / Latino 0

Contraband 3

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 3

Probable 16

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 11

White 1

Hispanic / Latino 4

Inventory 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Incident to arrest 2

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 1

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 1

Was Contraband discovered?

Yes 6 Did the finding result in arrest?

(total should equal previous column)
Alaska Native / American Indian 0 Yes 0 No 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0 Yes 0 No 0

Black 4 Yes 0 No 4

White 1 Yes 0 No 1

Hispanic / Latino 1 Yes 0 No 1

No 17

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 9

White 1

Hispanic / Latino 7

5  of  9

Cop
y



Description of contraband

Drugs 4

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 3

White 1

Hispanic / Latino 0

Weapons 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Currency 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Alcohol 1

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 1

Stolen property 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Other 1

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 1

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Result of the stop

Verbal warning 41

6  of  9

Cop
y



Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 1

Black 18

White 13

Hispanic / Latino 9

Written warning 919

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 39

Black 427

White 231

Hispanic / Latino 222

Citation 2052

Alaska Native / American Indian 2

Asian / Pacific Islander 65

Black 861

White 422

Hispanic / Latino 702

Written warning and arrest 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Citation and arrest 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Arrest 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Arrest based on

Violation of Penal Code 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

7  of  9

Cop
y



Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Violation of Traffic Law 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Violation of City Ordinance 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Outstanding Warrant 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Was physical force resulting in bodily injury used during stop?

Yes 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0

Asian / Pacific Islander 0

Black 0

White 0

Hispanic / Latino 0

Resulting in Bodily Injury To:

Suspect 0

Officer 0

Both 0

No 3012

Alaska Native / American Indian 2

Asian / Pacific Islander 105

Black 1306

White 666

Hispanic / Latino 933

8  of  9

Cop
y



Submitted electronically to the

The Texas Commission on Law Enforcement

Number of complaints of racial profiling
Total 1

Resulted in disciplinary action 0

Did not result in disciplinary action 1

Comparative Analysis
Use TCOLE's auto generated analysis 
Use Department's submitted analysis 

Optional Narrative
N/A

9  of  9

Cop
y



1

Aaron I. Bell

From: noreply@tcole.texas.gov
Sent: Monday, January 24, 2022 3:45 PM
To: abell@cityofiowacolony.com
Subject: Racial Profiling Report

 
You have successfully filed your racial profiling report with TCOLE. 
 
To view or print your submission: 
 
Return to your TCLEDDS account 
Click on Racial Profiling in the left menu Hover over the year you wish to view or print Select the appropriate 
option from the hover menu 
  
 
Edits to your submission may be made through March 1st. 
 
 
 
 
 
This communication, including attachments, may contain information that is confidential and protected. It 
constitutes non‐publicinformation intended to be conveyed only to the designated recipient(s). If the reader 
or recipient of this communication is not the intended recipient, and employee or agent of the intended 
recipient who is responsible for delivering it to the intended recipient, or you believe that you have received 
this communication in error, please notify the sender immediately by return e‐mail and promptly delete this e‐
mail, including attachments, without reading them or saving them in any manner. The unauthorized use, 
dissemination, distribution, or reproduction of this e‐mail, including attachments, is prohibited and may be 
unlawful. 

Cop
y



  
 

 

MONTHLY REPORT- January 2022 

 

February 25, 2022 

 

Mayor and Council, 

See January 2022 monthly report for both the Building Department and Fire Marshal’s Office below.  

Building Department 

Inspections Conducted by BBG-    Inspections Conducted by City Inspector 

Building Inspections-  365    Building-     92    

Plumbing Inspections - 382    City Ordinance Violations-   37 

Mechanical Inspections- 158    Animal Control Violations-   10 

Electrical Inspections-  315 

  Total-  1220      Total-  138 

 

Fees paid for Inspection services to the Independent Contract Inspectors for November & December 2020 

January 2021 Paid out to Contract Inspectors  

$58,843.97      

 

Fees paid for Inspection services to BBG Consulting, Inc.  

January 2022, Total Inspections 1220 

$27,450.00 

Building Department: I completed 55 Plan reviews for construction.      

Fire Marshals Report: 

Conducted several final inspections at the new high school.  No other calls to report. 

Side Note: In the month of February at total of 146 plans have been submitted for review with 124 completed.  

This is a mixture of residential and commercial.  The City did outsource the plan review to BBG Inspection 

service in assistance to expedite the plan review for the customer at their expense to be able to start on time, due 

to they submitted late in the process.   

 

Thanks, 

 

 

Albert Cantu, Fire Marshal/Building Official 

12003 Iowa Colony Blvd. 
Iowa Colony Tx. 77583 
Phone: 281-369-2471 
Fax: 281-369-0005 
www.iowacolonytx.gov 
 
 

 
 

 

Cop
y



 

IOW A  COL ON Y  

POL I C E  DE PA R T M E NT  
 

 

12003 Iowa Colony Blvd. 

Iowa Colony, Texas 77583 

 

Aaron I. Bell 

Chief of Police 

Phone: (281) 369-3444 

Fax: (281) 406-3722 

 
Monthly Report 

January 2022 

 
Offense December 2021 January 2022 

Burglary 3 2 

Theft 3 5 

Robbery 0 0 

Total Index Crimes Reported 6 7 

Reports Taken   

Misdemeanor 8 13 

Felony 10 10 

Charges Filed/Arrests   

Misdemeanor 3 4 

Felony 0 2 

Outside Agency Warrant Arrest 0 0 

Traffic Enforcement   

Citations 170 212 

Warnings 52 24 

Crash Investigations   

Minor Crashes 5 10 

Major Crashes 3 3 

Fatality Crashes 0 0 

Calls for Service   

Alarms 41 34 

Assist Other Agency 32 35 

Disturbance 15 8 

Fire 0 0 

Other 134 94 

Security Checks 158 245 

Suspicious Activity/Persons 30 21 

 
 Significant Events 

 

• January 3 – Officer was dispatched to the 3500 block of Meridiana Pkwy in reference to 
stolen construction equipment. A report was generated assigned to investigations.  

• January 6 – Officer was dispatched to the 3700 block of Davenport Pkwy in reference to 
stolen construction equipment. A report was generated and assigned to investigations. 

• January 17 – Officer was dispatched to the 9400 block of Gold Mountain Drive in reference 
to a stolen vehicle. A report was generated and assigned to investigations.  

Cop
y



 

IOW A  COL ON Y  

POL I C E  DE PA R T M E NT  
 

 

12003 Iowa Colony Blvd. 

Iowa Colony, Texas 77583 

 

Aaron I. Bell 

Chief of Police 

Phone: (281) 369-3444 

Fax: (281) 406-3722 

 

• January 19 – Officer was dispatched to the 9700 block of CR 524C in reference to criminal 
mischief to city-owned property. A report was generated and assigned to investigations.  

• January 21 – Officer was dispatched to the 10100 block of Napier Drive in reference to 
stolen construction materials. A report was generated and assigned to investigations. 

• January 22 – Officer was dispatched to the 2600 block of Howlite Lane in reference to a 
stolen vehicle. A report was generated. Charges were later filed and an arrest was made.  

• January 22 – Officer was dispatched to SH 288/Meridiana Pkwy in reference to a reckless 
driver. The vehicle was located and a traffic stop was made. An arrest was made for Driving 
While Intoxicated. 

• January 22 – Officer was dispatched to the 3500 block of Meridiana Pkwy in reference to 
stolen construction equipment. A report was generated and assigned to investigations.  

• January 26 – Officers were dispatched to the 9800 block of Garnet Grove Drive in reference 
to an ongoing disturbance. During the investigation, a suspect was identified and warrants 
were obtained. The suspect was later arrested for Criminal Trespass, Terroristic Threat, 
Aggravated Assault, Assault, and Evading Arrest.  

• January 29 – Officers observed a vehicle driving the wrong way on SH 288. A traffic stop was 
made and an arrest was made for Driving While Intoxicated. 
 

Cop
y



Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

10 - General Fund
Assets

10-1000 Cash / Due From Consolidated Cash 10,317,965.63

10-1002 Retainer Account 0.00

10-1003 First State Bank - Manvel 154,458.93

10-1004 Petty Cash 300.00

10-1005 Texas Advantage - CD 6,269.33

10-1006 TexStar CD 108,306.32

10-1007 Veritex - CD 5471 99,787.18

10-1100 Accounts Receivable 10,277.00

10-1110 Due from IRS 0.00

10-1111 Sales Tax Receivable 57,743.00

10-1112 Allowance for Fines Receivable (241,997.04)

10-1113 Fines Receivable 254,734.00

10-1114 Property Taxes Receivable 20,966.00

10-1115 Property Tax Receivable - P & I 9,453.00

10-1302 Due from Retainer Fund 0.00

Total Assets

10,798,263.35

10,798,263.35

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

1

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

10 - General Fund
Liabilities

10-2000 Due To Consolidated Cash / Accounts 
Payable

190,989.50

10-2001 Accounts Payble at Year End (246,580.03)

10-2200 Wages Payable 0.00

10-2201 Employee Dental Insurance 234.18

10-2202 Employee Vision Insurance 0.00

10-2203 Federal Tax Payable (45.83)

10-2204 Social Security/Medicare Payable (34.28)

10-2205 TMRS Payable 4,179.32

10-2206 Texas Workforce Commission Payable (2,618.09)

10-2207 Health & Life Insurance Payable 4,314.96

10-2208 Child Support Payable (1,256.04)

10-2209 457(b) Payable 0.00

10-2300 State Fees 21,153.95

10-2301 Collections 75.00

10-2302 Bond Liability Account 0.00

10-2303 Refunds Payable 0.00

10-2304 Credit Card Fee 4,043.21

10-2305 Deferred Revenues - Fines 12,737.00

10-2400 Road Damage Deposit 0.00

10-2405 Deferred Inflows-Prop taxes 40,696.00

10-2410 Bond 1 - Series 2020 1,186,220.00

10-2500 American Rescue Plan Fund 0.00

10-2501 Baseball Field Reserve 1,772.50

10-2502 Baymark Pipeline LLC 0.00

10-2503 Baymark Pipeline LLC: Baymark P - 
Engr/Inspctn/Legal

0.00

10-2504 Cherry Crushed Concrete 0.00

10-2505 DR Horton/MUD 87 0.00

10-2506 Early Plat - Sierra V W Sec 5 111,728.79

10-2507 Early Plat SVW Crystal V Dr-Ph3 0.00

10-2508 Early Plat SVW Sub Sec 4 0.00

10-2509 Formosa/Lav Pipeline-TRC 0.00

10-2510 M2E3/Enterprise Pipeline 0.00

10-2511 Meridiana Escrow 4,345.00

10-2512 Old Airline Market-Axis Dev 207.50

10-2513 Sierra Vista - Land Tejas 0.00

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

2

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

10 - General Fund
Liabilities

10-2514 Sierra Vista West - Land Tejas 0.00

10-2515 South Texas NGL Pipeline, LLC 0.00

10-2516 South Texas NGL Pipeline, LLC: South TX 
NGL-Engr/Inspct/Legal

0.00

10-2517 Sterling Lakes - Land Tejas 0.00

10-2518 Capital Contribution - CR 64 1,731,000.00

10-2519 Earlt Platting Escrow Sec 12 0.00

10-2520 Early Plat Escrow - SVW Sec 6 0.00

10-2522 Property Delq Tax - TIF 100% (0.30)

10-2523 Property Tax TIF - 100% 10,148.27

10-2524 Meritage Homes of Texas, LLC 12,500.00

10-2525 Corona Virus Relief Fund 122,595.00

10-2526 Public Safety Building Reserve 500,000.00

10-2527 Public Park Reserves 35,000.00

10-2528 Early Plat - Sierra VW Sec 7 893,961.46

10-2602 Due to Retainer Fund (12,500.00)

Total Liabilities 4,624,867.07

Fund Balance

10-3000 Fund Balance 50,287.12

Total Fund Balance 50,287.12

Fund Balance Total 50,287.12
Current Year Increase (Decrease) 6,123,109.16

Total Fund Balance/Equity 6,173,396.28

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance 10,798,263.35

Total Expenses 1,214,555.11
Total Revenue 4,302,806.95

Current Year Increase (Decrease) 6,123,109.16

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

3

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

11 - Retainer Fund
Assets

11-1000 Cash / Due From Consolidated Cash 0.00

11-1002 Retainer Account 1,087,623.11

11-1301 Due from General Fund (12,500.00)

Total Assets

1,075,123.11

1,075,123.11

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

4

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

11 - Retainer Fund
Liabilities

11-2000 Due To Consolidated Cash / Accounts 
Payable

0.00

11-2010 Accounts Payable 3,656.91

11-2200 Wages Payable 0.00

11-2400 Road Damage Deposit 475,000.00

11-2502 Baymark Pipeline LLC 182,437.50

11-2503 Baymark Pipeline LLC: Baymark P - 
Engr/Inspctn/Legal

20,540.04

11-2504 Cherry Crushed Concrete 23,200.00

11-2505 DR Horton/MUD 87 10,638.87

11-2509 Formosa/Lav Pipeline-TRC 10,826.04

11-2510 M2E3/Enterprise Pipeline (24,728.24)

11-2513 Sierra Vista - Land Tejas 5,295.60

11-2514 Sierra Vista West - Land Tejas 36,424.15

11-2515 South Texas NGL Pipeline, LLC 183,022.50

11-2516 South Texas NGL Pipeline, LLC: South TX 
NGL-Engr/Inspct/Legal

21,027.56

11-2517 Sterling Lakes - Land Tejas 10,556.59

11-2521 Meritage/Rise- BCMUD 57 742.60

11-2529 Meridiana PUD Amendment 0.00

11-2601 Due to General Fund 0.00

Total Liabilities 958,640.12

Fund Balance

11-3000 Fund Balance 0.00

Total Fund Balance 0.00

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

5

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

11 - Retainer Fund

Fund Balance Total 0.00
Current Year Increase (Decrease) 116,482.99

Total Fund Balance/Equity 116,482.99

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance 1,075,123.11

Total Expenses 0.00
Total Revenue 0.00

Current Year Increase (Decrease) 116,482.99

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

6

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

20 - Crime Control and Prevention 
District Fund
Assets

20-1000 Cash / Due From Consolidated Cash 61,255.99

Total Assets

61,255.99

61,255.99

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

7

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

20 - Crime Control and Prevention 
District Fund
Liabilities

20-2000 Due To Consolidated Cash / Accounts 
Payable

0.00

Total Liabilities 0.00

Fund Balance

20-3000 Fund Balance 233,635.88

Total Fund Balance 233,635.88

Fund Balance Total 233,635.88
Current Year Increase (Decrease) (172,379.89)

Total Fund Balance/Equity 61,255.99

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance 61,255.99

Total Expenses 1,525.36
Total Revenue 86,131.91

Current Year Increase (Decrease) (172,379.89)

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

8

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

30 - Capital Improvements Plan 
Fund (Debt Service)
Assets

30-1000 Cash / Due From Consolidated Cash 0.00

Total Assets

0.00

0.00

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

9

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

30 - Capital Improvements Plan 
Fund (Debt Service)
Liabilities

30-2000 Due To Consolidated Cash / Accounts 
Payable

0.00

Total Liabilities 0.00

Fund Balance

30-3000 Fund Balance 0.00

Total Fund Balance 0.00

Fund Balance Total 0.00
Current Year Increase (Decrease) 0.00

Total Fund Balance/Equity 0.00

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance 0.00

Total Expenses 0.00
Total Revenue 0.00

Current Year Increase (Decrease) 0.00

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

10

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

35 - Capital Improvements Plan 
Fund (Local)
Assets

35-1000 Cash / Due From Consolidated Cash 0.00

Total Assets

0.00

0.00

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

11

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

35 - Capital Improvements Plan 
Fund (Local)
Liabilities

35-2000 Due To Consolidated Cash / Accounts 
Payable

0.00

35-2526 Public Safety Building Reserve 0.00

Total Liabilities 0.00

Fund Balance

35-3000 Fund Balance 0.00

Total Fund Balance 0.00

Fund Balance Total 0.00
Current Year Increase (Decrease) 0.00

Total Fund Balance/Equity 0.00

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance 0.00

Total Expenses 0.00
Total Revenue 0.00

Current Year Increase (Decrease) 0.00

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

12

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

40 - Court Technology Fund
Assets

40-1000 Cash / Due From Consolidated Cash 2,580.92

Total Assets

2,580.92

2,580.92

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

13

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

40 - Court Technology Fund
Liabilities

40-2000 Due To Consolidated Cash / Accounts 
Payable

0.00

Total Liabilities 0.00

Fund Balance

40-3000 Fund Balance 22,258.51

Total Fund Balance 22,258.51

Fund Balance Total 22,258.51
Current Year Increase (Decrease) (19,677.59)

Total Fund Balance/Equity 2,580.92

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance 2,580.92

Total Expenses 119.98
Total Revenue 2,623.94

Current Year Increase (Decrease) (19,677.59)

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

14

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

41 - Court Security Fund
Assets

41-1000 Cash / Due From Consolidated Cash 3,277.54

Total Assets

3,277.54

3,277.54

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

15

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

41 - Court Security Fund
Liabilities

41-2000 Due To Consolidated Cash / Accounts 
Payable

0.00

Total Liabilities 0.00

Fund Balance

41-3000 Fund Balance 22,844.91

Total Fund Balance 22,844.91

Fund Balance Total 22,844.91
Current Year Increase (Decrease) (19,567.37)

Total Fund Balance/Equity 3,277.54

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance 3,277.54

Total Expenses 0.00
Total Revenue 3,183.27

Current Year Increase (Decrease) (19,567.37)

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

16

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

45 - American Rescue Plan Act 
(ARPA) Fund
Assets

45-1000 Cash / Due From Consolidated Cash 0.00

Total Assets

0.00

0.00

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

17

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

45 - American Rescue Plan Act 
(ARPA) Fund
Liabilities

45-2000 Due To Consolidated Cash / Accounts 
Payable

0.00

45-2200 Wages Payable 0.00

Total Liabilities 0.00

Fund Balance

45-3000 Fund Balance 400,545.99

Total Fund Balance 400,545.99

Fund Balance Total 400,545.99
Current Year Increase (Decrease) (400,545.99)

Total Fund Balance/Equity 0.00

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance 0.00

Total Expenses 0.00
Total Revenue 0.00

Current Year Increase (Decrease) (400,545.99)

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

18

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

50 - Vehicle Replacement Fund
Assets

50-1000 Cash / Due From Consolidated Cash 0.00

Total Assets

0.00

0.00

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

19

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

50 - Vehicle Replacement Fund
Liabilities

50-2000 Due To Consolidated Cash / Accounts 
Payable

0.00

Total Liabilities 0.00

Fund Balance

50-3000 Fund Balance 180,000.00

Total Fund Balance 180,000.00

Fund Balance Total 180,000.00
Current Year Increase (Decrease) (180,000.00)

Total Fund Balance/Equity 0.00

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance 0.00

Total Expenses 0.00
Total Revenue 0.00

Current Year Increase (Decrease) (180,000.00)

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

20

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

70 - ICDA General Operating Fund
Assets

70-1001 ICDA Cash / Due From Consolidated 427,742.27

70-1120 ICDA Revenue Fund 200.10

70-1400 Due From City Prop Tax TIF 10,148.00

Total Assets

438,090.37

438,090.37

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

21

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

70 - ICDA General Operating Fund
Liabilities

70-2002 ICDA Due To Consolidated Cash / Accounts 
Payable

1,575.47

70-2200 Wages Payable 0.00

70-2750 Due To Bond Account (32,502.09)

Total Liabilities (30,926.62)

Fund Balance

70-3010 ICDA Fund Balance 440,966.29

Total Fund Balance 440,966.29

Fund Balance Total 440,966.29
Current Year Increase (Decrease) 28,050.70

Total Fund Balance/Equity 469,016.99

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance 438,090.37

Total Expenses (17,902.57)
Total Revenue 10,148.13

Current Year Increase (Decrease) 28,050.70

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

22

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

71 - ICDA Capital Projects Fund
Assets

71-1001 ICDA Cash / Due From Consolidated 0.00

71-1121 Time Deposits 447.76

Total Assets

447.76

447.76

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

23

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

71 - ICDA Capital Projects Fund
Liabilities

71-2002 ICDA Due To Consolidated Cash / Accounts 
Payable

0.00

71-2200 Wages Payable 0.00

Total Liabilities 0.00

Fund Balance

71-3010 ICDA Fund Balance 447.76

Total Fund Balance 447.76

Fund Balance Total 447.76
Current Year Increase (Decrease) 0.00

Total Fund Balance/Equity 447.76

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance 447.76

Total Expenses 0.00
Total Revenue 0.00

Current Year Increase (Decrease) 0.00

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

24

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

72 - ICDA Debt Service Fund
Assets

72-1001 ICDA Cash / Due From Consolidated 0.00

72-1121 Time Deposits 1,639,132.47

72-1122 Time Deposits - Pledged Revenue 50,982.09

Total Assets

1,690,114.56

1,690,114.56

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

25

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

72 - ICDA Debt Service Fund
Liabilities

72-2002 ICDA Due To Consolidated Cash / Accounts 
Payable

0.00

72-2200 Wages Payable 0.00

Total Liabilities 0.00

Fund Balance

72-3010 ICDA Fund Balance 1,971,849.99

Total Fund Balance 1,971,849.99

Fund Balance Total 1,971,849.99
Current Year Increase (Decrease) (281,735.43)

Total Fund Balance/Equity 1,690,114.56

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance 1,690,114.56

Total Expenses 314,237.52
Total Revenue 32,502.09

Current Year Increase (Decrease) (281,735.43)

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

26

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

98 - ICDA Consolidated Cash
Assets

98-1001 ICDA Consolidated Cash 0.00

98-1270 Due From ICDA General Operating Fund (11,785.66)

98-1271 Due From ICDA Capital Projects Fund 0.00

98-1272 Due From ICDA Debt Service Fund 0.00

Total Assets

(11,785.66)

(11,785.66)

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

27

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

98 - ICDA Consolidated Cash
Liabilities

98-2002 ICDA Accounts Payable (11,785.66)

98-2170 Due To ICDA General Operating Fund 0.00

98-2171 Due To ICDA Capital Projects Fund 0.00

98-2172 Due To ICDA Debt Service Fund 0.00

98-2200 Wages Payable 0.00

98-2998 ICDA Due To Other Funds 0.00

Total Liabilities (11,785.66)

Fund Balance

98-3010 ICDA Fund Balance 0.00

Total Fund Balance 0.00

Fund Balance Total 0.00
Current Year Increase (Decrease) 0.00

Total Fund Balance/Equity 0.00

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance (11,785.66)

Total Expenses 0.00
Total Revenue 0.00

Current Year Increase (Decrease) 0.00

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

28

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

99 - Consolidated Cash
Assets

99-1000 Cash 3,518,965.36

99-1210 Due From General Fund 190,989.50

99-1220 Due From Crime Prevention District Fund 0.00

99-1230 Due From Debt Service Fund 0.00

99-1235 Due From Capital Improvement Projects 
Fund

0.00

99-1240 Due From Court Technology fund 0.00

99-1241 Due From Court Security Fund 0.00

99-1245 Due From American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) 
Fund

0.00

99-1250 Due From Vehicle Replacement Fund 0.00

Total Assets

3,709,954.86

3,709,954.86

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

29

Cop
y



Account Type Account Number Description Balance Total

99 - Consolidated Cash
Liabilities

99-2000 Accounts Payable 190,989.50

99-2110 Due To General Fund 0.00

99-2120 Due To Crime Prevention District Fund 0.00

99-2130 Due To Debt Service Fund 0.00

99-2135 Due To Capital Improvement Projects Fund 0.00

99-2140 Due To Court Technology fund 0.00

99-2141 Due To Court Security Fund 0.00

99-2145 Due To American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) 
Fund

0.00

99-2150 Due To Vehicle Replacement Fund 0.00

99-2200 Wages Payable 0.00

99-2999 Due To Other Funds 3,518,965.36

Total Liabilities 3,709,954.86

Fund Balance Total 0.00
Current Year Increase (Decrease) 0.00

Total Fund Balance/Equity 0.00

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance 3,709,954.86

Total Expenses 0.00
Total Revenue 0.00

Current Year Increase (Decrease) 0.00

City of  Iowa Colony
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:21 PM

30

Cop
y



Revenue Summary

Sales Tax 43,684.62 30,083.33 13,601.29 196,822.27 361,000.00 54.52% 164,177.73

Property Tax 666,259.36 310,916.67 355,342.69 3,297,096.72 3,731,000.00 88.37% 433,903.28

Miscellaneous 1,270.00 44,854.16 (43,584.16) 3,226.82 538,250.00 0.60% 535,023.18

Fines & Forfeitures 19,319.93 25,000.00 (5,680.07) 84,107.48 300,000.00 28.04% 215,892.52

License & Permits 235,241.87 167,333.33 67,908.54 715,931.51 2,008,000.00 35.65% 1,292,068.49

 Business & Franchise 0.00 11,666.67 (11,666.67) 5,622.15 140,000.00 4.02% 134,377.85

Grant Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

965,775.78 589,854.16 375,921.62 4,302,806.95 7,078,250.00 60.79% 2,775,443.05Revenue Totals

Expense Summary

Personnel Services 152,231.86 160,794.39 (8,562.53) 543,370.94 1,929,532.73 28.16% 1,386,161.79

Professional/Contract Services 172,583.44 134,183.33 38,400.11 483,995.70 1,610,200.00 30.06% 1,126,204.30

Materials & Supplies 33,834.97 33,250.05 584.92 151,983.98 399,000.00 38.09% 247,016.02

Services 9,862.41 205,999.97 (196,137.56) 22,504.49 2,472,000.00 0.91% 2,449,495.51

Capital Outlay 0.00 31,666.67 (31,666.67) 12,700.00 380,000.00 3.34% 367,300.00

368,512.68 565,894.41 (197,381.73) 1,214,555.11 6,790,732.73 17.89% 5,576,177.62Expense Totals

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

Annual
Budget

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

% of
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual10 - General Fund

1

Cop
y



Sales Tax

81.22 83.33 (2.11) 313.14 31.31%1,000.00 686.8610-4109 Mixed Beverage Tax

43,603.40 30,000.00 13,603.40 196,509.13 54.59%360,000.00 163,490.8710-4110 City Sales Tax

164,177.7343,684.62 30,083.33 13,601.29 196,822.27 361,000.00 54.52%Sales Tax Totals

Property Tax

665,918.74 113,333.33 552,585.41 3,292,269.37 242.08%1,360,000.00 (1,932,269.37
)

10-4120 Property Tax

340.62 2,916.67 (2,576.05) 5,730.81 16.37%35,000.00 29,269.1910-4121 Delinquent Property Tax

0.00 89,250.00 (89,250.00) 0.00 0.00%1,071,000.00 1,071,000.0010-4130 Property Tax - TIF - 70%

0.00 0.00 0.00 (632.42) 0.00%0.00 632.4210-4131 Delinquent Tax - TIF - 70%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%0.00 0.0010-4132 City Property Tax TIF 30%

0.00 0.00 0.00 (271.04) 0.00%0.00 271.0410-4133 City Property Delinquent TIF 30%

0.00 105,416.67 (105,416.67) 0.00 0.00%1,265,000.00 1,265,000.0010-4135 Property Tax MUD 31 - 70%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%0.00 0.0010-4136 Delinquent Tax MUD 31 - 70%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%0.00 0.0010-4137 Property Tax MUD 31 - 30%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%0.00 0.0010-4138 Delinquent Tax MUD 31 - 30%

433,903.28666,259.36 310,916.67 355,342.69 3,297,096.72 3,731,000.00 88.37%Property Tax Totals

Miscellaneous

20.00 0.00 20.00 90.00 0.00%0.00 (90.00)10-4124 Accident Reports

0.00 20,833.33 (20,833.33) 0.00 0.00%250,000.00 250,000.0010-4126 MUD 31 Pub Safety Contr

0.00 20,833.33 (20,833.33) 0.00 0.00%250,000.00 250,000.0010-4127 MUD 32 Pub Saf

0.00 250.00 (250.00) 0.00 0.00%3,000.00 3,000.0010-4134 Intermodel Ship Container

0.00 2,916.67 (2,916.67) 0.00 0.00%35,000.00 35,000.0010-4805 Park Reserves

0.00 20.83 (20.83) 1.83 0.73%250.00 248.1710-4910 Interest Income

1,250.00 0.00 1,250.00 3,134.99 0.00%0.00 (3,134.99)10-4911 Other Revenue

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

Current
Month Actual

Annual
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

% of
Budget

YTD
Actual

Budget
Variance

Current
Month Budget10 - General Fund

2

Cop
y



Miscellaneous
535,023.181,270.00 44,854.16 (43,584.16) 3,226.82 538,250.00 0.60%Miscellaneous Totals

Fines & Forfeitures

722.04 0.00 722.04 3,286.55 0.00%0.00 (3,286.55)10-4125 Arrest Fee

17,566.38 25,000.00 (7,433.62) 76,352.12 25.45%300,000.00 223,647.8810-4701 Citations/Warrants

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%0.00 0.0010-4702 Delinquent Court Collection

14.65 0.00 14.65 63.98 0.00%0.00 (63.98)10-4703 Municipal Jury Funds

731.86 0.00 731.86 2,807.99 0.00%0.00 (2,807.99)10-4704 Local Truancy Prevention

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%0.00 0.0010-4705 Time Payment Reimbursement

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%0.00 0.0010-4706 Omnibase Reimbursement

285.00 0.00 285.00 1,596.84 0.00%0.00 (1,596.84)10-4709 Court Costs

215,892.5219,319.93 25,000.00 (5,680.07) 84,107.48 300,000.00 28.04%Fines & Forfeitures Totals

License & Permits

94,340.88 114,583.33 (20,242.45) 390,792.71 28.42%1,375,000.00 984,207.2910-4201 Building Construction Permits

18,621.39 4,166.67 14,454.72 42,025.79 84.05%50,000.00 7,974.2110-4202 Trade Fees

0.00 2,500.00 (2,500.00) 16,400.00 54.67%30,000.00 13,600.0010-4203 Reinspection Fees

450.00 83.33 366.67 450.00 45.00%1,000.00 550.0010-4204 Signs

765.00 166.67 598.33 3,148.94 157.45%2,000.00 (1,148.94)10-4205 PIP - Prop Improv Permit

0.00 41.67 (41.67) 1,000.00 200.00%500.00 (500.00)10-4206 Dirt Work Permits

0.00 125.00 (125.00) 0.00 0.00%1,500.00 1,500.0010-4207 Driveway Permits

150.00 41.67 108.33 450.00 90.00%500.00 50.0010-4210 Culvert Permit

500.00 83.33 416.67 1,000.00 100.00%1,000.00 0.0010-4211 Commercial Vehicle Permit

470.00 83.33 386.67 520.00 52.00%1,000.00 480.0010-4212 Park Use Permit

300.00 83.33 216.67 600.00 60.00%1,000.00 400.0010-4213 Mobile Food Unit Permit

3,210.00 6,250.00 (3,040.00) 11,840.00 15.79%75,000.00 63,160.0010-4301 Preliminary Plat Fees

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

Current
Month Actual

Annual
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

% of
Budget

YTD
Actual

Budget
Variance

Current
Month Budget10 - General Fund

3

Cop
y



License & Permits

2,400.00 2,916.67 (516.67) 11,350.00 32.43%35,000.00 23,650.0010-4302 Final Plat Fees

0.00 583.33 (583.33) 1,580.00 22.57%7,000.00 5,420.0010-4303 Abbreviated Plat Fees

36,027.65 12,500.00 23,527.65 39,508.62 26.34%150,000.00 110,491.3810-4305 Admin Fee - Early Plat Recording

7,215.74 6,250.00 965.74 54,258.86 72.35%75,000.00 20,741.1410-4401 Infrastructure Plan Review Fee

70,791.21 16,666.67 54,124.54 141,006.59 70.50%200,000.00 58,993.4110-4403 Civil Site Plan Review Fee

0.00 125.00 (125.00) 0.00 0.00%1,500.00 1,500.0010-4501 Rezoning Fees

0.00 83.33 (83.33) 0.00 0.00%1,000.00 1,000.0010-4503 Specific Use Permit

1,292,068.49235,241.87 167,333.33 67,908.54 715,931.51 2,008,000.00 35.65%License & Permits Totals

 Business & Franchise

0.00 9,166.67 (9,166.67) 0.00 0.00%110,000.00 110,000.0010-4601 Franchise Tax - Electric

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%0.00 0.0010-4602 Franchise Tax - Gas

0.00 2,500.00 (2,500.00) 5,622.15 18.74%30,000.00 24,377.8510-4603 Telecommunication Fee - Sales 

134,377.850.00 11,666.67 (11,666.67) 5,622.15 140,000.00 4.02% Business & Franchise Totals

Grant Income

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%0.00 0.0010-4803 State & Federal Grants

0.000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%Grant Income Totals

Revenue Totals 375,921.62 60.79%7,078,250.004,302,806.95589,854.16965,775.78 2,775,443.05

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

Current
Month Actual

Annual
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

% of
Budget

YTD
Actual

Budget
Variance

Current
Month Budget10 - General Fund

4

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Administration

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.000.00 0.00Capital Outlay
5,208.35 699.96 21,725.23 34.76% 40,774.775,908.31 62,500.00Materials & Supplies

27,212.31 13,280.72 125,768.09 38.51% 200,779.8740,493.03 326,547.96Personnel Services
19,116.67 11,637.27 111,770.07 48.72% 117,629.9330,753.94 229,400.00Professional/Contract Services
3,499.99 (158.31) 10,315.53 24.56% 31,684.473,341.68 42,000.00Services

55,037.32 25,459.64 269,578.92 40.82% 390,869.0480,496.96 660,447.96Administration Totals

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Finance

1,766.67 (506.68) 30,639.34 144.53% (9,439.34)1,259.99 21,200.00Materials & Supplies
8,730.33 (1,078.94) 30,639.40 29.25% 74,124.417,651.39 104,763.81Personnel Services

208.34 (208.34) 0.00 0.00% 2,500.000.00 2,500.00Professional/Contract Services

10,705.34 (1,793.96) 61,278.74 47.70% 67,185.078,911.38 128,463.81Finance Totals

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Police

6,841.67 9,334.76 33,004.63 40.20% 49,095.3716,176.43 82,100.00Materials & Supplies
86,929.88 (22,872.26) 246,611.74 23.64% 796,546.8664,057.62 1,043,158.60Personnel Services
1,833.33 8,381.67 13,097.08 59.53% 8,902.9210,215.00 22,000.00Professional/Contract Services
5,833.33 (348.10) 10,813.96 15.45% 59,186.045,485.23 70,000.00Services

101,438.21 (5,503.93) 303,527.41 24.94% 913,731.1995,934.28 1,217,258.60Police Totals

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Animal Control

City of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:19:05 PM

5

Cop
y



266.67 (56.76) 754.66 23.58% 2,445.34209.91 3,200.00Materials & Supplies
5,197.00 815.85 19,799.99 31.75% 42,564.076,012.85 62,364.06Personnel Services

358.33 (188.33) 1,229.84 28.60% 3,070.16170.00 4,300.00Professional/Contract Services
666.66 (496.91) 339.50 4.24% 7,660.50169.75 8,000.00Services

6,488.66 73.85 22,123.99 28.41% 55,740.076,562.51 77,864.06Animal Control Totals

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Emergency Management

250.00 (250.00) 0.00 0.00% 3,000.000.00 3,000.00Materials & Supplies
666.67 (666.67) 0.00 0.00% 8,000.000.00 8,000.00Professional/Contract Services

916.67 (916.67) 0.00 0.00% 11,000.000.00 11,000.00Emergency Management Totals

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Municipal Court

1,025.01 (645.36) 3,207.67 26.08% 9,092.33379.65 12,300.00Materials & Supplies
10,941.64 (1,386.37) 37,862.26 28.84% 93,437.329,555.27 131,299.58Personnel Services
6,041.67 (4,089.89) 15,462.78 21.33% 57,037.221,951.78 72,500.00Professional/Contract Services

18,008.32 (6,121.62) 56,532.71 26.16% 159,566.8711,886.70 216,099.58Municipal Court Totals

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Public Works

6,583.34 (2,759.63) 21,098.77 26.71% 57,901.233,823.71 79,000.00Materials & Supplies
7,081.23 1,763.03 28,299.66 33.30% 56,675.248,844.26 84,974.90Personnel Services

32,500.00 (21,900.00) 22,879.86 5.87% 367,120.1410,600.00 390,000.00Professional/Contract Services
666.66 (496.91) 339.50 4.24% 7,660.50169.75 8,000.00Services

46,831.23 (23,393.51) 72,617.79 12.92% 489,357.1123,437.72 561,974.90Public Works Totals

City of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:19:05 PM

6

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Parks & Recreation

9,083.33 (4,039.35) 14,178.93 13.01% 94,821.075,043.98 109,000.00Materials & Supplies
2,750.00 (2,750.00) 21,400.00 64.85% 11,600.000.00 33,000.00Professional/Contract Services

11,833.33 (6,789.35) 35,578.93 25.06% 106,421.075,043.98 142,000.00Parks & Recreation Totals

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Community Development

1,291.67 (1,227.47) 25,190.45 162.52% (9,690.45)64.20 15,500.00Materials & Supplies
5,145.28 (664.89) 17,802.53 28.83% 43,940.684,480.39 61,743.21Personnel Services

45,041.66 25,170.03 181,004.76 33.49% 359,495.2470,211.69 540,500.00Professional/Contract Services
194,666.67 (194,666.67) 0.00 0.00% 2,336,000.000.00 2,336,000.00Services

246,145.28 (171,389.00) 223,997.74 7.58% 2,729,745.4774,756.28 2,953,743.21Community Development Totals

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Fire Marshal/Building Official

933.34 35.45 2,184.30 19.50% 9,015.70968.79 11,200.00Materials & Supplies
9,556.72 1,580.33 36,587.27 31.90% 78,093.3411,137.05 114,680.61Personnel Services

25,666.66 23,014.37 117,151.31 38.04% 190,848.6948,681.03 308,000.00Professional/Contract Services
666.66 29.34 696.00 8.70% 7,304.00696.00 8,000.00Services

36,823.38 24,659.49 156,618.88 35.44% 285,261.7361,482.87 441,880.61Fire Marshal/Building Official Totals

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Capital and Planning Projects

31,666.67 (31,666.67) 12,700.00 3.34% 367,300.000.00 380,000.00Capital Outlay

City of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:19:05 PM

7

Cop
y



31,666.67 (31,666.67) 12,700.00 3.34% 367,300.000.00 380,000.00Capital and Planning Projects Totals

565,894.41 (197,381.73) 1,214,555.11 17.89% 5,576,177.62368,512.68 6,790,732.73Expense Total

City of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:19:05 PM

8

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Administration

16,130.48 17,824.16 (1,693.68) 64,521.86 213,889.92 149,368.0610-10-5101 Salaries - Full Time 30.17%

0.00 2,083.33 (2,083.33) 0.00 25,000.00 25,000.0010-10-5102 Salaries - Part Time 0.00%

0.00 833.33 (833.33) 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.0010-10-5103 Salaries - Temp 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-10-5104 Salaries - Overtime 0.00%

1,264.62 1,363.55 (98.93) 5,046.21 16,362.58 11,316.3710-10-5106 Social Security/Medicare 30.84%

1,573.58 1,604.17 (30.59) 8,027.30 19,250.09 11,222.7910-10-5107 TMRS 41.70%

19,800.01 1,233.33 18,566.68 33,046.36 14,800.00 (18,246.36)10-10-5108 Health & Life Insurance 223.29%

370.50 633.11 (262.61) 9,871.00 7,597.37 (2,273.63)10-10-5109 Worker's Comp 129.93%

0.00 42.00 (42.00) 0.00 504.00 504.0010-10-5110 Texas Workforce Commission 0.00%

553.84 600.00 (46.16) 2,215.36 7,200.00 4,984.6410-10-5111 Vehicle Allowance 30.77%

800.00 875.00 (75.00) 2,800.00 10,500.00 7,700.0010-10-5112 457(b) Reimbursement 26.67%

0.00 12.00 (12.00) 0.00 144.00 144.0010-10-5114 Benefits Admin Fees 0.00%

0.00 25.00 (25.00) 240.00 300.00 60.0010-10-5115 Longevity Pay 80.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-10-5117 Certificate Pay 0.00%

0.00 83.33 (83.33) 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.0010-10-5121 Payroll Expense/Direct 0.00%

8,415.00 7,916.67 498.33 43,123.41 95,000.00 51,876.5910-10-5201 Legal Services 45.39%

4,250.00 2,500.00 1,750.00 17,750.00 30,000.00 12,250.0010-10-5202 Audit Services 59.17%

6,425.00 0.00 6,425.00 10,325.00 0.00 (10,325.00)10-10-5203 Attorney/Prosecutor Fees 0.00%

5,550.00 2,166.67 3,383.33 8,849.90 26,000.00 17,150.1010-10-5206 Professional Services 34.04%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-10-5207 Building Inspector 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-10-5208 Engineering Services 0.00%

1,500.00 666.67 833.33 1,500.00 8,000.00 6,500.0010-10-5210 Election Expenses 18.75%

0.00 8.33 (8.33) 100.10 100.00 (0.10)10-10-5211 Bank Fees 100.10%

0.00 208.33 (208.33) 7,901.31 2,500.00 (5,401.31)10-10-5212 Credit Card Processing Fees 316.05%

1,737.18 583.33 1,153.85 3,822.70 7,000.00 3,177.3010-10-5213 Legal Notices Expense 54.61%

0.00 0.00 0.00 195.60 0.00 (195.60)10-10-5214 Advertising/Printing Expense 0.00%

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

9

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Administration

1,345.60 1,791.67 (446.07) 7,298.60 21,500.00 14,201.4010-10-5215 BCAD Fee 33.95%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-10-5216 Pest Control Services 0.00%

715.00 1,416.67 (701.67) 3,930.00 17,000.00 13,070.0010-10-5217 Professional Cleaning Services 23.12%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-10-5218 Lawn Services 0.00%

0.00 458.33 (458.33) 3,792.99 5,500.00 1,707.0110-10-5221 Website Adminstration 68.96%

490.00 750.00 (260.00) 2,219.30 9,000.00 6,780.7010-10-5223 Training & Travel 24.66%

326.16 225.00 101.16 861.16 2,700.00 1,838.8410-10-5224 Dues & Subscriptions 31.89%

0.00 250.00 (250.00) 100.00 3,000.00 2,900.0010-10-5225 Seminars/BCCA 3.33%

0.00 166.67 (166.67) 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.0010-10-5227 Legislative Affairs 0.00%

0.00 8.33 (8.33) 0.00 100.00 100.0010-10-5228 Tax Appraisal & Collection 0.00%

511.70 1,166.67 (654.97) 1,667.40 14,000.00 12,332.6010-10-5301 Office Supplies 11.91%

71.98 0.00 71.98 303.98 0.00 (303.98)10-10-5302 Janitorial Supplies 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 129.00 0.00 (129.00)10-10-5303 Public Education & Training 0.00%

0.00 166.67 (166.67) 781.88 2,000.00 1,218.1210-10-5309 Uniforms 39.09%

676.11 41.67 634.44 976.10 500.00 (476.10)10-10-5310 Postage 195.22%

2,557.91 1,000.00 1,557.91 10,728.23 12,000.00 1,271.7710-10-5311 Building Repairs & 89.40%

0.00 166.67 (166.67) (190.35) 2,000.00 2,190.3510-10-5312 Staff Recognition (9.52%)

0.00 1,250.00 (1,250.00) 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.0010-10-5314 Computer & Technology 0.00%

1,380.29 666.67 713.62 5,448.29 8,000.00 2,551.7110-10-5315 Computer Software/License 68.10%

278.01 541.67 (263.66) 1,125.28 6,500.00 5,374.7210-10-5317 Equipment & Other Rentals 17.31%

0.00 125.00 (125.00) 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.0010-10-5329 Mayor's Special Expense 0.00%

432.31 83.33 348.98 755.42 1,000.00 244.5810-10-5330 Miscellaneous 75.54%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-10-5331 Signs & Postings 0.00%

759.32 583.33 175.99 2,383.27 7,000.00 4,616.7310-10-5401 Utilities - Electricity 34.05%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-10-5402 Utilities - Traffic Signals 0.00%

1,059.07 1,333.33 (274.26) 4,748.89 16,000.00 11,251.1110-10-5403 Utilities - Telephone 29.68%

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

10

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Administration

285.12 0.00 285.12 459.70 0.00 (459.70)10-10-5404 Mobile Technology Expense 0.00%

1,238.17 666.67 571.50 2,723.67 8,000.00 5,276.3310-10-5405 Insurance - Liability & Prop 34.05%

0.00 833.33 (833.33) 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.0010-10-5406 Insurance - Windstorm 0.00%

0.00 83.33 (83.33) 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.0010-10-5407 Insurance - Vehicles 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-10-5630 Furniture & Equipment 0.00%

Administration Totals 80,496.96 55,037.32 25,459.64 269,578.92 660,447.96 40.82% 390,869.04

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

11

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Finance

6,080.00 6,718.40 (638.40) 24,320.00 80,620.80 56,300.8010-15-5101 Salaries - Full Time 30.17%

460.62 513.96 (53.34) 1,847.07 6,167.49 4,320.4210-15-5106 Social Security/Medicare 29.95%

547.20 604.66 (57.46) 2,721.62 7,255.87 4,534.2510-15-5107 TMRS 37.51%

563.57 616.67 (53.10) 1,690.71 7,400.00 5,709.2910-15-5108 Health & Life Insurance 22.85%

0.00 238.64 (238.64) 0.00 2,863.65 2,863.6510-15-5109 Worker's Comp 0.00%

0.00 21.00 (21.00) 0.00 252.00 252.0010-15-5110 Texas Workforce Commission 0.00%

0.00 12.00 (12.00) 0.00 144.00 144.0010-15-5114 Benefits Admin Fees 0.00%

0.00 5.00 (5.00) 60.00 60.00 0.0010-15-5115 Longevity Pay 100.00%

0.00 166.67 (166.67) 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.0010-15-5223 Training & Travel 0.00%

0.00 41.67 (41.67) 0.00 500.00 500.0010-15-5224 Dues & Subscriptions 0.00%

9.99 83.33 (73.34) 348.97 1,000.00 651.0310-15-5301 Office Supplies 34.90%

0.00 16.67 (16.67) 290.37 200.00 (90.37)10-15-5310 Postage 145.19%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-15-5314 Computer & Technology 0.00%

1,250.00 1,666.67 (416.67) 30,000.00 20,000.00 (10,000.00)10-15-5315 Computer Software/License 150.00%

Finance Totals 8,911.38 10,705.34 (1,793.96) 61,278.74 128,463.81 47.70% 67,185.07

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

12

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Police

42,419.94 62,577.08 (20,157.14) 170,111.38 750,925.02 580,813.6410-20-5101 Salaries - Full Time 22.65%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-20-5102 Salaries - Part Time 0.00%

4,781.07 1,041.67 3,739.40 11,539.92 12,500.00 960.0810-20-5104 Salaries - Overtime 92.32%

3,665.88 4,787.15 (1,121.27) 13,990.31 57,445.76 43,455.4510-20-5106 Social Security/Medicare 24.35%

4,397.62 5,631.94 (1,234.32) 20,677.89 67,583.25 46,905.3610-20-5107 TMRS 30.60%

4,685.57 8,325.00 (3,639.43) 15,641.16 99,900.00 84,258.8410-20-5108 Health & Life Insurance 15.66%

2,446.00 2,778.42 (332.42) 8,079.00 33,341.07 25,262.0710-20-5109 Worker's Comp 24.23%

0.00 294.00 (294.00) 348.23 3,528.00 3,179.7710-20-5110 Texas Workforce Commission 9.87%

0.00 84.00 (84.00) 0.00 1,008.00 1,008.0010-20-5114 Benefits Admin Fees 0.00%

0.00 70.00 (70.00) 720.00 840.00 120.0010-20-5115 Longevity Pay 85.71%

1,661.54 1,340.62 320.92 5,503.85 16,087.50 10,583.6510-20-5117 Certificate Pay 34.21%

5,525.00 583.33 4,941.67 6,101.00 7,000.00 899.0010-20-5206 Professional Services 87.16%

100.00 250.00 (150.00) 407.00 3,000.00 2,593.0010-20-5222 Investigations 13.57%

250.00 416.67 (166.67) 901.64 5,000.00 4,098.3610-20-5223 Training & Travel 18.03%

0.00 125.00 (125.00) 65.00 1,500.00 1,435.0010-20-5224 Dues & Subscriptions 4.33%

4,200.00 333.33 3,866.67 5,147.44 4,000.00 (1,147.44)10-20-5230 Radio Service 128.69%

140.00 125.00 15.00 475.00 1,500.00 1,025.0010-20-5231 Recruiting & Hiring Expense 31.67%

3,259.03 250.00 3,009.03 3,430.43 3,000.00 (430.43)10-20-5301 Office Supplies 114.35%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-20-5303 Public Education & Training 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-20-5307 Investigation Supplies 0.00%

455.91 666.67 (210.76) 1,790.12 8,000.00 6,209.8810-20-5309 Uniforms 22.38%

0.00 8.33 (8.33) 0.00 100.00 100.0010-20-5310 Postage 0.00%

0.00 166.67 (166.67) 25.00 2,000.00 1,975.0010-20-5311 Building Repairs & 1.25%

2,351.46 2,500.00 (148.54) 11,064.58 30,000.00 18,935.4210-20-5313 Fuel Expense 36.88%

1,679.29 1,666.67 12.62 6,013.73 20,000.00 13,986.2710-20-5314 Computer & Technology 30.07%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-20-5315 Computer Software/License 0.00%

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

13

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Police

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-20-5318 Vehicle Equipment 0.00%

8,409.76 833.33 7,576.43 8,822.70 10,000.00 1,177.3010-20-5319 Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 88.23%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-20-5320 Traffic Equipment & Supplies 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-20-5325 Lab Equipment 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-20-5326 Radio Repair & Maintenance 0.00%

20.98 583.33 (562.35) 1,409.06 7,000.00 5,590.9410-20-5328 Small Tools & Minor 20.13%

0.00 166.67 (166.67) 449.01 2,000.00 1,550.9910-20-5330 Miscellaneous 22.45%

675.48 500.00 175.48 2,321.46 6,000.00 3,678.5410-20-5404 Mobile Technology Expense 38.69%

1,928.25 666.67 1,261.58 3,856.50 8,000.00 4,143.5010-20-5405 Insurance - Liability & Prop 48.21%

2,881.50 583.33 2,298.17 4,636.00 7,000.00 2,364.0010-20-5407 Insurance - Vehicles 66.23%

0.00 4,083.33 (4,083.33) 0.00 49,000.00 49,000.0010-20-5410 Vehicle Replacement Fund 0.00%

Police Totals 95,934.28 101,438.21 (5,503.93) 303,527.41 1,217,258.60 24.94% 913,731.19

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

14

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Animal Control

3,361.60 3,714.58 (352.98) 13,446.40 44,575.02 31,128.6210-21-5101 Salaries - Full Time 30.17%

0.00 83.33 (83.33) 441.28 1,000.00 558.7210-21-5104 Salaries - Overtime 44.13%

250.16 284.17 (34.01) 1,038.97 3,409.99 2,371.0210-21-5106 Social Security/Medicare 30.47%

302.54 334.31 (31.77) 1,565.69 4,011.75 2,446.0610-21-5107 TMRS 39.03%

574.55 616.67 (42.12) 1,723.65 7,400.00 5,676.3510-21-5108 Health & Life Insurance 23.29%

1,524.00 131.94 1,392.06 1,524.00 1,583.30 59.3010-21-5109 Worker's Comp 96.25%

0.00 21.00 (21.00) 0.00 252.00 252.0010-21-5110 Texas Workforce Commission 0.00%

0.00 6.00 (6.00) 0.00 72.00 72.0010-21-5114 Benefits Admin Fees 0.00%

0.00 5.00 (5.00) 60.00 60.00 0.0010-21-5115 Longevity Pay 100.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-21-5117 Certificate Pay 0.00%

75.00 125.00 (50.00) 882.89 1,500.00 617.1110-21-5223 Training & Travel 58.86%

60.00 25.00 35.00 91.95 300.00 208.0510-21-5224 Dues & Subscriptions 30.65%

35.00 208.33 (173.33) 255.00 2,500.00 2,245.0010-21-5229 Contractual Services 10.20%

0.00 16.67 (16.67) 0.00 200.00 200.0010-21-5301 Office Supplies 0.00%

41.97 41.67 0.30 282.86 500.00 217.1410-21-5309 Uniforms 56.57%

0.00 16.67 (16.67) 0.00 200.00 200.0010-21-5310 Postage 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-21-5311 Building Repairs & 0.00%

136.47 83.33 53.14 404.25 1,000.00 595.7510-21-5313 Fuel Expense 40.43%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-21-5318 Vehicle Equipment 0.00%

0.00 83.33 (83.33) 36.08 1,000.00 963.9210-21-5319 Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 3.61%

31.47 25.00 6.47 31.47 300.00 268.5310-21-5328 Small Tools & Minor 10.49%

169.75 83.33 86.42 339.50 1,000.00 660.5010-21-5407 Insurance - Vehicles 33.95%

0.00 583.33 (583.33) 0.00 7,000.00 7,000.0010-21-5410 Vehicle Replacement Fund 0.00%

Animal Control Totals 6,562.51 6,488.66 73.85 22,123.99 77,864.06 28.41% 55,740.07

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

15

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Emergency Management

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-22-5206 Professional Services 0.00%

0.00 166.67 (166.67) 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.0010-22-5214 Advertising/Printing Expense 0.00%

0.00 83.33 (83.33) 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.0010-22-5223 Training & Travel 0.00%

0.00 416.67 (416.67) 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.0010-22-5229 Contractual Services 0.00%

0.00 166.67 (166.67) 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.0010-22-5301 Office Supplies 0.00%

0.00 83.33 (83.33) 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.0010-22-5315 Computer Software/License 0.00%

Emergency Management Totals 0.00 916.67 (916.67) 0.00 11,000.00 0.00% 11,000.00

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

16

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Municipal Court

7,129.60 7,805.72 (676.12) 28,358.54 93,668.64 65,310.1010-25-5101 Salaries - Full Time 30.28%

0.00 166.67 (166.67) 233.01 2,000.00 1,766.9910-25-5104 Salaries - Overtime 11.65%

539.68 597.14 (57.46) 2,168.90 7,165.65 4,996.7510-25-5106 Social Security/Medicare 30.27%

649.96 702.52 (52.56) 3,241.42 8,430.18 5,188.7610-25-5107 TMRS 38.45%

1,143.73 1,233.33 (89.60) 3,431.19 14,800.00 11,368.8110-25-5108 Health & Life Insurance 23.18%

0.00 277.26 (277.26) 0.00 3,327.11 3,327.1110-25-5109 Worker's Comp 0.00%

0.00 42.00 (42.00) 0.00 504.00 504.0010-25-5110 Texas Workforce Commission 0.00%

0.00 12.00 (12.00) 0.00 144.00 144.0010-25-5114 Benefits Admin Fees 0.00%

0.00 5.00 (5.00) 60.00 60.00 0.0010-25-5115 Longevity Pay 100.00%

92.30 100.00 (7.70) 369.20 1,200.00 830.8010-25-5117 Certificate Pay 30.77%

0.00 4,166.67 (4,166.67) 8,925.00 50,000.00 41,075.0010-25-5203 Attorney/Prosecutor Fees 17.85%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-25-5206 Professional Services 0.00%

1,925.00 1,666.67 258.33 6,037.50 20,000.00 13,962.5010-25-5209 Judge Fees 30.19%

26.78 125.00 (98.22) 195.28 1,500.00 1,304.7210-25-5220 Interpreter Services 13.02%

0.00 83.33 (83.33) 305.00 1,000.00 695.0010-25-5223 Training & Travel 30.50%

144.65 250.00 (105.35) 431.67 3,000.00 2,568.3310-25-5301 Office Supplies 14.39%

0.00 125.00 (125.00) 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.0010-25-5308 Jury Trial Expense 0.00%

0.00 41.67 (41.67) 32.00 500.00 468.0010-25-5309 Uniforms 6.40%

0.00 41.67 (41.67) 0.00 500.00 500.0010-25-5310 Postage 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-25-5314 Computer & Technology 0.00%

235.00 566.67 (331.67) 2,744.00 6,800.00 4,056.0010-25-5315 Computer Software/License 40.35%

Municipal Court Totals 11,886.70 18,008.32 (6,121.62) 56,532.71 216,099.58 26.16% 159,566.87

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

17

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Public Works

4,649.40 5,074.16 (424.76) 18,425.40 60,889.92 42,464.5210-30-5101 Salaries - Full Time 30.26%

129.15 333.33 (204.18) 1,635.91 4,000.00 2,364.0910-30-5104 Salaries - Overtime 40.90%

361.07 388.17 (27.10) 1,521.28 4,658.08 3,136.8010-30-5106 Social Security/Medicare 32.66%

430.07 456.67 (26.60) 2,255.36 5,480.09 3,224.7310-30-5107 TMRS 41.16%

563.57 616.67 (53.10) 1,690.71 7,400.00 5,709.2910-30-5108 Health & Life Insurance 22.85%

2,711.00 180.23 2,530.77 2,711.00 2,162.81 (548.19)10-30-5109 Worker's Comp 125.35%

0.00 21.00 (21.00) 0.00 252.00 252.0010-30-5110 Texas Workforce Commission 0.00%

0.00 6.00 (6.00) 0.00 72.00 72.0010-30-5114 Benefits Admin Fees 0.00%

0.00 5.00 (5.00) 60.00 60.00 0.0010-30-5115 Longevity Pay 100.00%

0.00 27,083.33 (27,083.33) 0.00 325,000.00 325,000.0010-30-5219 Roads, Bridges & Drainage 0.00%

10,600.00 5,416.67 5,183.33 22,879.86 65,000.00 42,120.1410-30-5229 Contractual Services 35.20%

(20.44) 416.67 (437.11) 924.21 5,000.00 4,075.7910-30-5301 Office Supplies 18.48%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-30-5306 Building Materials & Supplies 0.00%

0.00 83.33 (83.33) 393.26 1,000.00 606.7410-30-5309 Uniforms 39.33%

307.05 333.33 (26.28) 1,334.78 4,000.00 2,665.2210-30-5313 Fuel Expense 33.37%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-30-5316 Equipment Repair/Parts 0.00%

0.00 1,250.00 (1,250.00) 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.0010-30-5317 Equipment & Other Rentals 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-30-5318 Vehicle Equipment 0.00%

17.00 250.00 (233.00) 109.27 3,000.00 2,890.7310-30-5319 Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 3.64%

420.93 0.00 420.93 420.93 0.00 (420.93)10-30-5320 Traffic Equipment & Supplies 0.00%

2,725.00 1,666.67 1,058.33 7,625.00 20,000.00 12,375.0010-30-5321 Public Works Maintenance 38.13%

0.00 1,250.00 (1,250.00) 9,305.50 15,000.00 5,694.5010-30-5322 Special Road Work 62.04%

0.00 666.67 (666.67) 0.00 8,000.00 8,000.0010-30-5328 Small Tools & Minor 0.00%

374.17 666.67 (292.50) 985.82 8,000.00 7,014.1810-30-5331 Signs & Postings 12.32%

169.75 83.33 86.42 339.50 1,000.00 660.5010-30-5407 Insurance - Vehicles 33.95%

0.00 583.33 (583.33) 0.00 7,000.00 7,000.0010-30-5410 Vehicle Replacement Fund 0.00%

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

18

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Public Works

Public Works Totals 23,437.72 46,831.23 (23,393.51) 72,617.79 561,974.90 12.92% 489,357.11

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

19

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Parks & Recreation

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-32-5206 Professional Services 0.00%

0.00 2,750.00 (2,750.00) 21,400.00 33,000.00 11,600.0010-32-5229 Contractual Services 64.85%

0.00 208.33 (208.33) 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.0010-32-5301 Office Supplies 0.00%

0.00 83.33 (83.33) 148.00 1,000.00 852.0010-32-5309 Uniforms 14.80%

0.00 2,916.67 (2,916.67) 1,799.00 35,000.00 33,201.0010-32-5323 Park Improvements 5.14%

5,043.98 5,833.33 (789.35) 12,231.93 70,000.00 57,768.0710-32-5324 Park Maintenance 17.47%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-32-5330 Miscellaneous 0.00%

0.00 41.67 (41.67) 0.00 500.00 500.0010-32-5331 Signs & Postings 0.00%

Parks & Recreation Totals 5,043.98 11,833.33 (6,789.35) 35,578.93 142,000.00 25.06% 106,421.07

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

20

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Community Development

3,361.60 3,624.40 (262.80) 13,201.60 43,492.80 30,291.2010-35-5101 Salaries - Full Time 30.35%

0.00 125.00 (125.00) 195.27 1,500.00 1,304.7310-35-5104 Salaries - Overtime 13.02%

252.68 277.27 (24.59) 1,020.66 3,327.20 2,306.5410-35-5106 Social Security/Medicare 30.68%

302.54 326.20 (23.66) 1,514.29 3,914.35 2,400.0610-35-5107 TMRS 38.69%

563.57 616.67 (53.10) 1,690.71 7,400.00 5,709.2910-35-5108 Health & Life Insurance 22.85%

0.00 128.74 (128.74) 0.00 1,544.86 1,544.8610-35-5109 Worker's Comp 0.00%

0.00 21.00 (21.00) 0.00 252.00 252.0010-35-5110 Texas Workforce Commission 0.00%

0.00 6.00 (6.00) 0.00 72.00 72.0010-35-5114 Benefits Admin Fees 0.00%

0.00 20.00 (20.00) 180.00 240.00 60.0010-35-5115 Longevity Pay 75.00%

0.00 4,208.33 (4,208.33) 0.00 50,500.00 50,500.0010-35-5206 Professional Services 0.00%

70,211.69 40,833.33 29,378.36 181,004.76 490,000.00 308,995.2410-35-5208 Engineering Services 36.94%

64.20 83.33 (19.13) 150.45 1,000.00 849.5510-35-5301 Office Supplies 15.05%

0.00 41.67 (41.67) 0.00 500.00 500.0010-35-5309 Uniforms 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-35-5314 Computer & Technology 0.00%

0.00 1,166.67 (1,166.67) 25,040.00 14,000.00 (11,040.00)10-35-5315 Computer Software/License 178.86%

0.00 194,666.67 (194,666.67) 0.00 2,336,000.00 2,336,000.0010-35-5411 TIF Fund/MUD 31 Payable 0.00%

Community Development Totals 74,756.28 246,145.28 (171,389.00) 223,997.74 2,953,743.21 7.58% 2,729,745.47

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

21

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Fire Marshal/Building Official

6,710.48 7,415.06 (704.58) 26,841.86 88,980.72 62,138.8610-36-5101 Salaries - Full Time 30.17%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-36-5104 Salaries - Overtime 0.00%

471.44 567.25 (95.81) 1,918.00 6,807.03 4,889.0310-36-5106 Social Security/Medicare 28.18%

603.94 667.36 (63.42) 3,003.18 8,008.26 5,005.0810-36-5107 TMRS 37.50%

746.19 616.67 129.52 2,159.23 7,400.00 5,240.7710-36-5108 Health & Life Insurance 29.18%

2,605.00 263.38 2,341.62 2,605.00 3,160.60 555.6010-36-5109 Worker's Comp 82.42%

0.00 21.00 (21.00) 0.00 252.00 252.0010-36-5110 Texas Workforce Commission 0.00%

0.00 6.00 (6.00) 0.00 72.00 72.0010-36-5114 Benefits Admin Fees 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 60.00 0.00 (60.00)10-36-5115 Longevity Pay 0.00%

48,667.50 25,000.00 23,667.50 115,930.00 300,000.00 184,070.0010-36-5207 Building Inspector 38.64%

13.53 333.33 (319.80) 845.99 4,000.00 3,154.0110-36-5223 Training & Travel 21.15%

0.00 333.33 (333.33) 375.32 4,000.00 3,624.6810-36-5224 Dues & Subscriptions 9.38%

722.88 41.67 681.21 889.05 500.00 (389.05)10-36-5301 Office Supplies 177.81%

0.00 250.00 (250.00) 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.0010-36-5303 Public Education & Training 0.00%

0.00 83.33 (83.33) 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.0010-36-5307 Investigation Supplies 0.00%

0.00 83.33 (83.33) 75.00 1,000.00 925.0010-36-5309 Uniforms 7.50%

0.00 16.67 (16.67) 0.00 200.00 200.0010-36-5310 Postage 0.00%

116.48 166.67 (50.19) 866.36 2,000.00 1,133.6410-36-5313 Fuel Expense 43.32%

0.00 125.00 (125.00) 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.0010-36-5319 Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 0.00%

129.43 166.67 (37.24) 353.89 2,000.00 1,646.1110-36-5328 Small Tools & Minor 17.69%

696.00 83.33 612.67 696.00 1,000.00 304.0010-36-5407 Insurance - Vehicles 69.60%

0.00 583.33 (583.33) 0.00 7,000.00 7,000.0010-36-5410 Vehicle Replacement Fund 0.00%

Fire Marshal/Building Official Totals 61,482.87 36,823.38 24,659.49 156,618.88 441,880.61 35.44% 285,261.73

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

22

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

10 - General Fund
          Capital and Planning Projects

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-90-5610 Land Purchase and 0.00%

0.00 31,666.67 (31,666.67) 12,700.00 380,000.00 367,300.0010-90-5620 Building Purchase, 3.34%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-90-5630 Furniture & Equipment 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-90-5640 Capital Assets 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0010-90-5650 Vehicles & Machinery 0.00%

Capital and Planning Projects Totals 0.00 31,666.67 (31,666.67) 12,700.00 380,000.00 3.34% 367,300.00

(197,381.73) 5,576,177.6217.89%6,790,732.731,214,555.11565,894.41368,512.68Expense Totals

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

23

Cop
y



Revenue Summary

Sales Tax 18,493.94 0.00 18,493.94 86,131.91 0.00 0.00% (86,131.91)

18,493.94 0.00 18,493.94 86,131.91 0.00 0.00% (86,131.91)Revenue Totals

Expense Summary

Personnel Services 0.00 416.67 (416.67) 0.00 5,000.00 0.00% 5,000.00

Professional/Contract Services 0.00 1,250.00 (1,250.00) 0.00 15,000.00 0.00% 15,000.00

Materials & Supplies 0.00 1,666.67 (1,666.67) 1,525.36 20,000.00 7.63% 18,474.64

Capital Outlay 0.00 11,666.67 (11,666.67) 0.00 140,000.00 0.00% 140,000.00

0.00 15,000.01 (15,000.01) 1,525.36 180,000.00 0.85% 178,474.64Expense Totals

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

Annual
Budget

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

% of
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

20 - Crime Control and Prevention 
District Fund

24

Cop
y



Sales Tax

18,493.94 0.00 18,493.94 86,131.91 0.00%0.00 (86,131.91)20-4112 CCPD - Sales Tax

(86,131.91)18,493.94 0.00 18,493.94 86,131.91 0.00 0.00%Sales Tax Totals

Revenue Totals 18,493.94 0.00%0.0086,131.910.0018,493.94 (86,131.91)

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

Current
Month Actual

Annual
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

% of
Budget

YTD
Actual

Budget
Variance

Current
Month Budget

20 - Crime Control and Prevention 
District Fund

25

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

20 - Crime Control and Prevention Dist
          Police

11,666.67 (11,666.67) 0.00 0.00% 140,000.000.00 140,000.00Capital Outlay
1,666.67 (1,666.67) 1,525.36 7.63% 18,474.640.00 20,000.00Materials & Supplies

416.67 (416.67) 0.00 0.00% 5,000.000.00 5,000.00Personnel Services
1,250.00 (1,250.00) 0.00 0.00% 15,000.000.00 15,000.00Professional/Contract Services

15,000.01 (15,000.01) 1,525.36 0.85% 178,474.640.00 180,000.00Police Totals

15,000.01 (15,000.01) 1,525.36 0.85% 178,474.640.00 180,000.00Expense Total

City of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:19:05 PM

26

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

20 - Crime Control and Prevention Dist
          Police

0.00 416.67 (416.67) 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.0020-20-5104 Salaries - Overtime 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0020-20-5206 Professional Services 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0020-20-5214 Advertising/Printing Expense 0.00%

0.00 416.67 (416.67) 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.0020-20-5222 Investigations 0.00%

0.00 833.33 (833.33) 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.0020-20-5223 Training & Travel 0.00%

0.00 500.00 (500.00) 0.00 6,000.00 6,000.0020-20-5301 Office Supplies 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0020-20-5303 Public Education & Training 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0020-20-5307 Investigation Supplies 0.00%

0.00 416.67 (416.67) 982.00 5,000.00 4,018.0020-20-5314 Computer & Technology 19.64%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0020-20-5315 Computer Software/License 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0020-20-5316 Equipment Repair/Parts 0.00%

0.00 333.33 (333.33) 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.0020-20-5317 Equipment & Other Rentals 0.00%

0.00 416.67 (416.67) 543.36 5,000.00 4,456.6420-20-5330 Miscellaneous 10.87%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0020-20-5630 Furniture & Equipment 0.00%

0.00 11,666.67 (11,666.67) 0.00 140,000.00 140,000.0020-20-5650 Vehicles & Machinery 0.00%

Police Totals 0.00 15,000.01 (15,000.01) 1,525.36 180,000.00 0.85% 178,474.64

(15,000.01) 178,474.640.85%180,000.001,525.3615,000.010.00Expense Totals

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

27

Cop
y



Revenue Summary

Miscellaneous 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00Revenue Totals

Expense Summary

Debt Service 0.00 8,250.00 (8,250.00) 0.00 99,000.00 0.00% 99,000.00

0.00 8,250.00 (8,250.00) 0.00 99,000.00 0.00% 99,000.00Expense Totals

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

Annual
Budget

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

% of
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

30 - Capital Improvements Plan Fund 
(Debt Service)

28

Cop
y



Miscellaneous

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%0.00 0.0030-4910 Interest Income

0.000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%Miscellaneous Totals

Revenue Totals 0.00 0.00%0.000.000.000.00 0.00

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

Current
Month Actual

Annual
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

% of
Budget

YTD
Actual

Budget
Variance

Current
Month Budget

30 - Capital Improvements Plan Fund 
(Debt Service)

29

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

30 - Capital Improvements Plan Fund 
          Adminstration

8,250.00 (8,250.00) 0.00 0.00% 99,000.000.00 99,000.00Debt Service

8,250.00 (8,250.00) 0.00 0.00% 99,000.000.00 99,000.00Adminstration Totals

8,250.00 (8,250.00) 0.00 0.00% 99,000.000.00 99,000.00Expense Total

City of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:19:06 PM

30

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

30 - Capital Improvements Plan Fund (
          Adminstration

0.00 6,250.00 (6,250.00) 0.00 75,000.00 75,000.0030-10-5501 Debt Principal 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0030-10-5502 Bond Principal 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0030-10-5503 Long Term Debt Principal 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0030-10-5507 Debt Service 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0030-10-5511 Interest on Bonds 0.00%

0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 0.00 24,000.00 24,000.0030-10-5513 Interest on Debt 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0030-10-5514 Amortization of Bonds & Other 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0030-10-5515 Amortization of Premium & 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0030-10-5519 Interest Expenditures 0.00%

Adminstration Totals 0.00 8,250.00 (8,250.00) 0.00 99,000.00 0.00% 99,000.00

(8,250.00) 99,000.000.00%99,000.000.008,250.000.00Expense Totals

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

31

Cop
y



Revenue Summary

Not Categorized 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00Revenue Totals

Expense Summary

Capital Outlay 0.00 2,916.67 (2,916.67) 0.00 35,000.00 0.00% 35,000.00

0.00 2,916.67 (2,916.67) 0.00 35,000.00 0.00% 35,000.00Expense Totals

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

Annual
Budget

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

% of
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

35 - Capital Improvements Plan Fund 
(Local)

32

Cop
y



Not Categorized

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%0.00 0.0035-4230 Impact Study

0.000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%Not Categorized Totals

Revenue Totals 0.00 0.00%0.000.000.000.00 0.00

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

Current
Month Actual

Annual
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

% of
Budget

YTD
Actual

Budget
Variance

Current
Month Budget

35 - Capital Improvements Plan Fund 
(Local)

33

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

35 - Capital Improvements Plan Fund 
          Administration

2,916.67 (2,916.67) 0.00 0.00% 35,000.000.00 35,000.00Capital Outlay

2,916.67 (2,916.67) 0.00 0.00% 35,000.000.00 35,000.00Administration Totals

2,916.67 (2,916.67) 0.00 0.00% 35,000.000.00 35,000.00Expense Total

City of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:19:06 PM

34

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

35 - Capital Improvements Plan Fund (
          Administration

0.00 2,916.67 (2,916.67) 0.00 35,000.00 35,000.0035-10-5660 Contingency/Reserves 0.00%

Administration Totals 0.00 2,916.67 (2,916.67) 0.00 35,000.00 0.00% 35,000.00

(2,916.67) 35,000.000.00%35,000.000.002,916.670.00Expense Totals

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

35

Cop
y



Revenue Summary

Fines & Forfeitures 585.47 208.33 377.14 2,623.94 2,500.00 104.96% (123.94)

585.47 208.33 377.14 2,623.94 2,500.00 104.96% (123.94)Revenue Totals

Expense Summary

Materials & Supplies 119.98 0.00 119.98 119.98 0.00 0.00% (119.98)

119.98 0.00 119.98 119.98 0.00 0.00% (119.98)Expense Totals

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

Annual
Budget

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

% of
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual40 - Court Technology Fund

36

Cop
y



Fines & Forfeitures

585.47 208.33 377.14 2,623.94 104.96%2,500.00 (123.94)40-4707 Court Technology Fee

(123.94)585.47 208.33 377.14 2,623.94 2,500.00 104.96%Fines & Forfeitures Totals

Revenue Totals 377.14 104.96%2,500.002,623.94208.33585.47 (123.94)

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

Current
Month Actual

Annual
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

% of
Budget

YTD
Actual

Budget
Variance

Current
Month Budget40 - Court Technology Fund

37

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

40 - Court Technology Fund
          Municipal Court

0.00 119.98 119.98 0.00% (119.98)119.98 0.00Materials & Supplies

0.00 119.98 119.98 0.00% (119.98)119.98 0.00Municipal Court Totals

0.00 119.98 119.98 0.00% (119.98)119.98 0.00Expense Total

City of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:19:06 PM

38

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

40 - Court Technology Fund
          Municipal Court

119.98 0.00 119.98 119.98 0.00 (119.98)40-25-5332 Court Technology 0.00%

Municipal Court Totals 119.98 0.00 119.98 119.98 0.00 0.00% (119.98)

119.98 (119.98)0.00%0.00119.980.00119.98Expense Totals

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

39

Cop
y



Revenue Summary

Fines & Forfeitures 717.21 208.33 508.88 3,183.27 2,500.00 127.33% (683.27)

717.21 208.33 508.88 3,183.27 2,500.00 127.33% (683.27)Revenue Totals

Expense Summary

Materials & Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00Expense Totals

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

Annual
Budget

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

% of
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual41 - Court Security Fund

40

Cop
y



Fines & Forfeitures

717.21 208.33 508.88 3,183.27 127.33%2,500.00 (683.27)41-4708 Court Security Fee

(683.27)717.21 208.33 508.88 3,183.27 2,500.00 127.33%Fines & Forfeitures Totals

Revenue Totals 508.88 127.33%2,500.003,183.27208.33717.21 (683.27)

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

Current
Month Actual

Annual
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

% of
Budget

YTD
Actual

Budget
Variance

Current
Month Budget41 - Court Security Fund

41

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

41 - Court Security Fund
          Municipal Court

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.000.00 0.00Materials & Supplies

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.000.00 0.00Municipal Court Totals

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.000.00 0.00Expense Total

City of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:19:06 PM

42

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

41 - Court Security Fund
          Municipal Court

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0041-25-5333 Court Security 0.00%

Municipal Court Totals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

0.00 0.000.00%0.000.000.000.00Expense Totals

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

43

Cop
y



Revenue Summary

Miscellaneous 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00Revenue Totals

Expense Summary

Capital Outlay 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00Expense Totals

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

Annual
Budget

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

% of
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual50 - Vehicle Replacement Fund

44

Cop
y



Miscellaneous

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%0.00 0.0050-4000 Vehicle Replacement Revenue

0.000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%Miscellaneous Totals

Revenue Totals 0.00 0.00%0.000.000.000.00 0.00

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

Current
Month Actual

Annual
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

% of
Budget

YTD
Actual

Budget
Variance

Current
Month Budget50 - Vehicle Replacement Fund

45

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

50 - Vehicle Replacement Fund
          Administration

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.000.00 0.00Capital Outlay

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.000.00 0.00Administration Totals

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.000.00 0.00Expense Total

City of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:19:06 PM

46

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

50 - Vehicle Replacement Fund
          Administration

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0050-10-5650 Vehicles & Machinery 0.00%

Administration Totals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

0.00 0.000.00%0.000.000.000.00Expense Totals

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

47

Cop
y



Revenue Summary

Property Tax 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

Miscellaneous 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,148.13 0.00 0.00% (10,148.13)

0.00 0.00 0.00 10,148.13 0.00 0.00% (10,148.13)Revenue Totals

Expense Summary

Professional/Contract Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,381.57 0.00 0.00% (4,381.57)

Materials & Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 (22,284.14) 0.00 0.00% 22,284.14

Debt Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 (17,902.57) 0.00 0.00% 17,902.57Expense Totals

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

Annual
Budget

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

% of
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual70 - ICDA General Operating Fund

48

Cop
y



Property Tax

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%0.00 0.0070-4120 Property Tax

0.000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%Property Tax Totals

Miscellaneous

0.00 0.00 0.00 10,148.13 0.00%0.00 (10,148.13)70-4930 Miscellaneous Income

(10,148.13)0.00 0.00 0.00 10,148.13 0.00 0.00%Miscellaneous Totals

Revenue Totals 0.00 0.00%0.0010,148.130.000.00 (10,148.13)

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

Current
Month Actual

Annual
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

% of
Budget

YTD
Actual

Budget
Variance

Current
Month Budget70 - ICDA General Operating Fund

49

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

70 - ICDA General Operating Fund
          Administration

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.000.00 0.00Debt Service
0.00 0.00 (22,284.14) 0.00% 22,284.140.00 0.00Materials & Supplies
0.00 0.00 4,381.57 0.00% (4,381.57)0.00 0.00Professional/Contract Services

0.00 0.00 (17,902.57) 0.00% 17,902.570.00 0.00Administration Totals

0.00 0.00 (17,902.57) 0.00% 17,902.570.00 0.00Expense Total

City of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:19:06 PM

50

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

70 - ICDA General Operating Fund
          Administration

0.00 0.00 0.00 612.50 0.00 (612.50)70-10-5201 Legal Services 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 16.80 0.00 (16.80)70-10-5223 Travel Expense 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 47.70 0.00 (47.70)70-10-5301 Printing & Office Supplies 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 2.12 0.00 (2.12)70-10-5310 Postage Expense 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 (22,333.96) 0.00 22,333.9670-10-5330 Miscellaneous Expense 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0070-10-5700 Annual Disclosure Expenses 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 1,688.25 0.00 (1,688.25)70-10-5701 Bookkeeping Fees 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 522.50 0.00 (522.50)70-10-5702 Consulting Services 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 900.00 0.00 (900.00)70-10-5703 Arbitrage Expense 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 641.52 0.00 (641.52)70-10-5704 Delivery Expense 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0070-10-5705 Transfer to Debt Service 0.00%

Administration Totals 0.00 0.00 0.00 (17,902.57) 0.00 0.00% 17,902.57

0.00 17,902.570.00%0.00(17,902.57)0.000.00Expense Totals

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

51

Cop
y



Expense Summary

Not Categorized 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00Expense Totals

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

Annual
Budget

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

% of
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual71 - ICDA Capital Projects Fund

52

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

71 - ICDA Capital Projects Fund
          Administration

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.000.00 0.00Not Categorized

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.000.00 0.00Administration Totals

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.000.00 0.00Expense Total

City of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:19:06 PM

53

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

71 - ICDA Capital Projects Fund
          Administration

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0071-10-5706 Transfer to Operating Fund 0.00%

Administration Totals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

0.00 0.000.00%0.000.000.000.00Expense Totals

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

54

Cop
y



Revenue Summary

Miscellaneous 0.00 0.00 0.00 32,502.09 0.00 0.00% (32,502.09)

0.00 0.00 0.00 32,502.09 0.00 0.00% (32,502.09)Revenue Totals

Expense Summary

Materials & Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

Debt Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 314,237.52 0.00 0.00% (314,237.52)

Not Categorized 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 314,237.52 0.00 0.00% (314,237.52)Expense Totals

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

Annual
Budget

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

% of
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual72 - ICDA Debt Service Fund

55

Cop
y



Miscellaneous

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%0.00 0.0072-4931 Proceeds from Sale of Bonds

0.00 0.00 0.00 32,502.09 0.00%0.00 (32,502.09)72-4932 Pledged Revenue

(32,502.09)0.00 0.00 0.00 32,502.09 0.00 0.00%Miscellaneous Totals

Revenue Totals 0.00 0.00%0.0032,502.090.000.00 (32,502.09)

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

Current
Month Actual

Annual
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

% of
Budget

YTD
Actual

Budget
Variance

Current
Month Budget72 - ICDA Debt Service Fund

56

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

72 - ICDA Debt Service Fund
          Administration

0.00 0.00 314,237.52 0.00% (314,237.52)0.00 0.00Debt Service
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.000.00 0.00Materials & Supplies
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.000.00 0.00Not Categorized

0.00 0.00 314,237.52 0.00% (314,237.52)0.00 0.00Administration Totals

0.00 0.00 314,237.52 0.00% (314,237.52)0.00 0.00Expense Total

City of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

2/23/2022 12:19:06 PM

57

Cop
y



Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

Current
Month Budget

Budget
Variance

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

72 - ICDA Debt Service Fund
          Administration

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0072-10-5330 Miscellaneous Expense 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0072-10-5502 Bond Principal 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 7,500.00 0.00 (7,500.00)72-10-5510 Bond Issuance Cost 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 306,737.52 0.00 (306,737.52)72-10-5511 Bond Interest Expense 0.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0072-10-5706 Transfer to Operating Fund 0.00%

Administration Totals 0.00 0.00 0.00 314,237.52 0.00 0.00% (314,237.52)

0.00 (314,237.52)0.00%0.00314,237.520.000.00Expense Totals

2/23/2022 12:19 PMCity of  Iowa Colony
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2022

58

Cop
y



NO. LOCATION DESCRIPTION

A SIGNAGE

1 Dubuque 40 M.P.H

2 tesla dr. @Franklin street marker

3 Baster dr. @ Pursley dr. street marker

4 Dubuque pkwy @ Pursley Blvd Replace post 

5 Dubuque pkwy @ Pursley Blvd Replace stop sign 

6 Dubuque pkwy @ Pursley Blvd Replace street maker

7 Pursley Blvd @Brister Rd Replace Post 

8 Pursley Blvd @Brister Rd Replace stop sign 

9 Pursley Blvd @Brister Rd add street maker

10 Pursley Blvd @Brister Rd replace ground Sleeve 

11 Meridiana Plwy @ Obserivation Way N. Straighten post 

12 Meridiana Plwy @ Obserivation Way N. Straighten post 

13 Meridiana Plwy @ Obserivation Way N. Straighten post 

14 Meridiana Plwy @ Obserivation Way N. Straighten post 

15 Ames Blvd @ CR382 New sleeve

16 Ames Blvd @ CR382 New Post 

17 Ames Blvd @ CR382 New wedge

18 Ames Blvd @ CR382 Replace stop sign 

19 Ames Blvd @ CR382 Replace Street Maker

20 Ames Blvd @ CR382 Straighten post 

21 Pursley Blvd Replace Watch for ice on the bridge(N)

22 Pursley Blvd Replace Watch for ice on the bridge(S)

23

24

25

26
Cop

y



B. DEBRIS REMOVAL

1 Discovery Dr. Trash 

2 Davenport Trash 

3

4

C. MOWING/TREE TRIMMING

1

2

3

4

5

6

D. STREET REPAIRS

1 Cedar Rapids Potholes 

2

3

4

Cop
y



E. POWER LINES MAINTENANCE

1

2

Ditch Drainage issue

1 9201 Ruth Rd Set Culverts 

2

3

Parks

Parks Cut Grass

Parks Ant bed 

Parks trash 

Parks Basketball goal

Parks Doggie station

Miscellaneous Works 

1 City Hall romoved lights 

2 City Hall Removed Road Close signs

3 City Hall Added Cabinet handles

4

5

Cop
y



NOTES STATUS DATE COMPLETED

needed to be set upright Done 1/10/2022

needed to add it back on the post Done 1/18/2022

Done 1/26/2022

Done 1/27/2022

Done 1/27/2022

Done 1/27/2022

Done 1/27/2022

Done 1/27/2022

Done 1/27/2022

Done 1/27/2022

Done 1/27/2022

Done 1/27/2022

Done 1/27/2022

Done 1/27/2022

Done 1/27/2022

Done 1/27/2022

Done 1/27/2022

Done 1/27/2022

Done 1/27/2022

Done 1/27/2022

Between Dubque and Brister Done 1/27/2022

Between Dubque and Brister Done 1/27/2022

Cop
y



picked up a box Done 5-Jan

Picked up a bed Done 1/11/2022

Raining waiting on the water to dry up 

Cop
y



waiting for approvel Done 1/28/2022

Done 5-Jan

Done 1/5//2022

Done 1/5/2022

done 1/12/2022

Replace locks Done 1/28/2022

Done 5-Jan

Done 10-Jan

Done 1/11/2022

Cop
y



NO. LOCATION DESCRIPTION

A SIGNAGE

1 Davenport pkwy@Pursely dr sign down 

2 Iowa Colony pkwy @ Davenport pkwy (N) Leaning Sign

3 Iowa Colony pkwy @ Davenport pkwy (N) Leaning sign 

4 Iowa Colony pkwy @ Davenport pkwy (N) Leaning sign

5 Canyon Dr.@Terra st Stop Sign

6 Iowa Colony pkwy @ Davenport pkwy Stop Sign

7 Lake ct @ Spring ct sign down 

8 Discovery Dr. @Iowa Colony pkwy Leaning sign 

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
Cop

y



B. DEBRIS REMOVAL

1 Meridiana Paint in the road 

2 Meridiana Paint in the road 

3

4

C. MOWING/TREE TRIMMING

1

2

3

4

5

6

D. STREET REPAIRS

1 Iowa Colony pkwy @ Bullard rd Pot hole

2 Cedar Rapids Pot hole

3 CR 79 @ Cedar Rapids Pot hole 

4

Cop
y



E. POWER LINES MAINTENANCE

1

2

Ditch Drainage issue

1 11720 Iowa Colony Culverts added 

2

3

Parks

Park baseball fields

park baseball fields

Miscellaneous Works 

1 City Hall romoved lights 

2 City Hall Removed Road Close signs

3 City Hall Added Cabinet handles

4 City Hall 

5

Cop
y



NOTES STATUS DATE COMPLETED

Welcome to Iowa colony Done 2/1/2022

Walker ahead Done 2/1/2022

Yield to here Done 2/1/2022

Walker ahead Done 2/1/2022

Turned the worng way Done 2/1/2022

stop sign off the post Done 2/7/2022

post down Done 2/21/2022

Stop ahead Done 2/22/2022

Cop
y



Done 2/22/2022

Done 2/22/2022

Fill pot holes Done 2/7/2022

Fill pot holes Done 2/7/2022

Fill pot holes Done 2/14/2022

Cop
y



Done 2/16/2022

Change locks Done 2/11/2022

added signs to the fields Done 2/11/2022

Done 44201

Done 44206

Done 44572

Cop
y



City of Iowa Colony, Texas, Resolution No. 2022-______ 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF IOWA COLONY, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING NOTICE 

OF INTENT TO ISSUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION  

 

Recitals 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Iowa Colony, Texas, (“City”) desires to issue certificates of 
obligation in an amount not to exceed $14,000,000 for the purposes of financing (1) all or any part 
of the acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of a police station and additional City 
office space physically connected thereto; (2) professional services related to item (1); and (2) 
costs of issuance of the certificates (the “Certificates”); and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 271.049 of the Texas Local Government Code requires the 

publication of notice before the Certificates may be issued, which publication must be made once 
a week for two consecutive weeks in a newspaper of general circulation in the City, with the first 
publication date to be at least 46 days prior to the date tentatively set for passage of the ordinance 
authorizing the issuance of the Certificates; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that the Alvin Sun is a newspaper of general 

circulation in the City meeting the requirements of Subchapter C, Chapter 2051, Texas 
Government Code;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF IOWA COLONY, TEXAS: 

 

Section 1. The City Council of the City hereby finds that the facts stated in the above 
Recitals are true and correct. 

 
Section 2. The City Council authorizes and directs the City Secretary to publicize the 

attached Notice of Intent to Issue Certificates of Obligation of the City of Iowa Colony, Texas, as 
follows: 

 
a. by posting on the City’s internet website no later than April 1, 2022, 

continuously through the date of the City’s consideration of the ordinance 
authorizing the issuance of the Certificates.  
 

b. by publication in the Alvin Sun once a week for two consecutive weeks, 
with the first publication to occur no later than March, 31, 2022.  

 
Section 3. It is hereby found, determined and declared that a sufficient written notice 

of the date, hour, place and subject of this meeting of the City Council was posted at a place 
convenient to the public at the City Hall of the City for the time required by law preceding this 
meeting, as required by the Open Meetings Law, Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, and that 
this meeting has been open to the public as required by law at all times during which this 
Resolution and the subject matter thereof has been discussed, considered and formally acted upon. 

Cop
y



City Council further ratifies, approves and confirms such written notice and the contents and 
posting thereof.  

 
Section 4. This Resolution shall irrevocably take effect immediately upon its first and 

final reading and the passage and approval.  
 

 
[Signature page follows.] 

 

Cop
y



PASSED AND ADOPTED the 28th day of February, 2022.   
 

 
 

    ________________________________ 
 Mayor 

ATTEST:  
 
 
________________________________ 
City Secretary 

 
 

Cop
y



EXHIBIT A 
 

NOTICE OF INTENT 
TO ISSUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION 
OF THE CITY OF IOWA COLONY, TEXAS 

 
 

 The City Council of the City of Iowa Colony, Texas (the “City”) shall convene at 7:00 p.m. 
on May 16, 2022, at its regular meeting place in the Council Chambers, Iowa Colony City Hall, 
12003 Iowa Colony Boulevard, Iowa Colony, Texas, to consider the passage of an ordinance 
authorizing the issuance of certificates of obligation in a principal amount not to exceed 
$14,000,000 (the “Certificates”) for the purposes of financing (1) all or any part of the acquisition, 
construction, installation and equipping of a police station and additional City office space 
physically connected thereto; (2) professional services related to item (1); and (2) costs of issuance 
of the Certificates. The City proposes to provide for the payment of the Certificates from the levy 
and collection of ad valorem taxes in the City as provided by law and from a limited pledge of net 
revenues (in an amount not to exceed $500), if any, received by the City from the ownership and 
operations of the City’s park system.  
 
 The estimated combined principal and interest required to pay the Certificates on time and 
in full is $21,222,089.17. Such estimate is provided for illustrative purposes only and is based on 
an assumed interest rate of 3.55%. Market conditions affecting interest rates vary based on a 
number of factors beyond the control of the City, and the City cannot and does not guarantee a 
particular interest rate associated with the Certificates. As of the date of this notice, the aggregate 
principal amount outstanding of tax-supported debt obligations of the City is $1,175,000, and 
based on the City’s expectations, as of the date of this notice, the combined principal and interest 
required to pay all of the outstanding tax-supported debt obligations of the City on time and in full 
is $1,350,491. The Certificates may bear interest at any rate or rates, not to exceed the maximum 
interest rate authorized by law, as shall be determined within the discretion of the City Council at 
the time of issuance of the Certificates. The Certificates may mature over a period of years not to 
exceed forty (40) years from the date thereof.  
 
 This notice is given pursuant to Subchapter C of Chapter 271, Texas Local Government 
Code.  

 

Cop
y



Sierra Vista Development

Cop
y



S U M M A R Y O F C O N T EN T

PRESENTED TO:

Master-Planned Community  
Project Information: Phases I-III 

Demographics

Salaries

Master Planned Comparables

PRESENTATION  
OVERVIEW Cop

y



IOWA COLONY AND MERIDIANA PARKWAY AERIAL

1

Cop
y



OVERALL SIERRA VISTA DEVELOPMENT

2

Cop
y



3

Cop
y



4

Cop
y



Sierra Vista Living
5

Cop
y



6

Cop
y



7

Cop
y



8

Cop
y



SIERRA VISTA G
RO

CERY

*Not Actual Building

9

Cop
y



10

Cop
y



11

SIERRA
VISTA

RETAIL

Cop
y



DEMOGRAPHICS

12

Cop
y



DEMOGRAPHICS

HOME VALUES 1 MILE 3 MILES

$500,000 to $749,999 87                      6.8% 224                      5.3%                     

$400,000 to $499,999 123                   9.6% 281                    6.7%

$300,000 to $399,999 220                 17.2% 841                     20.0%

$250,000 to $299,999 145 11.3% 526                  12.5%

$200,000 to $249,999 236                 18.4% 755                     18.0%
1 Mile

3 Mile

5 Mile

70% OF HOMES WITHIN A THREE (3) MILE RADIUS ARE OVER $200,000,
WITH 50% OF THOSE HOMES BEING $300,000 OR HIGHER.

HOME PRICES ARE INCREASING AT A RATE HIGHER THAN THE 
AVERAGE PAY. A STARTER HOME IN 2021, IS $250,000 TO $350,000 
WITH AN AVERAGE MORTGAGE OF $2,000 TO $3,000.

MULTIFAMILY RENT IN PEARLAND AREA AVERAGES BETWEEN $1,100 
to $1,800 PER MONTH.

13

Cop
y



MEDIAN NEW HOME PRICE OVER FIVE YEARS

14

Cop
y



2018-2019
AVG Salary: $56,675

2019-2020
AVG Salary: $57,775

2021-2022
AVG Salary: $60,725

$62,000

$61,000

$60,000

$59,000

$58,000

$57,000

$56,000

$55,000

$54,000

2018-2019 2019-2020 2021-2022

* A TEACHER’S SALARY CAN AFFORD $1,400 OR LESS IN MONTHLY RENT/MORTGAGE

ALVIN ISD – HISTORICAL AVERAGE TEACHER SALARY 

15

Cop
y



AVERAGE PUBLIC 
SAFETY WAGES 

BY DEPARTMENT

16

HOUSTON POLICE OFFICER
AVG Salary: $58,785 - $70,847
Equals $1,200 to $1,800 per Month

BRAZORIA COUNTY PATROL DEPUTY
AVG Salary: $48,701
Equals $1,000 per Month

TEXAS STATE TROOPER
AVG Salary: $59,715
Equals $1,200 to $1,800 per Month

HOUSTON FIRE DEPARTMENT FIREFIGHTER
AVG Salary: $46,124
Equals $1,200 to $1,000 per Month

PEARLAND FIRE DEPARTMENT 
AVG Salary: $52,836
Equals $1,100 to $1,300 per Month

Cop
y



FAIRFIELD COMMUNITY AERIAL

1.  AVENUES AT CYPRESS
• 240 UNITS

• 93% OCCUPANCY

2.  FAIRFIELD RANCH

• 29 UNITS

• 98% OCCUPANCY

3.  FAIRFIELD CREEK ESTATES

• 143 UNITS

• 100% OCCUPANCY

17

Cop
y



SIENNA COMMUNITY AERIAL

1.  THE HUNTINGTON AT SIENNA RANCH

• 149 UNITS

• 100% OCCUPANCY

2.  BROADSTONE SIENNA

• 330 UNITS

• 96% OCCUPANCY

3.  THE HUNTINGTON

• 132 UNITS

• 96% OCCUPANCY

18

Cop
y



PEARLAND COMMUNITY AERIAL

1.   RESIDENCES AT PEARLAND TOWN CENTER
• 234 UNITS

• 98% OCCUPANCY

2.  COBBLESTONE

• 562 UNITS

• 98% OCCUPANCY

3.  SOUTHFORK LAKE APARTMENTS

• 328 UNITS

• 94% OCCUPANCY

19

Cop
y



PRESENTED BY

NAI PARTNERS
ALEX MAKRIS
ZACH LEGER

BUILDPRO CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
RICHARD OSIKA 
ABBEY VALDEZ

SIERRA VISTA – 383
SURI PULLEMLA

Cop
y



 

2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D .      S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6     P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3  

M E M O R A N D U M  

 

Date:  January 27, 2022 

To:  Planning and Zoning Committee 

  City Councilmembers 

From:  Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 

RE:  Sierravista- 383 – Mixed Use Project 

Staff’s Summary and Recommendations 

CC:  Mayor Michael Byrum-Bratsen, Robert Hemminger Kayleen Rosser  

 

The Commercial Developer for Sierra Vista, Sierravista – 383, in conjunction with NAI Partners Development and Weiner 
Whitestone Development is proposing a Mixed Use Development within Sierra Vista between Karsten Blvd. and SH 288. 
 
The Developer presented the plan to City Council in workshop at the December 20th, 2021 City Council Meeting. 
 
The proposed development includes portions of Tract 5B, Tract 5C and 5D as identified in the Sierra Vista/Sterling Lakes 
General Development Plan (approximately 45 acres). The permitted land uses for the Commercial tract shall be those uses 
permitted within District MU of the Zoning Ordinance. Commercial may include multi-family residential, subject to City Council 
Approval at the time multi-family is a proposed development. 

 

1) Proposed Commercial  

a) Grocery Store – Approximately 89,060 SF 

b) Strip Center  along SH 288 frontage road 

Staff recommends approval subject to the requirements of the Plan of Development. 

2) Proposed Multifamily 

i) Total acreage: 14.882 acres (two tracts) 

ii) Proposing a total of 372 units on two projects. 

 

If City Council chooses to allow for multifamily, staff recommends approval subject to the following, in addition 

to the requirements of the Sierra Vista/Sterling Lakes Plan of Development. 

(1) Multi-family use limit to 300 units per project (per the POD). 

(2) Limit to 22 units per net acres per the POD, unless parking garage is provided. (Currently proposed as 25 

units/net acres) 

(3) All surface parking lots shall be screened from view of any adjacent public streets with a min 3’ berm or 

landscape edge per POD. 

(4) All fencing shall be masonry or wrought iron. Fencing shall be subject to final approval. 

(5) Provide façade requirements to include masonry (as defined as brick, stone or stucco) on all first floor of 

building and total of 60% of the entire façade. The façade and architectural features shall be in uniform with 

the Sierra Vista Development.  

Cop
y



Cop
y



 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF BRAZORIA 

CITY OF IOWA COLONY 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED ON THIS, the 10th day of January, 2022, the City Council of the City of 

Iowa Colony, Texas, held a Worksession at 6:00 P.M. and a Public Meeting at 7:00 P.M. at Iowa 

Colony City Hall, there being present and in attendance the following members to wit: 

      

    Councilwoman Sydney Hargroder 

    Councilwoman Arnetta Murray 

    Councilwoman Marquette Greene-Young 

    Councilman Wil Kennedy 

    Councilman/Mayor Pro-Tem Chad Wilsey 

 

And Mayor Michael Byrum-Bratsen being absent, constituting a quorum at which time the 

following business was transacted. 

WORKSESSION- 6:00 P.M. 

1. Mayor Pro-Tem Chad Wilsey called the work session to order at 6:06 P.M.  

2. Discussion on MLK Day Celebration Program. Councilwoman Murray notified everyone that 

they have put a hold on the MLK Day Program due to the rise in COVID cases.  

3. Discussion on Sierra Vista West Resort Amenity and Plan of Development changes. Staff 

discussed with Council the amendments to plan of developments for Sierra Vista and Sterling 

Lakes, and Sierra Vista West.  

4. Discussion of Certificates of Obligation. Joel Cleveland, Bond Counsel discussed the schedule 

of events regarding the certificates of obligation.  

5. The work session was adjourned at 7:00 P.M.  

 

REGULAR MEETING – 7:00 P.M. 

1. Mayor Pro-Tem Wilsey called the meeting to order at 7:08 P.M. 

2. Pledge of Allegiance and Texas Pledge were recited. 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

o Hold the second public hearing to consider entering into a Strategic Partnership 

Agreement with Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 53. 

Mayor Pro-Tem Wilsey opened the public hearing at 7:09 P.M. There were no comments from 

the public. Mayor Pro-Tem Wilsey closed the public hearing at 7:40 P.M.  

Cop
y



o Hold a public hearing to consider the adoption of an impact fee.  

Mayor Pro-Tem Wilsey opened the public hearing at 7:09 P.M. Mike Christopher with Elevation 

Land Solutions presented a letter on behalf of MUD 31 regarding impact fees. A copy of the 

letter is attached the minutes. Fred Coogan expressed his concerns about the impact fees and the 

impact they will have on his mother’s property at the corner of County Road 48 and Meridiana 

Parkway. Mayor Pro-Tem Wilsey closed the public hearing at 8:00 P.M.  

o Hold a public hearing to consider annexing the following property:   

The Brazoria County Emergency Services District No. 3 public safety site, which is a 1.565-

acre tract generally located on the south side of Meridiana Parkway and approximately 327.63 

feet west of Karsten Boulevard, and which is the property in Brazoria County Appraisal District 

Property ID No. 692670 and Geographic ID No. 5550-1000-006.  

Mayor Pro-Tem Wilsey opened the public hearing at 7:17 P.M. There were no comments from 

the public. Mayor Pro-Tem Wilsey closed the public hearing at 7:42 P.M.  

4. Citizens Comments and Presentations. There were no comments from the public.  
"An opportunity for the public to address City Council on agenda items or concerns not on the agenda. To comply with the Texas 

Open Meetings Act, this period is not for question and answer.  Those wishing to speak must identify themselves and observe a 

three-minute time limit.” 

5. Mayor’s comments or reports. Mayor Byrum-Bratsen was not present.  

6. Council comments or reports. 

 Mayor Pro-Tem/Councilman Wilsey gave no report.  

 Councilman Kennedy wished everyone a Happy New Year. He stated that things are only 

going to get better by us working together. He encouraged everyone to get vaccinated and 

received their boosters. COVID is real and running rapid. He acknowledged that Sunday 

was Police Appreciation Day. He thanked the Chief and his Staff for their service and for 

protecting the community.  

 Councilwoman Greene-Young wished everyone a Happy New Year. She stated that we all 

need to do our part so we can get back to regular life. Congratulations to the Chief.  

 Councilwoman Murray stated that those that are not vaccinated need to be careful. We need 

to look out for each other. She thanked Albert Cantu. She appreciates law enforcement and 

all that they do.  

 Councilwoman Hargroder wished everyone a Happy New Year.  

 

7. Staff Reports. 

A. City Manager- wished everyone a Happy New Year. The development continues and 

is exciting. He commended staff on their dedication. Senior Accountant, Sandra 

Castro gave birth to a baby boy. He needs the councilmembers to let him know who 

plans on attending the TML elected officials conference coming up in Sugarland.  

B. City Engineer- Davenport has opened up at Iowa Colony Boulevard. They have been 

in contact with Center Point regarding the traffic signals.  

C. Police Department 

D. Building Official/Fire Marshal- Thanked all those who attended his son’s funeral. He 

thanked Councilwoman Murray for going to the cemetery. Rachel discussed the 

permits. Albert also mentioned the amount of funds being saved with the inspection 

company.  

Cop
y



E. City Secretary- The first day to file an application for a place on the ballot is January 

19th and the last day to file is February 18th by 5 P.M. The candidate packet is 

available on the city website.  

F. Senior Accountant  

G. Public Works- Striping has been done and came in under budget.  

 

8. Consideration and possible action on a Resolution and Order of Election of officers for May 7, 

2022. Councilwoman Murray made a motion to approve the Resolution and Order of Election of 

officers for May 7, 2022. Seconded by Councilwoman Greene-Young. Approved unanimously.  

 

9. Consideration and possible action on an ordinance approving a Strategic Partnership 

Agreement with Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 53. Councilwoman Hargroder 

made a motion to adopt an ordinance approving a Strategic Partnership Agreement with Brazoria 

County Municipal Utility District No. 53. Seconded by Councilwoman Murray. Approved 

unanimously.  

   

10. Consideration and possible action to approve a Municipal Service Agreement with Brazoria 

County Emergency Services District No. 3 for the Public Safety Site. Councilman Kennedy 

made a motion to approve a Municipal Service Agreement with Brazoria County Emergency 

Services District No. 3 for the Public Safety Site. Seconded by Councilwoman Greene-Young. 

Approved unanimously.  

 

11. Consideration and possible action on an ordinance annexing the Brazoria County Emergency 

Services District No. 3 Public Safety Site. Councilman Kennedy made a motion to approve an 

ordinance on first and final reading annexing the Brazoria County Emergency Services District 

No. 3 Public Safety Site. Seconded by Councilwoman Greene-Young. Approved unanimously.  

 

12. Consideration and possible action on a resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the 

Development Agreement and Plan of Development for Sierra Vista West. Councilwoman 

Hargroder made a motion to approve Amendment No. 1 to the Development Agreement and 

Plan of Development for Sierra Vista West as recommended by the Planning and Zoning 

Commission. Seconded by Councilwoman Greene-Young. Approved with four ayes and one 

noe. Councilwoman Murray voted against.  

 

13. Consideration and possible action on a resolution approving Amendment No. 2 to the 

Development Agreement and Plan of Development for Sterling Lakes/Sierra Vista. 

Councilwoman Hargroder made an amended motion to approve Amendment No. 2 to the 

Development Agreement and Plan of Development for Sterling Lakes/Sierra Vista with the town 

center and townhomes which was the original amendment provided by Land Tejas to the Staff 

and Planning and Zoning Commission. Seconded by Councilman Wilsey. Approved 

unanimously.  

 

Consent Agenda- Consideration and possible action to approve the following consent agenda 

items. Councilwoman Hargroder made a motion to approve the consent agenda items as 

presented. Seconded by Councilman Kennedy. Approved unanimously.   

 

Cop
y



A. Approval of minutes of the following meetings. 

o December 20, 2021- Regular Meeting 

 

 B.  Approval of the following plats as recommended by the Planning and Zoning 

 Commission.  

o Fakir Estates Final Plat 

o Vega Estates Final Plat 

 

 C. Approve the following Infrastructure Approvals/Acceptances.  

o Approval of Sierra Vista West Section 5 Water, Sanitary, Drainage and Paving 

Facilities into the One -Year Maintenance Period.  

 

D.  Approve the following early plat releases and return of escrow funds. 

o Sierra Vista West Section 5 - Disbursement No. 5 and Final 

 

E. Approval of the quarterly investment report.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION- 8:01 P.M.  

Executive Session in accordance with 551.071and 551.072 Texas Gov’t Code to deliberate on 

the following:  

o Purchase of real property and financial matters related thereto 

 

POST EXECUTIVE SESSION-8:31 P.M.  

14. Consideration and possible action related to the purchase of real property. No action taken.  

15. The meeting was adjourned by a unanimous vote at 8:31 P.M.  

 

 

APPROVED THIS 28th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2022. 

 

ATTEST:  

____________________________                      ______________________________ 

  Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary                               Michael Byrum-Bratsen, Mayor        

 

Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF BRAZORIA 

CITY OF IOWA COLONY 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED ON THIS, the 11th day of January, 2022, the City Council of the City of 

Iowa Colony, Texas, held a Public Meeting at 6:00 P.M. at Iowa Colony City Hall, there being 

present and in attendance the following members to wit: 

    Mayor Michael Byrum-Bratsen   

    Councilwoman Sydney Hargroder 

    Councilwoman Marquette Greene-Young 

    Councilman Wil Kennedy 

    Councilman Chad Wilsey 

 

And Councilwoman Arnetta Murray being absent, constituting a quorum at which time the 

following business was transacted. 

MEETING- 6:00 P.M. 

1. Mayor Byrum-Bratsen called the meeting to order at 6:01 P.M. 

2. Pledge of Allegiance and Texas Pledge were recited. 

3. Citizens Comments. There were no public comments.  

4. Consideration and possible action to approve an ordinance establishing and implementing 

impact fees. Councilwoman Hargroder made a motion to adopt an ordinance establishing and 

implementing impact fees on first and final reading. Seconded by Councilman Wilsey. After 

discussion and the caption of the ordinance was read aloud the vote was unanimous with five 

ayes.  

5. The meeting was adjourned at 6:38 P.M.  

APPROVED THIS 28th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2022. 

ATTEST:  

____________________________                      ______________________________ 

  Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary                               Michael Byrum-Bratsen, Mayor        

Cop
y



 
 

2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D      S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6      P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3      W W W . A D I C O - L L C . C O M  
 

 

Wednesday, January 26, 2022 
 
Brad Sweitzer 
EHRA Inc. 
10555 Westoffice Dr.  
Houston, TX 77042 
 
Re: Meridiana Section 55A Preliminary Plat 
 Letter of Recommendation to Approve 

City of Iowa Colony Project No. 515 
Adico, LLC Project No. 16007-2-229 

 
Dear Mr. Sweitzer; 
 
On behalf of the City of Iowa Colony, Adico, LLC has reviewed the second submittal of Meridiana Section 55A preliminary 
plat, received on or about January 26, 2022. The review of the plat is based on the City of Iowa Colony Subdivision Ordinance 
No. 2019-09 dated August 2002, and as amended.  
 
Based upon on our review, we have no objections to the preliminary plat as resubmitted on January 26, 2022. Please provide 
Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary, with ten (10) folded copies of the plat by no later than January 27th for consideration at the 
February 1, 2022 Planning and Zoning meeting. 
 
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call me. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
Adico, LLC 
 
 
Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 
TBPE Firm No. 16423 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cc:  Kayleen Rosser, COIC 
 Robert Hemminger, COIC 
 File: 16007-2-229 

Cop
y



APPROVED, ADICO, LLC, 01262022

Cop
y



 
 

2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D      S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6      P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3      W W W . A D I C O - L L C . C O M  
 

 

Friday, January 28, 2022 
 
Travis Harrison, P.E.  
Elevation Land Solutions 
2445 Technology Forest Blvd., Suite 200 
The Woodlands, TX 77381 
 
Re: Sierra Vista West Section 8 Final Plat 
 Letter of Recommendation to Approve- REVISED from December 1, 2021 

City of Iowa Colony Project No. 317 
Adico, LLC Project No. 16007-2-222 

 
Dear Mr. Harrison, 
 
On behalf of the City of Iowa Colony, Adico, LLC has reviewed the third submittal of Sierra Vista West Section 8 final plat 
package received on or about January 28, 2022.  
 
This plat was previously approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council in December 2021. This revised 
approval reflects new ownership for this plat. We have reviewed the revised plat and have no objections to the plat as 
resubmitted on January 28, 2022.  
 
Please provide two (2) mylars and ten (10) folded copies of the plat to Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary, by no later than Friday, 
January 28th for consideration at the February 1, 2022, Planning and Zoning meeting. 
 
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact our office. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
Adico, LLC 
 
 
Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 
TBPE Firm No. 16423 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cc:  Kayleen Rosser, COIC 
 Robert Hemminger, COIC 
 File: 16007-2-222 

Cop
y



Reserve Area Table

Reserve Letter

A

B

TOTAL

Area (Sq Ft)

2,506.71

4,185.10

6,691.81

Area (Ac)

0.0575

0.0961

0.1536

Usage

RESTRICTED TO LANDSCAPE, OPEN SPACE AND UTILITIES

RESTRICTED TO  LANDSCAPE, OPEN SPACE AND UTILITIES

3

1

4

2

2

4

4

1

2

4

4

4

1

1

3

4

2

2

2

1

4

1

3

2

1

2

2

1

4

4

3

3

1

2 2

3

1

6

7

4

5

8

9

11 12 1310 14 16 1715
19

20
18

24 252322
21

26

Res B
Res A

75

10 91112

8
62 431

14 131516

21

171614

13

15

12

11

10
76543

9
2

8
1

18 19
20

151413

11

12

7

6

5

4

8

9

10

3

AE=
DE=
PAE=
PUE=
SSE=
STM SE=
UVE=
UE=
WLE=

BL=
ROW=

BCCF=
BCDR=
BCPR=
BCOPR=
BCOPRRP=

VOL. _, PG._=
No.=

FND=
IRC=
"S"=

AERIAL EASEMENT
DRAINAGE EASEMENT
PRIVATE ACCESS EASEMENT
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT
SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT
STORM SEWER EASEMENT
UNOBSTRUCTED VISIBILITY EASEMENT
UTILITY EASEMENT
WATER LINE EASEMENT

BUILDING LINE
RIGHT-OF-WAY

BRAZORIA COUNTY CLERK'S FILE
BRAZORIA COUNTY DEED RECORDS
BRAZORIA COUNTY PLAT RECORDS
BRAZORIA COUNTY OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS
BRAZORIA COUNTY OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS
OF REAL PROPERTY

VOLUME, PAGE
NUMBER

FOUND
IRON ROD W/ CAP
SET

STREET NAME CHANGE

SHEET  1  OF  2

SIERRA
VISTA  WEST

DEVELOPMENT

PROJECT
LOCATION

VICINITY MAP
BRAZORIA COUNTY KEY MAP: 692 J & N

SCALE: 1" = 2,640'

ABBREVIATIONS

BCMUD 53

A SUBDIVISION OF 18.91 ACRES OF LAND
OUT OF THE

LAVACA NAVIGATION COMPANY SURVEY, A-329

BRAZORIA COUNTY, TEXAS

78 LOTS 2 RESERVES 4 BLOCKS

JANUARY   2022

FINAL PLAT NOTES:

1. THE PRELIMINARY PLAT WAS APPROVED BY CITY OF IOWA COLONY ON 05/17/2021

2. SIERRA VISTA WEST SEC 9 FINAL PLAT MUST BE RECORDED PRIOR TO OR SIMULTANEOUSLY WITH
THIS PLAT .

3. THIS PLAT LIES WITHIN THE BRAZORIA COUNTY M.U.D. NO. 53 BOUNDARY.

4. THE COORDINATES SHOWN HEREON ARE TEXAS SOUTH CENTRAL ZONE NO. 4204 STATE PLANE
GRID COORDINATES (NAD83) AND MAY BE BROUGHT TO SURFACE BY APPLYING THE FOLLOWING
COMBINED SCALE OF 1.00013789.

5. BOUNDARY CLOSURE CALCULATIONS, THE MINIMUM OF WHICH SHALL BE 1:15,000

6. SURVEY MONUMENTS SHALL BE SET TO THE STANDARDS OF THE TEXAS SOCIETY OF
PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYING PRACTICES ACT AND THE GENERAL RULES OF PROCEDURES AND
PRACTICES OF THE TEXAS BOARD OF PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYING AND SHALL BEAR
REFERENCE CAPS AS INDICATED.

7. ALL INTERIOR MONUMENTS SHALL BE SET AFTER CONSTRUCTION OF UTILITIES AND PAVEMENT,
AND AFTER LOTS ARE PROPERLY GRADED.  LOT CORNERS WILL BE SET 5/8" IRON RODS WITH
PLASTIC CAPS STAMPED "MANHARD PROPERTY CORNER".

8. BENCHMARK SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON TXDOT MONUMENT HV-79C, LOCATED IN THE
MEDIAN OF S.H. 288 APPROXIMATELY 125 FEET +/- SOUTH OF C.R. 56 WITH A PUBLISHED
ELEVATION OF 49.31 FEET, NAVD 88, 1991 ADJUSTMENT.

9. THIS TRACT OF LAND LIES WITHIN UNSHADED ZONE "X", AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE
500-YEAR FLOODPLAIN ACCORDING TO F.E.M.A. FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP NO. 48039C0115K,
DATED DECEMBER 30, 2020.

10. EACH LOT SHALL BE RESTRICTED TO A SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL USE.

11. SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL SHALL MEAN THE USE OF A LOT WITH ONE BUILDING FOR AND
CONTAINING NOT MORE THAN TWO SEPARATE UNITS WITH FACILITIES FOR LIVING, SLEEPING,
COOKING AND EATING THEREIN. A LOT UPON WHICH IS LOCATED A FREE-STANDING BUILDING
CONTAINING ONE DWELLING UNIT AND A DETACHED SECONDARY DWELLING UNIT OF NOT MORE
THAN 900 SQ. FT. ALSO SHALL BE CONSIDERED SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL. A BUILDING THAT
CONTAINS ONE DWELLING UNIT ON ONE LOT THAT IS CONNECTED BY A PARTY WALL TO ANOTHER
BUILDING CONTAINING ONE DWELLING UNIT ON AN ADJACENT LOT SHALL BE SINGLE FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL.

12. ALL BUILDING LINES (BL) ALONG THE RIGHT-OF-WAY ARE AS SHOWN HEREON.

13. ALL EASEMENT ARE CENTERED ON LOT LINES UNLESS SHOWN OTHERWISE.

14. ALL OFF-SITE UTILITY EASEMENTS TO BE DEDICATED BY SEPARATE INSTRUMENT PRIOR TO
RECORDATION.

15. ABSENT WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION BY THE AFFECTED UTILITIES, ALL UTILITY AND AERIAL
EASEMENTS MUST BE KEPT UNOBSTRUCTED FROM ANY NON-UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS OR
OBSTRUCTIONS BY THE PROPERTY OWNER. ANY UNAUTHORIZED IMPROVEMENTS OR
OBSTRUCTIONS MAY BE REMOVED BY ANY PUBLIC UTILITY AT THE PROPERTY OWNER'S EXPENSE.
WHILE WOODEN POSTS AND PANELED WOODEN FENCES ALONG THE PERIMETER AND BACK TO
BACK EASEMENTS AND ALONGSIDE REAR LOT LINES ARE PERMITTED, THEY TOO MAY BE REMOVED
BY THE PUBLIC UTLITIES AT THE PROPERTY OWNER'S EXPENSE SHOULD THEY BE AN OBSTRUCTION.
PUBLIC UTLITIES MAY PUT SAID WOODEN POSTS AND PANELED WOODEN FENCES BACK UP, BUT
GENERALLY WILL NOT REPLACE WITH NEW FENCING.

16. THERE ARE NO PIPELINES OR PIPELINE EASEMENTS THROUGH THIS SUBDIVISION.

17. ALL DRAINAGE EASEMENTS SHOWN HEREON SHALL BE KEPT CLEAR OF FENCES, BUILDINGS,
FOUNDATIONS, PLANTINGS AND OTHER OBSTRUCTIONS FOR THE OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE
OF DRAINAGE FACILITIES.

18. SLAB ELEVATIONS (FINISHED FLOOR) SHALL BE SET AT OR ABOVE THE MINIMUM SLAB ELEVATIONS
DEFINED.

19. ALL PROPERTY SHALL DRAIN INTO THE DRAINAGE EASEMENT ONLY THROUGH AN APPROVED
DRAINAGE STRUCTURE.

20. ALL STORM WATER DRAINAGE PIPES, CULVERTS, OR OTHER (INCLUDES DRIVEWAY CULVERTS)
WILL BE A MINIMUM 24" I.D. OR EQUIVALENT.

21. ALL STORM SEWERS WILL BE MAINTAINED BY BRAZORIA COUNTY M.U.D. NO. 53.

22. THIS SUBDIVISION EMPLOYS A DRAINAGE SYSTEM, WHICH UTILIZES STREETS AND ADJACENT
PROPERTIES WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION PLAT BOUNDARY TO STORE AND CONVEY STORM WATER.
THUS, DURING STORM EVENTS, PONDING OF WATER SHOULD BE EXPECTED TO OCCUR IN THE
SUBDIVISION.

23. NO BUILDING PERMITS WILL BE ISSUED UNTIL ALL STORM DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS, WHICH
MAY INCLUDE DETENTION, HAVE BEEN CONSTRUCTED.

24. ALL LOTS SHALL HAVE ADEQUATE WASTEWATER FACILITIES.

25. ALL WATER AND WASTEWATER FACILITIES SHALL CONFORM TO THE CITY OF IOWA COLONY'S
ENGINEERING DESIGN CRITERIA MANUAL.

26. EACH LOT SHALL PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF TWO OFF-STREET PARKING SPACES PER DWELLING
UNIT ON EACH LOT. IN THOSE INSTANCES WHERE A SECONDARY UNIT IS PROVIDED ONLY ONE
ADDITIONAL SPACE SHALL BE PROVIDED.

27. SIDEWALKS MUST BE CONSTRUCTED AS PART OF THE ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR EACH
LOT.

28. A MINIMUM OF 5 FOOT WIDE SIDEWALKS SHALL BE REQUIRED ALONG STREETS AND SHALL
CONFORM TO THE CITY OF IOWA COLONY'S ENGINEERING DESIGN CRITERIA MANUAL.

29. ALL STREETS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF IOWA COLONY'S
ENGINEERING DESIGN CRITERIA MANUAL.

30. OWNER WILL PROVIDE STREET NAME SIGNS AND TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE TEXAS MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES.

31. FINAL PLAT WILL EXPIRE TWO (2) YEARS AFTER FINAL APPROVAL BY COUNCIL, IF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE IMPROVEMENTS HAS NOT COMMENCED WITHIN THE TWO-YEAR INITIAL PERIOD OR THE
ONE-YEAR EXTENSION PERIOD GRANTED BY COUNCIL.

32. THE PLAT IS SUBJECT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF SIERRA VISTA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF IOWA COLONY AND LAND TEJAS SIERRA VISTA WEST, LLC.

33. THIS SUBDIVISION CONTAINS ONE OR MORE PERMANENT ACCESS EASEMENTS THAT HAVE NOT
BEEN DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC OR ACCEPTED BY THE CITY OF IOWA COLONY OR ANY OTHER
LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY AS PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY. THE CITY OF IOWA COLONY HAS NO
OBLIGATION, NOR DOES ANY OTHER LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY HAVE ANY OBLIGATION, TO
MAINTAIN OR IMPROVE ANY PERMANENT ACCESS EASEMENT WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION, WHICH
OBLIGATION SHALL BE THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNERS OF PROPERTY IN THIS
SUBDIVISION.

55.12 ACRES
CALLED TRACT 13

TO ASTRO SIERRA VISTA, L.P.
BCCF No. 2021084556

TBPE REGISTRATION NUMBER F-22671
2445 TECHNOLOGY FOREST BLVD, SUITE 200

THE WOODLANDS, TX 77381 832-823-2200

TBPS REGISTRATION NUMBER 10194692

APPROVED, ADICO, LLC, 01282022

Cop
y

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAE/PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
53.47 ACRE DRAINAGE EASMENT BCCF No 2020023625 BCOPR

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' UE BCCF No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' UE BCCF No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAE/PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAE/PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAE/PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAE/PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' UE BCCF No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL/WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL/SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL/WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL/WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL/WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL/WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL/WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL/ WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N=13,719,277.45 E= 3,098,525.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
N=13,719,680.49 E= 3,099,586.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N=13,720,420.10 E= 3,098,317.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
N=13,720,403.01 E= 3,098,007.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' DE

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch = 60 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
240

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIERRA VISTA WEST SEC. 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR 64

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR 56

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR 48

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR 64

AutoCAD SHX Text
288

AutoCAD SHX Text
288

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR 48

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUKE RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAYE CREEK RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR 55

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR 63

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR 63

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOLINA RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR 56

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL PLAT SIERRA VISTA WEST SEC 8 

AutoCAD SHX Text
VISTA VIEW DRIVE (60' PAE/PUE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PONDEROSA PINE DRIVE (60' PAE/PUE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMADOR PEAK DRIVE (60' PAE/PUE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMADOR PEAK DRIVE (60' PAE/PUE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOMEWOOD POINT LANE  (60' PAE/PUE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMADOR PEAK DRIVE (60' PAE/PUE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPLE GROVE DRIVE (60' PAE/PUE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOMEWOOD POINT LANE  (60' PAE/PUE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIERRA VISTA WEST SEC. 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIERRA VISTA WEST SEC. 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
(60' PAE/PUE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TALLAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SIERRA VISTA WEST SEC. 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUTTER CREEK DRIVE (60' PAE/PUE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS VALLEY DRIVE (60' PAE/PUE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIOGA VIEW DRIVE (60' PAE/PUE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
VISTA VIEW DRIVE (60' PAE/PUE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER/ DEVELOPER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASTRO SIERRA VISTA, L.P. A DELAWARE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP C/O STARWOOD LAND ADVISORS 6310 CAPITAL DRIVE, SUITE 130 LAKEWOOD RANCH, FLORIDA 34202

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER/ SURVEYOR:



“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

SHEET  2  OF  2

A SUBDIVISION OF 18.91 ACRES OF LAND
OUT OF THE

LAVACA NAVIGATION COMPANY SURVEY, A-329

BRAZORIA COUNTY, TEXAS

78 LOTS 2 RESERVES 4 BLOCKS

JANUARY   2022

” ” ” ”

” ”

”

”

”

” ” ”

” ” ”

”

TBPE REGISTRATION NUMBER F-22671
2445 TECHNOLOGY FOREST BLVD, SUITE 200

THE WOODLANDS, TX 77381 832-823-2200

TBPS REGISTRATION NUMBER 10194692

APPROVED, ADICO, LLC, 01282022

Cop
y

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF TEXAS   § § COUNTY OF BRAZORIA  § § A METES & BOUNDS description of a certain 18.91 acre (823,859 square feet) tract of land situated in the Lavaca Navigation Company Survey, Abstract No. 329, in Brazoria County, Texas, being a portion of the remainder of a called 501.92 acre tract conveyed to McAlister Opportunity Fund III, L.P. by deed recorded in Clerk's File No. 2017063409, Brazoria County Official Public Records; said 18.91 acre (823,859 square feet) tract of land being more particularly described as follows with all bearings being based on the Texas Coordinate System, South Central Zone, NAD 83; COMMENCING at a 5/8-inch iron rod found, being the southeast corner of said called 501.92 acre tract, being on the north right-of-way of County Road No. 64 (based on a width of 40-feet) recorded in Volume 2, Page 113, Brazoria County Plat Records, and Volume 3, Page 66, Brazoria County Plat Records, and being on the west right-of-way of County Road No. 48 (based on a width of 40-feet) recorded in Volume 2, Page 113, Brazoria County Plat Records, and Volume 3, Page 66, Brazoria County Plat Records; THENCE, North 37°41'56" West, 1,029.66 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set, being the easterly ELS”) set, being the easterly ) set, being the easterly northeast corner, and POINT OF BEGINNING of the herein described tract; THENCE, South 02°36'43" East, 127.34 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set, from which a 5/8-inch ELS”) set, from which a 5/8-inch ) set, from which a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found bears South 02°36'43" East, 50.00 feet; THENCE, South 34°53'17" West, 63.01 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; THENCE, South 87°24'30" West, 351.23 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; THENCE, South 02°44'32" East, 305.14 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set, from which a 5/8-inch ELS”) set, from which a 5/8-inch ) set, from which a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found bears South 02°44'32" East, 49.31 feet; THENCE, South 70°59'35" West, 174.71 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; THENCE, South 87°23'17" West, 560.00 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set, being on the east line of ELS”) set, being on the east line of ) set, being on the east line of a called 29.45 acre tract (Sierra Vista West Section 7) conveyed to Land Tejas Sierra Vista West, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, by deed recorded in Clerk File's No. 2021057930, Brazoria County Official Public Records; THENCE, along the east line of said called 29.45 acre tract, the following sixteen (16) courses and distances; 1. North 02°36'43" West, 107.00 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found, being the beginning of a curve to the right; North 02°36'43" West, 107.00 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found, being the beginning of a curve to the right; 2. Along said curve to the right in a northeasterly direction, with a radius of 25.00 feet, a central angle of 90°00'00", an Along said curve to the right in a northeasterly direction, with a radius of 25.00 feet, a central angle of 90°00'00", an arc length of 39.27 feet, and a chord bearing North 42°23'17" East, 35.36 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; 3. North 02°36'43" West, 60.00 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found, being the beginning of a curve to the right; North 02°36'43" West, 60.00 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found, being the beginning of a curve to the right; 4. Along said curve to the right in a northwesterly direction, with a radius of 25.00 feet, a central angle of 90°00'00", an Along said curve to the right in a northwesterly direction, with a radius of 25.00 feet, a central angle of 90°00'00", an arc length of 39.27 feet, and a chord bearing North 47°36'43" West, 35.36 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; 5. North 02°36'43" West, 100.00 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; North 02°36'43" West, 100.00 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; 6. South 87°23'17" West, 254.00 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; South 87°23'17" West, 254.00 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; 7. North 57°42'11" West, 27.83 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; North 57°42'11" West, 27.83 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; 8. North 34°11'34" West, 308.01 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; North 34°11'34" West, 308.01 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; 9. North 19°32'32" West, 51.21 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; North 19°32'32" West, 51.21 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; 10. North 04°05'20" West, 504.00 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; North 04°05'20" West, 504.00 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; 11. North 85°54'40" East, 100.00 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found, being the beginning of a curve to the right; North 85°54'40" East, 100.00 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found, being the beginning of a curve to the right; 12. Along said curve to the right in a southeasterly direction, with a radius of 25.00 feet, a central angle of 90°00'00", an Along said curve to the right in a southeasterly direction, with a radius of 25.00 feet, a central angle of 90°00'00", an arc length of 39.27 feet, and a chord bearing South 49°05'20" East, 35.36 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; 13. North 85°54'40" East, 60.00 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found, being the beginning of a curve to the right; North 85°54'40" East, 60.00 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found, being the beginning of a curve to the right; 14. Along said curve to the right in a northeasterly direction, with a radius of 25.00 feet, a central angle of 90°00'00", an Along said curve to the right in a northeasterly direction, with a radius of 25.00 feet, a central angle of 90°00'00", an arc length of 39.27 feet, and a chord bearing North 40°54'40" East, 35.36 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; 15. North 85°54'40" East, 35.20 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found, being the beginning of a curve to the right; North 85°54'40" East, 35.20 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found, being the beginning of a curve to the right; 16. Along said curve to the right in an easterly direction, with a radius of 420.00 feet, a central angle of 08°52'30", an arc Along said curve to the right in an easterly direction, with a radius of 420.00 feet, a central angle of 08°52'30", an arc length of 65.06 feet, and a chord bearing South 89°39'05" East, 64.99 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found, being a west corner of (proposed) Sierra Vista West Sec 9; THENCE, along the west and south lines of said (proposed) Sierra Vista West Sec 9, the following sixteen (16) courses and distances; 1. South 04°05'20" East, 423.51 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; South 04°05'20" East, 423.51 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; 2. South 24°08'02" East, 51.47 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; South 24°08'02" East, 51.47 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; 3. South 34°11'34" East, 62.05 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; South 34°11'34" East, 62.05 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; 4. North 87°23'17" East, 457.64 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; North 87°23'17" East, 457.64 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; 5. North 82°27'19" East, 55.52 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; North 82°27'19" East, 55.52 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; 6. North 76°43'26" East, 183.81 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; North 76°43'26" East, 183.81 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; 7. North 82°56'17" East, 73.26 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; North 82°56'17" East, 73.26 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; 8. North 87°24'30" East, 251.58 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; North 87°24'30" East, 251.58 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; 9. South 02°36'43" East, 99.99 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set, being the beginning of a curve South 02°36'43" East, 99.99 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set, being the beginning of a curve ELS”) set, being the beginning of a curve ) set, being the beginning of a curve to the right; 10. Along said curve to the right in a southwesterly direction, with a radius of 25.00 feet, a central angle of 90°01'12", an Along said curve to the right in a southwesterly direction, with a radius of 25.00 feet, a central angle of 90°01'12", an arc length of 39.28 feet, and a chord bearing South 42°23'53" West, 35.36 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; 11. South 87°24'30" West, 11.06 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; South 87°24'30" West, 11.06 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; 12. South 02°35'30" East, 60.00 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; South 02°35'30" East, 60.00 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; 13. North 87°24'30" East, 15.53 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set, being the beginning of a curve North 87°24'30" East, 15.53 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set, being the beginning of a curve ELS”) set, being the beginning of a curve ) set, being the beginning of a curve to the right; 14. Along said curve to the right in an easterly direction, with a radius of 25.00 feet, a central angle of 39°20'45", an arc Along said curve to the right in an easterly direction, with a radius of 25.00 feet, a central angle of 39°20'45", an arc length of 17.17 feet, and a chord bearing South 72°55'08" East, 16.83 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped ELS”) set, being the beginning of a reverse curve to the left; ) set, being the beginning of a reverse curve to the left; 15. Along said reverse curve to the left in a northeasterly direction, with a radius of 50.00 feet, a central angle of Along said reverse curve to the left in a northeasterly direction, with a radius of 50.00 feet, a central angle of 143°35'15", an arc length of 125.30 feet, and a chord bearing North 54°57'37" East, 94.99 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; 16. North 87°23'17" East, 116.53 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 18.91 acres (823,859 square feet) of land in North 87°23'17" East, 116.53 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 18.91 acres (823,859 square feet) of land in Brazoria County, Texas, filed in the offices of Elevation Land Solutions in The Woodlands, Texas.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL PLAT SIERRA VISTA WEST SEC 8 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER/ DEVELOPER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASTRO SIERRA VISTA, L.P. A DELAWARE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP C/O STARWOOD LAND ADVISORS 6310 CAPITAL DRIVE, SUITE 130 LAKEWOOD RANCH, FLORIDA 34202

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF TEXAS   § § COUNTY OF BRAZORIA  § §    We, ASTRO SIERRA VISTA, L.P., A Delaware Limited Partnership, acting by and through Melanie Ohl, Authorized Person, being an officer of ASTRO SIERRA VISTA GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, its General Partner, owners of the property subdivided in this plat (hereinafter referred to as "Owner") of the 18.91 Acre tract described in the above and foregoing map of SIERRA VISTA WEST SEC 8, do hereby make and establish said subdivision and development plan of said property according to all lines, dedications, restrictions, and notations on said maps or plat and hereby dedicate to the use of the public forever, all streets (except those streets designated as private streets, or permanent access easements), alleys, parks, water courses, drains, easements and public places shown thereon for the purposes and considerations therein expressed; and do hereby bind ourselves, our heirs, successors and assigns to warrant and forever defend the title on the land so dedicated. FURTHER, Owners have dedicated and by these presents do dedicate to the use of the public for public utility purpose forever unobstructed aerial easements. The aerial easements shall extend horizontally an additional eleven feet, six inches (11' 6”) for ten feet (10' 0”) perimeter ground easements or seven feet, six inches (7' 6”) for fourteen feet (14' 0”) perimeter ) for ten feet (10' 0”) perimeter ground easements or seven feet, six inches (7' 6”) for fourteen feet (14' 0”) perimeter ) perimeter ground easements or seven feet, six inches (7' 6”) for fourteen feet (14' 0”) perimeter ) for fourteen feet (14' 0”) perimeter ) perimeter ground easements or five feet, six inches (5' 6”) for sixteen feet (16' 0”) perimeter ground easements, from a plane sixteen ) for sixteen feet (16' 0”) perimeter ground easements, from a plane sixteen ) perimeter ground easements, from a plane sixteen feet (16' 0”) above the ground level upward, located adjacent to and adjoining said public utility easements that are designated ) above the ground level upward, located adjacent to and adjoining said public utility easements that are designated with aerial easements (U.E. and A.E.) as indicated and depicted hereon, whereby the aerial easement totals twenty one feet, six inches (21' 6”) in width. ) in width. FURTHER, Owners have dedicated and by these presents do dedicate to the use of the public for public utility purpose forever unobstructed aerial easements. The aerial easements shall extend horizontally an additional ten feet (10' 0”) for ten feet ) for ten feet (10' 0”) back-to-back ground easements, or eight feet (8' 0”) for fourteen feet (14' 0”) back-to-back ground easements or ) back-to-back ground easements, or eight feet (8' 0”) for fourteen feet (14' 0”) back-to-back ground easements or ) for fourteen feet (14' 0”) back-to-back ground easements or ) back-to-back ground easements or seven feet (7' 0”) for sixteen feet (16' 0”) back-to-back ground easements, from a plane sixteen feet (16' 0”) above ground ) for sixteen feet (16' 0”) back-to-back ground easements, from a plane sixteen feet (16' 0”) above ground ) back-to-back ground easements, from a plane sixteen feet (16' 0”) above ground ) above ground level upward, located adjacent to both sides and adjoining said public utility easements that are designated with aerial easements (U.E. and A.E.) as indicated and depicted hereon, whereby the aerial easement totals thirty feet (30' 0”) in width. ) in width. FURTHER, owners do hereby certify that we are the owners of all property immediately adjacent to the boundaries of the above and foregoing subdivision of Sierra Vista West Sec 8 where building setback lines or public utility easements are to be established outside the boundaries of the above and foregoing subdivision and do hereby make and establish all building setback lines and dedicate to the use of the public, all public utility easements shown in said adjacent acreage. FURTHER, Owners do hereby declare that all parcels of land designated as lots on this plat are originally intended for the construction of single family residential dwelling units thereon (or the placement of mobile home subdivision) and shall be restricted for same under the terms and conditions of such restrictions filed separately. FURTHER, Owners do hereby covenant and agree that all of the property within the boundaries of this plat is hereby restricted to prevent the drainage of any septic tanks into any public or private street, permanent access easement, road or alley, or any drainage ditch, either directly or indirectly. FURTHER, Owners do hereby dedicate to the public a strip of land fifteen feet (15'-0") wide on each side of the center line of any and all bayous, creeks, gullies, ravines, draws, sloughs, or other natural drainage courses located in said plat, as easements for drainage purposes, giving the City of Iowa Colony, Fort Bend County, or any other governmental agency, the right to enter upon said easement at any and all times for the purposes of construction and maintenance of drainage facilities and structures. FURTHER, Owners do hereby covenant and agree that all of the property within the boundaries of this plat and adjacent to any drainage easement, ditch, gully, creek, or natural drainage way shall hereby be restricted to keep such drainage ways and easements clear of fences, buildings, planting and other obstructions to the operation and maintenance of the drainage facility and that such abutting property shall not be permitted to drain directly into this easement except by means of an approved drainage structure. IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the ASTRO SIERRA VISTA, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership, has caused these presents to be signed by Melanie Ohl, Authorized Person, being an officer of ASTRO SIERRA VISTA GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, its General Partner, thereunto authorized this ______ day of _______________, 20__. ASTRO SIERRA VISTA, L.P., A Delaware limited partnership By: ASTRO SIERRA VISTA GP, LLC,      a Delaware limited liability company,  its General Partner By: ______________________________        Melanie Ohl        Authorized Person

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF TEXAS  § § COUNTY OF BRAZORIA § § Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Melanie Ohl, Authorized Person, being an officer of ASTRO SIERRA VISTA GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purposes and considerations therein expressed and in the capacity therein and herein stated.   GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE, this   _______ Day of _______________, 20__   _______________________________   Notary Public in and for the State of Texas   My Commission expires ________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
I, Paul R. Bretherton, am authorized (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the  Paul R. Bretherton, am authorized (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the Paul R. Bretherton, am authorized (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the  R. Bretherton, am authorized (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the R. Bretherton, am authorized (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the  Bretherton, am authorized (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the Bretherton, am authorized (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the  am authorized (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the am authorized (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the  authorized (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the authorized (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the  (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the  registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the  under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the  the laws of the State of Texas to practice the the laws of the State of Texas to practice the  laws of the State of Texas to practice the laws of the State of Texas to practice the  of the State of Texas to practice the of the State of Texas to practice the  the State of Texas to practice the the State of Texas to practice the  State of Texas to practice the State of Texas to practice the  of Texas to practice the of Texas to practice the  Texas to practice the Texas to practice the  to practice the to practice the  practice the practice the  the the profession of surveying and hereby certify that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an  of surveying and hereby certify that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an of surveying and hereby certify that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an  surveying and hereby certify that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an surveying and hereby certify that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an  and hereby certify that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an and hereby certify that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an  hereby certify that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an hereby certify that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an  certify that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an certify that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an  that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an  the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an  above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an  subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an  is true and accurate; was prepared from an is true and accurate; was prepared from an  true and accurate; was prepared from an true and accurate; was prepared from an  and accurate; was prepared from an and accurate; was prepared from an  accurate; was prepared from an accurate; was prepared from an  was prepared from an was prepared from an  prepared from an prepared from an  from an from an  an an actual survey of the property made under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary  survey of the property made under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary survey of the property made under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary  of the property made under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary of the property made under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary  the property made under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary the property made under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary  property made under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary property made under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary  made under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary made under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary  under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary  my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary  supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary  on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary  the ground; that, except as shown all boundary the ground; that, except as shown all boundary  ground; that, except as shown all boundary ground; that, except as shown all boundary  that, except as shown all boundary that, except as shown all boundary  except as shown all boundary except as shown all boundary  as shown all boundary as shown all boundary  shown all boundary shown all boundary  all boundary all boundary  boundary boundary corners, angle points, points of curvature and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other  angle points, points of curvature and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other angle points, points of curvature and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other  points, points of curvature and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other points, points of curvature and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other  points of curvature and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other points of curvature and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other  of curvature and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other of curvature and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other  curvature and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other curvature and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other  and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other  other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other  points of reference have been marked with iron (or other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other  of reference have been marked with iron (or other of reference have been marked with iron (or other  reference have been marked with iron (or other reference have been marked with iron (or other  have been marked with iron (or other have been marked with iron (or other  been marked with iron (or other been marked with iron (or other  marked with iron (or other marked with iron (or other  with iron (or other with iron (or other  iron (or other iron (or other  (or other (or other  other other objects of a permanent nature) pipes or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8)  of a permanent nature) pipes or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8) of a permanent nature) pipes or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8)  a permanent nature) pipes or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8) a permanent nature) pipes or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8)  permanent nature) pipes or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8) permanent nature) pipes or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8)  nature) pipes or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8) nature) pipes or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8)  pipes or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8) pipes or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8)  or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8) or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8)  rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8) rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8)  having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8) having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8)  an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8) an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8)  outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8) outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8)  diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8) diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8)  of not less than five eighths (5/8) of not less than five eighths (5/8)  not less than five eighths (5/8) not less than five eighths (5/8)  less than five eighths (5/8) less than five eighths (5/8)  than five eighths (5/8) than five eighths (5/8)  five eighths (5/8) five eighths (5/8)  eighths (5/8) eighths (5/8)  (5/8) (5/8) inch and a length of not less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  and a length of not less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the and a length of not less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  a length of not less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the a length of not less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  length of not less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the length of not less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  of not less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the of not less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  not less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the not less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  plat boundary corners have been tied  to the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  boundary corners have been tied  to the boundary corners have been tied  to the  corners have been tied  to the corners have been tied  to the  have been tied  to the have been tied  to the  been tied  to the been tied  to the  tied  to the tied  to the   to the  to the to the  the the Texas Coordinate System of 1983, south central zone. ______________________________  Paul R. Bretherton  Texas Registration No. 5977

AutoCAD SHX Text
This plat is hereby APPROVED by the City of Iowa Colony City Council, this ______ day of ________________, 20___ ___________________________       _____________________________ _____________________________ Michael Byrum-Brasten          Sydney Hargroder Sydney Hargroder Mayor ___________________________       _____________________________ _____________________________ Arnetta Hicks-Murray          Marquette Greene-Young Marquette Greene-Young ___________________________       _____________________________ _____________________________ Wil Kennedy            Chad Wilsey Chad Wilsey Mayor Pro-Tem

AutoCAD SHX Text
This plat is hereby APPROVED by the City of Iowa Colony City Engineer, this ______ day of ________________, 20__ ____________________________ Dinh V. Ho, P.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
This plat is hereby APPROVED by the City of Iowa Colony Planning and Zoning Commission, this ______ day of ____________________, 20___ ____________________________      _____________________________ _____________________________ David Hurst            Steven Byrum-Bratsen Steven Byrum-Bratsen Chairman ____________________________      _____________________________ _____________________________ Les Hosey             Brian Johnson  Brian Johnson  ____________________________      _____________________________ _____________________________ McLean Barnett           Melanie Hampton Melanie Hampton ____________________________ Tim Varlack

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER/ SURVEYOR:



 
 

2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D      S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6      P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3      W W W . A D I C O - L L C . C O M  
 

 

Friday, January 28, 2022 
 
Travis Harrison, P.E.  
Elevation Land Solutions 
2445 Technology Forest Blvd., Suite 200 
The Woodlands, TX 77381 
 
Re: Sierra Vista West Section 9 Final Plat 
 Letter of Recommendation to Approve- REVISED from December 1, 2021 

City of Iowa Colony Project No. 316 
Adico, LLC Project No. 16007-2-223 

 
Dear Mr. Harrison, 
 
On behalf of the City of Iowa Colony, Adico, LLC has reviewed the third submittal of Sierra Vista West Section 9 final plat 
package received on or about January 28, 2022.  
 
This plat was previously approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council in December 2021. This revised 
approval reflects new ownership for this plat. We have reviewed the revised plat and have no objections to the plat as 
resubmitted on January 28, 2022.  
 
Please provide two (2) mylars and ten (10) folded copies of the plat to Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary, by no later than Friday, 
January 28th for consideration at the February 1, 2022, Planning and Zoning meeting. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
Adico, LLC 
 
 
Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 
TBPE Firm No. 16423 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cc:  Kayleen Rosser, COIC 
 Robert Hemminger, COIC 
 File: 16007-2-223 

Cop
y



Reserve Area Table

Reserve Letter

A

Area (Sq Ft)

3,300.00

Area (Ac)

0.0758

Usage

RESTRICTED TO LANDSCAPE, OPEN SPACE AND UTILITIES

3

4

4
5

5

5

4

1

3

1

2

1

4
3

3

3

1

1

4

2

2

4

4

4

1

3

2

4

4

4

75
8

62 431

2

1

1

2

4

6

3

5

7
8

9 10 11 12 13 14 15
16

18
17

2119 20 22
19

21

20

17

18

22

6

7

5

3

1

2

4

30

29

31

32

44
43

42
41

40

34

26

33

28
27

36
35

25

24

19 18 17

23 37

38

39
20

21

22

1516 14
13

12
11

10
89

45

9

11

13

15

16

8

10

12

14

7

10

9

8
7

5

4

6

3

1

2

3

4

5

6

Re
s A

AE=
DE=
PAE=
PUE=
SSE=
STM SE=
UVE=
UE=
WLE=

BL=
ROW=

BCCF=
BCDR=
BCPR=
BCOPR=
BCOPRRP=

VOL. _, PG._=
No.=

FND=
IRC=

AERIAL EASEMENT
DRAINAGE EASEMENT
PRIVATE ACCESS EASEMENT
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT
SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT
STORM SEWER EASEMENT
UNOBSTRUCTED VISIBILITY EASEMENT
UTILITY EASEMENT
WATER LINE EASEMENT

BUILDING LINE
RIGHT-OF-WAY

BRAZORIA COUNTY CLERK'S FILE
BRAZORIA COUNTY DEED RECORDS
BRAZORIA COUNTY PLAT RECORDS
BRAZORIA COUNTY OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS
BRAZORIA COUNTY OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS
OF REAL PROPERTY

VOLUME, PAGE
NUMBER

FOUND
IRON ROD W/ CAP
5/8" IRON ROD WITH CAP TO BE SET

STREET NAME CHANGE

SHEET  1  OF  2

55.12 ACRES
CALLED TRACT 13

TO ASTRO SIERRA VISTA, L.P.
BCCF No. 2021084556

SIERRA
VISTA  WEST

DEVELOPMENT

PROJECT
LOCATION

VICINITY MAP
BRAZORIA COUNTY KEY MAP: 692 J & N

SCALE: 1" = 2,640'

ABBREVIATIONS

BCMUD 53

FINAL PLAT NOTES:

1. THE PRELIMINARY PLAT WAS APPROVED BY CITY OF IOWA COLONY ON 05/17/2021

2. THIS PLAT LIES WITHIN THE BRAZORIA COUNTY M.U.D. NO. 53 BOUNDARY.

3. THE COORDINATES SHOWN HEREON ARE TEXAS SOUTH CENTRAL ZONE NO. 4204 STATE PLANE
GRID COORDINATES (NAD83) AND MAY BE BROUGHT TO SURFACE BY APPLYING THE FOLLOWING
COMBINED SCALE OF 1.00013789.

4. BOUNDARY CLOSURE CALCULATIONS, THE MINIMUM OF WHICH SHALL BE 1:15,000

5. SURVEY MONUMENTS SHALL BE SET TO THE STANDARDS OF THE TEXAS SOCIETY OF
PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYING PRACTICES ACT AND THE GENERAL RULES OF PROCEDURES AND
PRACTICES OF THE TEXAS BOARD OF PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYING AND SHALL BEAR
REFERENCE CAPS AS INDICATED.

6. ALL INTERIOR MONUMENTS SHALL BE SET AFTER CONSTRUCTION OF UTILITIES AND PAVEMENT,
AND AFTER LOTS ARE PROPERLY GRADED.  LOT CORNERS WILL BE SET 5/8" IRON RODS WITH
PLASTIC CAPS STAMPED "MANHARD PROPERTY CORNER".

7. BENCHMARK SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON TXDOT MONUMENT HV-79C, LOCATED IN THE
MEDIAN OF S.H. 288 APPROXIMATELY 125 FEET +/- SOUTH OF C.R. 56 WITH A PUBLISHED
ELEVATION OF 49.31 FEET, NAVD 88, 1991 ADJUSTMENT.

8. THIS TRACT OF LAND LIES WITHIN UNSHADED ZONE "X", AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE
500-YEAR FLOODPLAIN ACCORDING TO F.E.M.A. FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP NO. 48039C0115K,
DATED DECEMBER 30, 2020.

9. EACH LOT SHALL BE RESTRICTED TO A SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL USE.

10. SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL SHALL MEAN THE USE OF A LOT WITH ONE BUILDING FOR AND
CONTAINING NOT MORE THAN TWO SEPARATE UNITS WITH FACILITIES FOR LIVING, SLEEPING,
COOKING AND EATING THEREIN. A LOT UPON WHICH IS LOCATED A FREE-STANDING BUILDING
CONTAINING ONE DWELLING UNIT AND A DETACHED SECONDARY DWELLING UNIT OF NOT MORE
THAN 900 SQ. FT. ALSO SHALL BE CONSIDERED SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL. A BUILDING THAT
CONTAINS ONE DWELLING UNIT ON ONE LOT THAT IS CONNECTED BY A PARTY WALL TO ANOTHER
BUILDING CONTAINING ONE DWELLING UNIT ON AN ADJACENT LOT SHALL BE SINGLE FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL.

11. ALL BUILDING LINES (BL) ALONG THE RIGHT-OF-WAY ARE AS SHOWN HEREON.

12. ONE FOOT RESERVE DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC IN FEE AS A BUFFER SEPARATION BETWEEN THE
SIDE OR ENDS OF STREETS WHERE SUCH STREETS ABUT ADJACENT PROPERTY, THE CONDITION OF
SUCH DEDICATION BEING THAT WHEN THE ADJACENT PROPERTY IS SUBDIVIDED IN A RECORDED
PLAT THE ONE FOOT RESERVE SHALL THEREUPON BECOME VESTED IN THE PUBLIC FOR STREET
RIGHT-OF-WAY PURPOSES AND THE FEE TITLE THERETO SHALL REVERT TO AND REVEST IN THE
DEDICATOR, HIS HEIRS, ASSIGNS, OR SUCCESSORS.

13. ALL EASEMENT ARE CENTERED ON LOT LINES UNLESS SHOWN OTHERWISE.

14. ALL OFF-SITE UTILITY EASEMENTS TO BE DEDICATED BY SEPARATE INSTRUMENT PRIOR TO
RECORDATION.

15. ABSENT WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION BY THE AFFECTED UTILITIES, ALL UTILITY AND AERIAL
EASEMENTS MUST BE KEPT UNOBSTRUCTED FROM ANY NON-UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS OR
OBSTRUCTIONS BY THE PROPERTY OWNER. ANY UNAUTHORIZED IMPROVEMENTS OR
OBSTRUCTIONS MAY BE REMOVED BY ANY PUBLIC UTILITY AT THE PROPERTY OWNER'S EXPENSE.
WHILE WOODEN POSTS AND PANELED WOODEN FENCES ALONG THE PERIMETER AND BACK TO
BACK EASEMENTS AND ALONGSIDE REAR LOT LINES ARE PERMITTED, THEY TOO MAY BE REMOVED
BY THE PUBLIC UTLITIES AT THE PROPERTY OWNER'S EXPENSE SHOULD THEY BE AN OBSTRUCTION.
PUBLIC UTLITIES MAY PUT SAID WOODEN POSTS AND PANELED WOODEN FENCES BACK UP, BUT
GENERALLY WILL NOT REPLACE WITH NEW FENCING.

16. THERE ARE NO PIPELINES OR PIPELINE EASEMENTS THROUGH THIS SUBDIVISION.

17. ALL DRAINAGE EASEMENTS SHOWN HEREON SHALL BE KEPT CLEAR OF FENCES, BUILDINGS,
FOUNDATIONS, PLANTINGS AND OTHER OBSTRUCTIONS FOR THE OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE
OF DRAINAGE FACILITIES.

18. SLAB ELEVATIONS (FINISHED FLOOR) SHALL BE SET AT OR ABOVE THE MINIMUM SLAB ELEVATIONS
DEFINED.

19. ALL PROPERTY SHALL DRAIN INTO THE DRAINAGE EASEMENT ONLY THROUGH AN APPROVED
DRAINAGE STRUCTURE.

20. ALL STORM WATER DRAINAGE PIPES, CULVERTS, OR OTHER (INCLUDES DRIVEWAY CULVERTS)
WILL BE A MINIMUM 24" I.D. OR EQUIVALENT.

21. ALL STORM SEWERS WILL BE MAINTAINED BY BRAZORIA COUNTY M.U.D. NO. 53.

22. THIS SUBDIVISION EMPLOYS A DRAINAGE SYSTEM, WHICH UTILIZES STREETS AND ADJACENT
PROPERTIES WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION PLAT BOUNDARY TO STORE AND CONVEY STORM WATER.
THUS, DURING STORM EVENTS, PONDING OF WATER SHOULD BE EXPECTED TO OCCUR IN THE
SUBDIVISION.

23. NO BUILDING PERMITS WILL BE ISSUED UNTIL ALL STORM DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS, WHICH
MAY INCLUDE DETENTION, HAVE BEEN CONSTRUCTED.

24. ALL LOTS SHALL HAVE ADEQUATE WASTEWATER FACILITIES.

25. ALL WATER AND WASTEWATER FACILITIES SHALL CONFORM TO THE CITY OF IOWA COLONY'S
ENGINEERING DESIGN CRITERIA MANUAL.

26. EACH LOT SHALL PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF TWO OFF-STREET PARKING SPACES PER DWELLING
UNIT ON EACH LOT. IN THOSE INSTANCES WHERE A SECONDARY UNIT IS PROVIDED ONLY ONE
ADDITIONAL SPACE SHALL BE PROVIDED.

27. SIDEWALKS MUST BE CONSTRUCTED AS PART OF THE ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR EACH
LOT.

28. A MINIMUM OF 5 FOOT WIDE SIDEWALKS SHALL BE REQUIRED ALONG STREETS AND SHALL
CONFORM TO THE CITY OF IOWA COLONY'S ENGINEERING DESIGN CRITERIA MANUAL.

29. ALL STREETS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF IOWA COLONY'S
ENGINEERING DESIGN CRITERIA MANUAL.

30. OWNER WILL PROVIDE STREET NAME SIGNS AND TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE TEXAS MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES.

31. FINAL PLAT WILL EXPIRE TWO (2) YEARS AFTER FINAL APPROVAL BY COUNCIL, IF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE IMPROVEMENTS HAS NOT COMMENCED WITHIN THE TWO-YEAR INITIAL PERIOD OR THE
ONE-YEAR EXTENSION PERIOD GRANTED BY COUNCIL.

32. THE PLAT IS SUBJECT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF SIERRA VISTA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF IOWA COLONY AND LAND TEJAS SIERRA VISTA WEST, LLC.

33. THIS SUBDIVISION CONTAINS ONE OR MORE PERMANENT ACCESS EASEMENTS THAT HAVE NOT
BEEN DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC OR ACCEPTED BY THE CITY OF IOWA COLONY OR ANY OTHER
LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY AS PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY. THE CITY OF IOWA COLONY HAS NO
OBLIGATION, NOR DOES ANY OTHER LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY HAVE ANY OBLIGATION, TO
MAINTAIN OR IMPROVE ANY PERMANENT ACCESS EASEMENT WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION, WHICH
OBLIGATION SHALL BE THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNERS OF PROPERTY IN THIS
SUBDIVISION.

A SUBDIVISION OF 25.36 ACRES OF LAND
OUT OF THE

LAVACA NAVIGATION COMPANY SURVEY, A-329

BRAZORIA COUNTY, TEXAS

99 LOTS 1 RESERVE 4 BLOCKS

JANUARY   2022

TBPE REGISTRATION NUMBER F-22671
2445 TECHNOLOGY FOREST BLVD, SUITE 200

THE WOODLANDS, TX 77381 832-823-2200

TBPS REGISTRATION NUMBER 10194692

APPROVED, ADICO, LLC, 01282022

Cop
y

AutoCAD SHX Text
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAE/PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
53.47 ACRE DRAINAGE EASMENT BCCF No 2020023625 BCOPR

AutoCAD SHX Text
53.47 ACRE DRAINAGE EASMENT BCCF No 2020023625 BCOPR

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'  BL/SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAE/PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL/WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL/WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL/SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL/WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL/WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL/WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL/WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAE/PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAE/PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAE/PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAE/PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAE/PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAE/PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL/WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL/WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL/WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL/WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BL/WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' UE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N=13,721,050.93 E= 3,098,997.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
N=13,719,859.36 E= 3,099,616.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
N=13,719,899.44 E= 3,098,403.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
N=13,720,543.01 E= 3,098,332.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' DE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1' RESERVE (SEE NOTE #12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch = 100 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR 64

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR 56

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR 48

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR 64

AutoCAD SHX Text
288

AutoCAD SHX Text
288

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR 48

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUKE RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAYE CREEK RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR 55

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR 63

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR 63

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOLINA RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR 56

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPLE GROVE DRIVE (60' PAE/PUE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOMEWOOD POINT LANE  (60' PAE/PUE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIERRA VISTA WEST SEC. 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
(60' PAE/PUE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TALLAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIERRA VISTA WEST SEC. 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS VALLEY DRIVE (60' PAE/PUE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIOGA VIEW DRIVE (60' PAE/PUE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL PLAT SIERRA VISTA WEST SEC 9 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOMEWOOD POINT LANE  (60' PAE/PUE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIOGA VIEW DRIVE (60' PAE/PUE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUNE LAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(60' PAE/PUE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PONDEROSA PINE DRIVE (60' PAE/PUE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUTTER CREEK DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(60' PAE/PUE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUTTER CREEK DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(60' PAE/PUE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER/ DEVELOPER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASTRO SIERRA VISTA, L.P. A DELAWARE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP C/O STARWOOD LAND ADVISORS 6310 CAPITAL DRIVE, SUITE 130 LAKEWOOD RANCH, FLORIDA 34202

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER/ SURVEYOR:



” ” ” ”

” ”

”

”

”

” ” ”

” ” ”

”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

SHEET  2  OF  2

A SUBDIVISION OF 25.36 ACRES OF LAND
OUT OF THE

LAVACA NAVIGATION COMPANY SURVEY, A-329

BRAZORIA COUNTY, TEXAS

99 LOTS 1 RESERVE 4 BLOCKS

JANUARY   2022

TBPE REGISTRATION NUMBER F-22671
2445 TECHNOLOGY FOREST BLVD, SUITE 200

THE WOODLANDS, TX 77381 832-823-2200

TBPS REGISTRATION NUMBER 10194692

APPROVED, ADICO, LLC, 01282022

Cop
y

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF TEXAS   § § COUNTY OF BRAZORIA  § §    We, ASTRO SIERRA VISTA, L.P., A Delaware Limited Partnership, acting by and through Melanie Ohl, Authorized Person, being an officer of ASTRO SIERRA VISTA GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, its General Partner, owners of the property subdivided in this plat (hereinafter referred to as "Owner") of the 25.36 Acre tract described in the above and foregoing map of SIERRA VISTA WEST SEC 9, do hereby make and establish said subdivision and development plan of said property according to all lines, dedications, restrictions, and notations on said maps or plat and hereby dedicate to the use of the public forever, all streets (except those streets designated as private streets, or permanent access easements), alleys, parks, water courses, drains, easements and public places shown thereon for the purposes and considerations therein expressed; and do hereby bind ourselves, our heirs, successors and assigns to warrant and forever defend the title on the land so dedicated. FURTHER, Owners have dedicated and by these presents do dedicate to the use of the public for public utility purpose forever unobstructed aerial easements. The aerial easements shall extend horizontally an additional eleven feet, six inches (11' 6”) for ten feet (10' 0”) perimeter ground easements or seven feet, six inches (7' 6”) for fourteen feet (14' 0”) perimeter ) for ten feet (10' 0”) perimeter ground easements or seven feet, six inches (7' 6”) for fourteen feet (14' 0”) perimeter ) perimeter ground easements or seven feet, six inches (7' 6”) for fourteen feet (14' 0”) perimeter ) for fourteen feet (14' 0”) perimeter ) perimeter ground easements or five feet, six inches (5' 6”) for sixteen feet (16' 0”) perimeter ground easements, from a plane sixteen ) for sixteen feet (16' 0”) perimeter ground easements, from a plane sixteen ) perimeter ground easements, from a plane sixteen feet (16' 0”) above the ground level upward, located adjacent to and adjoining said public utility easements that are designated ) above the ground level upward, located adjacent to and adjoining said public utility easements that are designated with aerial easements (U.E. and A.E.) as indicated and depicted hereon, whereby the aerial easement totals twenty one feet, six inches (21' 6”) in width. ) in width. FURTHER, Owners have dedicated and by these presents do dedicate to the use of the public for public utility purpose forever unobstructed aerial easements. The aerial easements shall extend horizontally an additional ten feet (10' 0”) for ten feet ) for ten feet (10' 0”) back-to-back ground easements, or eight feet (8' 0”) for fourteen feet (14' 0”) back-to-back ground easements or ) back-to-back ground easements, or eight feet (8' 0”) for fourteen feet (14' 0”) back-to-back ground easements or ) for fourteen feet (14' 0”) back-to-back ground easements or ) back-to-back ground easements or seven feet (7' 0”) for sixteen feet (16' 0”) back-to-back ground easements, from a plane sixteen feet (16' 0”) above ground ) for sixteen feet (16' 0”) back-to-back ground easements, from a plane sixteen feet (16' 0”) above ground ) back-to-back ground easements, from a plane sixteen feet (16' 0”) above ground ) above ground level upward, located adjacent to both sides and adjoining said public utility easements that are designated with aerial easements (U.E. and A.E.) as indicated and depicted hereon, whereby the aerial easement totals thirty feet (30' 0”) in width. ) in width. FURTHER, owners do hereby certify that we are the owners of all property immediately adjacent to the boundaries of the above and foregoing subdivision of Sierra Vista West Sec 9 where building setback lines or public utility easements are to be established outside the boundaries of the above and foregoing subdivision and do hereby make and establish all building setback lines and dedicate to the use of the public, all public utility easements shown in said adjacent acreage. FURTHER, Owners do hereby declare that all parcels of land designated as lots on this plat are originally intended for the construction of single family residential dwelling units thereon (or the placement of mobile home subdivision) and shall be restricted for same under the terms and conditions of such restrictions filed separately. FURTHER, Owners do hereby covenant and agree that all of the property within the boundaries of this plat is hereby restricted to prevent the drainage of any septic tanks into any public or private street, permanent access easement, road or alley, or any drainage ditch, either directly or indirectly. FURTHER, Owners do hereby dedicate to the public a strip of land fifteen feet (15'-0") wide on each side of the center line of any and all bayous, creeks, gullies, ravines, draws, sloughs, or other natural drainage courses located in said plat, as easements for drainage purposes, giving the City of Iowa Colony, Fort Bend County, or any other governmental agency, the right to enter upon said easement at any and all times for the purposes of construction and maintenance of drainage facilities and structures. FURTHER, Owners do hereby covenant and agree that all of the property within the boundaries of this plat and adjacent to any drainage easement, ditch, gully, creek, or natural drainage way shall hereby be restricted to keep such drainage ways and easements clear of fences, buildings, planting and other obstructions to the operation and maintenance of the drainage facility and that such abutting property shall not be permitted to drain directly into this easement except by means of an approved drainage structure. IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the ASTRO SIERRA VISTA, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership, has caused these presents to be signed by Melanie Ohl, Authorized Person, being an officer of ASTRO SIERRA VISTA GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, its General Partner, thereunto authorized this ______ day of _______________, 20__. ASTRO SIERRA VISTA, L.P., A Delaware limited partnership By: ASTRO SIERRA VISTA GP, LLC,      a Delaware limited liability company,  its General Partner By: ______________________________        Melanie Ohl        Authorized Person

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF TEXAS   § § COUNTY OF BRAZORIA  § § A METES & BOUNDS description of a certain 25.36 acre (1,104,557 square feet) tract of land situated in the Lavaca Navigation Company Survey, Abstract No. 329, in Brazoria County, Texas, being a portion of the remainder of a called 501.92 acre tract conveyed to McAlister Opportunity Fund III, L.P. by deed recorded in Clerk's File No. 2017063409, Brazoria County Official Public Records; said 25.36 acre (1,104,557 square feet) tract of land being more particularly described as follows with all bearings being based on the Texas Coordinate System, South Central Zone, NAD 83; COMMENCING at a 5/8-inch iron rod found, being the southeast corner of said called 501.92 acre tract, being on the north right-of-way of County Road No. 64 (based on a width of 40-feet) recorded in Volume 2, Page 113, Brazoria County Plat Records, and Volume 3, Page 66, Brazoria County Plat Records, and being on the west right-of-way of County Road No. 48 (based on a width of 40-feet) recorded in Volume 2, Page 113, Brazoria County Plat Records, and Volume 3, Page 66, Brazoria County Plat Records; THENCE, North 37°41'56" West, 1,029.66 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set, being the ELS”) set, being the ) set, being the northeast corner of (proposed) Sierra Vista West Sec 8, and being the POINT OF BEGINNING of the herein described tract; THENCE, along the north line of said (proposed) Sierra Vista West Sec 8, the following sixteen (16) courses and distances; 1. South 87°23'17" West, 116.53 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set, being the beginning of a South 87°23'17" West, 116.53 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set, being the beginning of a ELS”) set, being the beginning of a ) set, being the beginning of a curve to the right; 2. Along said curve to the right in a southwesterly direction, with a radius of 50.00 feet, a central angle of Along said curve to the right in a southwesterly direction, with a radius of 50.00 feet, a central angle of 143°35'15", an arc length of 125.30 feet, and a chord bearing South 54°57'37" West, 94.99 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set, being the beginning of a reverse curve to the left; ELS”) set, being the beginning of a reverse curve to the left; ) set, being the beginning of a reverse curve to the left; 3. Along said reverse curve to the left in a westerly direction, with a radius of 25.00 feet, a central angle of Along said reverse curve to the left in a westerly direction, with a radius of 25.00 feet, a central angle of 39°20'45", an arc length of 17.17 feet, and a chord bearing North 72°55'08" West, 16.83 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; 4. South 87°24'30" West, 15.53 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; South 87°24'30" West, 15.53 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; 5. North 02°35'30" West, 60.00 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; North 02°35'30" West, 60.00 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; 6. North 87°24'30" East, 11.06 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set, being the beginning of a North 87°24'30" East, 11.06 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set, being the beginning of a ELS”) set, being the beginning of a ) set, being the beginning of a curve to the left; 7. Along said curve to the left in a northeasterly direction, with a radius of 25.00 feet, a central angle of 90°01'12", Along said curve to the left in a northeasterly direction, with a radius of 25.00 feet, a central angle of 90°01'12", an arc length of 39.28 feet, and a chord bearing North 42°23'53" East, 35.36 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; 8. North 02°36'43" West, 99.99 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; North 02°36'43" West, 99.99 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; 9. South 87°24'30" West, 251.58 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; South 87°24'30" West, 251.58 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; 10. South 82°56'17" West, 73.26 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; South 82°56'17" West, 73.26 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; 11. South 76°43'26" West, 183.81 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; South 76°43'26" West, 183.81 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; 12. South 82°27'19" West, 55.52 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; South 82°27'19" West, 55.52 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; 13. South 87°23'17" West, 457.64 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; South 87°23'17" West, 457.64 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; 14. North 34°11'34" West, 62.05 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; North 34°11'34" West, 62.05 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; 15. North 24°08'02" West, 51.47 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; North 24°08'02" West, 51.47 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; 16. North 04°05'20" West, 423.51 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set, being the beginning of a North 04°05'20" West, 423.51 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set, being the beginning of a ELS”) set, being the beginning of a ) set, being the beginning of a curve to the right, and being on the east line of a called 29.45 acre tract (Sierra Vista West Section 7) conveyed to Land Tejas Sierra Vista West, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, by deed recorded in Clerk File's No. 2021057930, Brazoria County Official Public Records; THENCE, along the east line of said called 29.45 acre tract, the following ten (10) courses and distances; 1. Along said curve to the right in an easterly direction, with a radius of 420.00 feet, a central angle of 00°32'28", Along said curve to the right in an easterly direction, with a radius of 420.00 feet, a central angle of 00°32'28", an arc length of 3.97 feet, and a chord bearing South 84°56'36" East, 3.97 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; 2. North 05°19'38" East, 123.81 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; North 05°19'38" East, 123.81 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; 3. North 21°36'41" East, 54.35 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; North 21°36'41" East, 54.35 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; 4. North 32°00'19" East, 53.78 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; North 32°00'19" East, 53.78 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; 5. North 31°57'53" East, 53.76 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; North 31°57'53" East, 53.76 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; 6. North 48°31'26" East, 53.79 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; North 48°31'26" East, 53.79 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; 7. North 52°04'31" East, 53.85 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; North 52°04'31" East, 53.85 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; 8. North 61°37'48" East, 56.85 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; North 61°37'48" East, 56.85 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; 9. North 61°52'48" East, 196.65 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; North 61°52'48" East, 196.65 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; 10. North 52°12'32" East, 141.46 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; North 52°12'32" East, 141.46 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap) found; THENCE, South 32°21'18" East, 13.76 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; THENCE, North 57°38'42" East, 192.02 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; THENCE, South 32°20'18" East, 56.67 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; THENCE, South 37°36'17" East, 58.78 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; THENCE, South 42°20'49" East, 56.70 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; THENCE, South 47°26'26" East, 56.70 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; THENCE, South 51°54'55" East, 58.35 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; THENCE, South 52°32'03" East, 180.00 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; THENCE, South 50°25'51" East, 69.32 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; THENCE, South 44°24'52" East, 71.48 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; THENCE, South 38°13'29" East, 71.48 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; THENCE, South 32°02'06" East, 71.48 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; THENCE, South 25°50'44" East, 71.48 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; THENCE, South 19°39'21" East, 71.48 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; THENCE, South 13°27'59" East, 71.48 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; THENCE, South 07°16'36" East, 71.48 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; THENCE, South 02°50'18" East, 62.93 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod (with cap stamped “ELS”) set; ELS”) set; ) set; THENCE, South 02°36'43" East, 325.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 25.36 acres (1,104,557 square feet) of land in Brazoria County, Texas, filed in the offices of Elevation Land Solutions in The Woodlands, Texas.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL PLAT SIERRA VISTA WEST SEC 9 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF TEXAS  § § COUNTY OF BRAZORIA § § Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Melanie Ohl, Authorized Person, being an officer of ASTRO SIERRA VISTA GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purposes and considerations therein expressed and in the capacity therein and herein stated.   GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE, this   _______ Day of _______________, 20__   _______________________________   Notary Public in and for the State of Texas   My Commission expires ________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
I, Paul R. Bretherton, am authorized (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the  Paul R. Bretherton, am authorized (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the Paul R. Bretherton, am authorized (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the  R. Bretherton, am authorized (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the R. Bretherton, am authorized (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the  Bretherton, am authorized (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the Bretherton, am authorized (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the  am authorized (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the am authorized (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the  authorized (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the authorized (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the  (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the (or registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the  registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the registered) under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the  under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the under the laws of the State of Texas to practice the  the laws of the State of Texas to practice the the laws of the State of Texas to practice the  laws of the State of Texas to practice the laws of the State of Texas to practice the  of the State of Texas to practice the of the State of Texas to practice the  the State of Texas to practice the the State of Texas to practice the  State of Texas to practice the State of Texas to practice the  of Texas to practice the of Texas to practice the  Texas to practice the Texas to practice the  to practice the to practice the  practice the practice the  the the profession of surveying and hereby certify that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an  of surveying and hereby certify that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an of surveying and hereby certify that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an  surveying and hereby certify that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an surveying and hereby certify that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an  and hereby certify that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an and hereby certify that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an  hereby certify that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an hereby certify that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an  certify that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an certify that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an  that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an that the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an  the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an the above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an  above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an above subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an  subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an subdivision is true and accurate; was prepared from an  is true and accurate; was prepared from an is true and accurate; was prepared from an  true and accurate; was prepared from an true and accurate; was prepared from an  and accurate; was prepared from an and accurate; was prepared from an  accurate; was prepared from an accurate; was prepared from an  was prepared from an was prepared from an  prepared from an prepared from an  from an from an  an an actual survey of the property made under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary  survey of the property made under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary survey of the property made under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary  of the property made under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary of the property made under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary  the property made under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary the property made under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary  property made under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary property made under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary  made under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary made under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary  under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary under my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary  my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary my supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary  supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary supervision on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary  on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary on the ground; that, except as shown all boundary  the ground; that, except as shown all boundary the ground; that, except as shown all boundary  ground; that, except as shown all boundary ground; that, except as shown all boundary  that, except as shown all boundary that, except as shown all boundary  except as shown all boundary except as shown all boundary  as shown all boundary as shown all boundary  shown all boundary shown all boundary  all boundary all boundary  boundary boundary corners, angle points, points of curvature and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other  angle points, points of curvature and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other angle points, points of curvature and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other  points, points of curvature and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other points, points of curvature and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other  points of curvature and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other points of curvature and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other  of curvature and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other of curvature and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other  curvature and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other curvature and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other  and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other and other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other  other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other  points of reference have been marked with iron (or other points of reference have been marked with iron (or other  of reference have been marked with iron (or other of reference have been marked with iron (or other  reference have been marked with iron (or other reference have been marked with iron (or other  have been marked with iron (or other have been marked with iron (or other  been marked with iron (or other been marked with iron (or other  marked with iron (or other marked with iron (or other  with iron (or other with iron (or other  iron (or other iron (or other  (or other (or other  other other objects of a permanent nature) pipes or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8)  of a permanent nature) pipes or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8) of a permanent nature) pipes or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8)  a permanent nature) pipes or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8) a permanent nature) pipes or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8)  permanent nature) pipes or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8) permanent nature) pipes or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8)  nature) pipes or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8) nature) pipes or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8)  pipes or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8) pipes or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8)  or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8) or rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8)  rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8) rods having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8)  having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8) having an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8)  an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8) an outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8)  outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8) outside diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8)  diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8) diameter of not less than five eighths (5/8)  of not less than five eighths (5/8) of not less than five eighths (5/8)  not less than five eighths (5/8) not less than five eighths (5/8)  less than five eighths (5/8) less than five eighths (5/8)  than five eighths (5/8) than five eighths (5/8)  five eighths (5/8) five eighths (5/8)  eighths (5/8) eighths (5/8)  (5/8) (5/8) inch and a length of not less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  and a length of not less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the and a length of not less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  a length of not less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the a length of not less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  length of not less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the length of not less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  of not less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the of not less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  not less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the not less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the less than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the than three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the three (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the (3) feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the feet; and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the and that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the that the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  plat boundary corners have been tied  to the plat boundary corners have been tied  to the  boundary corners have been tied  to the boundary corners have been tied  to the  corners have been tied  to the corners have been tied  to the  have been tied  to the have been tied  to the  been tied  to the been tied  to the  tied  to the tied  to the   to the  to the to the  the the Texas Coordinate System of 1983, south central zone. ______________________________  Paul R. Bretherton  Texas Registration No. 5977

AutoCAD SHX Text
This plat is hereby APPROVED by the City of Iowa Colony City Engineer, this ______ day of ________________, 20__ ____________________________ Dinh V. Ho, P.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER/ DEVELOPER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASTRO SIERRA VISTA, L.P. A DELAWARE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP C/O STARWOOD LAND ADVISORS 6310 CAPITAL DRIVE, SUITE 130 LAKEWOOD RANCH, FLORIDA 34202

AutoCAD SHX Text
This plat is hereby APPROVED by the City of Iowa Colony City Council, this ______ day of ________________, 20___ ___________________________       _____________________________ _____________________________ Michael Byrum-Brasten          Sydney Hargroder Sydney Hargroder Mayor ___________________________       _____________________________ _____________________________ Arnetta Hicks-Murray          Marquette Greene-Young Marquette Greene-Young ___________________________       _____________________________ _____________________________ Wil Kennedy            Chad Wilsey Chad Wilsey Mayor Pro-Tem

AutoCAD SHX Text
This plat is hereby APPROVED by the City of Iowa Colony Planning and Zoning Commission, this ______ day of ____________________, 20___ ____________________________      _____________________________ _____________________________ David Hurst            Steven Byrum-Bratsen Steven Byrum-Bratsen Chairman ____________________________      _____________________________ _____________________________ Les Hosey             Brian Johnson  Brian Johnson  ____________________________      _____________________________ _____________________________ McLean Barnett           Melanie Hampton Melanie Hampton ____________________________ Tim Varlack

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER/ SURVEYOR:



 
 

2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D      S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6      P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3      W W W . A D I C O - L L C . C O M  
 

 

Thursday, January 27, 2022 
 
Stan Winter 
Jones Carter 
1575 Sawdust Road, Suite 400 
The Woodlands, TX 77380 
 
Re: Sierra Vista Section 9 Preliminary Plat 
 Letter of Recommendation to Approve 

City of Iowa Colony Project No. SPP 210714-0910 
Adico, LLC Project No. 16007-2-207 

 
Dear Mr. Winter, 
 
On behalf of the City of Iowa Colony, Adico, LLC has reviewed the second submittal of Sierra Vista Section 9 preliminary plat 
package received on or about January 25, 2022 The review of the plat is based on the City of Iowa Colony Subdivision 
Ordinance dated August 2002 and as amended.  
 
Based upon our review, we have no objections to the preliminary plat as resubmitted on January 25, 2022. Please provide 
Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary, with ten (10) folded copies of the plat by no later than January 27th for consideration at the 
February 1, 2022, Planning and Zoning meeting. 
 
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact our office. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
Adico, LLC 
 
 
Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 
TBPE Firm No. 16423 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cc:  Kayleen Rosser 
 Robert Hemminger 
 File: 16007-2-207 

Cop
y



Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439
8701 New Trails Drive, Suite 200  The Woodlands, Texas 77381

 281.363.4039

“ ”

APPROVED, ADICO, LLC, 01272022

Cop
y

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-FT PIPELINE EASEMENT (PROPOSED) TO ENTERPRISE CRUDE PIPELINE LLC BY UNRECORDED DOCUMENT EXHIBIT "A" UNDATED, REVISION C

AutoCAD SHX Text
MERIDIANA PARKWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
30-FT PIPELINE EASEMENT TO ETC NGL TRANSPORT, LLC 2012010807 BCOPR

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
67,720 Sq Ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.55 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESERVE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND TEJAS STERLING LAKES SOUTH, L.L.C. B.C.C.F. No. 2017048393  O.P.R.B.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND TEJAS STERLING LAKES SOUTH, L.L.C. B.C.C.F. No. 2017048393  O.P.R.B.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEQUOIA GROVE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(60' PVT.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIERRA VISTA SEC 6 CF NO. 2020051592 BCOPR

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESTRICTED TO COMMERCIAL USE

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' Pipeline Setback

AutoCAD SHX Text
Build to Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
Req ped connection per PD

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' Drainage Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
54

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIERRA VISTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 BLOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 RESERVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRAZORIA COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JANUARY 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
A SUBDIVISION OF 1.55 ACRES OF LAND  OUT OF THE  SECTION 51, H.T. & B.R.R. CO. SURVEY, A-288,

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY ROAD 56

AutoCAD SHX Text
288

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY ROAD 64

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY ROAD 48

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGE 1 0F 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANNER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY PLAT NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.   Slab elevations (finished floor) shall be set at or above the minimum slab elevations defined in this plat.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.  All drainage easements shown hereon shall be kept clear of fences, buildings, foundations, plantings and other

AutoCAD SHX Text
obstructions to the operation and maintenance of drainage facilities.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.  All property shall drain into the drainage easement only through an approved drainage structure.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.  The property subdivided in the foregoing plat lies within Brazoria County Drainage District #5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.  This subdivision employs a drainage system, which utilizes streets and adjacent properties to store and convey

AutoCAD SHX Text
storm water. Thus, during storm events, ponding of water should be expected to occur in the subdivision.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.  Other than shown hereon, there are no pipeline easements, or pipelines within the boundaries of this plat.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.  All storm water drainage pipes, culverts, or other (includes driveway culverts) will be a minimum 24" I.D. or

AutoCAD SHX Text
equal.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.  No Building Permits will be issued until all storm drainage improvements, which may include detention, have

AutoCAD SHX Text
been constructed.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.  The Final Plat will expire one (1) year after the final approval by the City Council if construction of the

AutoCAD SHX Text
improvements has not commenced within the one (1) year period, or the one (1) year extension period

AutoCAD SHX Text
granted by the City Council.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10. Subdivision is located in Zone "X" with no base flood base elevation required. This information is based on

AutoCAD SHX Text
Brazoria County FIRM Community Map 485458, Panel 115H, dated June 5, 1989.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11. All bearings based on the Texas State Plane Coordinate System, South Central Zone.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12. All coordinates shown hereon are surface and may be converted to the Texas State Plane Coordinate System,

AutoCAD SHX Text
South Central Zone, NAD 83 Grid Coordinates by applying the following scale factor: 0.999857950.

AutoCAD SHX Text
13. Monuments set as exterior boundary markers will be set with a minimum of five eights (5/8) inch iron rod or three    quarters (3/4) inch iron pipe at least thirty six (36) inches long, encased in concrete for a minimum of eighteen     (18) inches below the surface of the ground.

AutoCAD SHX Text
14. All permanent reference monuments (“PRM”) will be set at all boundary line angle points, block corners, angle points,  PRM”) will be set at all boundary line angle points, block corners, angle points,  ) will be set at all boundary line angle points, block corners, angle points,     points of curvature, and at intervals not to exceed one thousand (1,000) feet. Permanent reference monuments shall     conform to the Texas professional land surveying practices act and the general rules of procedures and practices.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15. All monuments will be set to the standard of the Texas society of professional land surveying practices act and the     general rules of procedures and practices of the Texas board of professional land surveying and shall bear reference     caps as indicated.

AutoCAD SHX Text
16. Interior lot corner monuments will be set with a minimum of five eights (5/8) inch iron rod at least thirty six (36)     inches in length.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17. All streets shall be constructed in accordance with the city's design criteria.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18. Street right-of-way dedicated for perimeter streets of at least sixty (60) feet in width or a minimum of one half     (1/2) of the total required right-of-way, whichever is greater.

AutoCAD SHX Text
19. All water and wastewater facilities shall conform to the city's design criteria.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20. A minimum of five (5) foot wide sidewalks shall be required along streets and shall conform to the citys design criteria.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAHARD CONSULTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE WOODLANDS, TX 77380

AutoCAD SHX Text
2445 TECHNOLOGY FOREST BLVD STE 200

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARKS: SOURCE BENCHMARK: Elevations shown hereon are based on TXDOT Monument HV-79C located in the mdedian of S.H. 288 approximately 125 feet +/- south of C.R. 56 with a published elevation of 49.31 feet, NAVD 99, 1991 adjustment.  TEMPORARY BENCHMARK: TBM "B" being set 100-D nail in a power pole located east of the entrance to sterling lakes subdivision.  Elevation = 57.63 feet, NAVD 88, 1991 adjustment.

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.	This property is subject to the Development Agreement and Plan of Development by the City of Iowa Colony, Texas This property is subject to the Development Agreement and Plan of Development by the City of Iowa Colony, Texas and Land Tejas Sterling Lakes South, LLC and MacAllister for Sierra Vista dated February 15, 2016.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND TEJAS STERLING LAKES SOUTH, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSTON, TX 77063

AutoCAD SHX Text
2450 FONDREN RD. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 40'



 
 

2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D      S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6      P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3      W W W . A D I C O - L L C . C O M  
 

 

Tuesday, January 25, 2022 
 
Abrahim Nimroozi 
West Belt Surveying, Inc. 
21020 Park Row Dr. 
Katy, TX 77449 
 
Re: AISD Nichols-Mock Elementary Final Plat 
 Letter of Recommendation to Approve with Conditions 

City of Iowa Colony Project No. 568 
Adico, LLC Project No. 16007-2-230 

 
Dear Mr. Nimroozi; 
 
On behalf of the City of Iowa Colony, Adico, LLC has reviewed the second submittal for AISD Nichols-Mock Elementary final 
plat, received on or about January 25, 2022. The review of the plat is based on the City of Iowa Colony Subdivision Ordinance 
No. 2019-09 dated August 2002, and as amended.  
 
Based on our review, we have no objections to the final plat as resubmitted. Final plat approval is contingent on the applicant 
being approved for a variance regarding the Build to Line. 
 
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call me. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
Adico, LLC 
 
 
Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 
TBPE Firm No. 16423 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cc:  Kayleen Rosser, COIC 
 Robert Hemminger, COIC 
 File: 16007-2-230 

Cop
y



APPROVED, ADICO, LLC, 01252022

Cop
y



APPROVED, ADICO, LLC, 01252022

Cop
y



 
 

 

 

     IOWA COLONY PLANNING COMMISSION 

  MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 1, 2022 

 

 

  Members present: David Hurst, Tim Varlack, McLean Barnett, Steven Byrum-Bratsen, Les Hosey, and 

Brian Johnson 

 

  Members absent: Melanie Hampton  

   

  Others present: Dinh Ho and Robert Hemminger 

 

WORKSESSION- 6:00 P.M. 

1. Chairman Hurst called the worksession to order at 6:00 P.M.  

2. Discussion of proposed Sierra Vista mixed use development. Alex Makris with NAI gave a 

presentation on the mixed-use parcels in the Sierra Vista development. Planning and Zoning members 

asked questions and stated their concerns.  

3. Chairman Hurst adjourned the worksession at 7:03 P.M.  

 

MEETING- 7:00 P.M. 

1. Chairman Hurst called the meeting to order at 7:03 P.M.  

2. Administer the Oath of Office to newly appointed members. Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary 

administered the Oath of Office to Brian Johnson.  

3. Citizens Comments. There were no comments from the public.  

4. Consider approval of the following Planning and Zoning Commission meeting minutes 

 January 4, 2022 

Steven Byrum-Bratsen made a motion to approve the meeting minutes of January 4, 2022. Seconded by 

Tim Varlack. Approved unanimously with six ayes.  

5. Consideration and possible action for the Alvin ISD Nichols-Mock Elementary School Variance to the 

Unified Development Code. Les Hosey made a motion to recommend approval to City Council to 

approve the variance for the build to line per staff’s recommendation. Seconded by Steven Byrum-

Bratsen. Approved unanimously.  

6. Consideration and possible action for the Alvin ISD Nichols-Mock Elementary School Final Plat. 

Steven Byrum-Bratsen made a motion to approve the Alvin ISD Nichols-Mock Elementary School Final 

Plat. Seconded by Les Hosey. Approved unanimously.  

 

 

12003 Iowa Colony Blvd. 

Iowa Colony Tx. 77583 

Phone: 281-369-2471 

Fax: 281-369-0005 

www.iowacolonytx.gov 

 
 

 

 

 

Cop
y



7. Consideration and possible action for the Meridiana Section 55A Preliminary Plat. Steven Byrum-

Bratsen made a motion to approve the Meridiana Section 55A Preliminary Plat. Seconded by McLean 

Barnett. Approved unanimously.  

8. Consideration and possible action for the Sierra Vista Section 9 Preliminary Plat. Steven Byrum-

Bratsen moved to approve Sierra Vista Section 9 Preliminary Plat. Seconded by Tim Varlack. Approved 

unanimously.  

9. Consideration and possible action for a revision to previously approved Sierra Vista West Section 8 

Final Plat. Tim Varlack moved to approve the revision to the previously approved Sierra Vista West 

Section 8 Final Plat. Seconded by Steven Byrum-Bratsen. Approved unanimously.  

10. Consideration and possible action for a revision to previously approved Sierra Vista West Section 9 

Final Plat. Steven Byrum-Bratsen made a motion to approve the revision to the previously approved 

Sierra Vista West Section 9 Final Plat. Seconded by Les Hosey. Approved unanimously.  

11. Consideration and possible action to provide a recommendation to city council for proposed Sierra 

Vista mixed use development. Chairman Hurst made a motion to make a recommendation to City Council 

for multi family in the Sierra Vista mixed use development. Seconded by Tim Varlack. Motion failed 

with four (Tim Varlack, McLean Barnett, Steven Byrum-Bratsen, and Les Hosey) voting against. David 

Hurst and Brian Johnson voted in favor of the motion.  

12. The meeting was adjourned at 7:26 P.M.  

 

APPROVED THIS 1st DAY OF MARCH, 2022. 

 

 

ATTEST:  

 ______________________________                    ________________________________                                                    

Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary               David Hurst, Chairman 

 
Cop

y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



1  

RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF IOWA COLONY, TEXAS, 

APPROVING CERTAIN OPIOID SETTLEMENT(S) AND THE TEXAS TERM SHEET; 

AND CONTAINING RELATED PROVISIONS. 
 

WHEREAS, on May 13, 2020, the State of Texas, through the Office of the Attorney General, and a 

negotiation group for Texas political subdivisions entered into an Agreement entitled Texas Opioid 

Abatement Fund Council and Settlement Allocation Term Sheet (hereafter, the “Texas Term   Sheet,”) 

approving the allocation of any and all opioid settlement funds within the State of Texas;  

WHEREAS, Special Counsel and the State of Texas recommended that the Iowa Colony City 

Council support the adoption and approval the Texas Term Sheet in its entirety;  

WHEREAS, the City of Iowa Colony has already adopted and approved the Texas Term Sheet by 

Resolution No. 2021-24, passed and approved on November 15, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council now desires to approve an additional settlement agreement in the 

opioid litigation; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

IOWA COLONY, TEXAS: 

1. The Iowa Colony City Council reaffirms the adoption and approval of the Texas Term 

Sheet in its entirety.  

 

2. The Iowa Colony City Council now also approves the opioid settlement agreement 

with Endo/Par approved by the Office of the Attorney General of Texas. The City 

Council authorizes and directs the City Manager and City Secretary to execute the 

documents necessary to participate in that settlement, with the approval of the City 

Attorney. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED ON FEBRUARY 28, 2022. 

 

       CITY OF IOWA COLONY, TEXAS 

 

       By: ________________________________ 

        MICHAEL BYRUM-BRATSEN,  

MAYOR 

Cop
y



2  

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

KAYLEEN ROSSER,  

CITY SECRETARY 

Cop
y



 

 

1 
104777399v1 

RESOLUTION NO.  

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN ENGAGEMENT AGREEMENT FOR DISCLOSURE 

COUNSEL AND OTHER MATTERS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF BRAZORIA § 

CITY OF IOWA COLONY, TEXAS § 

WHEREAS, the City of Iowa Colony, Texas (the “City”) wishes to issue 

certificates of obligation and may issue bonds or other obligations in the future (collectively, the 

“Obligations”) in order to finance infrastructure to serve the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City requires legal counsel which specializes in public finance and 

is well versed in federal securities law to provide disclosure counsel legal services in connection 

with its Obligations; and 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to engage Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP as 

disclosure counsel under a contingent fee contract which requires payment of a fee to such counsel 

only out of the proceeds of such bonds; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2254.1036, Texas Government Code, the City 

provided written notice to the public of the pendency of such contract, a copy of which is attached 

hereto as Exhibit A and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF IOWA COLONY, TEXAS THAT: 

1. The recitals made in the Public Notice attached hereto as Exhibit A are hereby found to 

be true and are adopted as the findings of the City Council.  

 

2. The City Council hereby further finds and declares: (i) there is a substantial need for the 

legal services to be provided by Norton Rose Fulbright US, LLP; (ii) the legal services cannot be 

adequately performed by the attorneys and supporting personnel of the City; and (iii) the legal 

services cannot reasonably be obtained from attorneys in private practice under a contract 

providing only for the payment of hourly fees, without regard to the outcome of the matter, 

because of the nature of the matter for which the services will be obtained and/or because the 

City does not have funds to pay the estimated amounts required under a contract providing only 

for the payment of hourly fees. 

 

3. Based on the foregoing, the City Council hereby approves entering into an engagement 

letter with Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP in substantially the form presented and authorizes its 

execution.   

 

4. It is officially found, determined and declared that the meeting at which this Resolution 

was adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject matter of 

Cop
y



 

 

2 
104777399v1 

this meeting and the notice required by Section 2254.1036, Texas Government Code, was given, 

all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. 

5. This resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it is so 

resolved. 

 

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED on this the 28th day of February, 2022. 

 

    CITY OF IOWA COLONY, TEXAS   

 

 

 

 

    __________________________________________ 

    Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

   City Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 Cop
y



 

A-1 
745274877.20 

Exhibit A 

TEXAS SUBDIVISION AND SPECIAL DISTRICT  
ELECTION AND RELEASE FORM 

This Election and Release Form for Texas Participating Subdivisions1 resolves opioid-

related Claims against Endo/Par under the terms and conditions set forth in the Endo/Par Texas 

State-Wide Opioid Settlement Agreement between Endo/Par, the State of Texas, and the Counties 

of Dallas, Bexar, Harris and Tarrant (the “Agreement”), the provisions of which are here 

incorporated by reference in their entirety. Upon executing this Election and Release Form, a 

Participating Subdivision agrees that, in exchange for the consideration described in the 

Agreement, the Participating Subdivision is bound by all the terms and conditions of the 

Agreement, including but not limited to the Release found in Section VII of the Agreement and 

the provisions concerning participation by Subdivisions or Special Districts in Section VIII, and 

the Participating Subdivision and its signatories expressly represent and warrant on behalf of 

themselves that they have, or will have obtained on or before the Effective Date or on or before 

the execution of this Election and Release Form if executed after the Effective Date, the authority 

to settle and release, to the maximum extent of the Subdivision’s and Special District’s power, all 

Released Claims related to Covered Conduct. If this Election and Release Form is executed on or 

before the Initial Participation Date, the Participating Subdivision shall dismiss Endo/Par and all 

other Released Entities with prejudice from all pending cases in which the Participating 

Subdivision has asserted Covered Claims against Endo/Par or a Released Entity no later than the 

Initial Participation Date. If this Election and Release Form is executed after the Initial 

Participation Date, the Participating Subdivision shall dismiss Endo/Par and all other Released 

                                                 
1 The Agreement defines a “Participating Subdivision” as a Subdivision or Special District that signs this Election 
and Release Form and meets the requirements for becoming a Participating Subdivision under subsection VIII.A. of 
the Agreement. 

Cop
y



A-2
745274877.20 

Entities with prejudice from all pending cases in which the Participating Subdivision has asserted 

Covered Claims against Endo/Par or a Released Entity concurrently with the execution of this 

form. By executing this Election and Release Form, the Participating Subdivision submits to the 

jurisdiction of the Honorable Robert Schaffer, In Re: Texas Opioid Litigation, MDL No. 18-0358, 

Master File No. 2018-63587, in the 152nd Judicial District Court, Harris County, Texas. 

Dated: _________________ 

 Texas Subdivision Name: ___________________ 

By: __________________________________ 
[NAME] 
[TITLE] 
[ADDRESS] 
[TELEPHONE] 
[EMAIL ADDRESS] 

Cop
y



 
 

 
2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D      S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6      P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3      W W W . A D I C O - L L C . C O M  

 
 

Thursday, February 17, 2022 

 
Mayor Michael Byrum-Bratsen 
City Council 
City of Iowa Colony  
12003 Iowa Colony Blvd. 
Iowa Colony, TX 77553 
 
Re: Meridiana Section 80A- Storm Water Facilities and Paving 
 Recommendation for Final Acceptance of Facilities 

City of Iowa Colony Project No. CSW 180314-0221 
Adico, LLC Project No. 16007-4-135 

  
Dear Mayor Bratsen and City Council; 
 
On behalf of the City of Iowa Colony, Adico, LLC has completed its final inspection of the Meridiana Section 80A Storm Water 
Facilities and Paving. City Council approved this project into the One Year Maintenance Period on or about September 17, 
2018. 
 
The anniversary inspection was completed on October 4, 2021, with all outstanding punch list items completed February 1, 
2022. Therefore, Adico, LLC recommends final acceptance of facilities. The effective date shall be February 28, 2022, if 
approved by City Council. 
 
In compliance with the City of Iowa Colony Public Works and Engineering Subdivision Acceptance Checklist, please find 
included in the one-year maintenance acceptance package the following items:  
  

1. Engineer of Record Certification Letter 
2. Maintenance Bond 
3. As-Builts (cover only) 

 
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call our office. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
Adico, LLC 
 
 
Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 
TBPE Firm No. 16423 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cc:  Kayleen Rosser 
 Robert Hemminger 
 File: 16007-4-135 

Cop
y



Cop
y



C:\Users\dpavini\Documents\Doc's & PDF's\2016 doc's & pdf's\Final Inspection Report Sample - Iowa Colony (II).doc 

     
EHRA PROJECT NO.: 081-011-80 

 

    DATE:  __2-1-22_______________ 

FINAL INSPECTION REPORT 
 

  EHRA – ONE YEAR MAINTENANCE         X   EHRA – CITY OF IOWA COLONY                                    
 

  HARRIS COUNTY PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE DEPARTMENT         EHRA – CITY OF MANVEL 
  

  TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY         BRAZORIA COUNTY DRAINAGE DISTRICT 5 
 
 

PROJECT NAME:  _MERIDIANA, SECTION 80_________1 YEAR RE-INSPECTION__________________________    
 

ATTENDEES NAME COMPANY PHONE NO. 

Dave Pavini EHRA 832-580-9996 

Israel Wong Adico/COIC 832-741-0058 

Celso Garcia Principal 832-600-2150 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 

NO. DEFICIENCIES 

**** All deficiencies corrected to satisfaction. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



 
 

 
2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D      S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6      P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3      W W W . A D I C O - L L C . C O M  

 
 

Thursday, February 17, 2022 

 
Mayor Michael Byrum-Bratsen 
City Council 
City of Iowa Colony  
12003 Iowa Colony Blvd. 
Iowa Colony, TX 77553 
 
Re: Meridiana Section 80A- Water Distribution and Wastewater Collection 
 Recommendation for Final Approval of Facilities 

City of Iowa Colony Project No. CSW 180314-0221 
Adico, LLC Project No. 16007-4-135 

  
Dear Mayor Bratsen and City Council; 
 
On behalf of the City of Iowa Colony, Adico, LLC has completed its final inspection of the Meridiana Section 80A Water 
Distribution and Wastewater Collection. City Council approved this project into the One Year Maintenance Period on or 
about September 17, 2018. 
 
The anniversary inspection was completed on October 4, 2021, with all outstanding punch list items completed February 1, 
2022. Therefore, Adico, LLC recommends final approval of facilities. The effective date shall be February 28, 2022, if approved 
by City Council. 
 
In compliance with the City of Iowa Colony Public Works and Engineering Subdivision Acceptance Checklist, please find 
included in the one-year maintenance approval package the following items:  
  

1. Engineer of Record Certification Letter 
2. Maintenance Bond 
3. As-Builts (cover only) 

 
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call our office. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
Adico, LLC 
 
 
Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 
TBPE Firm No. 16423 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cc:  Kayleen Rosser 
 Robert Hemminger 
 File: 16007-4-135 

Cop
y



Cop
y



C:\Users\dpavini\Documents\Doc's & PDF's\2016 doc's & pdf's\Final Inspection Report Sample - Iowa Colony (II).doc 

     
EHRA PROJECT NO.: 081-011-80 

 

    DATE:  __2-1-22_______________ 

FINAL INSPECTION REPORT 
 

  EHRA – ONE YEAR MAINTENANCE         X   EHRA – CITY OF IOWA COLONY                                    
 

  HARRIS COUNTY PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE DEPARTMENT         EHRA – CITY OF MANVEL 
  

  TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY         BRAZORIA COUNTY DRAINAGE DISTRICT 5 
 
 

PROJECT NAME:  _MERIDIANA, SECTION 80_________1 YEAR RE-INSPECTION__________________________    
 

ATTENDEES NAME COMPANY PHONE NO. 

Dave Pavini EHRA 832-580-9996 

Israel Wong Adico/COIC 832-741-0058 

Celso Garcia Principal 832-600-2150 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 

NO. DEFICIENCIES 

**** All deficiencies corrected to satisfaction. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



 
 

 
2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D      S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6      P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3      W W W . A D I C O - L L C . C O M  

 
 

Thursday, February 17, 2022 

 
Mayor Michael Byrum-Bratsen 
City Council 
City of Iowa Colony  
12003 Iowa Colony Blvd. 
Iowa Colony, TX 77553 
 
Re: Meridiana Section 80B- Storm Water Facilities and Paving 
 Recommendation for Final Acceptance of Facilities 

City of Iowa Colony Project No. CSW 180314-0221 
Adico, LLC Project No. 16007-4-135 

  
Dear Mayor Bratsen and City Council; 
 
On behalf of the City of Iowa Colony, Adico, LLC has completed its final inspection of the Meridiana Section 80B Storm Water 
Facilities and Paving. City Council approved this project into the One Year Maintenance Period on or about December 16, 
2019. 
 
The anniversary inspection was completed on October 4, 2021, with all outstanding punch list items completed February 1, 
2022. Therefore, Adico, LLC recommends final acceptance of facilities. The effective date shall be February 28, 2022, if 
approved by City Council. 
 
In compliance with the City of Iowa Colony Public Works and Engineering Subdivision Acceptance Checklist, please find 
included in the one-year maintenance acceptance package the following items:  
  

1. Engineer of Record Certification Letter 
2. Maintenance Bond 
3. As-Builts (cover only) 

 
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call our office. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
Adico, LLC 
 
 
Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 
TBPE Firm No. 16423 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cc:  Kayleen Rosser 
 Robert Hemminger 
 File: 16007-4-135 

Cop
y



Cop
y



C:\Users\dpavini\Documents\Doc's & PDF's\2016 doc's & pdf's\Final Inspection Report Sample - Iowa Colony (II).doc 

     
EHRA PROJECT NO.: 081-011-80 

 

    DATE:  __2-1-22_______________ 

FINAL INSPECTION REPORT 
 

  EHRA – ONE YEAR MAINTENANCE         X   EHRA – CITY OF IOWA COLONY                                    
 

  HARRIS COUNTY PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE DEPARTMENT         EHRA – CITY OF MANVEL 
  

  TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY         BRAZORIA COUNTY DRAINAGE DISTRICT 5 
 
 

PROJECT NAME:  _MERIDIANA, SECTION 80_________1 YEAR RE-INSPECTION__________________________    
 

ATTENDEES NAME COMPANY PHONE NO. 

Dave Pavini EHRA 832-580-9996 

Israel Wong Adico/COIC 832-741-0058 

Celso Garcia Principal 832-600-2150 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 

NO. DEFICIENCIES 

**** All deficiencies corrected to satisfaction. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



 
 

 
2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D      S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6      P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3      W W W . A D I C O - L L C . C O M  

 
 

Thursday, February 17, 2022 

 
Mayor Michael Byrum-Bratsen 
City Council 
City of Iowa Colony  
12003 Iowa Colony Blvd. 
Iowa Colony, TX 77553 
 
Re: Meridiana Section 80B- Water Distribution and Wastewater Collection Facilities 
 Recommendation for Final Approval of Facilities 

City of Iowa Colony Project No. CSW 180314-0221 
Adico, LLC Project No. 16007-4-135 

  
Dear Mayor Bratsen and City Council; 
 
On behalf of the City of Iowa Colony, Adico, LLC has completed its final inspection of the Meridiana Section 80B Water 
Distribution and Wastewater Collection Facilities. City Council approved this project into the One Year Maintenance Period 
on or about December 16, 2019. 
 
The anniversary inspection was completed on October 4, 2021, with all outstanding punch list items completed February 1, 
2022. Therefore, Adico, LLC recommends final approval of facilities. The effective date shall be February 28, 2022, if approved 
by City Council. 
 
In compliance with the City of Iowa Colony Public Works and Engineering Subdivision Acceptance Checklist, please find 
included in the one-year maintenance acceptance package the following items:  
  

1. Engineer of Record Certification Letter 
2. Maintenance Bond 
3. As-Builts (cover only) 

 
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call our office. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
Adico, LLC 
 
 
Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 
TBPE Firm No. 16423 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cc:  Kayleen Rosser 
 Robert Hemminger 
 File: 16007-4-135 

Cop
y



Cop
y



C:\Users\dpavini\Documents\Doc's & PDF's\2016 doc's & pdf's\Final Inspection Report Sample - Iowa Colony (II).doc 

     
EHRA PROJECT NO.: 081-011-80 

 

    DATE:  __2-1-22_______________ 

FINAL INSPECTION REPORT 
 

  EHRA – ONE YEAR MAINTENANCE         X   EHRA – CITY OF IOWA COLONY                                    
 

  HARRIS COUNTY PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE DEPARTMENT         EHRA – CITY OF MANVEL 
  

  TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY         BRAZORIA COUNTY DRAINAGE DISTRICT 5 
 
 

PROJECT NAME:  _MERIDIANA, SECTION 80_________1 YEAR RE-INSPECTION__________________________    
 

ATTENDEES NAME COMPANY PHONE NO. 

Dave Pavini EHRA 832-580-9996 

Israel Wong Adico/COIC 832-741-0058 

Celso Garcia Principal 832-600-2150 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 

NO. DEFICIENCIES 

**** All deficiencies corrected to satisfaction. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



 
 

 
2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D    S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6      P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3      W W W . A D I C O - L L C . C O M  

 
 

Thursday, February 17, 2022 
 
Mayor Michael Byrum-Bratsen 
City Council 
City of Iowa Colony  
12003 Iowa Colony Blvd. 
Iowa Colony, TX 77553 
 
Re: Meridiana Section 76B Storm and Paving Facilities 

Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 55 
 Recommendation for Acceptance into One-Year Maintenance Period 

City of Iowa Colony Project No. CSW 211015-1287 
Adico, LLC Project No. 16007-4-370 

  
Dear Mayor Byrum-Bratsen and City Council; 
 
On behalf of the City of Iowa Colony, Adico, LLC has completed its final inspection of Meridiana Section 76B Storm and Paving 
Facilities.  The final inspection was held January 18, 2022 with all punch list items completed on or about February 16, 2022. 
 
Based on our review of the closeout documents provided, Adico, LLC recommends acceptance of facilities into the One-Year 
Maintenance Period. The maintenance period shall be effective February 28, 2022, if approved by City Council.  
 
In compliance with the City of Iowa Colony Public Works and Engineering Subdivision Acceptance Checklist, please find 
included in the One-Year Maintenance acceptance package the following items:  
  

1. Engineer of Record Certification Letter 
2. Maintenance Bond 
3. As-Builts (cover only) 

 
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call our office. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
Adico, LLC 
 
 
Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 
TBPE Firm No. 16423 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cc:  Kayleen Rosser 
 Robert Hemminger 
 File: 16007-4-370 
 

Cop
y



P:\081-011-76-01\CPS\Utilities (DST)\Eng Cert of Completion - Meridiana Sec 76B.doc 

Engineers Certificate of Completion 
TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY  

ENGINEER’S CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF WATER DISTRICT PROJECT 

Name of District:  
Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 55 

Owner of property, if other than District: 
GR-M1, Ltd.  

Kind of project, contract identification:  
Water Distribution, Wastewater Collection, Storm Water Facilities and Paving to serve Meridiana 
Meridiana, Section Seventy Six-B 

Name of contractor:  
Rodriguez Construction Group, LLC. 

Name of consulting engineer: 
Edminster, Hinshaw, Russ & Associates, Inc. 

Address of consulting engineer: 
10011 Meadowglen Lane, Houston, Texas 77042 

I certify this project was at least 95% complete on January 18, 2022; that the project was under 

continual observation; that all observation of the work was performed by or under the supervision of 

Jared R. Bowlin, P.E., a Licensed Professional Engineer; that to the best of my knowledge the project 

was in accordance with and includes all items in plans and specifications approved by all authorities 

having jurisdiction; and “record drawings” will be furnished to the District. 

Signed and Sealed, 

 Jared R. Bowlin, P.E. 
 Registration No. 103429 

02/14/2022

Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



 
 

 
2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D    S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6      P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3      W W W . A D I C O - L L C . C O M  

 
 

Thursday, February 17, 2022 

 
Mayor Michael Byrum-Bratsen 
City Council 
City of Iowa Colony  
12003 Iowa Colony Blvd. 
Iowa Colony, TX 77553 
 
 
Re: Meridiana Section 76B Water Distribution and Wastewater Collection 

Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 55 
 Recommendation for Approval into One-Year Maintenance Period 

City of Iowa Colony Project No. CSW 211015-1287 
Adico, LLC Project No. 16007-4-370 

  
Dear Mayor Byrum-Bratsen and City Council; 
 
On behalf of the City of Iowa Colony, Adico, LLC has completed its final inspection of Meridiana Section 76B Water and 
Wastewater Collection.  The final inspection was held January 18, 2022, with all punch list items completed on or about 
February 16, 2022. 
 
Based on our review of the closeout documents provided, Adico, LLC recommends approval of facilities into the One-Year 
Maintenance Period. The maintenance period shall be effective February 28, 2022, if approved by City Council.  
 
In compliance with the City of Iowa Colony Public Works and Engineering Subdivision Acceptance Checklist, please find 
included in the One-Year Maintenance acceptance package the following items:  
  

1. Engineer of Record Certification Letter 
2. Maintenance Bond 
3. As-Builts (cover only) 

 
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call our office. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
Adico, LLC 
 
 
Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 
TBPE Firm No. 16423 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cc:  Kayleen Rosser 
 Robert Hemminger 
 File: 16007-4-370 
 

Cop
y



P:\081-011-76-01\CPS\Utilities (DST)\Eng Cert of Completion - Meridiana Sec 76B.doc 

Engineers Certificate of Completion 
TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY  

ENGINEER’S CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF WATER DISTRICT PROJECT 

Name of District:  
Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 55 

Owner of property, if other than District: 
GR-M1, Ltd.  

Kind of project, contract identification:  
Water Distribution, Wastewater Collection, Storm Water Facilities and Paving to serve Meridiana 
Meridiana, Section Seventy Six-B 

Name of contractor:  
Rodriguez Construction Group, LLC. 

Name of consulting engineer: 
Edminster, Hinshaw, Russ & Associates, Inc. 

Address of consulting engineer: 
10011 Meadowglen Lane, Houston, Texas 77042 

I certify this project was at least 95% complete on January 18, 2022; that the project was under 

continual observation; that all observation of the work was performed by or under the supervision of 

Jared R. Bowlin, P.E., a Licensed Professional Engineer; that to the best of my knowledge the project 

was in accordance with and includes all items in plans and specifications approved by all authorities 

having jurisdiction; and “record drawings” will be furnished to the District. 

Signed and Sealed, 

 Jared R. Bowlin, P.E. 
 Registration No. 103429 

02/14/2022

Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



1 

 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EARLY PLAT APPROVAL 

(Sierra Vista West Subdivision Section 8) 

 

1. Terms and Special Provisions 

 

a. “Developer” herein shall mean:  ASTRO SIERRA VISTA, L.P. 

 

b.  “City” herein shall mean: the CITY OF IOWA COLONY, TEXAS. 

 

 c. “District” herein shall mean: BRAZORIA COUNTY MUNICIPAL 

UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 53. 

 

d. “Section” herein shall mean all of the following, whether one or more: 

Sierra Vista West Subdivision Section 8. 

 

e. “Plat” herein shall mean the plat of the Section. 

 

f. “Facilities” herein shall mean the following infrastructure for the Section, 

as more fully described or shown on the plat, drawings, specifications, bid 

proposals, pay estimates, change orders, affidavits of bills paid, waivers 

and lien releases upon partial payment, and the letter of recommendation 

from the City Engineer, a copy of which letter is attached hereto as 

Exhibit “A”: water, sanitary sewer, drainage, and paving. 

  

g. “Deposited Funds” herein shall mean: Nine Hundred Sixty-Nine 

Thousand Four Hundred Fifty-Six and 08/100 Dollars ($969,456.08). 

 

h. “City’s Administrative Fee” herein shall mean: Nineteen Thousand 
Three Hundred Eighty-Nine and 12/100 Dollars ($19,389.12), 
which has been received by the City and is calculated as follows: 
$19,389.12  2% Administrative Fee 
$  9,694.56 Less 1% as credit for lighted street signs per Letter 
_________ of Understanding dated December 21, 2020 
$  9,694.56 Net Administrative Fee  

 

2. The Developer is developing the Section, in the city limits or extraterritorial 

jurisdiction of the City. The Facilities are included in the Section. The Facilities are under 

construction, pursuant to contract(s) entered into by the District and/or the Developer but have 

not been completed.  

   

3. The Developer has applied for early approval and recording of the Plat of the 

Section pursuant to the procedures, terms, and conditions set forth in Ordinance No. 2018-30 

(the “Early Platting Ordinance”) of the City, which was passed on December 17, 2018, and 

which amended the Subdivision Ordinance.  

 

Cop
y



2 

 

4. This document is not a contract; rather, it states the terms and conditions upon 

which the City hereby approves the Plat of the Section and authorizes early recordation of that 

Plat with the Brazoria County Clerk, pursuant to all terms and conditions of this document and 

the Early Platting Ordinance.  

 

5. The Plat of the Section may be recorded with the Brazoria County Clerk upon 

payment to the City of the amounts required by this document and upon inclusion on that Plat of 

the notations required by Section Three of the Early Platting Ordinance. 

 

6.  After the Plat of the Section has been lawfully recorded pursuant to this 

document, then the fact that the Facilities in the Section have not been completed shall not be a 

cause to deny approval of the plat of the Section and shall not be a cause to deny early plat 

approval and building permits for the Section under the terms and conditions of the Early 

Platting Ordinance. 

 

7. The Developer shall deposit with the City (1) the Deposited Funds for the 

purposes described herein and set forth on Exhibit “A” attached hereto, in lieu of the 

completion of the Facilities in the Section before recordation as would otherwise be required by 

City regulations; and (2) the City’s Administrative Fee under the Early Platting Ordinance.  The 

City’s holding and use of the Deposited Funds and the Administrative Fee shall be governed by 

the Early Platting Ordinance and this document.  

 

8. Regardless of any other provision, the funds paid hereunder shall not be an 

escrow, and the City shall not be an escrow agent, regardless whether any attachments to this 

document or any other sources refer to escrowed funds or similar phrases. Regardless of any 

provision, the City shall not under any circumstances owe any fiduciary duty to Developer or any 

other person in any way concerning this document, the subject matter hereof, or any funds paid 

hereunder.  

 

9. The City Engineer has the right under the Early Platting Ordinance to require the 

deposit of additional funds at any time, if the City Engineer determines in his sole, good faith 

discretion, that the then remaining Deposited Funds are less than 110% of the then remaining 

construction cost of the Facilities. 

 

10. The parties understand that the Deposited Funds represent the funds set aside for 

the Developer to make payments under construction contracts for the Facilities entered into by 

the District and/or Developer (the “Contract”, whether one nor more), under which Contract 

payments are guaranteed by the Developer.  Therefore, the Developer may draw upon the 

Deposited Funds monthly to satisfy progress payments under the Contract for the Facilities; 

provided that (1) the amount of the Deposited Funds shall never be reduced to less than 110% of 

the then remaining cost to complete the construction of the Facilities, as determined by the City 

Engineer in his sole, good faith discretion; and further provided that (2) the Developer is not in 

default under this document or the Early Platting Ordinance.  The time of remittance of any 

required, qualifying progress payments from the City to the Developer shall be within 7 days 

after a regular City Council meeting, if the City receives a written request therefor no later than 5 

Cop
y



3 

 

days before that City Council meeting, and such request shows, to the reasonable satisfaction of 

the City, that the progress payment is valid and required.   

 

11. The return of any unused portion of the Deposited Funds to the Developer upon 

completion of the Facilities shall be as provided in the Early Platting Ordinance. However, the 

Administrative Fee shall be nonrefundable and may be used for any purpose. 

 

12. The City has an interlocal agreement with Brazoria County, providing that the 

City, not Brazoria County, shall regulate subdivision plats in the City’s extraterritorial 

jurisdiction. 

 

13. This document implements the Early Platting Ordinance, which provides 

exceptions to certain requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance, but this document does not 

otherwise waive any requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance.  

 

14. The Developer certifies that it does not boycott the State of Israel and will not 

boycott the State of Israel during the term of this document. 

 

 

EFFECTIVE DATE: FEBRUARY 28, 2022 

 

CITY OF IOWA COLONY, TEXAS 

 

 

By: ____________________________________ 

       Michael Byrum-Bratsen, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary 

Cop
y



4 

 

ACCEPTED: 

 

ASTRO SIERRA VISTA, L.P.,  

A Delaware Limited Partnership 

 

By: ASTRO SIERRA VISTA GP, L.L.C. 

 A Delaware Limited Liability Company,  

 As Its General Partner 

 

By: ___________________________ 

  Melanie Ohl 

Authorized Signer 

Cop
y



5 

 

 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT “A” to 
Terms and Conditions of Early Plat Approval 

 
Letter of Recommendation 

With Its Attachment(s) 
 
 
 

Cop
y



 
 

2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D      S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6      P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3      W W W . A D I C O - L L C . C O M  

   

Wednesday, February 16, 2022 
 
Mayor Michael Byrum-Bratsen 
c/o City Council 
City of Iowa Colony  
12003 Iowa Colony Blvd. 
Iowa Colony, TX 77553 
 
Re: Sierra Vista West Section 8 
 Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 53 
 Astro Sierra Vista, L.P. 
 Early Plat Application Request 
 Letter of Recommendation to Approve 
 Adico Project No. 21001-15 
 
Dear Mayor Byrum-Bratsen and City Council; 
 
On behalf of the City of Iowa Colony, Adico, LLC has received an Early Plat Application Request (attached) on or about 
October 28, 2021, from Elevation Land Solutions, on behalf of Astro Sierra Vista, L.P., for Sierra Vista West Section 8. The 
Developer is proposing to record the plat in accordance with the City of Iowa Colony Subdivision Ordinance, as amended per 
Ordinance 2018-30.   
 
Infrastructure construction plans have been approved and construction is currently ongoing. Sierra Vista West Section 8 
Revised Final Plat was approved by Planning Commission in February 2022 and is currently on the City Council Agenda for 
approval.  
 

 
 
Elevation Land Solutions has provided copies of bid documents, pay estimates, Affidavit of Bills Paid, Waiver and Lien Release 
upon Partial Payment and payment acknowledgements for this project.  Based on our review of the documentation provided, 
the amount remaining on the current contracts is $881,323.71 Per the Ordinance, a cash deposit of 110% of the remaining 
construction cost is required to be escrowed with the City. The total cash deposit shall be $969,456.08.  
 
In addition, a 2% administrative fee based on remaining construction cost is required at the time of application submittal. The 
administrative fee $19,389.12. This fee is reduced by 50% based on the Letter of Understanding dated December 21, 2020, 
regarding the illuminated street sign credit. The City has received the administrative fee of $9,694.56. 
 
Based on our review of the documents provided, we have no objections to the Early Plat Application Request for Sierra Vista 
West Section 8. This approval is contingent on City Council approving the revised final plat on the current agenda. 
 
The Developer shall provide the cash deposit in the amount of $969,456.08 to the City within 10 working days from the date 
of the agreement, if approved by City Council.  

Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call our office. 

 
Sincerely, 
Adico, LLC 
 
 
Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 
TBPE Firm No. 16423 

Contract Contractor Original Contract Change Orders Confirmed Payments Applicable Early Plat Portion

Water, Sanitary and Drainage Principal Services, LTD 1,074,217.07$                           896,019.36$                                    178,197.71$                                       

Paving Bay Paving, LLC 703,126.00$                              703,126.00$                                       

Total Remaining Contract Amount 881,323.71$                                       

Contingency @ 10% 88,132.37$                                         

Total Escrow of Cash Deposit due to City (within 10 days of CC approval) 969,456.08$                                       

Administrative Fee @ 2% of $969,456.08 Due at time of application 19,389.12$                                        

Admin Fee @ 50% per agreement re Street Lights 9,694.56$                                           

SIERRA VISTA WEST SECTION 8 EARLY PLAT ESCROW SUMMARY

Cop
y



Sierra Vista West Section 8 
Early Plat Application Request 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 

2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D      S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6      P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3      W W W . A D I C O - L L C . C O M  

 

 
 
cc:   Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary (krosser@iowacolonytx.gov) 
        Robert Hemminger, City Manager (rhemminger@iowacolonytx.gov)  
        Larry Boyd, City Attorney (larryboyd@swbell.net)  

   

Cop
y

mailto:krosser@iowacolonytx.gov
mailto:rhemminger@iowacolonytx.gov
mailto:larryboyd@swbell.net


 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
January 27, 2022 
 
 
 
 
Dinh V. Ho, PE 
Adico Consulting Engineers 
On behalf of City of Iowa Colony 
2114 El Dorado Blvd., Suite 400 
Friendswood, Texas 77546 
 
Re: Early Plat Release Application Request 
 Sierra Vista West Section 8 
 
  
Mr. Ho: 
 
On behalf of Land Tejas, this letter is to formally request the City of Iowa Colony process an application for an 
early plat escrow in connection with Sierra Vista West Section 8. Our intention is to obtain a recorded plat by 
March subject to City Council approval and deposit of escrowed funds per the agreement.   
 
This escrow is proposed to include funds to complete the construction of water, sanitary, drainage and paving 
for the above referenced project. Construction of the project is currently in progress, and we anticipate will be 
complete by March.  
 
Exhibit A (attached) is a summary of the contract amounts and estimates for this project which is the basis for 
calculating the 2% administrative fee per the City’s policy. The calculated fee is reduced by 50% based on the 
Letter of Understanding dated December 21,2020 regarding the illuminated street sign credit. Land Tejas will 
be submitting this fee to City Hall concurrently with this request.  
 
If you have any questions, please call us.  
 
 
Best Regards,  
 
 
 
 
Travis H. Harrison, PE 
Project Manager 
 
Cc:  Josh Wadley – Land Tejas 
 

 
 

Cop
y



Project Contractor

Original Contract 

Amount Change Orders

Current Contract 

Amount Payments to Date

Remaining Contract 

Amount

1. Section 8 WSD Principal 1,074,217.07$         -$                    1,074,217.07$          896,019.36$            178,197.71$                

2. Section 8 Paving Bay 703,126.00$            -$                    703,126.00$             -$                          703,126.00$                

Total Construction Contract Remaining 881,323.71$                

Contingency (10%) 88,132.37                    

Total Escrow 969,456.08$                
(2)

City of Iowa Colony Administrative Fee (2%) 19,389.12$                  

Applied Credit for Illuminated Street Name Signs Agreement (50% Credit) (9,694.56)                     

Administrative Fee Due at Time of Application 9,694.56$                    
(1)

Total Credit for Illuminated Street Name Signs Agreement dated 12/21/20 75,417.16$                  

Applied Credit for Sierra Vista West Section 6 Application (11,217.81)                   

Applied Credit for Sierra Vista West Section 4 Application (36,495.08)                   

Applied Credit for Sierra Vista West Section 7 Application (17,404.85)                   

Applied Credit for Sierra Vista West Section 8 Application (this application) (9,694.56)                     

Remaining Credit for Section 9 Application 604.86$                        

Notes:

(1) Administrative fee due to City of Iowa Colony at time of application.

(2) Escrow deposit due within 10 business days following City Council approval.  

CITY OF IOWA COLONY - CONSTRUCTION ESCROW SUMMARY

SIERRA VISTA WEST SECTION 8

January 25, 2022

Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



1 

 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EARLY PLAT APPROVAL 

(Sierra Vista West Subdivision Section 9) 

 

1. Terms and Special Provisions 

 

a. “Developer” herein shall mean:  ASTRO SIERRA VISTA, L.P. 

 

b.  “City” herein shall mean: the CITY OF IOWA COLONY, TEXAS. 

 

 c. “District” herein shall mean: BRAZORIA COUNTY MUNICIPAL 

UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 53. 

 

d. “Section” herein shall mean all of the following, whether one or more: 

Sierra Vista West Subdivision Section 9. 

 

e. “Plat” herein shall mean the plat of the Section. 

 

f. “Facilities” herein shall mean the following infrastructure for the Section, 

as more fully described or shown on the plat, drawings, specifications, bid 

proposals, pay estimates, change orders, affidavits of bills paid, waivers 

and lien releases upon partial payment, and the letter of recommendation 

from the City Engineer, a copy of which letter is attached hereto as 

Exhibit “A”: water, sanitary sewer, drainage, and paving. 

  

g. “Deposited Funds” herein shall mean: One Million Three Hundred 

Forty-Six Thousand Eight Hundred Ninety-Seven and 29/100 Dollars 

($1,346,897.29). 

 

h. “City’s Administrative Fee” herein shall mean: Twenty-Six 
Thousand Nine Hundred Thirty-Seven and 95/100 Dollars 
($26,937.95), which has been received by the City and is 
calculated as follows: 
$26,937.95  2% Administrative Fee 
$     604.86 Less remaining credit for lighted street signs per  
 _________ Letter of Understanding dated December 21, 2020 
$26,333.09 Net Administrative Fee  

 

2. The Developer is developing the Section, in the city limits or extraterritorial 

jurisdiction of the City. The Facilities are included in the Section. The Facilities are under 

construction, pursuant to contract(s) entered into by the District and/or the Developer but have 

not been completed.  

   

3. The Developer has applied for early approval and recording of the Plat of the 

Section pursuant to the procedures, terms, and conditions set forth in Ordinance No. 2018-30 

(the “Early Platting Ordinance”) of the City, which was passed on December 17, 2018, and 

which amended the Subdivision Ordinance.  

Cop
y



2 

 

 

4. This document is not a contract; rather, it states the terms and conditions upon 

which the City hereby approves the Plat of the Section and authorizes early recordation of that 

Plat with the Brazoria County Clerk, pursuant to all terms and conditions of this document and 

the Early Platting Ordinance.  

 

5. The Plat of the Section may be recorded with the Brazoria County Clerk upon 

payment to the City of the amounts required by this document and upon inclusion on that Plat of 

the notations required by Section Three of the Early Platting Ordinance. 

 

6.  After the Plat of the Section has been lawfully recorded pursuant to this 

document, then the fact that the Facilities in the Section have not been completed shall not be a 

cause to deny approval of the plat of the Section and shall not be a cause to deny early plat 

approval and building permits for the Section under the terms and conditions of the Early 

Platting Ordinance. 

 

7. The Developer shall deposit with the City (1) the Deposited Funds for the 

purposes described herein and set forth on Exhibit “A” attached hereto, in lieu of the 

completion of the Facilities in the Section before recordation as would otherwise be required by 

City regulations; and (2) the City’s Administrative Fee under the Early Platting Ordinance.  The 

City’s holding and use of the Deposited Funds and the Administrative Fee shall be governed by 

the Early Platting Ordinance and this document.  

 

8. Regardless of any other provision, the funds paid hereunder shall not be an 

escrow, and the City shall not be an escrow agent, regardless whether any attachments to this 

document or any other sources refer to escrowed funds or similar phrases. Regardless of any 

provision, the City shall not under any circumstances owe any fiduciary duty to Developer or any 

other person in any way concerning this document, the subject matter hereof, or any funds paid 

hereunder.  

 

9. The City Engineer has the right under the Early Platting Ordinance to require the 

deposit of additional funds at any time, if the City Engineer determines in his sole, good faith 

discretion, that the then remaining Deposited Funds are less than 110% of the then remaining 

construction cost of the Facilities. 

 

10. The parties understand that the Deposited Funds represent the funds set aside for 

the Developer to make payments under construction contracts for the Facilities entered into by 

the District and/or Developer (the “Contract”, whether one nor more), under which Contract 

payments are guaranteed by the Developer.  Therefore, the Developer may draw upon the 

Deposited Funds monthly to satisfy progress payments under the Contract for the Facilities; 

provided that (1) the amount of the Deposited Funds shall never be reduced to less than 110% of 

the then remaining cost to complete the construction of the Facilities, as determined by the City 

Engineer in his sole, good faith discretion; and further provided that (2) the Developer is not in 

default under this document or the Early Platting Ordinance.  The time of remittance of any 

required, qualifying progress payments from the City to the Developer shall be within 7 days 

after a regular City Council meeting, if the City receives a written request therefor no later than 5 

Cop
y



3 

 

days before that City Council meeting, and such request shows, to the reasonable satisfaction of 

the City, that the progress payment is valid and required.   

 

11. The return of any unused portion of the Deposited Funds to the Developer upon 

completion of the Facilities shall be as provided in the Early Platting Ordinance. However, the 

Administrative Fee shall be nonrefundable and may be used for any purpose. 

 

12. The City has an interlocal agreement with Brazoria County, providing that the 

City, not Brazoria County, shall regulate subdivision plats in the City’s extraterritorial 

jurisdiction. 

 

13. This document implements the Early Platting Ordinance, which provides 

exceptions to certain requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance, but this document does not 

otherwise waive any requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance.  

 

14. The Developer certifies that it does not boycott the State of Israel and will not 

boycott the State of Israel during the term of this document. 

 

 

EFFECTIVE DATE: FEBRUARY 28, 2022 

 

CITY OF IOWA COLONY, TEXAS 

 

 

By: ____________________________________ 

       Michael Byrum-Bratsen, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary 

Cop
y



4 

 

ACCEPTED: 

 

ASTRO SIERRA VISTA, L.P.,  

A Delaware Limited Partnership 

 

By: ASTRO SIERRA VISTA GP, L.L.C. 

 A Delaware Limited Liability Company,  

 As Its General Partner 

 

By: ___________________________ 

  Melanie Ohl 

Authorized Signer 

Cop
y



5 

 

 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT “A” to 
Terms and Conditions of Early Plat Approval 

 
Letter of Recommendation 

With Its Attachment(s) 
 
 
 

Cop
y



 
 

2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D      S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6      P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3      W W W . A D I C O - L L C . C O M  

   

Wednesday, February 16, 2022 
 
Mayor Michael Byrum-Bratsen 
c/o City Council 
City of Iowa Colony  
12003 Iowa Colony Blvd. 
Iowa Colony, TX 77553 
 
Re: Sierra Vista West Section 9 
 Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 53 
 Astro Sierra Vista, L.P. 
 Early Plat Application Request 
 Letter of Recommendation to Approve 
 Adico Project No. 21001-15 
 
Dear Mayor Byrum-Bratsen and City Council; 
 
On behalf of the City of Iowa Colony, Adico, LLC has received an Early Plat Application Request (attached) on or about 
October 28, 2021, from Elevation Land Solutions, on behalf of Astro Sierra Vista, L.P., for Sierra Vista West Section 9. The 
Developer is proposing to record the plat in accordance with the City of Iowa Colony Subdivision Ordinance, as amended per 
Ordinance 2018-30.   
 
Infrastructure construction plans have been approved and construction is currently ongoing. Sierra Vista West Section 9 
Revised Final Plat was approved by Planning Commission in February 2022 and is currently on the City Council Agenda for 
approval. 
 

 
 
Elevation Land Solutions has provided copies of bid documents, pay estimates, Affidavit of Bills Paid, Waiver and Lien Release 
upon Partial Payment and payment acknowledgements for this project.  Based on our review of the documentation provided, 
the amount remaining on the current contracts is $1,224,452.08. Per the Ordinance, a cash deposit of 110% of the remaining 
construction cost is required to be escrowed with the City. The total cash deposit shall be $1,346,897.29.  
 
In addition, a 2% administrative fee based on remaining construction cost is required at the time of application submittal. The 
calculated administrative fee is $26,937.95. This fee is reduced by 50% based on the Letter of Understanding dated December 
21, 2020, regarding the illuminated street sign credit. The remaining credit on the Letter of Understanding is $604.86 from 
previous early plat applications. The total administrative fee shall be $26,333.09. 
 
Based on our review of the documents provided, we have no objections to the Early Plat Application Request for Sierra Vista 
West Section 9. This approval is contingent on City Council approving the revised final plat on the current agenda. 
 
The Developer shall provide the cash deposit in the amount of $1,346,897.29 to the City within 10 working days from the date 
of the agreement, if approved by City Council.  

Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call our office. 

Sincerely, 
Adico, LLC 
 
 
Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 
TBPE Firm No. 16423 

Contract Contractor Original Contract Change Orders Confirmed Payments Applicable Early Plat Portion

Water, Sanitary and Drainage Principal Services, LTD 1,365,425.84$                           1,147,370.26$                                218,055.58$                                       

Paving Bay Utilities 1,006,396.50$                           1,006,396.50$                                   

Total Remaining Contract Amount 1,224,452.08$                                   

Contingency @ 10% 122,445.21$                                       

Total Escrow of Cash Deposit due to City (within 10 days of CC approval) 1,346,897.29$                                   

Administrative Fee @ 2% of $1,346,897.29 Due at time of application 26,937.95$                                        

Admin Fee @ 50% per agreement re Street Lights. Remaining Credit: $604.86 26,333.09$                                         

SIERRA VISTA WEST SECTION 9 EARLY PLAT ESCROW SUMMARY

Cop
y



Sierra Vista West Section 9 
Early Plat Application Request 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 

2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D      S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6      P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3      W W W . A D I C O - L L C . C O M  

 

 
 
cc:   Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary (krosser@iowacolonytx.gov) 
        Robert Hemminger, City Manager (rhemminger@iowacolonytx.gov)  
        Larry Boyd, City Attorney (larryboyd@swbell.net)  

   

Cop
y

mailto:krosser@iowacolonytx.gov
mailto:rhemminger@iowacolonytx.gov
mailto:larryboyd@swbell.net


 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
January 20, 2022 
 
 
 
 
Dinh V. Ho, PE 
Adico Consulting Engineers 
On behalf of City of Iowa Colony 
2114 El Dorado Blvd., Suite 400 
Friendswood, Texas 77546 
 
Re: Early Plat Release Application Request 
 Sierra Vista West Section 9 
 
  
Mr. Ho: 
 
On behalf of Land Tejas, this letter is to formally request the City of Iowa Colony process an application for an 
early plat escrow in connection with Sierra Vista West Section 9. Our intention is to obtain a recorded plat by 
March subject to City Council approval and deposit of escrowed funds per the agreement.   
 
This escrow is proposed to include funds to complete the construction of water, sanitary, drainage and paving 
for the above referenced project. Construction of the project is currently in progress, and we anticipate will be 
complete by March.  
 
Exhibit A (attached) is a summary of the contract amounts and estimates for this project which is the basis for 
calculating the 2% administrative fee per the City’s policy. The calculated fee is reduced based on the Letter 
of Understanding dated December 21,2020 regarding the illuminated street sign credit. Land Tejas will be 
submitting this fee to City Hall concurrently with this request.  
 
If you have any questions, please call us.  
 
 
Best Regards,  
 
 
 
 
Travis H. Harrison, PE 
Project Manager 
 
Cc:  Josh Wadley – Land Tejas 
 

 
 

Cop
y



Project Contractor

Original Contract 

Amount Change Orders

Current Contract 

Amount Payments to Date

Remaining Contract 

Amount

1. Section 9 WSD Principal 1,365,425.84$         -$                    1,365,425.84$          1,147,370.26$         218,055.58$                

2. Section 9 Paving Bay 1,006,396.50$         -$                    1,006,396.50$          -$                          1,006,396.50$             

Total Construction Contract Remaining 1,224,452.08$             

Contingency (10%) 122,445.21                  

Total Escrow 1,346,897.29$             
(2)

City of Iowa Colony Administrative Fee (2%) 26,937.95$                  

Applied Credit for Illuminated Street Name Signs Agreement (Remaining Credit) (604.86)$                      

Administrative Fee Due at Time of Application 26,333.09$                  
(1)

Notes:

(1) Administrative fee due to City of Iowa Colony at time of application.

(2) Escrow deposit due within 10 business days following City Council approval.  

CITY OF IOWA COLONY - CONSTRUCTION ESCROW SUMMARY

SIERRA VISTA WEST SECTION 9

January 25, 2022

Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



 
 

 
2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D      S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6      P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3      W W W . A D I C O - L L C . C O M  

   

Thursday, February 17, 2022 
 
Mayor Michael Byrum-Bratsen 
c/o City Council 
City of Iowa Colony  
12003 Iowa Colony Blvd. 
Iowa Colony, TX 77553 
 
Re: Sierra Vista West Section 7 Early Plat 
 Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 53 
 Letter of Recommendation to Approve Disbursement Request No. 2., Feb 2022 
 Adico Project No. 21001-05 
 
Dear Mayor Byrum-Bratsen and City Council; 
 
On behalf of the City of Iowa Colony, Adico, LLC has reviewed Disbursement Request No. 2 from Land Tejas Sierra Vista 
West, LLC for Sierra Vista West Section 7 Early Plat Recordation Agreement. 
 
Elevation Land Solutions has provided copies of the approved pay estimates and supporting documents for our review. Below 
is a brief overview. 
 

 
 
Based on our review of the documentation provided, Adico has no objections to Disbursement Request No. 2 to Land Tejas 
Vista West, LLC in the amount of $755,963.02. After Disbursement No. 2, the remaining balance of the cash deposit is 
$137,998.43. 

Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call our office. 

 
Sincerely, 
Adico, LLC 
 
 
Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 
TBPE Firm No. 16423 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
cc:   Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary (krosser@iowacolonytx.gov) 
        Robert Hemminger, City Manager (rhemminger@iowacolonytx.gov)  

   

ESCROW AMOUNT: 1,582,258.86$                               

CONTINGENCY @ 10% 158,225.89$                                   

TOTAL ESCROW AND CONTINGENCY DEPOSIT 1,740,484.75$                               

Date of Request Request Subtotal 10% Contingency Change Orders Total Disbursement Remaining Escrow

Disbursement Request No. 1 Dec-21 769,566.63$                 76,956.66$                       846,523.29$                       893,961.45$                    

Disbursement Request No. 2 Feb-22 704,050.11$                 70,405.01$                       18,492.10$                       755,963.02$                       137,998.43$                    

TOTALS 1,473,616.74$             147,361.67$                     18,492.10$                       1,602,486.31$                    137,998.43$                    

Cop
y

mailto:krosser@iowacolonytx.gov
mailto:rhemminger@iowacolonytx.gov


Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y


	City Engineer's CC Report 02.24.2022.pdf (p.1-2)
	2021 Racial Profiling Report City Council.pdf (p.3-129)
	2021 Council Letter.pdf
	Iowa Colony 2021 Racial Profiling Report-Final.pdf
	Iowa Colony
	Cover
	Table of Contents
	Table of Contents
	Blank
	Blank
	Article Title Page
	Article Title Page
	Blank
	Blank
	Article Title Page 2
	Article Title Page 2
	Blank
	Blank
	Blank
	Blank
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30


	2021 Racial Profiling Report TCOLE.pdf
	2021 Email Confirmation TCOLE.pdf

	January_2022_FM_BO_Report.pdf (p.130)
	Janurary 2022.pdf (p.131-132)
	Notice of Drawing for a place on the ballot.pdf (p.133)
	GLBalanceSheetReport12_21 PM (1).pdf (p.134-163)
	GLFinancialStatement12_19 PM (1).pdf (p.164-221)
	PublicWorks Jobs 2022.pdf (p.222-233)
	Resolution - Notice  of Intent (2) (2).pdf (p.234-237)
	ROSHARON DEVELOPMENT PRESENTATION - IOWA CITY_TALKING PRESENTATION_01-12-2022 (2) (1).pdf (p.238-259)
	Sierra Vista Development
	S U M M A R Y	O F	C O N T E N T
	IOWA COLONY AND MERIDIANA PARKWAY AERIAL
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	PRESENTED BY

	Staff's Memo SV Multi-Family 01.27.2021 (1).pdf (p.260)
	UDC Variance- Northeast Corner of Davenport and Crystal View Drive (1).pdf (p.261)
	1.10.22- Draft Council Minutes.pdf (p.262-265)
	1.10.22 Minutes Attachment.pdf (p.266-268)
	Page 1 - Attachment.pdf (p.1)
	Page 2- Attachment.pdf (p.2)
	Page 3- Attachement.pdf (p.3)

	1.11.22- Draft Council Minutes.pdf (p.269-270)
	LOR to Approve MER 55A PP Pkg 01262022 (3).pdf (p.271-272)
	LOR to Approve REVISED SVW8 FP Pkg 01282022.pdf (p.273-275)
	SierraVistaWest Sec8 FinalPlat-24x36 PLAT DEED
	PLAT MAP

	LOR to Approve REVISED SVW9 FP Pkg 01282022.pdf (p.276-278)
	SierraVistaWest Sec9 FinalPlat-24x36 PLAT DEED
	PLAT MAP

	LOR to Approve SV9 PP Pkg 01272022 (2).pdf (p.279-280)
	Layout1

	LOR to Approve with Cond AISD Nichols-Mock Elem FP Pkg 01252022 (2).pdf (p.281-283)
	2.1.2022- Draft P&Z Minutes (1).pdf (p.284-285)
	City of Iowa Colony Bond Engagement Letter - 2-28-22 (1).pdf (p.286-292)
	City of Iowa Colony Resolution Approving Opioid Settlements and Re-approving Texas Term Sheet_ (1).pdf (p.293-294)
	City of Iowa Colony Resolution re Engagement with Disclosure Counsel(104777399.1).pdf (p.295-296)
	ENDO TX Subdivision Release Form (1).pdf (p.297-298)
	LOR MER 80A Storm & Paving Final Acceptance Pkg 02172022.pdf (p.299-306)
	LOR MER 80A Water and Sanitary Final Approval Pkg 02172022.pdf (p.307-314)
	LOR MER 80B Storm & Paving Final Acceptance Pkg 02172022.pdf (p.315-322)
	LOR MER 80B Water and Sanitary Final Approval Pkg 02172022.pdf (p.323-330)
	LOR OYMP Acceptance MER 76B Storm and Paving Pkg 02172022.pdf (p.331-337)
	Engineers Certificate of Completion
	Name of District:
	Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 55
	Owner of property, if other than District:
	GR-M1, Ltd.
	Kind of project, contract identification:
	Water Distribution, Wastewater Collection, Storm Water Facilities and Paving to serve Meridiana Meridiana, Section Seventy Six-B

	Name of contractor:
	Rodriguez Construction Group, LLC.
	I certify this project was at least 95% complete on January 18, 2022; that the project was under continual observation; that all observation of the work was performed by or under the supervision of Jared R. Bowlin, P.E., a Licensed Professional Engine...

	Registration No. 103429

	LOR OYMP Approval MER 76B Water and Sanitary Pkg 02172022.pdf (p.338-344)
	Engineers Certificate of Completion
	Name of District:
	Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 55
	Owner of property, if other than District:
	GR-M1, Ltd.
	Kind of project, contract identification:
	Water Distribution, Wastewater Collection, Storm Water Facilities and Paving to serve Meridiana Meridiana, Section Seventy Six-B

	Name of contractor:
	Rodriguez Construction Group, LLC.
	I certify this project was at least 95% complete on January 18, 2022; that the project was under continual observation; that all observation of the work was performed by or under the supervision of Jared R. Bowlin, P.E., a Licensed Professional Engine...

	Registration No. 103429

	SV West Early Plat Sec 8 Approval.pdf (p.345-349)
	LOR to Approve SVW8 Early Plat Application Pkg 02162022 (1).pdf (p.350-356)
	SV West Early Plat Sec 9 Approval.pdf (p.357-361)
	LOR to Approve SVW9 Early Plat Application Pkg 02162022 (1).pdf (p.362-368)
	LOR to Approve SVW7 EP Disbursement No. 2 Pkg 02172022.pdf (p.369-371)
	Public Notice-Cert. of Obligation.pdf (p.372)

